o
HALTON Audit and Governance Board

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Wednesday, 20 November 2024 at 6.30
p.m.
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

Q
5 oy

Chief Executive

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Rob Polhill (Chair) Labour
Councillor Andrea Wall (Vice-Chair) Labour
Councillor John Abbott Labour
Councillor Victoria Begg Labour
Councillor Neil Connolly Labour
Councillor Eddie Dourley Labour
Councillor Robert Gilligan Labour
Councillor Tony McDermott Labour
Councillor Norman Plumpton Walsh Labour
Councillor Margaret Ratcliffe Liberal Democrats
Councillor Pamela Wallace Labour

Please contact Gill Ferguson on 0151 511 8059 or e-mail
gill.ferguson@halton.gov.uk for further information.

The next meeting of the Board is on Wednesday, 19 March 2025



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No.
1. MINUTES
2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary interests, to
leave the meeting during any discussion or voting on the item.

3. TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME GOVERNANCE
ARRANGEMENTS

4. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2023/24

5. 2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS, AUDIT FINDINGS
REPORT AND LETTER OF REPRESENTATION

6. EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

7. REVIEW OF AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE BOARD TERMS OF
REFERENCE

8. SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO
INFORMATION) ACT 1985

PART Il

In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the press and
public and, in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that under Section 100A(4) of
the Local Government Act 1972, having been satisfied that in all
the circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information, the press and public be excluded from the meeting
for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Page No.

1-5

6-20

21-45

46 - 261

262 - 315

316 - 325

326 - 460



In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE BOARD

At a meeting of the Audit and Governance Board held on Wednesday, 25 September
2024 at The Board Room - Municipal Building, Widnes

Present: Councillors Polhill (Chair), Wall (Vice-Chair), Abbott, Begg, Connolly,
Dourley, Gilligan, McDermott and Wallace

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Ratcliffe
Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: E. Dawson, M. Murphy, K. Keane, A. Jones, S. Baker and
M. Guest

Also in attendance: None

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE BOARD

Action
AGB9 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2024,
were taken as read and signed as a correct record.

AGB10 INTERNAL AUDIT PEER REVIEW

The Board considered a report from the Head of
Audit, Procurement and Operational Finance, which
presented the Internal Audit Peer Review.

It was a requirement of the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards (PSIAS) that an external assessment of the
Council’s internal audit arrangements should carried out
every 5 years. To fulfil this requirement, an independent
peer review of the Council’s internal audit arrangements was
conducted in February 2024 by senior internal audit
representatives from other North West authorities. The
Halton Borough Council Peer Review of Internal Audit
Service Against the UK Public Internal Audit Standards was
appended to the report. It was noted that the purpose of the
external assessment was to help improve delivery of the
audit service and to establish whether governance
requirements relating to the provision of the service were
embedded.




AGB11

AGB12

Page 2

The approach taken, findings and agreed actions
from this review were set out within the report, which
concluded that the Council’s internal audit arrangements
confirmed to the PSIAS. It was noted that many positive
observations and good practices were identified by the
review team and any recommendations made were intended
to add value by strengthening the existing arrangements
further. Officers advised that all recommendations were
agreed and would be implemented.

RESOLVED: That Members note the outcome of the
external assessment of the Council’s Integral Audit function
against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

EXTERNAL AUDIT FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY LETTER

The Board considered a letter received by the Council
from the External Auditor (Grant Thornton UK LLP)
regarding the Council’s financial sustainability. The letter
raised the External Auditor’'s concerns regarding significant
weaknesses in the Council’'s arrangements for securing
value for money.

It was noted that the Chief Executive and Director of
Finance had met with the External Auditor to discuss the
issues raised within the letter. The Council was aware of its
financial position and ongoing financial challenges and was
taking various steps to address them as a matter of urgency,
whilst also continuing a dialogue with Government.

The comments made by Members regarding the
timing of the letter were noted. It was confirmed that this
would be taken to the Labour Group meeting on 1 October.

RESOLVED: That the contents of the letter from
Grant Thornton UK LLP shown in the appendix be noted.

ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION UPDATE

The Board considered a report of the Operational
Director, Finance, which provided an annual update on
developments in regard to the Council’s anti-fraud and anti-
corruption activity.

It was reported that the Board was responsible for the
monitoring and reviewing the adequacy of the Council’s anti-
fraud and anti-corruption arrangements, which was a key
aspect of the Council’'s risk management, control and
governance framework.




AGB13

AGB14

AGB15

AGB16

Page 3

The Board considered information relating to the
following activities:

The fraud risk landscape;

Reported fraud investigations from 2023/24;

HR related investigations from 2023/24;
Whistleblowing complaints received and action taken;
An update on the National Fraud Initiative;

Details of fraud investigation related information
reported under the Transparency Code;

Details of ongoing and planned anti-fraud work; and

e Details of the Council's suite of anti-fraud and anti-
corruption related policies.

RESOLVED: That

1) the annual update report on anti-fraud and corruption
related activity be noted;

2) the counter fraud work being undertaken be
supported; and

3) the minor change made to the Whistleblowing Policy
be noted.

2023/24 EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT

Due to the unforeseen absence of the External
Auditor, this item was deferred to the November meeting.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2023-24

Due to the unforeseen absence of the External
Auditor, this item was deferred to the November meeting.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS, AUDIT FINDINGS
REPORT AND LETTER OF REPRESENTATION

Due to the unforeseen absence of the External
Auditor, this item was deferred to the November meeting.

SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT
1972 AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO
INFORMATION) ACT 1985

The Board considered:
1) whether members of the press and public should be

excluded from the meeting of the Board during
consideration of the following items of business in




AGB17

Page 4

accordance with Sub-Section 4 of Section 100A of
the Local Government Act 1972, because it was likely
that, in view of the nature of the business to be
considered, exempt information would be disclosed,
being information defined in Section 100 (1) and
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972; and

2) whether the disclosure of information was in the
public interest, whether any relevant exemptions were
applicable and whether, when applying the public
interest test and exemptions, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighed that in
disclosing the information.

RESOLVED: That, as in all the circumstances of the
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information,
members of the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the following item of
business, in accordance with Sub-Section 4 of Section 100A
of the Local Government Act 1972 because it was likely that,
in view of the nature of the business, exempt information
would be disclosed, being information defined in Section 100
(1) and paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Board received a report from the Head of Audit,
Procurement and Operational Finance, updating Members
on the internal audit activity since the last progress report to
the Board on 26 June 2024. It also highlighted any matters
that were relevant to the Board’s responsibilities as the
Council’s Audit Committee.

Members were referred to appendix one, which listed
all the planned work for the year and its current status. The
schedule of audits had been updated to reflect the progress
made in completing audits since the last update to the
Board. By the end of August 2024, 429 days of audit work
had been completed, which represented 37% of the total
planned days for the year.

Appended to the report were the executive
summaries of the reports issued numbering 2 to 12, as listed
in the report. Tthe Board expressed concerns at the findings
relating to the audit of Children’s Services Commissioning
and agreed that a further audit of the area be carried out as
part of the 2025/26 Internal Audit Plan.




Page 5

RESOLVED: That the Internal Audit Progress Report | Head of Audit,
and comments made be noted. Procurement &
Operational
Finance

Meeting ended at 7.15 p.m.



Page 6 Agenda Item 3

REPORT TO: Audit & Governance Board
DATE: 20 November 2024

REPORTING OFFICER: Corporate Director —
Chief Executive’s Delivery Unit

PORTFOLIO: Corporate Services

SUBJECT: Transformation Programme Governance
Arrangements

WARD(S) Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To inform the Board of the governance arrangements for the

Council’s Transformation Programme.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the report is noted.
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION
3.1 The Council’s Transformation Programme started to operate on 1t

April 2023, since when it has grown in both scope and complexity.
The programme is in place until 315t March 2026.

3.2 The governance of the Programme primarily sat with the Executive
Board, who acted as the ‘Programme Board'.

3.3 As the programme entered its second year of operation, it was
noted that the breadth and depth of the projects within the
programme had grown, the monitoring of project performance,
interface with other disciplines within the Council, and the
monitoring and management of benefits, risks and issues has
become more complex.

3.4 In August 2024 a Transformation Programme Board was
established. This is formed of a working party consisting of the ten
Executive Board members. A number of officers also form part of
the Transformation Programme Board to facilitate and support its
operation.

Where a project sits within an Executive Portfolio, the Portfolio
3.5 Holder assumes the role of the ‘Lead Member within that
transformation project.



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 7

A level of scrutiny operates across the projects within the
programme through Topic Groups, led by the Chairs of relevant
Policy & Performance Boards. Any recommendations emerging
from this scrutiny are referred to the Transformation Programme
Board, via the Lead Member for the respective project.

The Transformation Programme Board is in place to provide
governance and oversight and has no delegated authority within the
scope of the Council's Constitution. The Board may make
recommendations to the Executive Board as and when required.
Where a formal decision is required following the Board’'s
consideration of any matter within its purview, that decision is
referred to be included in the agenda of the next available meeting
of the Executive Board.

The Terms of Reference for the Transformation Programme Board
are appended to this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct policy implications arising from this proposal.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The oversight provided by the Transformation Programme Board
is a key element in the achievement of financial benefits within the

Transformation Programme, which in turn contributes to the
Councils financial standing.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting Greater
Independence

The Transformation Programme has links to the delivery of all
corporate priorities.

Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy

The Transformation Programme has links to the delivery of all
corporate priorities.

Supporting Children, Young People and Families



Page 8

The Transformation Programme has links to the delivery of all
corporate priorities.

6.4
Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need
The Transformation Programme has links to the delivery of all
corporate priorities.

6.5
Working Towards a Greener Future
The Transformation Programme has links to the delivery of all
corporate priorities.

6.6 _ _ :
Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community
The Transformation Programme has links to the delivery of all
corporate priorities.

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS

7.1 Failure to apply a sufficient level of governance and oversight to the
Transformation Programme may result in opportunities being
missed, financial and non-financial benefits not being achieved, with
existing and future service delivery being compromised.

7.2 The Transformation Programme Board will monitor the programme
risk register as part of its oversight role.

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

8.1 There is the possibility of the emergence of Equality & Diversity

issues across the Council’s service portfolio where transformation
project work is undertaken. These issues would be addressed on a
case-by-case basis and monitored by the Transformation
Programme Board.

9.0 CLIMATE CHANGE

9.1 There are no direct climate change implications.

10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

10.1 None under the meaning of the Act.



- N
77~ W
II- -I'.l
'Y
T,

REIMAGINE
HALTON

Small steps, big changes

TERMS OF REFERENCE

RE-IMAGINE HALTON TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME BOARD




Page 10

Board: Reimagine Halton Transformation Programme Board

Status: Temporary until 31st March 2026

1.0 The Constitution

The Re-imagine Halton Programme Board is constituted of the ten Executive
Members of the Council (refer to Membership section below).

The Board operates as a Working Party, set up following a decision of the
Executive Board in July 2024.

The Board is supported and facilitated by a number of officer members (refer
to Membership section below).

The Board is in place to provide governance and oversight and has no
delegated authority within the scope of the Council’s Constitution. Where a
formal decision is required following the Board's consideration of any matter
within its purview, that decision will be referred to be included in the agenda
of the next available meeting of the Executive Board.

The Board may receive recommendations from Policy & Performance Board
Topic Groups as part of the Council’s scrutiny arrangements pertaining to Re-
imagine Halton Transformation projects.

2.0 Scope and Purpose

The Re-imagine Halton Programme Board is the governance body responsible
for monitoring of all initiatives within the Council’s Reimagine Halton
Transformation Programme portfolio. They shall be responsible for overseeing
and supporting the delivery of Reimagine Halton Transformation Programme
projects agreed by Full Council on 8 March 2023, as well as any additional
projects added to the portfolio at the agreement of the board.



Current projects include;

Project Area

Children’s and SEND

Page 11

Transformation Initiative
Owner

Director of Children'’s
Services

Lead Member

Cllr Tom Mclnerney

Adults

Operational Director,
Commissioning and
Provision

Cllr Angela Ball

Employer of Choice

Divisional Manager, HR
Service

Service Manager
Organisational
Development

Clir Mark Dennett

Customer Journey
(including Data
Services)

Operational Director, ICT
& Support Services

Cllr Mark Dennett

Accelerating Growth

Operational Director
Policy, Planning &
Transportation

Clir Dave Thompson

Waste *

Divisional Manager,
Environment Services

ClIr Stef Nelson

* Currently being monitored as business as usual




Page 12

The purpose of the board includes but is not limited to;

e Providing oversight, support and challenge to Transformation Inifiative
Owners, the Transformation Delivery Unit and each other as Lead
Members

e Challenging the pace and impact of the Council’s transformation
programme; financial and non-financial benefits

e Holding to account Lead Members, Transformation Initiative Owners
and the Transformation Delivery Unit for ensuring delivery at pace of
the agreed Project Delivery Plans

e Providing a steer and making recommendations to meet strategic and
political priorities

e Assessing the feasibility and appraisal of options where ‘new work’
requests are approved in principle.

e Approval of Delivery Plans

e Responsibility for reviewing escalated risks and issues within the
programme; supporting the mitigation of these where necessary

e Sponsoring Programme wide communications which may have
political ramifications

e Reviewing recommendations escalated by Scrutiny Topic Groups

e Supporting the delivery of any recommendations made by the LGA
Corporate Peer Challenge

Membership
The Reimagine Transformation Programme Board mirrors the Council’s
Executive Board and consists of the following members;

e leader

e Deputy Leader

e Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources

e Portfolio Holder for Children and Young People

e Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care

e Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing

e Portfolio Holder for Community Safety

e Portfolio Holder for Environment and Urban Renewal

e Portfolio Holder for Employment, Learning, Skills and Community
o Portfolio Holder for Climate Change



Page 13

The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services will serve as the Programme Board
Chair and the Leader as the Vice Chair.

The Board will consist of the following officer members to provide support and
facilitation;

e Chief Executive

e Corporate Director, Chief Executive Delivery Unit

e Head of Transformation Delivery Unit

e Chief Accountant

e Senior Delivery Officer - Programme Management & Governance
e Lead Officer - Communications & Marketing

e Programme Management Office project officers

Delegates may be provided for ‘officer members’ of the board where
necessary.

Additional members and / or officers may attend periodically at the request
of the Programme Board Chair, in respect of specific agenda items, and may
include (but not limited to);

e Scrutiny Chairs

e Transformation Initiative Owners or Transformation Service Leads

e Senior Delivery Officers — transformation projects

e Transformation Delivery Unit project officers

e Subject Matter experts or representatives of enabling services (HR, IT,
Procurement, OD)

3.0 Governance Structure

The governance structure for the board is set out in the following diagram
which demonstrates the flow of activity and reporting from project level
Status and Assurance Meetings and Quarterly Project Board through the
Programme level oversight by the Transformation Programme Board.



Latest PSR flows to the

relevant Quarterly Board

Meeting alongside other
docs as necessary.

Who: TIO, SDO, Project
Team, TSLs, PMO,
CDCXDU, CX, Lead
Member.

Why; Providing update to
CX and Lead Member as
Inint-gwners of delivery.

v
CX Challenge
Quarterly Board Meeting Meeting

Used to help CX challenge
projects.

Project Level Programme Level
1 i
o T
Programme Governance Docs '
/. \- / \ -/F inanci;l\' :
1| ) |
\F‘m}ecl Ply | |[Risks Issuesﬁ [ \Repo “'"gj :
—_ ~— —__ ' What: Augments fortnightly project meetings. Core
. meeting for PMO/SDO to challenge and support
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" project teams. Agenda set and chaired by FMO (to
begin with) with the mesting focused on assurance
with the support of the PSRs and governance
documents.
v
( . Wheo: SDO, PMO, TSL, PMs, SPMs. P
Project Status e m————-
Report r Children's | When; First week of @ach month
1 ' .,
h : 1 ) 1 Why: Standardizes reporting and forms the crux of Labour Group
( 1 project updates across the programme. Helps to Py
! Service Redesi determine decisions and reporis that need
T PSR ! escalating to TPB.
1 b
1 - 1
! | Provision, services, | ! Children's Status & H
» ' : T > rance Meeling ! Acurated set of papers to be
Each project produces a : Siacaren s 1 HEED M ¢ shared with Labour Group
monthly two-page project P — i for information. (PMO to
status report ! N : H curate)
e i !, workorcs PSR i . :
: : t ;
g 1 - \
Who: Relevant Project / I
Manager or Senior Project 1 t‘_1_" ! .,/ Programme Status , Tra
Manager 1 P, 1 5\ Report / Programme Board
] 1 - \ /
}Ih% Last week of each . Adult's PSR ' A::::Q?aius ] \ ¥
= 1 1 What: Govemance body
Why: Standardizes 1 o cﬂ:f.fﬁnﬂ’f’p’r“’?mﬁa + for monitoring all initiatives
reporting and forms the ( 1 Status Re o: i within Reimagine Halton.
crux of project updates ! | Accelerating Growih o AG Stalus & P H )
project upd ' i
across the programme LI PSR T | Assurance Meeting i Who: Executive Board, CX,
! ! What: Same format and i |Corporate Director, Head of
LI . | template as project status : gumof“c\;'hﬁm;'oag
] 1 reports. s ea ioer,
| Employer of Choice o EOC Status & PMO
r PSR i | Assurance Meeting .
L 1 Wiho: PMO When: SecondiThird week
T 1 When: First week of each ot each month
manth. H ) )
' Customer Joumney ! ©J Status & Iowmy Pr:lnwn: stra;mc
I PSR ! Assurance Meeting - :  oversight and rea
vl J ! %;E ﬁ::&:};s@:;f:bd i decisions on behall of the
N —m———— report for TP and ethers Executive board.

T obed



Page 15

4.0 Responsibilities of core board Members

Chair /Vice
Chair

Chairs the Programme Board Meetings

Provides a political steer and makes recommendations
to meet political priorities

Agrees non-standard agenda items

Agrees exceptions to the reporting and meeting
schedule

Champions the Programme with Members and other key
stakeholders

Key point of escalation for engagement at a political
level and mitigates issues with a political / resident
impact.

Sponsor (Chief
Executive)

Holds overall accountability for the deployment of
officers across the Council to enable the objectives of
the Transformation Programme to be achieved.

Lead Member

To be jointly accountable for the delivery of projects
within their portfolio, providing directing, challenge and
support, through the programme governance
arrangements and beyond, to Transformation Initiative
Owners.

Provides a political steer and makes recommendations
to meet political priorifies

Presents information and updates to fellow Board
Members on projects within their portfolio

Provides peer challenge and support to fellow Board
Members

Supports the resolution and mitigation of escalated
programme risks and issues.

Provides a link between the Programme Board and PPB
Topic group to enable a transparent scrutiny process.

Champions the Programme with Members and other key
stakeholders

Key point of escalation for engagement at a political
level and mitigates issues with a political / resident
impact.

CD-CXDU

Holds accountability for the correct planning and
resourcing of transformation projects, to align with the




Page 16

achievement of stated objectives and resulting financial
and non-financial benefits.

Head of TDU Responsible for the day-to-day performance
management of transformation projects, tfracking of
benefits, risks and issues across the project portfolio.

Programme Manage programme governance through the co-

Management ordination and administration of the board meetings.

Office Including;

- Scheduling of monthly Programme Board Meetings
- Preparation and distribution of Board agenda and
ensuring papers are available in advance of the

meeting
- Recording key discussion points, actions, changes
and decisions and tracking attendance of
memobers.
- Highlight actions which have not yet been
undertaken
- Preparation of specified content for the Board,
agreed by Head of Unit;
o Programme Status Report
o Budget and Financial reporting
o Risk and Issue reporting (whole programme)

Facilitate the ‘new work gateway’ process, liaising with
requestors and enabling services

Facilitate the appointment and allocation of individuals
to project teams

5.0 Administration

Board meetings will be held on a monthly cycle, year round. Attendance
shall be normally be in person.

A schedule of meetings shall be published by the Programme Management
Office for the financial year.

A record of attendance will be recorded as part of the Board notes.

On occasion, it may be necessary to call extraordinary meetings to ensure that
project progress is not stalled. Such meetings can be convened with
agreement of the Chair and the ToR in this document shall be adhered to.



Page 17

Papers will be made available to Board members at least 5 working days
before the meeting unless otherwise agreed with the Chair that a paper can
be submitted at short notice. Papers will be circulated electronically.

Decisions, discussions, changes and actions shall be recorded during the
meeting by the Programme Management Office and shall be shared within 48
hours of the meeting with members of the board.

An urgent decision or change may be taken in between meetings, only in the
event that a failure to do so would impede delivery of an objective, financial,
or non-financial benefit within a critical project fimeframe. Urgent decisions will
be taken by the Chair, the Lead Member for the project, in consultation with
the Corporate Director, CXDU.

Decisions that fall within the Powers and Duties of the Executive Board must be
referred to the Executive Board for consideration in the normal way.

6.0 Quorum

All decisions will be made by a casting of votes from Elected Members. Core
board members who are officers or advisors will not be entitled to vote. A
quorum of 6 members is required. In the event that there is a tied vote, the
Chair shall have the deciding vote.

7.0 Contirol Documents and Reporting Arrangements

All projects within the Programme will be expected to have a set of core
project management documents which include;

e Delivery Plan (including Measurement Annex)
e Risk and Issues log

e Project Plan

e A Trajectory(ies)

e A Communications Plan

e Project Status Report

e Conftribution to the Programme Status Report

The Delivery Plan will be produced by the Transformation Initiative Owners, with
support from the Transformation Delivery Unit and confributions and feedback
from the Lead Member. Accountability for delivery of the plan will be held
jointly by the Lead Member and Transformation Initiative Owner. Delivery Plans



Page 18

will be produced in accordance with the Programme’s Delivery Plan
Assessment Framework and will be subject to quality assurance by the relevant
Senior Delivery Officer, moderation with key stakeholders such as enabling
services, oversight of standards by the Programme Management Office.

Delivery Plans will provide an overview of project purpose, vision, activity and
the resources required to deliver it. They will have clear delivery themes, priority
actions and milestones associated with the activity and will be created
alongside other project documentation such as the Project Plan,
Communications Plan and Risk and Issues Log. Each Delivery Plan will include
a Measurement Annex detailing performance indicators that will be used to
monitor progress and performance, a Trajectory and Stakeholder mapping.

Lead Members will be required to bring the completed Delivery Plans to the
Transformation Programme Board for approval. Following this, Transformation
Initiative Owners should present the approved Plan to Management Team.

On approval of the Delivery Plan, the Lead Member will circulate a copy of the
plan to the relevant Policy and Performance Board Chair with a request to
convene a Policy and Performance Board Topic Group. The Topic Group will
perform a scrutiny role, escalating any recommendations via the Lead
Member, to the Transformation Programme Board for consideration.

Project Plans will be developed and maintained in the Microsoft Project
application by Transformation Project Teams, on behalf of Initiative Owners.
Plans will be reviewed as a minimum, every two weeks at the Project Team
meetings and will feed into the wider Programme Plan which will be monitored
by the Programme Management Office.

Trajectories will be developed for each project to provide a mechanism to
forecast and monitor financial and non-financial outcomes associated with
the delivery of activity outlined in the Delivery Plan. Performance and progress
associated with the frajectories will be monitored using the performance
indicators detailed in the Measurement Annex of the Delivery Plan.

Each project will hold a local Risk and Issues log which should be reviewed
and maintained as part of the Project Team meetings. Escalated issues will
form part of the Programme Risk and Issues Log which will be presented to the
Board on a monthly basis, typically as part of the Programme Status Report.
The Programme Board will provide support and guidance in addressing any
escalated risks where necessary.



Page 19

On a monthly basis each project will hold a Status and Assurance Meeting. This
objective of this meeting is fo provide a progress update and assurance to
both the Senior Delivery Officer and the Programme Management Office.
Ahead of the meeting, each project team and Transformation Initiative
Owner, will be required to produce a Project Status Report detailing the status
of activity, decisions, risks and issues and budget for their project. Information
from the Project Status Reports will be collated by the Programme
Management Office into a single Programme Status Report.

Programme Status Report will be produced on a monthly basis and presented
to Board Members in advance of the Programme Board. Included in the report
will be milestones, key dates and decisions taken in the reporting period, as
well as and assessment of programme progress, risk and issues. Financial and
non-Financial benefits tracking for the programme will accompany the report.

Project Closure documents should be completed as phases of the Projects are;
transitioned back to ‘business as usual’, reach a conclusion, or are deemed
unfeasible. Closure documents will be present to the Programme Board to
agree formal closure or fransitioning and to account for any financial
implications.

A ‘New Work Programme Gateway’' process has been established to assess
new work coming info the programme. Requestees, with the support of their
Executive Director, will submit a business case via the ‘Help with
Transformation’ portal. The business case will be assessed for return on
investment, financial impact, expected benefits, and timescales.

The Portfolio holder for Corporate Services and the Chief Executive will make
decisions, in discussions with Programme Board and Management Team
colleagues, to approve, in principle, areas of work for further exploration.

On provisional approval, a period of intensive data gathering, research and
investigation will be conducted by operational services with the temporary
allocation of Transformation Delivery Unit support to assess the feasibility of the
work and present an Options Report to the Programme Board. A date to
consider the Options Report at Programme Board will be pre-set by the
Programme Management Office and shall not exceed 12 weeks.

Where the Transformation Programme Board agrees one or more options to be
taken forward, a date should be agreed by the Board for the production of a
Delivery Plan. The Programme Management Office will agree and allocate
ongoing unit resource to support the work. Where the Transformation



Page 20

Programme Board deems that the options presented are not feasible for
confinuation, the board should agree and document the closing of the project
in the Minutes.

8.0 Keeping on Track

Alongside the Programme Status Report, the PMO will also produce a monthly
Project Status Matrix. This document provides a high-level overview of all
projects within the programme along with their associated RAG ratings
(Summary, Time, Budget, and Risk). The Matrix will also indicate whether RAG
ratings have improved, deteriorated, or remained unchanged from the
previous months. With the support of the PMO, the Matrix will help the Board
identify trends as well as projects that require closer inspection.

The development and monitoring of frajectories and associated data will
provide a robust mechanism for monitoring progress and impact of priority
actions against the desired goals. As projects develop it may be necessary to
review and adjust how and what we deliver and where necessary a Change
Report created to address required changes to delivery.

There may be occasions when things do don’t go to plan. In such cases it may
be necessary for the Programme Board to instigate a Priority Review. A Priority
Review is a rapid analysis of the state of delivery and the identification of
action needed to strengthen the delivery over a short period of time, usually
no more than 6 weeks. During the é week period, intensive work and analysis
of the delivery chain, down to front line analysis should be carried out to
establish firm evidence which is to be friangulated against the existing
evaluations, data and evidence from the reviews. It should result in a
strengthen plan action plan of delivery. This work will be facilitated by the
Programme Management Office alongside project resource.



Page 21 Agenda Item 4

REPORT TO: Audit and Governance Board

DATE: 20 November 2024

REPORTING OFFICER: Director - Finance

PORTFOLIO: Corporate Services

SUBJECT: Annual Governance Statement 2023/24
WARD(S) Borough wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report presents the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to

accompany the 2023/24 statement of accounts. The preparation
and publication of an AGS is necessary to meet the statutory
requirement set out in regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015.

1.2 The format of the AGS follows the 2016 best practice guidance
issued by CIPFA / Society of Local Authority Chief Executives
(SOLACE).

2.0 RECOMMENDATION:

The Board is asked to consider and approve the 2023/24
Annual Governance Statement subject to any changes or
additions that members feel appropriate.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 The AGS provides a summary of the authority’s governance
arrangements during 2023/24 and provides an opinion on whether
they were fit for purpose. It also identifies any issues with the
Council’'s governance arrangements and sets out how such issues
will be addressed.

3.2 CIPFA produces guidance for producing the AGS ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework’, and the guidance
requires the AGS be current at the point of publication, which is
concurrent with the Statement of Accounts.

3.3 To ensure the AGS is up to date when the external audit of the
financial statements is completed, CIPFA have recommended that
authorities review the draft AGS to identify any changes required
before the audit is finalised and obtain formal approval for the
reviewed version prior to publication.

3.4 CIPFA guidance states that the AGS need not be updated for any
issues emerging after 31 March 2024 unless they were pertinent to



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.0
4.1

5.0
5.1

6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Page 22

the previous financial year. As such, the outcome and Council
response to the recent Ofsted inspection report will be addressed in
the 2024/25 AGS.

The draft AGS was originally presented to the Board in June 2024.
The areas identified for development in the action plan remain
unchanged from the version previously approved by the Board.

The Council’s Constitution delegates the responsibility to review
and approve the AGS to the Audit and Governance Board. As
such, the document will be updated if necessary to consider any
feedback from the Board.

Once approved by the Audit and Governance Board, the AGS will
be signed by the Council Leader and Chief Executive who are
responsible for ensuring that any significant actions identified to
enhance the Council’s governance arrangements are addressed.

The final signed version of the AGS will be published on the
Council's website.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The powers and duties of the Audit and Governance Board include
responsibility for considering the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements and agreeing necessary actions to ensure
compliance with best practice. The AGS provides a commitment to
address the governance challenges identified by the Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct financial implications arising from the report.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting
Greater Independence

Good governance leads to good management, good performance
and good stewardship of public money. It therefore enables the
Council to implement its vision in accordance with its values and to
engage effectively with its citizens and service users and ensure
good outcomes for them.

Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy
See 6.1

Supporting Children, Young People and Families
See 6.1

Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need



Page 23

See 6.1
6.5 Working Towards a Greener Future
See 6.1
6.6 Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community
See 6.1
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS
7.1 The AGS provides assurance that the Council has a sound system

of risk management, control and governance. The document
provides a public statement of how the Council directs and controls
its functions and relates to its community.

8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

8.1 The Council has to have regard to the elimination of unlawful
discrimination and harassment and the promotion of equality under
the Equalities Act 2010 and related statutes. Proper governance
arrangements will ensure that equality and diversity issues are
appropriately addressed.

9.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATION
9.1 None arising from this report.

10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection  Contact
CIPFA / SOLACE - Halton Stadium, Merv Murphy
Delivering good Widnes

governance in Local
Government: Framework
(2016)

CIPFA / SOLACE -
Delivering good
governance in Local
Government: Guidance
note for English authorities
(2016)



Annual = —— :

Governance e
Statement e

L * 9
Y > ol T ’
5 72 &N : 7 - =
| gl 7> AR T =1k L X b :
RA BT SRS To g B s Ty e T2 b y
o e Al o W Ll T S e N Ry - .. 4
B T 7 s, Sl e . AL A CLNIN I ks
— ? ‘_.-':' : !;4,." - V>
PPNy

BOROUGH COUNCIL




Governance

Local authorities are accountable to their communities for the money they spend. They are also required under law to ensure they provide value
for money, and to achieve this they need to have a governance framework that supports a culture of transparent decision-making.

Good governance in local authorities ensures that decision-making is lawful, informed by objective advice, transparent, and consultative. It is
crucial in achieving value for money and in securing financial sustainability. It is therefore important that Halton Borough Council conducts its
business in the correct way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest, and accountable manner. Good rules, systems, and
information are important in maintaining good governance.

The Council therefore strives to meet the highest standards of corporate governance to help ensure it meets its objectives and serves its
communities well. Members and Officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of the Council’s affairs
and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.

The Council’'s governance framework comprises the systems and processes, cultures, and values by which the organisation is directed and
controlled, and through which it is accountable to, engages with, and leads its communities. It ensures that appropriate mechanisms for control
are in place, and that risks and opportunities are managed effectively.

The Council acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance. In doing so, it has developed a Local Code
of Corporate Governance that defines the principles that underpin the governance of the organisation. The Local Code forms part of the Council
Constitution and can be accessed on the Council’s website.

Halton Borough Council recognises its responsibility to ensure that it:
e Conducts its business in accordance with the law and proper standards
e Safeguards and properly accounts for public money
e Uses public money economically, efficiently, and effectively
e Maintains effective arrangements for the management of risk

e Secures continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised

Gz abed



The Annual Governance Statement

The Council is required by the Accounts & Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to prepare and publish an annual governance statement. This is a
public document that reports on the extent to which the Council complies with its own code of governance and explains how the Council has
reviewed the effectiveness of its systems of internal control.

In this document the Council:
e Acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance

e Summarises the key elements of the governance framework and the roles of those responsible for the development and maintenance of
the governance environment

e Describes how the Council has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year, and on any planned
changes in the coming period

e Provides details of how the Council has responded to the issues identified in last year’s governance statement

e Openly communicates significant governance issues that have been identified during this year’s review and sets out how the Council will
develop and secure continuous improvement in theses areas over the coming year

The main aim of the annual governance statement is to provide residents, communities, partners, and the businesses of Halton with confidence
in the Council’s governance arrangements. This includes confidence that our ways of working enable us to provide the right services effectively
and efficiently and on a consistent basis, and that we take informed, transparent and lawful decisions. It also is intended to provide assurance
that we properly account for the money the Council receives and spends.

gz abed



The Council’s Governance Framework

The Council aims to achieve good standards of governance by adhering to the following key principles set out in the best practice guidance
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016’

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
Developing the Council’s capacity, including capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

The Council’'s governance framework comprises a range of systems and processes that ensure a robust control environment and effective
arrangements for the management of risk and opportunity. Key elements of the governance framework are described in this statement.

Good governance is underpinned by the behaviours of members, officers, and partners, which includes adherence to the decision-making
framework as set out in the Council Constitution, adherence to various codes and protocols, the culture and values of the organisation, and how
the Council is accountable to and engages with the communities it serves.

The annual governance statement reports on the governance framework that has been in place at Halton Borough Council for the year ended 31
March 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of accounts. It provides an open and honest reflection of the Council’s
governance arrangements and the current challenges faced.

The Council considers that it is compliant with the ‘CIPFA Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016°. The following
pages provide examples of how the Council complied with the seven key principles set out in the Code during 2023/24.

/¢ abed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

» The Council has a constitution that sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures that are followed to ensure that
these are efficient, proportionate, transparent, and accountable. The Constitution was reviewed and updated in May 2023.

» The Council's Local Code of Corporate Governance, which forms part of the Council Constitution, sets out the processes in place to ensure that
officers behave in ways that exemplify high standards of conduct and effective governance. These arrangements are wide ranging and
communicated by Management Team to staff in a variety of ways including induction procedures, the employee code of conduct, Finance Standing
Orders, Procurement Standing Orders, registers of interests, staff bulletins, registers of gifts and hospitality, whistle-blowing procedures, HR policies
and fraud awareness training. The Local Code of Corporate Governance is subject to annual review.

* One of the roles of the Audit and Governance Board is to promote high standards of member conduct. Members of the Board were kept updated
during the year of standards issues that had arisen.

» During 2023/24 the Council developed a values and behaviours framework which provides a common language around values, fostering a positive
organisational culture where employees feel empowered and motivated to uphold these principles. By defining expected behaviours, the Council
is promoting accountability and consistency across all levels, leading to increased trust and cohesion within teams. The framework will also serve
as a compass in times of uncertainty or conflict, guiding ethical decision-making, and ensuring that actions are in line with the Council's mission and
vision. The framework was launched at the Council’s Celebrating Success Award Ceremony. Award categories were aligned to the five headlines
within the framework, with additional categories for Apprenticeship of the Year and the Community Service Award.

* All new employees undergoing the corporate induction process during 2023/24 were made aware of the Employees’ Code of Conduct. There is an
established disciplinary procedure which is invoked when an employee deliberately breaches rules and/or commits acts of misconduct, which are
considered sufficiently serious as to warrant formal investigation.

* A complaints process exists for members of the public to raise concerns about standards exhibited by members which can be accessed through
the Council’s website.

» The Council takes fraud, corruption, and maladministration seriously and has established a suite of policies and processes which aim to prevent or
deal with such occurrences. On 27 September 2023, the Audit and Governance Board received an annual report summarising the operation of the
Council’s counter fraud and corruption arrangements

» The Director — Legal Services provided legal advice to the Council throughout the year as the Council’s Monitoring Officer. One of the key functions
of that role is to ensure the lawfulness and fairness of decision-making. There are no known instances of the Council failing to comply with relevant
laws and regulations during the 2023/24 financial year.

gz abed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

* The Council publishes an annual Modern Slavery Act Transparency Statement that sets out the Council’s actions to understand the potential modern
slavery risks related to its business. It also explains the steps the Council has taken to ensure that no slavery or human trafficking takes place in
its own business or through its supply chains.

» A corporate complaints procedure operated throughout the year to receive and respond to any complaints received. An annual report summarising
the complaints received, trends and outcomes is presented each year to the Corporate Policy and Performance Board. The latest report, which
covered 2022/23, was presented at the Board’s meeting on 23 January 2024. Complaints received are used to inform the development of the
Council’s services and policies.

* Arrangements exist to ensure that members and officers are not influenced by prejudice, bias, or conflicts of interest in dealing with different
stakeholders. These include:

- Registers of disclosable pecuniary interests were maintained
- Registers of gifts and hospitality were maintained
- Opportunities to declare disclosable pecuniary interests and disclosable other interests were provided at the start of meetings.

» The Council’s higher value procurement activity is undertaken in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015). The Council
has included provisions within its procurement processes which allow for the discretionary exclusion of suppliers that fail to comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 and / or breach environmental, social, or labour law obligations.

62 abed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

« During 2023/24 the Council engaged with stakeholders who live and work within the borough to share the challenges that the Council is facing and
to establish what is most important to them. Known as the ‘Big Conversation’, the consultation was live for four months and was used to establish
a set of key priorities which would drive the organisation forward over the next five years. The Big Conversation led to six key priorities being
identified and agreed.

» Information on the Council’s performance, finances and the democratic running of the Council is routinely published on the Council’'s website. The
Council also fully complies with the reporting requirements of the Local Government Transparency Code 2015.

» The Council’'s Constitution is published on the Council’s website. It explains the Council’s decision-making processes and delegated authorities.
All key decisions taken by the Council are also publicly available on the Council’'s website.

» The Council engages with key partners and institutional stakeholders in various ways. Formal partnerships include the Health and Wellbeing Board,
the Safer Halton Partnership, the Halton Children’s Trust, and the Halton Learning Alliance. An executive director from the Halton Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) is also a member of the Council’'s Management Team.

* The Health and Wellbeing Board provides a key forum for public accountability of the NHS, Adult Social Care, Children’s Services, Public Health,
and other commissioned services relating to the wider determinants of health in Halton. The Board met on four occasions during 2023/24. Its work
included receiving:

Updates on the One Halton Place Based Partnership
the Public Health Annual Report (2022/23)

the Adult Social Care Annual Report (2022/23)

the Halton Safeguarding Adults Annual Report (2022/23)

* Engagement with citizens and service users is carried out using a variety of methods, including a range of survey techniques and sampling
techniques. During 2023/24 the Council consulted on a range of issues, which included:

- Family Hub Launch - Gathering parent and professional feedback from the launch event
- SEND provision - Consulting about SEND provision for schools
- Mental Health Marketing for young people - Finding out why teenage males do not engage with mental health services

* In setting its budget the Council listens to the views of the public and the experience of elected members through their ward work. Individual
consultations took place in respect of specific budget proposals and equality impact assessments were completed where necessary.

o€ obed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

* The long-term vision for Halton is set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan, which defines the Council’s priorities and how it hopes to achieve them.
It also explains the Council’s values and principles. During 2023/24, following widespread engagement with stakeholders through the ‘Big
Conversation’, six new key priorities were identified and agreed. These now form the basis of the Council’s new Corporate Plan for the next five
years, from April 2024 through to 2029.

» The Council’s Corporate Planning Framework provides the means by which the Council’s activities are developed and monitored. A regular system
of reporting to the Council’s Management Team, Executive Board and Policy and Performance Boards records progress against key business plan
objectives and targets.

» Directorate and Departmental Business Plans were produced for 2023/24 that described key developments and emerging issues relating to each
department of the Council. The plans formally set out key objectives, milestones, and measures for each business area.

» The Council has established a Climate Change Strategy & Action Plan for the Council’s operations and activities. The Action Plan is predominantly
focused on reducing the Council’'s own carbon production. However, during the lifetime of the Plan, the Council has committed to broaden the
scope and develop proposals to provide a broader borough-wide strategy.

* The Council has approved the principles set out in the LCR Zero Waste 2040 Strategic Framework to reduce waste related carbon emissions. The
Council also approved continued partnership working with Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority (MRWA) and the other LCR local authorities
to deliver action to meet our individual and collective climate targets and objectives.

« During 2023/24 the Executive Board agreed to the commencement of a procurement process in respect of a project to extend the Council’s existing
Solar Farm and create a micro grid connecting the Municipal Building, Lowerhouse Lane depot and the new leisure centre in Moor Lane. The
project will include a battery storage scheme in order to maximise the use of solar PV power overnight and support the use of heat pumps at the
new leisure centre. It will also provide an EV electrical charging infrastructure at Lowerhouse Lane Depot to enable electrification of the Council’s
vehicle fleet.

» The Council’s Big Halton Forest is part of delivering a green recovery after the pandemic and tackling the climate emergency head on, by planting
trees and enhancing the green infrastructure of Runcorn and Widnes and its villages. The project involves working with individuals, communities,
organisations, and businesses, with the aim of adding a new tree for every citizen by 2030 across the Borough of Halton. This will be in addition to
the approximate 1,500 new trees the Council plants each year.

» The Council routinely publishes information on the Council’s vision, strategy, plans, finances, and performance on its website.

» The Council has continued to generate social value through its procurement activity. Details of the Council’s approach to social value in procurement,
and examples of outcomes achieved, were shared in the Procurement Update report to the Audit and Governance Board on 22 November 2023.

T¢ abed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

» The Council’'s Corporate Planning Framework in operation during the year provided the means by which the Council’s activities were developed
and monitored.

» There is a well-established overview and scrutiny framework with six Policy and Performance Boards (PPBs) aligned to the Council’s six corporate
plan priorities. They hold the Executive to account, scrutinise performance and develop policy proposals for consideration by the Executive. The
Lead Member for Scrutiny also meets regularly with the S31 Scrutiny Officer and chairs the Scrutiny Chairs Group, comprising the Chairs of each
of the Scrutiny Boards.

» Performance monitoring reports were produced throughout the year recording progress against key business plan objectives and targets. These
reports were presented to the Council’'s Management Team, to the Executive Board, and to the Policy and Performance Boards.

» The Council operates a corporate complaints procedure and specific complaints procedures for Adult Social Care, Children's Social Care, schools,
and complaints relating to elected members. These procedures allow the Council to identify areas where things may have gone wrong and to put
them right and prevent them from happening again.

» The Council aims to ensure that the purchase or commissioning of goods, services or works required to deliver services is acquired under best
value terms. The Council’s procurement activity is undertaken in line with the Council’s Procurement Strategy and within clearly defined rules set
out in Procurement Standing Orders, which are reviewed and updated annually.

» The Council’s internal audit team carried out a comprehensive programme of audits during the year reviewing both front line and support services.
The implementation of recommendations arising from the work of internal audit assists the Council in identifying and managing risks that may impact
on the achievement of intended outcomes. Implementation of agreed actions from internal audit reports is monitored by the Audit and Governance
Board through a robust follow up process.

» The Council recognises that it has a responsibility to manage both internal and external risks as a key component of good corporate governance.
Risk is defined as being the threat that an event or action will adversely affect an organisation’s ability to achieve its objectives and to successfully
execute its strategies. In order to manage risks effectively the Council operates a formal process to identify, evaluate and control risks. The
Council’'s Corporate Risk Register summarises the key strategic risks faced by the Council and includes details of arrangements established to
ensure that intended outcomes are achieved.

» The Council continued to implement a Children and Young People’s Improvement Plan in response to the OFSTED inspection in October 2021.
The plan sets out how the Council will ensure that children and young people in Halton are safeguarded and achieve the Council’s aspiration that
all its services for children and young people are good or better. Implementation of the improvement plan is continuing to be monitored by the
Halton Children and Families Improvement Board

Z2€ abed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Developing the Council’s capacity, including capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Elected members are provided with the opportunity for an annual review to identify their development requirements, which are set out in a Member
Action Plan.

The Council has a Member Development Group that monitors key performance indicators in relation to member development. Its remit also includes
raising awareness of learning and development updates. The group also provides a forum for members to raise any other training or support issues
to help them in their roles.

Members of the Audit and Governance Board received training during the year to assist them in their role as the Council’'s Audit Committee.

The Council’s Organisational Development Team went through significant changes during 2023/24 that have fallen inline with the Transformation
Delivery Unit priorities. The key areas of work have been the development of a Corporate Values & Behaviours Framework, the introduction of an
employee recognition event called Celebrating Success and facilitating the way forward in the Council becoming an employer of choice.

Maintaining the Council’s Leadership capability continued to remain a top priority with the following taking place during the year:

- 19 employees undertaking the level 2 in Leadership & Team Skills

- 5 employees undertaking the Institute of Leadership & Management (ILM) level 5

- 10 employees undertaking ILM Level 7 in Leadership & Management

- 4 employees undertaking BCS Certificate in Requirements Engineering qualification

- 4 employees undertaking Leadership & Accountancy qualifications

- 2 employees undertaking Transport Management and Professional Certificate/Diploma in Transport Development Management
- 1 employee undertaking Level 5 Diploma in leadership for Health and Social Care and young people’s services

- 1 employee undertaking Post Graduate Certificate in Data Science and Artificial Intelligence

A contemporary approach to leadership and management learning has continually been promoted and is available via the e-learning platform
covering subject topics such as:

- Change Management

- Cross Functional Working Teams

- Understanding Organisational Culture & Ethics
- Communication Skills

- Project Management

- Planning & Running Effective Meetings

- Difficult Conversations

- Stress Awareness for Managers

cc abed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

* The Council provides decision-makers with full and timely access to relevant information. The executive report template requires information to be
provided explaining the policy, financial and risk implications of decisions, as well as implications for each of the corporate priorities and any equality
and diversity implications.

* The Council has a well-established Audit Committee (the Audit and Governance Board), which met regularly during 2023/24. The Board has clearly
defined responsibilities and provides oversight and challenge in regard to the Council’s governance, risk management, audit, efficiency and
improvement, accounts, procurement, and counter fraud and corruption arrangements.

» The Council has embedded risk management arrangements. Directorate and corporate risk registers outline the key risks faced by the Council,
including their impact and likelihood, along with the relevant mitigating controls and actions. The Corporate Risk Register was reviewed and
approved by the Audit and Governance Board at its meeting on 27 September 2023.

» The Council has a Head of Internal Audit and a continuous internal audit service, which has been externally assessed as conforming to the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards. Internal audit plays a key role in reviewing and improving the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management,
governance, and control arrangements. No restrictions are put on the role of internal audit and management regularly engages internal audit to
examine specific areas which are causing concern.

» The Head of Internal Audit provides an annual opinion on the Council’s risk management, control, and governance processes. The annual opinion
is based upon the internal audit work completed during the year. The opinion covering 2022/23 was presented to the Audit and Governance Board
on 5 July 2023 and concluded that the Council’s risk management, control and governance processes that were in place during 2022/23 were
considered to be adequate and to have operated effectively during the year.

» The Council has a well-established information governance framework. The Data Protection Officer is supported by the Information Governance
Service, which plays a key role in ensuring that the Council remains compliant in data protection and security arrangements. The Information
Governance Service is responsible for, and oversees, data management and risk, corporate data security policies, staff training and the production
of monitoring reports and annual reports to the Council’s Senior Information Risk Owner. The Council had no cause to report any data breaches to
the Information Commissioner’s Office during 2023/24.

* Quarterly reports on the Council’s overall capital and revenue net spending position and forecast outturn position were presented to the Executive
Board throughout the year.

» Ongoing pressures within demand-led services, particularly Children’s Social Care, resulted in net spending for 2023/24 being £5.633m over budget.
Whilst this overspend has a detrimental impact on the Council’s finances, it represents a significant improvement from the forecast outturn position
of £7.144m reported at the end of December 2023. This demonstrates that the actions being taken by the Council to control spending are having
a positive effect.

v abed

10



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

* The Council produces a Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), which is refreshed each year. The Strategy covering the period 2023/24 —
2025/26 was approved by the Executive Board at its meeting on 16 November 2023. The MTFS represents the “finance guidelines” that form part
of the medium term corporate planning process. These guidelines identify the financial constraints which the Council will face in delivering its key
objectives over a three-year period and are an important influence on the development of the Corporate Plan, Service Plans and Strategies.

» The Council produces an annual Capital Strategy which provides a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity contribute to the provision of local public services, along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the
implications for future financial sustainability. The Strategy is reviewed and approved annually by Executive Board.

* In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code, the Council produces an annual
Treasury Management Strategy Statement. This sets out the Council’s strategy for borrowing and also includes an Annual Investment Strategy,
which sets out the Council’s policies for managing its investments. The strategy enables the Council to maximise its financial yield whilst keeping
within the principles of security and liquidity as set out in the Prudential Code. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement is reviewed and
approved annually by Executive Board. A half-yearly update report and annual report on treasury management activity is also provided to the
Executive Board.

* The Council’s external auditor is required to provide an opinion on whether the Council’s financial statements provide a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Council and its income and expenditure for the year. On 20 March 2024, the Council’s external auditor reported to the Audit
and Governance Board that they anticipated issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the Council 2022/23 financial statements.

» The Council operates a robust performance management framework with performance monitoring reports being produced each quarter recording
progress against key service objectives in relation to the Corporate Plan. The reports were presented to the Council’s Management Team, to the
Executive Board, and to the Policy and Performance Boards.

11

Gg abed



How the Council applies the Principles of Good Governance

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

* The Council complies with the Local Government Transparency Code 2015 and publishes a wide range of information on its website. This includes
details of meetings, minutes and agendas, policies and plans, the Council Constitution, the Statement of Accounts, details of members’ allowances
and expenses, details of senior staff pay, contract awards, and details of land and building assets.

» The Council operates clear and effective processes for dealing with Freedom of Information (FOI) requests and Subject Access Requests (SAR).

» All Council meetings are open and can be attended by members of the public with the exception of those where confidential or personal matters
may be disclosed.

* A commitment to transparency is also demonstrated by a high percentage of reports being considered in the Part 1 (open to the public) part of
committee meetings, the Forward Plan, an active website, and by the Council having an active presence on social media.

» The Council has an effective Audit and Governance Board that provides a source of assurance over the Council’s risk management, control, and
governance arrangements.

* The Council has established various ongoing arrangements that provide effective assurance. These include the work of Internal Audit, the Council’s
risk and performance management arrangements, the work of the Information Governance Group, the work of the Policy and Performance Boards
and the work of the Audit and Governance Board.

» The Council operates a whistleblowing procedure and has well-publicised arrangements for employees and the wider community to raise any
concerns relating to fraud, misconduct, or other issues. All whistleblowing complaints and referrals received were assessed and investigations
undertaken where sufficient information was provided.

o¢ abed

12



The roles of those responsible for developing and maintaining the governance framework

- Approves the Corporate Plan
- Approves the Constitution
- Approves the policy and budgetary framework

- The main decision-making body of the Council
- Comprises ten members who have responsibility for particular portfolios

e A
- Designated as the Council’'s Audit Committee and provides assurance to the Council on the effectiveness of its
Audit and Governance Board governance arrangements, risk management framework, procurement strategy, and internal control environment.
L - Promotes high standards of member conduct )
4 N
- There are six Policy & Performance Boards aligned to the Council’s six Corporate Plan priorities
Policy & Performance Boards - They hold the Executive to account, scrutinise performance, and develop policy proposals for consideration by the U
Executive Q
N / «Q
D
w
Management Team - Implements the policy and budgetary framework set by the Council and provides advice to the Executive Board and ~

the Council on the development of future policy and budgetary issues

- Provides assurance over the Council’s governance, risk management, and control framework
- Delivers an annual programme of audits
- Makes recommendations for improvements in the management of risk and value for money

- Responsible for maintaining and developing the Council’s governance and control framework
- Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council

Managers

13



How the Council monitors and evaluates the effectiveness of its governance arrangements

The Council annually reviews the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.
assurance that inform this review are outlined below:

-

¢ Annual opinion
report

¢ Internal audit
reports

U

\

J

Complaints

e Corporate
complaints
procedure

e Ombudsman
investigations

&

External Audit

4 )

e Financial
statements audit

e VValue For Money
conclusion

& J

External
Reviews

4 )

e External reviews
from various
regulators and
inspectorates,
e.g. CQC, Ofsted

J

Information
Governance

4 )

e Senior
Information Risk
Owner Report

- J

Counter Fraud
Arrangements

o Whistleblowing
arrangements

e Annual report on
Fraud and
Corruption

U )

Monitoring
Officer

(" )

e Legal and
Regulatory
Assurance

U )

U

J

Section 151
Officer

-

e Financial
Controls
Assurance

U

~

The key sources of

Risk
Management

-

e Corporate Risk
Register
Progress
Reports

U

~

J

Overview &
Scrutiny

g¢ abed

-

¢ Performance
monitoring

e Policy
development
and review

U

o

14



Review of the effectiveness of the governance framework

The Council has a responsibility to undertake, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of key elements of its governance framework
including the system of internal control. The Council has carried out this review in accordance with the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016). The initial review of the Council’'s governance framework was led by a small core group
of officers supported by other officers across the Council. The core group comprised the following officers:

e Director - Legal Services
This post is designated as the Council’s Monitoring Officer under section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, as amended
by paragraph 24 of schedule 5 Local Government Act 2000. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring that that the Council acts
and operates within the law.

e Director - Finance
This post is designated as the s151 Officer appointed under the 1972 Local Government Act. The post holder is the Council’s Chief
Financial Officer and carries overall responsibility for the financial administration of the Council.

e Head of Audit, Procurement & Operational Finance
This post is responsible for the Council’s internal audit arrangements, including the development of the internal audit strategy and annual
plan and providing an annual audit opinion on the Council’s governance, risk management and control processes.

In preparing the annual governance statement the Council has:
e Reviewed the Council’s existing governance arrangements against its Local Code of Corporate Governance

e Considered any areas where the Local Code of Corporate Governance needs to be updated to reflect changes in the Council’s governance
arrangements and best practice guidance

e Taken account of various internal and external sources of assurance over the operation of the Council’s governance framework

e Assessed the effectiveness of the Council’'s governance arrangements and highlighted any planned changes in the coming period

e Reviewed previously identified governance issues and the progress made against these during 2023/24
Management Team, which is chaired by the Chief Executive, has also reviewed the annual governance statement, and considered the significant
governance issues facing the Council.

The Audit and Governance Board provides assurance to the Council on the effectiveness of its governance arrangements, risk management
framework, and internal control environment. As part of this role the Board reviews and approves the annual governance statement.

The following pages summarise how the Council has responded to the governance issues identified from the 2022/23 annual governance
statement. An action plan is also included setting out the issues identified from this year’s review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance
framework.

15

6E abed



2022/23 Governance Review — Action Plan Update

Development areas identified in 2022/23 Progress achieved

Corporate Plan
Consultation and development of a new Corporate Plan.

Risk Management

Development of the Council’s risk management arrangements, including
updating of the Risk Management Policy and associated toolkit.

The Big Conversation was about engaging with all our stakeholders who live
and work within the borough to share the challenges that the Council is facing
and to establish what is most important to them.

The consultation was live for four months (August - November 2023) in order
to engage with as many stakeholders as possible and in doing so help to
establish a set of key priorities which would drive the organisation forward
over the next five years.

Consultation success:

The overall success of this venture can be validated in that The Big
Conversation was the second most responsive survey ever in the history of
Halton Borough Council with a total of 1,076 responses.

The Corporate Plan (2024-2029)

The Big Conversation led to six key priorities being identified and agreed.
These now form the basis of the Council’s new Corporate Plan for the next
five years, from April 2024 through to 2029.

A detailed publicity and marketing plan has been created to ensure that our
four key stakeholders, (residents, partners and businesses, elected
members, and workforce), are informed, and kept up to-date with
developments and achievements throughout the next five years, which will
be underpinned by a new performance management framework.

The Council has also developed a Values and Behavioural Framework which,
once rolled out, will help to create an organisational culture that will underpin
the delivery of the key priorities in the new Corporate Plan.

A review of the policy was conducted in 2023. As a result, references to
toolkit and e-learning were included, titles of directors updated, and
improvements made to the presentation of the document.

Additional measures have included working with Zurich Municipal. This is an
ongoing project which will include additional training with management at all
levels. Relevant staff have also attended training events again to improve
knowledge. A review of documentation has also taken place and
recommendations made by Zurich Municipal have been acted upon.

16

Ot abed



2022/23 Governance Review — Action Plan Update

Development areas identified in 2022/23 Progress achieved

Transformation Programme

Delivery of a Transformation Programme tasked with saving £4m in 2024/25,
£8m in 2025/26, and £8m in 2026/27.

Children and Young People’s Improvement Plan

Implementation of Children and Young People’s Improvement Plan
developed in response to the Ofsted improvement notice issued in October
2021.

CIPFA Financial Management Code

Self-assessment against the CIPFA Financial Management Code. The Code
is designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist
local authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability.

The Reimagine Halton Transformation Programme mobilised in 2023/24 and
consists of five key projects as we moved in to 2024/25 — these are focused
on Children’s Services, Adult Social Care, Council workforce, accelerating
the growth of the Borough, and Customer Journey.

Savings and cost reductions validated and captured at the end of May 2024
amount to £700Kk, along with a range of non-financial benefits.

Governance of the programme has sat with the Executive Board since its
inception. During Summer 2024, a dedicated Transformation Programme
Board will be formed with the Executive Members making up its membership.
This will provide enhanced governance now that the programme has grown
in breadth and complexity.

The Ofsted Improvement Board has met regularly to monitor progress against
the Ofsted Improvement Action Plan. The Board has an independent Chair
and representatives from the Department for Education to help support the
process. It also includes the Portfolio Holder for Children’s, the Chief
Executive, and representatives from the Children’s, Adults and Chief
Executive’s directorates, along with partners from Police and Health.

This review was not completed due to capacity issues and has been carried
forward into the 2023/24 action plan.

17

T abed



2023/24 Governance Review — Action Plan

Development areas identified in 2023/24

Transformation Programme

The Council is to ensure that the Transformation Programme is sufficiently
developed to meet the medium-term financial funding gap and to replenish its
reserves.

(Key recommendation 1 from the External Auditor's annual report on Halton
Borough Council — March 2024)

Risk Management

The Council will continue to improve and develop its approach to risk management
in accordance with the recommendation made by the external auditor.

(Key recommendation 2 from the External Auditor's annual report on Halton
Borough Council — March 2024)

Performance Management

The Council will continue to improve and develop its approach to performance
management in accordance with the recommendation made by the external
auditor.

(Key recommendation 3 from the External Auditor's annual report on Halton
Borough Council — March 2024)

Special Educational Needs / Disabilities (SEND)

The Council will work with partners to address the five key areas for priority action
that were outlined in the CQC and Ofsted inspection of the Halton Local Area
Partnership that took place in November 2023.

Corporate Director - Chief Executive’s 31 March 2025

Delivery Unit

Corporate Director - Chief Executive’'s 31 March 2025

Delivery Unit

Corporate Director - Chief Executive’s 31 March 2025

Delivery Unit

Senior Operational Lead - SEND

31 March 2025

18

2t abed



2023/24 Governance Review — Action Plan

Development areas identified in 2023/24

Workforce Development Strategy

The Council will continue to implement its Workforce Development Strategy to
identify skill gaps and by designing interventions to equip employees with the
necessary competencies to meet the demands of the evolving organisation.

The three key areas of the strategy are:

* Implement the Values and Behavioural Framework
* Develop and implement an Employee Review Process
+ Developing a new approach to Succession Planning

Corporate Complaints Procedure

The Local Government Ombudsman — Complaint Handling Code was launched in
February 2024. The Code sets out a process for organisations that will allow them
to respond to complaints effectively and fairly. The purpose of the Code is to enable
organisations to resolve complaints raised by individuals promptly, and to use the
data and learning from complaints to drive service improvements.

The Code has been issued as “advice and guidance” for all local councils in
England under section 23(12A) of the Local Government Act 1974. This means
that councils should consider the Code when developing complaint handling
policies and procedures and when responding to complaints.

The Council will therefore complete a review of its corporate complaints procedure
during 2024/25 and adopt the Code into its existing working practices.

CIPFA Financial Management Code

A self-assessment against the CIPFA Financial Management Code will be
completed. The Code is designed to support good practice in financial
management and to assist local authorities in demonstrating their financial
sustainability.

(Action carried forward from 2022/23 annual governance statement)

Lead Officer

Timescale

Corporate Director - Chief Executive’s 31 March 2025

Delivery Unit

Assistant to the Chief Executive

Director - Finance

31 March 2025

¢ abed

31 March 2025

19



2023/24 Governance Review — Action Plan

Development areas identified in 2023/24 Lead Officer

Connect2Halton Joint Venture Corporate Director - Chief Executive’s 30 September 2024
Delivery Unit

The Council has entered into a joint venture partnership with the Commercial
Services Group, for the provision of agency staffing required within Council
departments. Robust governance arrangements for the joint venture partnership
will be established prior to the partnership becoming operational later in the
2024/25 financial year.

20

v abed



Certification

We have been advised on the implications of the review of the effectiveness of the governance framework by the Audit and Governance Board.

The review provides good overall assurance that the Council’s arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the
governance framework.

Specific opportunities to maintain or develop the Council’s governance arrangements have been identified through this review. We pledge our

commitment to addressing these issues over the coming year and we will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual
review.

Signed on behalf of Halton Borough Council:

Stephen Young - Chief Executive Mike Wharton - Leader of the Council

Date - Date -

21

Gy abed



Page 46 Agenda ltem 5

REPORT TO: Audit and Governance Board
DATE: 20 November 2024
REPORTING OFFICER: Director, Finance
PORTFOLIO: Corporate Services

SUBJECT: 2023/24 Statement of Accounts, Audit Findings Report
and Letter of Representation

WARD(S): Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the Council’'s Letter of
Representation, to consider the Audit Findings Report of the External Auditor
(Grant Thornton), and to approve the Council’s 2023/24 Statement of Accounts.

2.0 RECOMMENDED: That

1) The draft Letter of Representation in Appendix 1 be approved;

2) The External Auditor’s 2023/24 Audit Findings Report in Appendix
2 be received; and

3) The Council’s 2023/24 Statement of Accounts in Appendix 3 be
approved.

3.0 BACKGROUND

3.1 The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s financial performance for the
year in terms of revenue and capital spending and presents the year-end
financial position as reflected in the balance sheet.

3.2  The Statement of Accounts draft version will be updated based on adjustments
agreed with External Audit during the course of the audit. Non-trivial adjusted
misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes to the draft accounts
are reported at Appendix D to the Audit Findings Report.

3.3  The format of the Statement of Accounts is heavily prescribed by the Accounts
and Audit Regulations and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
(The Code).

3.4 The Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 has been prepared in full compliance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

3.5 Grant Thornton will attend the meeting to present the report of their findings,
the Audit Findings Report.



3.6

3.7

4.0
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Page 47

Section 2 of the Audit Findings Report presents the findings of the External
Auditor in respect of matters and risks identified at the planning stage of the
audit and additional and significant matters that arose during the course of their
work.

Each year the Council is required to provide the External Auditor with a Letter
of Representation relating to the financial statements. This provides a number
of assurances to the External Auditor in connection with the preparation of the
Council's accounts. The letter is required to be signed by the Chair of the Board
on behalf of the Council.

KEY SECTIONS WITHIN THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Council’s 2023/24 Statement of Accounts is presented in Appendix 3. The
Narrative Report by the Operational Director, Finance summarises the
Council’s financial performance for 2023/24, including revenue and capital
spending.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) presents gross
expenditure, gross income and net expenditure for 2023/24 along with the
previous year’s comparison. The Net Cost of Continuing Operations is adjusted
by a number of appropriations to give the Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. The CIES reports on how the Council performed during the year
and whether its operations resulted in a surplus or deficit.

The Council’'s Balance Sheet sets out the Council’s financial position as at 31
March 2024, along with a comparison to the position as at 31 March 2023. The
balance sheet is a snapshot of the Council’s financial position at a specific point
in time, showing what it owns and owes at 31 March.

The Movement in Reserves Statement presents a summary of the changes in
the Council’s main reserves during the year. Reserves represent the Council’s
net worth and show its spending power. Reserves are analysed into two
categories: usable and unusable.

The Cashflow Statement provides an overall analysis of the movements in cash
and cash equivalents during the year.

Detailed notes relating to items within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Movement in Reserves Statement and
Cashflow Statement are shown under Notes to the Core Financial Statements.

The Collection Fund and associated notes summarise the transactions in
respect of the collection of Non-Domestic Rates and Council Tax, along with
the distribution to the Council’'s own General Fund and to the Precepting
Authorities (Fire, Police, LCR Combined Authority and Parishes).



4.8

4.9

5.0
5.1

6.0
6.1

7.0
7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Page 48

The Statement of Responsibilities outlines the basis upon which the Statement
of Accounts has been prepared and is followed by a statement of the Council’s
Accounting Policies.

The External Auditor has used the draft Statement of Accounts as the basis for
undertaking the annual audit of accounts, for which their Audit Report and
Certificate is included within the final Statement of Accounts.

ACTION PLAN

Appendix B of the Audit Findings Report presents an action plan of
recommendations for future improvement to the Statement of Accounts. The
recommendations made by the External Audit team will be reviewed by
management for appropriate action.

PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS

The 2022/23 Audit Findings Report identified a number of recommendations to
improve the process and presentation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts.
These recommendations were reviewed by the Audit and Governance Board
on 20 March 2024. All but two of the recommendations have been
incorporated. Management consider the existing controls in place for journal
authorisation are appropriate, therefore no additional action needs to be taken.
Secondly, work is ongoing in improving the process to ensure school bank
account reconciliations are routinely prepared and retained.

NEXT STEPS

Following the meeting the Letter of Representation will be signed and the
External Auditor will provide their audit opinion. The Statement of Accounts will
then be published and made available to the public via the Council’s website.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting Greater
Independence

There are no specific implications

Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy
There are no specific implications

Supporting Children, Young People and Families
There are no specific implications

Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need



9.5

9.6

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

12.0

12.1

13.0

Page 49

There are no specific implications

Working Towards a Greener Future
There are no specific implications

Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community

There are no specific implications

RISK ANALYSIS

The Accounts and Audit Regulations require that the Statement of Accounts is
certified by the External Auditor and published by 30 September 2024. If this
date is breached the Council will publish a Public Notice giving reasons for the
delay.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

None.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

None

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer

Accounts and Audit Halton Stadium Steve Baker

Regulations 2015 Divisional Manager,
Revenues and Financial
Management

Code of Practice on Halton Stadium Steve Baker

Local Authority Divisional Manager,

Accounting in the UK Revenues and Financial

2023/24 Management



Page 50

APPENDIX 1

Grant Thornton UK LLP
4 Hardman Square
Spinningfields
Manchester

M3 3EB

Date: TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION
Dear Sirs

Halton Borough Council
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Halton Borough
Council for the year ended 31 March 2024 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Council
financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 and
applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered necessary
for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 ("the Code"); in particular the financial
statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and these
matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect
on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-compliance with
requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in
the event of non-compliance.

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

V. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured
Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include valuation of land and buildings and the net
defined pension liability. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the
financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the
financial statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative,
methods, assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting
framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used.

Vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension
scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent with our
knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly
accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and
properly accounted for.

vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements:



viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Page 51

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items
requiring separate disclosure.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes
schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council’s financial statements have been
amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings Report and
attached below. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements brought to our
attention as they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial position at the year-end.
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

The prior period adjustments disclosed in Note 43 to the financial statements are accurate and
complete. There are no other prior period errors to bring to your attention.

We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Council’s financial
statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any material
uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that:

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to liquidate the Council or
cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be expected
to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial statements
on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial
statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements on the
basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and

c. the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions relevant to
going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern
need to be made in the financial statements

The Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a material effect on the
Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

Information Provided

XVii.

We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
Council’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.



Page 52

Xviil. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.
XiX. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.
XX. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be

materially misstated as a result of fraud.

XXi. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and
that affects the Council and involves:
a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

XXil. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting
the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

XXiil. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

XXiV. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

XXV. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be
considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

XXVi. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk
assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant risks that
are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

XXVii. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's financial and
operating performance over the period covered by the Council’s financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and Governance Board at its
meeting on 20 November 2024.

Yours faithfully



HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
2023/24



Page 54

Contents

Narrative Report by the Director of Financial Services
Core Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Balance Sheet

Movement in Reserves Statement

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
Other Operating Expenditure
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
Material Items of Income and Expenditure
Grant Income
Disclosure of Deployment of Dedicated Schools Grant
Pooled Budgets
. Officers Remuneration
. Exit Packages and Termination Benefits
. Member Allowances
. Related Party Transactions
. External Audit Fees
. Events After the Balance Sheet Date
. Capital Expenditure and Financing
. Non-Current Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment
. Heritage Assets
. Investment Properties
. Intangible Assets
. Assets Held for Sale
. Investments
. Debtors
. Cash & Cash Equivalents
. Creditors
. Borrowings
. Provisions

LN WNE

NNNNNNNNRRRRPRRRRRRR
NOU D WNRPROOONOODULD WNRO

Page

20
22
23

24

25
32
32
33
33
33
34
36
37
39
42
43
43
46
46
47
49
55
56
57
58
58
60
61
61
62
63



28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.

35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.

Page 55

Contingent Liabilities

Other Long-Term Liabilities

Leases

Private Finance Initiatives and Similar Schemes
Pension Schemes

Financial Instruments

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis
under Regulation

Usable Reserves

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
Unusable Reserves

Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities
Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities
Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities
Interest in Companies and Other Entities
Transport Act 2000- Mersey Gateway Crossing
Prior Period Adjustment

Supplementary Financial Statements

Other

Collection Fund

Collection Fund Statement
Collection Fund Balance Sheet
Notes to the Collection Fund

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
Statement of Accounting Policies
Glossary

63
64
64
66
68
77
87

91

92

94
103
104
104
105
107
109

111
112
113
114

116
117
141



Page 56



Page 57

Narrative Report by the Director of Financial Services
Introduction

The aim of this narrative is to provide an understandable guide to the Council’s year-end
financial position and future outlook which are relevant to the performance of the Council.

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year and
also provides a snapshot of the financial position as at 315t March 2024. Included are core
financial statements supported by supplementary statements, which will help to provide an
analysis of the financial performance of the Council over the financial year 2023/24.

Whilst the publication of the Statement of Accounts is a statutory requirement, the purpose
is to provide stakeholders with clear information regarding the Council’s financial
performance over the past year. The Council continues to review the style and content of
information within the Statement of Accounts to ensure the content included is relevant and
material from both a quantitative and qualitative viewpoint.

The format and content of the financial statements is prescribed by the CIPFA Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting 2023/24 (known as The Code), which in turn is underpinned by
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The Core Statements are:

- Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this statement shows the
accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount which is funded from taxation. The end
result is a very different position to how net outturn spend compared to budget is
reported. A reconciliation between the two is provided as part of this narrative
statement and also the Expenditure and Funding Analysis Statement, included within
Note 1.

- Balance Sheet — The Balance Sheet shows the value as at 31t March 2024 of the
assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets
less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council.

- Movement in Reserves Statement — this statement shows the movement in the year
on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into “Usable Reserves” i.e.
those that can be applied to fund expenditure (both capital and revenue) or reduce
local taxation, and “Unusable Reserves”, reserves which highlight changes to
unrealisable gains or losses.

- Cash Flow Statement — this statement shows the changes in cash and cash
equivalents (cash invested for 3 months or under) of the Council during the reporting

Page 1



Page 58

period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.
Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future
cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

- Notes to the above Statements — extensive notes to support the core statements
are set out in accordance with the requirements of the Code. The notes shall:

1. Presentinformation about the basis of preparation of the financial statements
and the specific accounting policies used.

2. Disclose the information required by the Code that is not presented elsewhere
in the core financial statements.

The Supplementary Financial Statements are:

- Collection Fund Account — this is a statement that reflects the statutory obligation for
the Council as a billing authority to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The
statements show the transactions of the Council in relation to the collection from
taxpayers and distribution to major and local preceptors of council tax and non-
domestic rates.

Other Statements / Financial Reports are:

- Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts — this statement sets
out the responsibilities of the Council and the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151
Officer).

- Statement of Accounting Policies — this statement explains the basis for the
recognition, measurement and disclosure of transactions and other events in the
accounts.

- Independent Auditor’s Report to Members — this is the report and certificate
following the external audit of the Council’s accounts, carried out by Grant Thornton
UK LLP.

Organisational Overview

The Council is structured with an Executive Board comprising ten portfolio holders, whose
areas of responsibility reflect the Council’s corporate priorities. There are six Policy and
Performance Boards and an Audit and Governance Board, which also reflect the corporate
priorities and undertake an overview and scrutiny role, along with a number of regulatory and
other boards. Financial and non-financial key performance indicator data is reported to Policy
and Performance Boards on a quarterly basis and is published on the Council’'s website.
Council-wide revenue and capital financial performance is also reported to Executive Board
on a quarterly basis.

Page 2



Page 59

Council Operational Structure

The Council’s operational structure is made up of five directorates, led by Executive Directors,
who along with the Chief Executive make up the Council’s senior management team. It has
responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Council and responsibility for delivering
the priorities set out within the Corporate Plan.

The five directorates are:

e Adults Directorate

e Chief Executive’s Directorate

e Children’s Directorate

e Environment & Regeneration Directorate
¢ Public Health Directorate

Governance

Further details regarding the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements can be
found in the Annual Governance Statement which is reviewed, reported and published
annually alongside the Statement of Accounts.

Partnership Working

The Council operates with a Joint Senior Leadership Team (JSLT) between HBC Adult Social
Care and NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care Board (ICB), responsible for the
direction, oversight, monitoring of the Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan and associated Pooled
Budget. The JSLT is supported in this duty via the Better Care Commissioning Advisory Group
(BCCAG). The BCCAG reviews in detail information pertaining to BCF Plan, impact of the Pool
Budget, quality, performance, activity and finances, and make recommendations to the JSLT
on remedial action plans or future use of the Pool as appropriate.

By working together collaboratively and in partnership, the JSLT is able to achieve and sustain
good health and wellbeing for the people of Halton and is able to provide a range of options
to support people in their lives by jointly designing and delivering services around the needs
of local people rather than focusing on the boundaries of individual organisations. This aids
in the ability to ensure that services are sustainable, particularly with continued challenges.

The Council is a member of the Liverpool City Region (LCR) Combined Authority and works
closely with the other five member councils in respect of a number of key service areas,
including economic regeneration, highways and transport services. In addition, the Council is
part of the LCR Business Rates Retention pilot scheme, designed to incentivise councils to
develop their local economy by permitting them to retain any resulting growth in business
rates. The pilot scheme will continue to operate through 2024/25, however participation in
the scheme beyond March 2025 is uncertain.

Page 3



Page 60

Corporate Plan

In March 2023 the Council adopted an interim (one-year) Corporate Plan with the aim of
providing adequate opportunity for meaningful consultation, and sufficient time to produce
a Corporate Plan which is totally unique and meaningful to the people of Halton.

In March 2024 the Council approved a new Corporate Plan. The Corporate Plan sets out the
Council’s priorities and ambitions of what it wants to achieve for the residents, communities,
and businesses of Halton between 2024 and 2029.

The Corporate Plan has six priority areas, consisting of:

Priority 1 - Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting Greater Independence -
Encouraging good quality health, wellbeing and social care, by involving everyone in our
community. To support the people of Halton to feel safe, be active, happy and lead their best
lives.

Priority 2 - Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy - Fostering a strong, diverse local
economy where there is access to good jobs and successful businesses in our community,
providing opportunities for all.

Priority 3 - Supporting Children, Young People and Families - Supporting families to nurture
and protect every child and young person and raise their aspirations. We will invest in Early
Years, education and youth provision to ensure they reach their full potential and help Halton
families flourish.

Priority 4 - Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need - Addressing
inequalities by helping the people of Halton to receive the good quality and accessible advice,
information and services that they need to achieve their aspirations and ambitions.

Priority 5 - Working Towards a Greener Future - Working with everybody to keep our
neighbourhoods clean and tidy, and create a sustainable environment for current and future
generations.

Priority 6 - Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community - Supporting Halton’s
residents to live in decent and affordable homes, surrounded by safe and thriving
communities.

Transformation Programme

The past decade of public austerity continues to have a significant impact on the Council.
Using the Government’s own interpretation of Spending Power, since 2010/11 Halton has had
its spending power reduced in real terms by £52.4m (26%), the equivalent of £896 per
dwelling. This compares to an average reduction for all English councils of 18.1%, the
equivalent of £556 per dwelling. This continues to bring exceptional challenges for the Council
in setting a robust, balanced budget each year whilst continuing to deliver high quality,
essential public services. During the same period, demand and costs for adults’ and children’s

Page 4



Page 61

social care services continues to increase, adding further challenges and pressures on the
budget.

On 1t February 2023 Council approved the three-year transformation programme and
funding arrangements. The programme formally commenced on 1%t April 2023, and is an
addition to the Council’s establishment using a mix of seconded employees from other service
areas and external expertise. The programme is funded through £7m of capital receipts as per
the capitalisation direction agreed with Central Government. The programme is tasked with
identifying efficiency savings of £4m in 2024/25, £8m in 2025/26 and £10m in 2026/27.

Over the past year the Transformation Programme has moved into the delivery phase and a
number of priority action areas have commenced; these include:

e Enabling Greater Independence and Flexibility for Adults.

e Becoming an Employer of Choice.

e Simplifying the Customer Journey —a digital vision and delivery strategy for the Council
linked to focused investment in long term delivery capability, people and platforms.

e A Stable, Sustainable Children’s Service

e Children’s SEND

e Environment and Regeneration — Maximising Outcomes and Opportunities

e Environment and Regeneration — Accelerating Growth

Children’s Services

An improvement notice was issued to Halton Borough Council following an Ofsted inspection
in October 2021. Two areas were for priority action:

* The assessment and management of risk to children, including the frequency of visits to
children, in line with assessed risk and needs
* Management oversight and supervision to provide effective support and challenge

In response to the inspection the Council has developed a Children and Young People’s
Improvement Plan. The plan sets out how the Council will ensure that children and young
people in Halton are safeguarded and achieve the Council’s aspiration that all its services for
children and young people are good or better.

This Improvement Plan sets out key actions that focus on what the Council needs to do to
ensure that its work makes a difference to the children, young people and families that are
supported and safeguarded.

Progress in implementing the Improvement Plan is being monitored through the Halton
Improvement Board. The Board is independently chaired and consists of the Council’s key
partner agencies, DfE representatives, Children’s and corporate colleagues, who all have a
vital role to help create the environment where good social work can flourish.

In November 2023, Ofsted undertook an Area SEND inspection and identified 5 areas for
priority action across the local area partnership:

Page 5



Page 62

e Leaders at Halton local authority and the NHS Cheshire and Merseyside ICB should
cooperate at pace to improve the shared strategic oversight, governance, support and
challenge to drive improvements to meet the needs of children and young people with
SEND in Halton.

e Leaders in the local authority, ICB and education, health and social care providers
should improve the efficiency and quality of their information gathering and sharing
processes to ensure that children’s and young people’s needs are understood
accurately and met more swiftly and effectively through coordinated approaches.

e Leaders across education, health and social care should improve the joint
commissioning of services to ensure that children, young people and their families
receive sufficient support to have their needs met effectively.

e Leaders across education, health and social care should urgently improve the early
identification of needs and access to specialist health pathways, including the
neurodevelopmental assessment pathway and speech and language therapy and the
support available, while children and young people wait.

e Leaders across education, health and social care should improve the timeliness of new
EHC plans and updates to EHC plans following the annual review process, so that, if
appropriate, children and young people receive an effective EHC plan within statutory
timescales.

Following the inspection Halton were required to produce a Priority Action Plan, to address
the priority areas of weakness. The Priority Action Plan is monitored by the newly established
SEND Strategic Improvement Board and an Independent Chair is now in place. The Board is
made up of Stakeholders from all SEND related Services across the area, and parent
representatives. The role of the board is to hold stakeholders to account and to rigorously
monitor and challenge progress across all 5 Priority Action Areas. To date, 17% of all actions
in the plan are marked as complete with a further 51% on target to be completed within the
identified timeframe. 30% of actions are marked as delayed, but notably no actions are
identified as significantly delayed or not expected to meet target. 2% of targets are noted to
be not started, however as noted above those actions are held within plans with a large
number of actions and are dependent on the completion of other actions.

Page 6



Page 63

Financial Performance 2023/24

The Council incurs both revenue and capital expenditure. Revenue expenditure is generally
on items which are used in the year and net expenditure is generally financed by council tax,
retained business rates and top-up funding. Capital expenditure generally has a life beyond
one year and increases the value of an asset. The financing of capital expenditure is charged
to revenue over a number of years in accordance with statutory requirements.

The Council operates a pilot scheme for the retention of 99% of business rates (the remaining
1% going to Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service). The pilot is part of a scheme with all six
member authorities of the Liverpool City Region. Government gave a guarantee that as a
result of the pilot the Council would be no worse off than had it continued with business rate
retention of 49%.

The impact of the pilot scheme for the Council is that both Revenue Support Grant and
Improved Better Care Fund are no longer paid as separate grants but instead replaced by the
additional retained business rates and an increased element of top-up funding.

On 8™ March 2023 Council set a 2023/24 revenue budget of £140.9m, revised during the year
to £141.8m. At the same time Council approved a council tax requirement for the year of
£60.8m, setting the Band D rate at £1,675.29 (excluding preceptors). This was inclusive of a
2.99% increase to basic council tax and a 2% increase to the Adult Social Care precept levy.

For 2023/24 the Council’s total Government Settlement Funding Allocation was £55.5m. This
is made up of £52.2m Business Rates Baseline Funding and Top-Up Grant of £3.3m. The
increase to the Settlement Funding Assessment from 2022/23 was 4.8%, representing the
high inflation rate at the time. Government also provided a grant of £11.6m, ring-fenced
specifically for social care. Whilst this represented an increase of £4.5m (64%) on the previous
year, it was insufficient to keep pace with increasing demand and costs for both children’s
social care and adult social care.

Additional funding of £1.5m (Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund Grant) was
allocated at the start of the financial year which helped to address pressures within adult
social care, specifically to address discharge delays, social care waiting times, low fee rates
and workforce pressures.

The financial settlement also reported a reduction in Services Grant paid to the Council. The
grant payable to Halton dropped from £2.5m to £1.5m. Little information was provided on
the reasons for this.

Funding of the Council’s budget position continues to be driven by locally raised taxes (i.e..
council tax and business rates) as opposed to support from Central Government. In 2010/11

local taxes accounted for 60% of the Council’s net budget, compared to over 97% for 2023/24.

Financial performance and outturn forecasts of the Council’s annual net spend are reported
on a quarterly basis to both the Executive Board and Policy & Performance Boards.

Page 7



Page 64

A budget risk register is maintained on a quarterly basis, key risks are evaluated and control
measures put in place.

Going back to the start of austerity measures in 2010/11 the Council’s budget has consistently
been under financial pressure. Starting with large decreases in Government funding from
2010/11 followed by notable increases in demand pressures (predominantly within social
care), has created a challenge each year in setting a balanced budget.

Overall, the Council reported net spend for the year of £147.4m, £5.6m over the revised
budget of £141.8m. The final position was an improvement on the forecast outturn of £7.1m
estimated at the end of December 2023 but still represents a major concern for the Council
given the value of the overspend. Further details on day-to-day operational spending are
included further on in this report.

The final overspend against budget was funded through a review of Council earmarked
reserves. This had the impact of the Council’s General Fund balance of £5.1m remaining
consistent from the reported position as at 31t March 2023.

The Council holds earmarked reserves which have been set aside to cover known future one-
off costs. These reserves are reviewed on a quarterly basis and released for general fund
purposes where possible. The value of earmarked reserves as at 31t March 2024 total
£35.5m, a significant decrease from earmarked reserves of £109.1m held in March 2023. This
is explained in the movement of reserves held for the Mersey Gateway project.

During the year a performance review of the Mersey Gateway project was undertaken by
Mersey Gateway Crossing Board (MGCB) and the Department for Transport (DfT). This review
covered the period October 2017 to March 2023 and future reviews will be undertaken every
3 years.

As part of the review an exercise was undertaken regarding the excess revenue share
procedure. This identified that up to March 2023 the excess income from the project over
and above project costs was £52.647m. The share to the Council of this amount is £7.897m,
with £44.750 being payable to DfT.

Included within schedule 3 of the Mersey Gateway Road User Charging Scheme are
restrictions on how the Council can utilise the excess share. Included as part of these is the
following:

e Making payments to the Council’s General Fund for the purpose of directly or
indirectly facilitating the achievement of policies relating to public transport in its
Local Transport Plan (LTP).

Since April 2018 (the first full year of Mersey Gateway being operational), the council has
incurred costs of £16.510m in funding LTP initiatives. The Council’s share of excess funding
meets these conditions and therefore form part of overall reserves available to balance
2023/24 and future-year budgets.

Page 8



Page 65

The table below shows the cost of meeting the LTP over the 5 years from 2018/19 to 2022/23.

2018/19| 2019/20| 2020/21| 2021/22| 2022/23 Total
Spend Spend Spend Spend Spend Spend
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Highways Maintenance Maintain roads and footpaths to 2,228 2,362 2,699 2,369 2,739 12,397

appropriate standards. Provide adequate

winter maintenance to roads and footpaths
Street Lighting Maintain street lights to best possible 157 165 (43) 50 35 364
standards ensuring energy efficiency

School Crossing Patrol Continue to ensure road safety 80 77 75 78 74 384
Bus Shelters Good quality timetable information 22 44 20 5 28 119
Independent Traveller Trainer |Continue to provide travel training for 61 64 64 67 74 330
and Travel Training Co- vunerable young people and adults

ordinator

Bus Support Ensure a good reliable bus service which is 554 503 457 666 736 2,916

accessible to all. High frequency services

Total 3,102 3,215 3,272 3,235 3,686 | 16,510

Details of the earmarked reserves are shown in Note 36.

The table below shows the movement on the Council’s General Fund position compared to
budget.

2023/24| 2023/24
Original
Budget Actual
£000 £000
Net Expenditure 140,880 147,405
Parish Precepts 167 167
Total 141,047 147,572
Financed by Local Taxpayers — Council Tax (60,881) (60,881)
Financed by Local Taxpayers — Business Rates* (73,724) (74,616)
Financed by Local Taxpayers — Council Tax Surplus (3,123) (3,123)
Financed by Top-Up Funding (3,319) (3,319)
(Surplus)/Deficit for Year - 5,633
Use of Earmarked Reserves - (5,633)
General Fund Balance Brought Forward (5,149) (5,147)
General Fund Balance Carried Forward (5,149) (5,147)

Page 9




Page 66

*Note — Actual level of business rates receipts in 2023/24 of £74.616m was £0.892m higher
than forecast when the 2023/24 budget was set due to a recalculation by Government of the
business rates baseline and a one-off adjustment to the business rates top-up grant.

Financial Performance 2023/24 — Operational Spending

In overall terms, net Council spending as at 315t March 2024 was £5.6m over budget. This was
an improvement from the forecast outturn position of £7.144m reported at the end of
December 2023, showing that actions being taken by the Council to reduce spend are having
a positive impact. Whilst an improved position, it still has a significant detrimental impact
upon the Council’s finances and further reduces the Council’s limited reserves.

The outturn position continued to show overspend positions across the majority of
departments, with the exceptions of Public Health and the Environment & Regeneration
Directorate departments. The largest pressure on the budget continues to be within the
Children’s Directorate, where net spend for the year was over the approved budget by
£10.0m

The pay award, high inflation rates, increasing service demands and use of agency staff,
continue to have a serious negative impact upon the Council’s financial position. As such there
continues to be a real urgency for the Council to progress the Transformation Programme
with great urgency.

Detailed information on the Council’s 2023/24 financial performance can be found on the
Council’s website at this link.

Schools

Expenditure incurred in relation to the Schools budget, both by individual schools and the
Council totalled £89.0m and is shown in more detail in Note 8.

School balances at 315t March 2024 total £6.5m (£7.2m 315t March 2023).

At 315t March 2024 there was a deficit of £5.3m (£2.9m 315t March 2023) of schools related
central spend compared to the available funding. This balance will be carried forward into
2024/25. The Council are currently working with the Department for Education as part of the
Delivering Better Value in SEND programme, aiming to support local authorities and their local
area partners to improve the delivery of SEND services for children and young people whilst
working towards financial sustainability.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

As previously mentioned the Council’s overspend position of £5.6m against budget was
funded from earmarked reserves which helped to protect the General Fund position.
Therefore, whilst there was no movement to the General Fund balance, the accounting
position presented in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES) shows a
surplus for the year of £8.210m. The CIES takes a wider view of financial performance than

Page 10


https://moderngov.halton.gov.uk/documents/s76909/Exec%20Board%20-%202023-24%20Outturn%20Report%20v3.pdf

Page 67

that shown in the General Fund and shows the true accounting position for the year. This
surplus represents the total amount by which the Council’s equity has increased over the year

as shown in the Balance Sheet.

Supporting the CIES is the Expenditure and Funding Analysis included in Note 1 to the
accounts. It shows the movement by Council directorate from the year-end outturn position
reported to the Council’s Executive Board to what is included in the deficit position on the

provision of services, included as part of the CIES.

The table below reconciles the General Fund overspend, via the deficit position on the
provision of services, to the total surplus for 2023/24 on the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement. Included below the table are supporting notes to the amounts within

the table.

General Fund Overspend

Accounting Adjustments Provision of Services:
Adjustment for Capital Purposes

- Depreciation, Impairment and Revaluation Losses of Non-Current Assets
- Capital Grant Income

- Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital

- Gain on De-Recognition of Non-Current Assets
- Minimum Revenue Provision

- Other Capital Adjustments

Pension Adjustments

Movement in Reserves

Other Differences

Deficit on the Provision of Services

Accounting Adjustments Other:

Surplus on Revaluation of Non-Current Assets

Gain on Pension Assets

Gain on Pension Assumptions (Demographic, Financial and Other)
Pension Asset Ceiling Adjustment

Revaluation of Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure

2023/24
£000

26,299
(11,553)
9,783
(1,302)
(11,410)
(9,874)
(337)
11,135
2,754

15,495

(23,669)
(12,385)
(18,298)
30,780

(133)

(8,210)

Page 11



Page 68

Adjustment for Capital Purposes

o Depreciation and Revaluation Loss of Non-Current Assets — Reflects the annual cost of
assets consumed during the year

o Capital Grant Income — Used to help fund the capital programme, recognised in the
CIES in line with proper accounting practice.

o Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital — Capital funded expenditure charged to
the CIES under statute.

o Gain on De-Recognition of Non-Current Assets and Financial Instruments — Largely net
capital receipt gains over the year.

o Minimum Revenue Position — Amount set aside in the General Fund to recognise the
repayment of debt. In line with proper accounting practice this is not required to be
included in the CIES.

e Pension Adjustments - Denotes the difference between the accounting cost of pensions
(included in the CIES) and the actual employer contributions to the pension fund. More
information on pensions is included elsewhere within the narrative report.

e Movement in Reserves - As per proper accounting practice, changes to reserves are not
required to be included in the CIES.

e Other Differences — Includes the Collection Fund adjustment, i.e. the difference between
amounts credited to the CIES and amounts to be recognised under statutory provisions
relating to council tax and business rates.

e Surplus on Revaluation of Non-Current Assets - Increase in the value of those non-
current assets that have been revalued during the year.

e Gain on Pension Assets / Loss on Pension Adjustments — Information on these
adjustments is included within the Pension Liability heading as part of the narrative
report.

e Pension Asset Ceiling Adjustment — An adjustment to reflect the amount by which the
pension asset attributable to the Council exceeds the accrued pension liability, which is
not able to be immediately realised by the Council.

e Revaluation of Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
Income — Increase in the value of financial instruments held. This has no impact on the
General Fund.

Capital Planning

The Council prepares and reports a rolling capital programme to forecast the probable level
of capital spend over the next three years, along with the likely sources of funding. The Council
also maintains a capital reserve, which has been generated from revenue contributions in
order to support funding the capital programme. The forecast shows that there are sufficient
resources over the medium-term to cover the current capital programme, funded from
borrowings, grants, revenue contributions, capital receipts and use of reserves.

Page 12



Page 69

At 315t March 2024 unused capital receipts were £5.0m, and the balance on the revenue
backed capital reserve was £0.5m. The forecast level of receipts as at 315 March 2027 is
£5.0m. This is inclusive of meeting the costs of the Transformation programme over the next
two years.

The Council considers any new additions to the capital programme in light of the resources
available.

On 6™ March 2024, Council approved the 2024/25 Capital Strategy. This helps to provide a
high-level, long-term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management will contribute to the provision of services. It also provides an overview of how
associated risks are managed and implications for future financial sustainability. The Council’s
Asset Management Working Group meet on a quarterly basis to plan and develop the
Council’s Asset Management Plan.

Capital Expenditure

The Council spent £44.2m on capital schemes in 2023/24 compared with planned expenditure
of £62.2m (which historically assumes 20% slippage in the £77.8m capital programme). The
shortfall of spending is linked mainly to delays on Bridge and Highway Maintenance schemes.
Major elements of spend on the 2023/24 capital programme include £17.6m on Halton
Leisure Centre, £2.2m on East Runcorn Connectivity and £2.3m on the Transformation
Programme.

The approved budget and capital outturn position, together with the various sources of
funding is as follows:

Page 13



Page 70

2023/24| 2023/24| 2023/24
Budget Actual| Variance
£000 £000 £000
Expenditure:
Chief Executive's Directorate 16,759 2,663 14,096
Environment & Regeneration 51,841 36,739 15,102
Adult Social Care 3,049 1,575 1,474
Children's Services incl. Schools 6,204 3,225 2,979
Total Expenditure 77,853 44,202 33,651
Funded By:
Borrowing (32,479) (21,014) (11,465)
Capital Receipts (5,406) (3,238) (2,168)
Revenue (144) (294) 150
Grants and Other Contributions (39,822) (19,656) (20,166)
Total Funding (77,851) (44,202) (33,649)

Analysis of capital expenditure is included as part of the notes to the financial statements in
Note 16.

Pension Liability

Under International Accounting Standard 19, the Council is required to adjust its accounts to
reflect the activities of the two major pension providers, the Cheshire Pension Fund and the
Teachers’ Pension Agency.

As at 31%t March 2024, the Council has defined pension net liabilities of £4.5m. This is a
decrease of £0.2m to the net liabilities of £4.7m from 315t March 2023. Scheme obligations
have increased by £5.0m over the course of the past year, and an increase of £40.7m linked
to the scheme assets attributable to the return on plan assets. Due to accounting regulations
the net pension asset value has been reduced by £137.0m due to the asset ceiling calculation.
Please see Note 32 for further details.

Funding levels of the pension fund are monitored on an annual basis. Following the triennial
review in 2022, Council contribution rates to the pension fund have remained static at 20.5%
for 2023/24 and will then fall to 20% in each of the following two years. These future
contribution rates reflect the relatively good performance of the pension fund over the last
number of years.

Page 14



Page 71

Treasury Management

The Council operates within a Treasury Management framework, which requires that each
year a strategy is prepared including setting prudential indicators to form a framework for the
Council’s borrowing and lending activities. The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management. Performance is regularly monitored throughout the year
with reports presented to the Council’s Executive Board at the halfway point of the year and
a report on the final outturn position.

Over the past year there has been an upwards surge in the Bank of England interest rate,
increasing from 0.75% in March 2022 to 5.25% in March 2024. The increase in rates over the
years has enabled the Council to take advantage and increase the level of interest generated
from cash reserves.

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2024/25 was approved by Council on 6t
March 2024. The aim of the treasury management operation is to ensure that cash flow is
adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested
in low risk counterparties or instruments, with security being prioritised over yield.

As at 31t March 2024 long term borrowing totalled £172m, well within the authorised
borrowing limit. Borrowing of £172m comprises of loans from the Public Works Loan Board.

Of the £172m, total borrowing of £142m relates to the contribution from the Council towards
the Mersey Gateway Bridge construction costs. This borrowing has been taken with a
maturity period of between 26-30 years and will be repaid fully using toll income from the
Mersey Gateway Crossing.

The Council’s cash flow position continues to be well managed. Cash held (and deposits
payable within 3 months) totals £57.4m (£12.2m in 2022/23), and short-term deposits (up to
1 year) total £24.6m (£65.8m in 2022/23). Deposits over 12 months total £15.0m (£16.7m in
2022/23) and £8.5m (£8.9m in 2022/23) is held as a longer-term investment in a property
fund.

The Council has a prompt payment discount scheme, whereby in agreement with suppliers it
will arrange early payment of invoices in return for a percentage discount on the invoice total,
a scheme that is equally beneficial to both parties.

All transactions relating to investments and borrowings complied with the approved
guidelines for the year. Treasury management risk is evaluated within the Treasury
Management Strategy and reviewed by the Council’s Internal Audit function.

Collection Fund

The transactions on this fund record the collection of council tax and non-domestic rates.

Page 15



Page 72

The Business Rate Retention Scheme was implemented on 15t April 2013 with the Liverpool
City Region pilot scheme introduced on 1%t April 2017. As part of the pilot scheme the Council
collects non-domestic rates on behalf of Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service, and itself.

For the period to 315 March 2024 the Council as the Billing Authority collects council tax on
behalf of Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service, Cheshire Police & Crime Commissioner, Liverpool
City Region Combined Authority, and itself.

As at 315t March 2024 the council tax position showed the Council had a gross surplus position
of £0.298m (to be shared with major preceptors). In setting the 2024/25 budget the Council
approved the use of £0.234m of the Collection Fund surplus in balancing the overall budget.

As at 315 March 2024 the Business Rates position showed the Council had a gross surplus
position of £2.738m. This is slightly higher than the £2.472m which was forecast in January
2024 to be used towards balancing the 2024/25 budget.

Further details on the Collection Fund can be found within the supplementary financial
statements.

Performance Measures 2023/24

The Council’s interim Corporate Plan for 2023/24 identified the Council’s vision, values and
principles and six strategic themes which underpin the work of the various departments and
service areas across the Council. They are:

e Halton’s Children & Young People

e Employment, Learning & Skills in Halton
e Environment & Regeneration in Halton
e Healthy Halton

e Safer Halton

e Corporate Effectiveness and Efficiency

These strategic themes provide the basis for the development of key actions and activities,
and performance measures, which are reported on a quarterly basis to the Policy and
Performance Board with responsibility for scrutiny in each of these strategic areas. These
Priority Based Performance Reports also contain information concerning the key
developments and emerging issues that have arisen during the period of reporting.

These reports are placed on public deposit and are available on the Council’s website via the
relevant Policy and Performance Board agenda packs. The reports identify what progress is
being made throughout the year in relation to the delivery of predetermined actions and the
progress of a range of measures including direction of travel and achievement of targets.

Page 16



Page 73

The reports provide financial statements identifying variation in planned spend during the
quarter and providing an explanatory comment.

Policy and Performance Boards also receive a mid-year update concerning the
implementation of mitigation measures for those risks contained within the Directorate Risk
Registers which have been assessed as high.

This approach allows the opportunity for the effective scrutiny of the Council’s performance
during the course of the year in order that any underperformance can be addressed in a
timely manner and/or resources can be realigned in response to prevailing conditions or
pressures.

Listed below are a number of key performance indicators used in assessing the Council putting
in place economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources:

e The average number of working days lost during the year due to sickness absence has
decreased from 12.98 in 2022/23 to 11.46 in 2023/24.

e  Council tax collection for the year to 31 March 2024 is 93.8%, down 0.11% on the same
point last year. Cash collection for the year is £74.3m, this includes £2.2m collected in
relation to previous-year debt.

e Business rates collection for the year to 315 March 2024 is 96.7%, down 0.94% on this
point last year. The collection percentage has been impacted by a larger site coming on
to the rating list during March 2024. The Council has billed the organisation in full for the
rates due but this remains unpaid at financial year-end. Excluding this site, the collection
rate would have been 97.7%, up by 0.08% on this point last year. Business rate cash
collected for the year is £60.9m, this includes £1.1m collected in relation to previous year
debt.

Financial Planning

The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a major element of the Council’s corporate
planning process. It brings together resources and spending plans and identifies financial
constraints over the medium-term. Its purpose is to ensure that resources are properly
targeted towards Council priorities, to avoid excessive council tax rises, to deliver a balanced
and sustainable budget, and to continue to identify efficiencies.

The public spending austerity programme has had, and will continue to have, a significant
impact upon the Council’s finances over the medium-term and this has been reflected in the
MTFS.

Via the Transformation Programme the Council is continuing to review its services, changing
the way in which services are delivered in order to realise efficiencies. In addition, the Council
has continued to seek improved procurement, better utilisation of assets, changes to staff
terms and conditions, collaborative working with other Councils and partner agencies, and

Page 17



Page 74

increased income from external sources in order to manage costs within the funding
constraints imposed by Government.

The most recent MTFS was reported to the Council’s Executive Board in November 2023 and
subsequently updated as part of the budget report in March 2024. The latest report identified
potential shortfalls in funding for the Council over the following three years of approximately
£3.3m (2025/26), £2.7m (2026/27) and £4.5m (2027/28). These figures assume
transformation targets of £8m are achieved in both 2025/26 and 2026/27.

The 2024/25 net budget requirement of £149.5m was approved by Council on 6" March 2024.
The budget will be funded from £64.0m of council tax (increase of 4.99% on the 2023/24 Band
D level), business rates of £61.0m, top-up funding of £3.9m, share of the collection fund
surplus of £2.7m and Government Grant to fund business rate reliefs of £17.9m.

Beyond 2024/25 there is great uncertainty regarding the funding of Local Government, due
to the potential impact of a number of changes to the local government funding regime,
General Election, lack of certainty of future funding settlements and deferrals of the Fair
Funding Review, Business Rates Retention Review and Fair Cost of Care Programme.
Alongside the funding issue, the high cost of inflation is placing further pressure on local
government finances.

Conclusion

These continue to be difficult times for the Council from setting a balanced budget to ensuring
spend is controlled as tightly possible, whilst at the same time, there is high demand and
associated costs for services. The high cost base is particularly relevant within both adult and
children’s social care services where the funding provided by Government and through locally
generated taxes is not keeping pace with the increase in need.

Forecasting early in the financial year identified the significant financial risk of net spend for
the year being significantly in excess of the available budget. The hard work of members and
officers helped to control and reduce the overspend position to £5.6m, which was
considerably lower than the £7.1m forecast at the end of December 2023.

Despite the outturn overspend being lower than forecast, the Council is now in a position
where in-year spend is consistently exceeding the available budget, which is a considerable
concern, especially set against the backdrop of depleted reserves and ongoing service
demand pressures. This makes expediting the work of the Transformation Programme vital,
to bring forward fundamental changes in service delivery which will help to control and
reduce future costs. Alongside additional Government funding, transformation is essential to
provide the Council with a long-term, sustainable financial position.

Page 18



Page 75

In March 2024 the Council’s External Auditor (Grant Thornton UK LLP) issued its Annual
Report which highlighted the Council’s financial sustainability as a significant weakness. The
External Auditor provided the judgement “The Council’s planned and unplanned use of
reserves is not sustainable and is a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements. The
lack of progress to achieve planned savings from the transformation programme and limited
MTFS savings in 2022/23 and in 2023/24 are significant risks to the Council’s financial
sustainability”.

Provision balances continue to be set at prudent levels, but the impact of utilising reserves to
help provide a balanced budget position cannot be sustained. The Council will therefore look
to replenish reserves over the medium-term.

Continued commitment to capital expenditure allows the borough to develop and grow. The
collection fund function funds over 97% of the Council’s net budget, supported by treasury
management and the prompt collection of external charges allows the Council to be more
self-sufficient through funding from local resources, albeit with an increased level of risk.

| would like to thank all Members and Officers that have assisted greatly over the past year,
which has helped contribute to and shape this set of financial statements.

Ed Dawson

Director of Financial Services

Page 19



Core Financial Statements

Page 76

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement as at 31°* March 2024

Services

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Chief Executive's Directorate
Environment & Regeneration
Public Health

Adult Social Care

Children's Services

Schools

Corporate & Democracy
Mersey Gateway

Net Expenditure of Continuing Operations

Other Operating Expenditure

Financing and Investment Income &
Expenditure

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of Non-
Current Assets

(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of
financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
liability

Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &
EXPENDITURE

Note

37

37

32

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure
2023/24 2023/24 2023/24
£000 £000 £000
49,402 (41,754) 7,648
68,584 (20,810) 47,774
13,719 (12,161) 1,558
114,419 (53,087) 61,332
90,108 (40,077) 50,031
92,240 (86,229) 6,011
2,095 (951) 1,144
48,261 (80,600) (32,339)
478,828 (335,669) 143,159
(2,406)
33,555
(158,813)
15,495
(23,669)
(133)
97
(23,705)
(8,210)

Page 20




Page 77

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement as at 31 March 2023

Services

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Chief Executive's Directorate
Environment & Regeneration
Public Health

Adult Social Care

Children's Services

Schools

Corporate & Democracy
Mersey Gateway

Net Expenditure of Continuing Operations

Other Operating Expenditure

Financing and Investment Income &
Expenditure

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of Non-
Current Assets

(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of
financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
liability

Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &
EXPENDITURE

Note

37

37

32

Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Income| Expenditure

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

£000 £000 £000
43,379 (39,719) 3,660
75,313 (21,622) 53,691
13,156 (12,200) 956
106,379 (44,295) 62,084
84,208 (34,327) 49,881
87,008 (79,539) 7,469
3,472 (1,004) 2,468

39,324 (69,386) (30,062)
452,239 (302,092) 150,147
1,289
35,694

(155,580)
31,550

(5,796)
233

(106,199)

(111,762)

(80,212)

Page 21




Page 78

Balance Sheet as at 31%t March 2024

31/03/2022| 31/03/2023 31/03/2024
£000 £000 Note £000
Restated Restated
Non-Current Assets — Property Plant & 17
845,010 842,660 [Equipment 874,379
1,410 1,425 |Heritage Assets 18 1,425
1,344 1,344 |Investment Properties 19 1,323
632 726 |Intangible Assets 20 784
5,102 4,869 [Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 22 5,002
21,329 25,579 |[Long-Term Investments 22 23,533
13,550 13,012 |Long-Term Debtors 23 13,113
888,377 889,615 [Total Long Term Assets 919,559
Current Assets
396 407 |Inventories 337
12,946 12,229 |Assets Held for Sale < 12 months 21 987
33,198 45,501 ([Short-Term Debtors 23 52,848
100,121 65,845 |(Short-Term Investments 22 24,648
13,327 12,161 |Cash and Cash Equivalents 24 57,372
159,988 136,143 |Total Current Assets 136,192
Current Liabilities
(618) (15,760)|Short-Term Borrowing 26 (38,150)
(71,905) (61,002)|Short-Term Creditors 25 (114,073)
(9,400) (15,617)|Short-Term Grants Receipts in Advance 7 (7,216)
(3,673) (48,937)|Provisions < 1 year 27 (3,366)
(85,596) (141,316)|Total Current Liabilities (162,805)
74,392 (5,173)|Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) (26,613)
962,769 884,442 (Total Net Assets 892,946
Long Term Liabilities
(172,000) (172,000)|Long-Term Borrowing 26 (172,000)
(67,270) (17,140)|Provisions > 1 year 27 (23,426)
(14,004) - |Long-Term Grants Receipts in Advance 7 (1,540)
(444,590) (350,186)|0Other Long-Term Liabilities 29 (342,654)
(697,864) (539,326) |Total Long Term Liabilities (539,620)
264,905 345,116 [Total Assets Less Liabilities 353,326
(100,237) (83,526)|Usable Reserves 35 (76,006)
(164,668) (261,590)(Unusable Reserves 37 (277,320)
(264,905) (345,116)|Total Equity (353,326)
Signed by: i

Ed Dawson — Director of Financial Services

Page 22

Date: 20" November 2024




Page 79

Movement in Reserves Statement

[3)

c m =

2 ) ) =
© [} 4] = o 0 o O
c oc cC o 0 & << 2 w
uj_ 0 T o < O w O S5 0O

= N o= 2 D 2
— o (G) 4] O x
© — Q ()
— ] © _,m :m O
o O 8 © w w -
c ] 3 £ < S - S IV
9] [ i) E x < = o
G} — S O w = w o

8 - un oOw -

= w - W

Q o o

©

(@]

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 31 March 2022 (74,616)|  (1,061)| (24,560)| (100,237)| (164,668)| (264,905)

Movement in Reserves during 2022/23

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

31,550 - - 31,550 | (111,762)| (80,212)
Adjustments between Accounting Basis and
Funding Basis under Regulations (note 34b) (8,733) (1,729) (4,377)| (14,839)| 14,839 -
Other Adjustments - - - - 1 1
(Increase)/Decrease in the year 22,817 (1,729)| (4,377)] 16,711 | (96,922)| (80,211)

Balance at 31* March 2023 carried forward (51,799) (2,790)| (28,937)| (83,526)| (261,590)| (345,116)

Balance as at 31" March 2023 (51,799) (2,790)| (28,937)( (83,526)| (261,590)| (345,116)

Movement in Reserves during 2023/24

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
15,495 - - 15,495 | (23,705)| (8,210)
Adjustments between Accounting Basis and
Funding Basis under Regulations (note 34a) (4,360) (2,188) (1,425)| (7,973) 7,973 -
Other Movements (2) - - (2) 2 -

(Increase)/Decrease in the year 11,133 (2,188)| (1,425) 7,520 | (15,730)| (8,210)

Balance at 31 March 2024 carried forward | (40,666)| (4,978)| (30,362)| (76,006) (277,320)| (353,326)

Please note that the General Fund Balance includes Earmarked Reserves and School Reserves. See
Notes 1 and 36 for further details.

Page 23



Page 80

Cash Flow Statement

2022/23
£000
31,550

(26,118)

27,958

33,390
(28,550)
(3,674)

1,166

(13,327)

(12,161)

Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

Adjustments to net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
for non-cash movements

Adjust for items in the net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of
services

Net cash flows from Operating Activities

Net cash flows from Investing Activities

Net cash flows from Financing Activities

Net (increase)/decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the reporting period

Note

38

38

39
40

24

24

2023/24
£000
15,495

(42,413)

28,182

1,264
(34,270)
(12,205)

(45,211)

(12,161)

(57,372)

Page 24




Page 81

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Please note the Accounting Policies are shown on page 117.

1. Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis demonstrates how the funding available to the Council
for the year (including government grants, council tax and business rates) has been used to
provide services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned under generally
accepted accounting practices. This also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes between the Council’s Directorates.

Page 25



Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2023/24

Chief Executive's Directorate
Environment & Regeneration
Public Health

Adult Social Care

Children's Services

Schools

Corporate & Democracy
Mersey Gateway

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure
(Surplus) or Deficit

Opening General Fund Balance
Transfer to / from Earmarked Reserves to General
Fund

(Surplus) or Deficit in year

Closing General Fund Balance at 31st March

Outturn Movement in| Net Expenditure Adjustments| Net Expenditure
Reported to Earmarked Chargeable to Between the in the
Management Reserves the General Funding and| Comprehensive
Fund Balances| Accounts Basis Income and
Expenditure
Statement
2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
6,845 910 7,755 (107) 7,648
48,102 (61) 48,041 (267) 47,774
1,157 436 1,593 (35) 1,558
60,487 860 61,347 (15) 61,332
52,139 446 52,585 (2,554) 50,031
- 992 992 5,019 6,011
(21,325) 3,583 (17,742) 18,886 1,144
- (1,678) (1,678) (30,661) (32,339)
147,405 5,488 152,893 (9,734) 143,159
(141,772) 14 (141,758) 14,094 (127,664)
5,633 5,502 11,135 4,360 15,495
(5,147) (46,652) (51,799)
(5,633) 5,633 -
5,633 5,502 11,135
(5,147) (35,517) (40,664)

Page 26

28 obed



Note to Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2023/24

Adjustments from General Fund to
arrive at the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement amounts
Chief Executive's Directorate
Environment & Regeneration

Public Health

Adult Social Care

Children's Services

Schools

Corporate & Democracy

Mersey Gateway

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund
Surplus or Deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Other Income| Adjustments|Net change for
and for Capital the Pension Other Total
Expenditure Purposes| Adjustments| Adjustments| Adjustments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(2,241) 2,334 (18) (182) (107)
(993) 912 (21) (165) (267)
(23) - (3) (9) (35)
- - (20) 5 (15)
(2,465) (121) (13) 45 (2,554)
2,465 190 (174) 2,538 5,019
2,710 22,470 (305) (5,989) 18,886
(31,214) (7,476) - 8,029 (30,661)
(31,761) 18,309 (554) 4,272 (9,734)
31,761 (16,366) 217 (1,518) 14,094
- 1,943 (337) 2,754 4,360

Page 27

cg abed



Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2022/23

Chief Executive's Directorate
Environment & Regeneration
Public Health

Adult Social Care

Children's Services

Schools

Corporate & Democracy
Mersey Gateway

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure

(Surplus) or Deficit

Opening General Fund Balance

Transfer to from Earmarked Reserves to
General Fund
(Surplus) or Deficit in year

Closing General Fund Balance at 31st March

Outturn Movement in Net Expenditure
Reported to Earmarked| Net Expenditure Adjustments in the
Management Reserves| Chargeable to between the| Comprehensive
the General Funding and Income and
Fund Balances| Accounts Basis Expenditure
Statement
2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,930 1,310 3,240 420 3,660
47,823 1,186 49,009 4,682 53,691
96 400 496 460 956
54,916 3,014 57,930 4,154 62,084
47,294 2,243 49,537 344 49,881
- 421 421 7,048 7,469
(43,208) 9,011 (34,197) 36,665 2,468
8,028 (17) 8,011 (38,073) (30,062)
116,879 17,568 134,447 15,700 150,147
(111,718) 87 (111,631) (6,966) (118,597)
5,161 17,655 22,816 8,734 31,550
(5,147) (69,469) (74,616)
(5,161) 5,161 -
5,161 17,656 22,817
(5,147) (46,652) (51,799)

Page 28

8 abed



Note to Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2022/23

Adjustments from General Fund to
arrive at the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement amounts
Chief Executive's Directorate
Environment & Regeneration

Public Health

Adult Social Care

Children's Services

Schools

Corporate & Democracy

Mersey Gateway

Net Cost of Services

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund
Surplus or Deficit and Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Other Income| Adjustments|Net change for

and for Capital the Pension Other Total
Expenditure Purposes| Adjustments| Adjustments| Adjustments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(2,577) (4) 3,119 (118) 420

(620) 1,333 4,007 (38) 4,682

(21) - 474 7 460

- 493 3,658 3 4,154

(2,321) 115 2,599 (49) 344

2,323 149 3,457 1,119 7,048

6,029 17,418 (268) 13,486 36,665
(38,073) - - - (38,073)

(35,260) 19,504 17,046 14,410 15,700
35,258 (26,577) 2,691 (18,338) (6,966)

(2) (7,073) 19,737 (3,928) 8,734

Page 29

Gg abed



Page 86

Other Income and Expenditure

This column moves all items that are shown within the directorate spend reported to
management but are shown below the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. These include:

e Interest Payable and Receivable
e Levy Payments

Adjustments for Capital Purposes

This column adjusts for any capital transactions that are not included in the directorate spend
reported to management but are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. These include:

e Capital funding
e Revaluation gains and losses
e Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute

This column also includes items that are included in the spend reported to management but
are not shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This includes:

e Minimum Revenue Provision
e The reversal of depreciation transactions shown in Corporate and Democracy

Net Charge for Pension Adjustments

This column includes the net change for the removal of pension contributions and the
addition of IAS 19 employee benefits pension related income and expenditure:

e For services, this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made
by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs
and past service costs.

e Forfinancing and investment income and expenditure, the net interest on the defined
benefit liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Other adjustments
This column includes:

e Thedifference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax
and non-domestic rates that was projected to be received at the start of the year and
the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.

Page 30



Page 87

This is a timing difference, as any difference will be brought forward in future
surpluses or deficits on the Collection Fund.

e Adjustments to show Schools income and expenditure separately on the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is reported under the

Children’s Services Directorate when reported to management.

Segmental Income and Expenditure

Income and expenditure received on a segmental basis is analysed below:

Revenues from Depreciation

External Interest Interest and

Customers Revenue Expense| Amortisation

2023/24 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chief Executive's (1,995) - - 817
Environment & Regeneration (14,772) - - 14,428
Public Health (172) - - -
Adult Social Care (14,513) - - 583
Childrens Services (375) - - 110
Schools (210) - - 2,438

Corporate & Democracy (196) (5,862) 2,925 (26,405)
Mersey Gateway (58,081) - 31,214 8,029
Net Cost of Services (90,314) (5,862) 34,139 -

Revenues from Depreciation

External Interest Interest and

Customers Revenue Expense| Amortisation

2022/23 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chief Executive's (1,998) - - 748
Environment & Regeneration (13,668) - - 14,815
Public Health (239) - - -
Adult Social Care (12,579) - - 512
Childrens Services (580) - - 144
Schools (198) - - 2,322

Corporate & Democracy (238) (2,590) 2,758 (26,569)
Mersey Gateway (55,396) - 31,307 8,028
Net Cost of Services (84,896) (2,590) 34,065 -

Page 31




Page 88

2. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

2022/23
£000

171,768
258,043
27,514
34,065
3,634

495,024

(123,385)
(2,345)
(111,819)
(223,335)
(2,590)

(463,474)

31,550

Expenditure

Employee benefits

Other service expenses

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Interest payments

Precepts and levies

Total Expenditure

Income

Fees and charges and other service income
Gain on disposal of non-current assets
Income from Council Tax and Business Rates
Government grants income

Interest and investment income

Total Income

(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services

2023/24
£000

165,311
292,535
27,248
34,139
3,820

523,053

(134,449)
(6,226)
(121,251)
(239,770)
(5,862)

(507,558)

15,495

3. Other Operating Expenditure

2022/23
£000

161 (Parish Council Precepts
3,473 |Levies
- |Movement in value of Assets Held for Sale
(2,345)|(Gains)/Losses on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets
1,289 |(Total

2023/24
£000
166

3,654

(6,226)

(2,406)

Page 32




Page 89

4. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
34,065 |Interest payable and similar charges 34,139
2,690 |Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 216
(2,590)|Interest receivable and similar charges (5,862)
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and
(23)|changes in their fair value (76)
1,751 [Movement in fair value of financial instruments 346
- |Loss on transfer of academies 4,960
(199)|0ther investment income and expenditure (168)
35,694 |Total 33,555
5. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(57,581)|Council Tax income (60,892)
(54,238)|Non-domestic rates (60,359)
(13,461)|Non-ringfenced government grants (18,632)
(6,067)[NNDR Top Up Grant (3,918)
(24,233)|Capital grants and contributions (15,012)
(155,580) (Total (158,813)

6. Material Iltems of Income and Expenditure

The Mersey Gateway line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement includes
expenditure of £67.176m relating to the 85% share of the excess revenue from the Mersey
Gateway bridge payable to Department for Transport (DfT). This figure has two elements,
£44.750m agreed to be paid back to DfT on 15t August 2024 following the five-year review
during 2023/24, and £23.426m provision for payment, an element of which will be due
following the next three-year review in 2026/27. For further breakdown of income and

expenditure

relating to the Mersey Gateway, please see Note 42.

Page 33




Page 90

7. Grant Income

The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised
as income. At the balance sheet date, conditions existed which remain to be satisfied. The
balances at year-end are as follows:

31/03/2023 31/03/2024
£000 £000
Long Term Receipts in Advance
Capital
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities - (1,540)
Other Grants - -
Total - (1,540)
31/03/2023 31/03/2024
Revenue| Capital Total| Revenue| Capital Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Short Term Receipts in Advance

Department for Levelling Up,

Housing and Communities (905)[ (7,406)| (8,311) (521) (2,000)| (2,521)
Department for Education (546) (657) (1,203) (597) (395) (992)
Department of Health & Social Care (3,606) - (3,606) - - -

Other Grants (1,523) (13)| (1,536)| (2,846) (13)] (2,859)
Contributions (961) - (961) (844) - (844)

(7,541)| (8,076)| (15,617)| (4,808)] (2,408)( (7,216)

Page 34



Page 91

The Council credited the following grants to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in 2023/24

2022/23| 2023/24
£000 £000

Revenue Grants Credited to Services
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (11,555) (17,038)
Dedicated Schools Grant (82,656) (86,564)
Department for Education (17,148) (21,634)
Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (80) (120)
Department for Transport (14,003) (22,566)
Department for Works & Pensions (3,482) (3,497)
Department of Health & Social Care (13,031) (15,439)
Home Office (2,932) (2,289)
Rent Allowance Subsidy (30,355) (30,035)
Other Grants (4,332) (3,026)
Total (179,574)| (202,208)

Page 35



Page 92

8. Disclosure of Deployment of Dedicated Schools Grant

The Council’s expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and can only be
applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget, as defined in the School
Finance and Early Years (England) Regulations 2019. The Schools Budget includes elements for
a range of educational services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the Individual
Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget share for each maintained school.

Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2023/24 are shown below:

Total
2022/23
£000

(135,993)
53,316

(82,677)

(82,677)

(146)

(82,823)

16,603

67,256

1,036

1,036

1,856
1,036

2,892

2,892

Final DSG before academy recoupment
Academy figure recouped in year

Total DSG after academy recoupment
Plus brought forward

Less carry forward agreed in advance

Agreed budget distribution

In-year adjustments
Final budget distribution

Less actual central expenditure

Less actual ISB deployed to schools
Plus Council contribution

Carry forward

Plus carry forward agreed in advance

Carry forward to following year

DSG Unusable Reserve brought forward
Addition to DSG Unusable Reserve in year

Total DSG Unusable Reserve at end of year

Net DSG position at end of year

Individual

Central Schools
Expenditure Budget Total
2023/24 2023/24 2023/24
£000 £000 £000
(143,178)
56,564
(86,614)
(20,294) (66,320) (86,614)
50 - 50
(20,244) (66,320) (86,564)
22,701 22,701
66,320 66,320
2,457 - 2,457
2,457
2,892
2,457
5,349
5,349

Page 36




Page 93

9. Pooled Budgets
Better Care Fund

In 2015 the Government introduced a £3.8 billion Better Care Fund, a pooled budget for
health and social care services, shared between the NHS and local authorities, to deliver
better outcomes and greater efficiencies through more integrated services for older and
disabled people. The pooled budget, hosted by the council, continues to provide an integrated
system enabling resources to be used efficiently and effectively in the delivery of
personalised, responsive and holistic care to those who are most in need within the
community. This results in the alignment of systems, improved pathways, speeding up the
discharge processes, transforming patient/care satisfaction and ensuring the future
sustainability of meeting the needs of people with complex needs.

The Additional Better Care Fund (ABCF) was announced in the 2017 Spring Budget, with a
condition that it is pooled into the local BCF plan. The grant determination enables the
funding to be spent on three purposes:

e Meeting adult social care needs.

e Reducing pressures on the NHS, including supporting more people to be discharged
from hospital when they are ready.

e Ensuring that the local social care provider market is supported.

In addition to BCF and ABCF allocations, the Council and Health each contributed additional
funds equal to 54% and 46% respectively (excluding the BCF allocation) for 2023/24.

It should be noted that Clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) were established as part of the
Health and Social Care Act in 2012, and replaced primary care trusts on 1 April 2013. On 1
July 2022, integrated care systems (ICSs) became legally established through the Health and
Care Act 2022, and CCGs were closed down. ICSs are partnerships of organisations that come
together to plan and pay for health and care services to improve the lives of people who live
and work in their area.

Each integrated care system has two statutory elements, an integrated care partnership (ICP)
and integrated care board (ICB). Across England, local partnerships made up of all the public
services that provide health and care (NHS, GPs, local councils and the community and
voluntary sector) plan how best to deliver high quality, affordable services that meet the
needs of local people. Although partnership working has taken place nationally for some
years, these changes make it easier for people to get access to better, more efficient and
joined-up care, and to enjoy better health.

This is joint arrangement between Halton Borough Council and the Cheshire and Merseyside
Integrated Care Board, and all the relevant activities of the arrangement require unanimous
consent of all parties.

Page 37



Page 94

Balance Brought Forward

Funding provided to the pooled budget:
- Halton Borough Council

- Halton Place

- Better Care Fund

- Additional Better Care Fund

- Adult Social Care Discharge Grant

- Integrated Care Board Discharge Grant

- Other Grants

- Reserves

Income raised through the pooled budget:
- Halton Borough Council

Expenditure met from the pooled budget:
- Halton Borough Council

- Halton Place

- Better Care Fund

- Winter Pressures

Net (surplus)/deficit arising on the pooled budget
during the year

Share of the (surplus)/deficit for the year:
- Halton Borough Council 53%
- Halton Place 47%

Balance Carried Forward

2022/23
£000

(205)

(3,696)
(2,831)
(12,078)
(1,628)
(962)
(700)

(21,895)

(609)

(609)

5,568
4,915
12,078

22,561

57

30
27

57

(148)

54%
46%

2023/24
£000

(148)

(3,144)
(2,865)
(12,762)
(6,982)
(979)
(942)
(144)
(193)

(28,011)

4,540
3,875
19,744

28,159

148

80
68

148

Page 38




Page 95

10. Officers Remuneration

The number of employees whose remuneration, inclusive of redundancy payments and car
benefit but excluding pension contributions, was £50,000 or more, grouped in rising bands of
£5,000 is shown below. This list is inclusive of officers reported in the senior officers

disclosure note.

2022/23 2023/24
Number of Employees | Number of Employees
Remuneration Band Teaching Non.- Teaching Non.-
Teaching Teaching

£50,000 £54,999 16 51 29 75
£55,000 £59,999 13 9 13 20
£60,000 £64,999 8 9 17 7
£65,000 £69,999 9 5 7 12
£70,000 £74,999 6 9 7 10
£75,000 £79,999 4 5 8 4
£80,000 £84,999 1 5 4 7
£85,000 £89,999 - 2 1 2
£90,000 £94,999 4 - 2
£95,000 £99,999 - 5 - 3
£100,000 £104,999 - 1 - 3
£105,000 £109,999 - - - 1
£110,000 £114,999 - 1 - -
£115,000 £119,999 - - - 1
£120,000 £124,999 - - - 1
£125,000 £129,999 - - - -
£130,000 £134,999 - - - -
£135,000 £139,999 - 1 - -
£140,000 £144,999 - - - -
£145,000 £149,999 - - - 1
£150,000 £154,999 - - - -
£155,000 £159,999 - 1 - -
£160,000 £164,999 - - - -
£165,000 £169,999 - - - 1
£170,000 £174,999 - - - -
£175,000 £179,999 - - - -
£180,000 £184,999 - - - -
£185,000 £189,999 - - - -
£190,000 £194,999 - - - -
£195,000 £199,999 - - - -
£200,000 £204,999 - - - -
£205,000 £209,999 - - - -
£210,000 £214,999 - - - -
£215,000 £219,999 - - - -
£220,000 £224,999 - - - -
£225,000 £229,999 - - - -
£230,000 £234,999 - - - -
£240,000 £244,999 - - - -
£245,000 £249,999 - - - -
£250,000 £254,999 - - - -
£255,000 £259,999 - 1 - -

57 109 86 150

Page 39




Page 96

The note excludes salaries for staff at Voluntary Aided Schools who are employed directly by
the school's governing body. 58 staff with a total salary value of £3,479,665 have been
excluded from the 2022/23 figures. In 2023/24, 72 staff members of Voluntary Aided Schools
with a total salary value of £4,356,504.73 were excluded from Note 10.

The number of Council employees disclosed in the £50,000 - £54,999 band has increased
significantly from 2022/23 due to the inflationary impact of the 2023/24 local government
pay award.

Halton Borough Council is required to disclose to local taxpayers the total remuneration
package for the senior officers charged with the stewardship of the organisation.

A senior employee has a significant level of responsibility for contributing to the strategic
decision making of the Council. Senior officers will include those that have a statutory duty
under legislation.

Senior employees whose salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 are disclosed by job title.
Senior employees whose salary is more than £150,000 are disclosed by job title and name.

These notes refer to the detailed table below:

Note 1: The Executive Director - Children's Services joined the authority on 23™ October 2023.
Prior to this, the role was carried out on an interim basis by agency members of staff who
were not employees of the Council.

Note 2: The Director of Public Health received an additional £10,414 for work done on behalf
of NIHR Clinical Research Network, and an additional £2,236 from the Clinical Excellence
Awards. These amounts are included in the above table, but have been fully reimbursed to
the Council.

Note 3: The new post of Executive Director - Environment and Regeneration was created on
15 June 2023. The existing Operational Director - Economy, Enterprise, and Property moved
into the newly created role on this date.

Note 4: The existing Interim Operational Director - Adult Social Care moved into the newly
created Operational Director - Commissioning and Provision post on 17™ April 2023.

Note 5: The existing Interim Operational Director - Adult Social Care moved into the newly
created Operational Director - Care Management, Safeguarding, and Quality post on 17 April
2023.

Note 6: The Operational Director - Children's Social Care left the authority on 14 July 2023.
The role was subsequently carried out by an agency member of staff who was not an
employee of the Council until a new, permanent appointment was made on 25 December
2023. At this date, the post was renamed to Operational Director - Children's Social Care and
Early Help.

Note 7: The Operational Director - Economy, Enterprise, and Property joined the authority
on 20™" November 2023.

Page 40



Salary (including fees &

Compensation for loss

Benefits in kind

Total remuneration

Employers pension

Total remuneration

allowances) of employment excluding pension contributions including pension
contributions contributions
Post Title
2022/23  2023/24( 2022/23 2023/24| 2022/23 2023/24| 2022/23 2023/24| 2022/23 2023/24| 2022/23 2023/24
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive — Stephen Young 158,925 167,557 - - - - 158,925 167,557 32,533 34,144 191,458 201,701
Statutory Executive Director - Adult's
Services 39,857 124,548 - - - - 39,857 124,548 8,142 25,327 47,999 149,875
Statutory Executive Director - Children's
Services - 53,565 - - - - - 53,565 - 10,890 - 64,455
Director of Public Health 117,519 145,602 - - - - | 117,519 145,602 16,055 20,872| 133,574 166,474
Executive Director - Environment and
Regeneration - 101,250 - - - - - 101,250 - 20,585 - 121,835
Director of Chief Executive's Delivery Unit 8,250 103,940 - - - - 8,250 103,940 1,682 21,103 9,932 125,042
Interim Operational Director - Adult Social
Care 27,776 3,472 - - - - 27,776 3,472 5,653 703 33,429 4,175
Operational Director - Commissioning and
Provision - 82,716 - - - - - 82,716 - 16,760 - 99,476
Interim Operational Director - Adult Social
Care 27,776 3,472 - - - - 27,776 3,472 5,653 703 33,429 4,175
Operational Director - Care Management,
Safeguarding, and Quality - 82,716 - - - - - 82,716 - 16,760 - 99,476
Care 21,768 46,631 - - - - 21,768 46,631 4,437 5,753| 26,205 52,384
Operational Director - Children's Social
Care and Early Help - 23,174 - - - - - 23,174 - 4,696 - 27,870
Statutory Operational Director - Education,
Inclusion & Provision 32,878 98,566 - - - - 32,878 98,566 6,695 20,001 39,573 118,567
Operational Director - Community &
Greenspace 85,713 91,154 - - - - 85,713 91,154 17,662 18,482 103,375 109,635
Operational Director - Economy, Enterprise
& Property 95,267 16,428 - - - - 95,267 16,428 19,673 3,334| 114,940 19,761
Operational Director - Economy, Enterprise
& Property - 35,867 - - - - - 35,867 - 7,278 - 43,145
Operational Director - Policy, Planning &
Transportation 92,876 100,233 - - - - 92,876 100,233 19,123 20,343 111,999 120,575
Operational Director - Finance 95,267 98,566 - - - - 95,267 98,566 19,419 20,001 114,686 118,567
Operational Director - ICT & Support
Services 102,767 106,066 - - - - 102,767 106,066 20,964 21,539 123,731 127,605
Operational Director - Legal & Democratic
Services 95,267 98,566 - - - - 95,267 98,566 19,419 20,001 114,686 118,567

1,001,905 1,584,089 - - - - 11,001,905 1,584,089 197,110 309,275 [1,199,015 1,893,364

Page 41

/6 abed



11. Exit Packages and Termination Benefits

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of compulsory and voluntary redundancies and early retirements are set out

in the table below:

Exit package cost |Number of compulsory | Number of voluntary Number of early Total number of exit Total cost of exit

band redundancies redundancies retirements packages by cost band | packages in each band

2022/23 2023/24 2022/23 2023/24 2022/23 2023/24 2022/23 2023/24 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
£0- £20,000 3 3 11 24 - - 14 27 77 229
£20,001 - £40,000 - - 5 13 - - 5 13 147 395
£40,001 - £60,000 - 1 - 2 - - - 3 - 131
£60,001 - £80,000 - - 1 1 - - 1 1 65 70
£80,001 - £100,000 - - 1 - - - 1 - 100 -
£100,001 - £150,000 - - - - - - - - - -
£150,001 - £200,000 - - - - - - - - - -
£200,001 - £250,000 - - - - - - - - - -
£250,001 - £300,000 - - - - - - - - - -
Total 3 4 18 40 - - 21 44 389 825

g6 obed

The total cost of exit packages in 2023/24 is £0.825m (2022/23 - £0.389m) charged to the authority's Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (CIES). Costs associated with redundancies include officers aged 55 or over being able to access their pensions immediately, the costs
of which amounted to £0.319m in 2023/24. There were no early retirements taken in 2023/24 (2022/23 - £0.000m).

Termination Benefits

The Council incurred no liabilities relating to past early retirements charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Page 42



Page 99

12. Members Allowances

During the year £893,428.26 (2022/23 - £842,015.70) was paid to Members, including Mayoral
and Deputy Mayoral allowances.

13. Related Party Transactions

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to
which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently, or might
have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Once these relationships are brought to the attention of users, transactions are disclosed so that
readers can assess for themselves whether these relationships might have had an effect or could
have an effect in the future.

Materiality
Materiality has been assessed with regards to the Council and the related party.
Central Government

UK Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council. It is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides
significant funding in the form of grants, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions
that the Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits).

Grants received from government departments are set out in Note 7.
Members and Officers

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies.
The Council operates a system of self-regulation which requires each Executive Director and
Member to complete a declaration highlighting whether they or any members of their family
have been involved in any material financial transactions between the Council and any external
bodies they are affiliated to during the financial year.

The total of members allowances paid in 2023/24 is shown in Note 12. The total of senior officers’
remuneration paid in 2023/24 is shown in Note 10.

In 2023/24, 3 Members had interests in various organisations and voluntary sector bodies
involving payments worth £1.945m and receipts worth £0.048m for various works and services.

Page 43



Page 100

In 2023/24, no senior officers had interests in organisations which were party to transactions

with the Council.

2023/24 31/03/2024
Payments/receipts from organisations
where Members or their spouse hold Expenditure Income Creditor Debtor
an interest £000 £000 £000 £000
Creative Health Initiatives CIC 38 (8) - -
Mersey Gateway Crossings Board 1,907 (40) 99 (1)
Total 1,945 (48) 99 (1)

Other Public Bodies

The Council is a member of Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, from which it received
£7.311m of income in 2023/24, plus outstanding debtors of £5.025m. This related to highways
grant funding of £9.902m from Merseytravel, funding for regeneration projects of £0.66m,
funding for skills and apprenticeship programmes of £1.417m, £0.126m for IT hosting services,
£0.093m for accommodation projects, and £0.138m for other services. £0.089m of
expenditure was incurred in 2023/24.

The Council had one pooled budget arrangement with NHS Cheshire and Merseyside ICB
Integrated Care Board during 2023/24 under s75 of the Health Act 2006. Transactions and
balances are highlighted in Note 9. In addition to the pooled budget arrangement there were
further payments of £0.031m relating to other services. There was additional income received
of £13.878m for contributions to care packages, a £0.220m contribution towards the Positive
Behaviour Support Service, a £0.182m contribution towards the Transforming Care Project, a
£0.023m contribution towards the Direct Payments Service, £0.164m for rent at Council
buildings, and £0.239m for other services. There were debtors outstanding at year end of
£0.168m for joint funded care packages and a £0.085m contribution towards the benefits advice

scheme.

£1.450m of expenditure was paid to Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Trust from the pooled
budget, comprising £0.771m for reablement services, £0.132m for the Halton Community Team
Project, £0.132m for supported hospital discharge, and £0.420m for other services. There were
£0.180m of creditors outstanding at 315t March 2024. Outside of the pooled budget, £0.005m
was paid to the Trust for Public Health Services. One member of the Council is a Governor of the
Trust.

The Council incurred £2.385m of expenditure with Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS
Trust in 2023/24 from the pooled budget, the majority of which (£1.541m) related to the
Intermediate Care and Frailty Service. £0.829m of expenditure was incurred on the Integrated
Community Equipment Service, and £0.015m related to other services. Outside of the pooled

Page 44



Page 101

budget, the Council incurred £3.270m of expenditure for the 0-19 public health service, £0.092m
for children’s therapy equipment, £0.073m for infection control services, £0.022m for mental
health services, and £0.043m for vision and deafness support services. There were £0.323m of
creditors outstanding at the end of the 2023/24 financial year.

£0.178m of expenditure to Cheshire Police was incurred in 2023/24, including £0.102m for
staffing costs, and £0.076m of project contributions. £0.381m of income was received, including
£0.154m for the Domestic Abuse Prevention Service, £0.078m for community support services,
£0.053m for the Safer Halton CCTV Project, £0.044m for substance misuse programmes,
£0.042m for traffic equipment, and £0.010m for other services.

The Council has contracted with Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority (MRWA) to manage
the disposable of household waste, the processing of recyclables, and to run the Household
Waste and Recycling Centres within Halton. Expenditure of £6.040m was incurred during
2023/24, with additional creditors of £1.104m outstanding at 315t March 2024. £1.016m of
debtors were outstanding at the end of the financial year. One member of the Council represents
Halton as a member of MRWA.

Three members of the Council sit on the Committee of Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service. There
were no significant financial transactions between Halton Borough Council and Cheshire Fire and
Rescue Service during the 2023/24 financial year.

Full details of the Council’s pension fund transactions can be found in Note 32, Pension Schemes.
Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council

Halton Borough Council are joint venture partners in Daresbury SIC (Pub Sec) LLP, which has
significant influence over Daresbury SIC LLP. Total payments of £0.431m were received in
2023/24, including interest income of £0.162m. The total debtor outstanding is £5.872m and
further details of the lease are provided in Note 30, Finance Leases — Authority as a Lessor. The
Council also received £0.414m (including interest income of £0.124m) from the Enterprise Zone
Rates in relation to the repayment of a contribution towards the construction of Project Violet.

Details of the Council’s interests in companies are disclosed in Note 41, Interest in Companies
and Other Entities.

Page 45



Page 102

14. External Audit Fees

The Council paid the following amounts to Grant Thornton in 2023/24 for fees relating to external
audit, inspection and additional services.

2022/23( 2023/24
£000 £000
Fees payable for:
- Audit 145 324
- Grants and returns 38 30
Total 183 354

15. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

These accounts have been authorised for issue by the Operational Director Finance, on the 28t
June 2024 and reflect all known events for the financial year. Events taking place after this date
are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.

Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at
315t March 2024, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all
material respects to reflect the impact of this information.

Page 46



Page 103

16. Capital Expenditure and Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below,
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to
be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the
capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is

analysed in the second part of this note.

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

Capital Investment:

Property, Plant & Equipment

Investment Properties

Intangible Assets

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Source of Finance:

Capital Receipts

Capital Receipts to Reduce MRP Liability
Government Grants & Other Contributions
Direct Revenue Contributions

Minimum Revenue Provision

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

Explanation of movement in year:

Increase in underlying need to borrow
Minimum Revenue Provision statutory set aside
Use of Capital Reserves to reduce MRP liability

Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
Restated
614,327 604,079
19,325 34,123
288 296
7,936 9,783
(1,470) (3,238)
(526) (7,744)
(25,752) (19,656)
(145) (294)
(9,904)|  (11,409)
604,079 605,940
182 21,014
(9,904)  (11,409)
(526) (7,744)
(10,248) 1,861

The table above shows the Council spent £44.2m on capital during 2023/24.

Please note the 2022/23 capital receipts figures above have been restated to reflect the

treatment of the use of capital receipts in the 2023/24 accounts.

Page 47




Page 104

Disposal of Assets/Capital Receipts

Land/Dwellings/Recovered Advances — the Council received £12.532m from the sale of land,
vehicles and various properties.

Under residual arrangements, the Council received £0.290m (£0.323m in 2022/23) from Halton
Housing Trust for the sale of homes during the year, and a further £0.080m (£0.002m in 2022/23)
under VAT Shelter arrangements.

Page 48



Page 105



17. Non-Current Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements during 2023/24

Vehicles, Plant

Under

Land and Community and Surplus Construction /
Buildings Assets Equipment Assets Development| Total 2023/24
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
As at 1st April 2023 209,919 5,586 15,153 6,839 6,313 243,810
Additions and Enhancements 17 383 1,653 87 18,907 21,047
Revaluations Recognised in the Revaluations Reserve 10,001 - 324 - 10,325
Revaluations Recognised in the Provision of Services 49 - - - - 49
Derecognition — Disposals (5,506) - - - - (5,506)
Derecognition — Others - - - - - -
Assets Reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale - - - 5,242 - 5,242
Other Movements (208) - - 208 - -
As at 31% March 2024 214,272 5,969 16,806 12,700 25,220 274,967
Depreciation
As at 1st April 2023 (8,575) (2,739) (9,841) (88) - (21,243)
Depreciation for the Year (6,372) (223) (1,334) (144) - (8,073)
Depreciation written out to Revaluation Reserve 13,346 - - - - 13,346
Depreciation written out to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services 207 - - - - 207
Derecognition — Disposals 250 - - - - 250
Derecognition — Other - - - - - -
Other Movements in Depreciation - - - - - -
As at 31% March 2024 (1,144) (2,962) (11,175) (232) - (15,513)
Balance Sheet Amount as at 31% March 24 213,128 3,007 5,631 12,468 25,220 259,454
Balance Sheet Amount as at 1% April 23 201,344 2,847 5,312 6,751 6,313 222,567

Page 49

90T 9bed



Movements during 2022/23

Vehicles, Plant Under
Land and Community and Surplus Construction /
Buildings Assets Equipment Assets Development| Total 2022/23
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
As at 1st April 2022 207,388 5,109 26,762 6,741 2,049 248,049
Additions and Enhancements 542 477 1,396 861 4,264 7,540
Revaluations Recognised in the Revaluations Reserve 2,345 - - (24) - 2,321
Revaluations Recognised in the Provision of Services (191) - - (701) - (892)
Derecognition — Disposals (375) - (13,005) (38) - (13,418)
Derecognition — Others - - - - - -
Assets Reclassified (to)/from Held for Aale 208 - - - - 208
Other Movements 2 - - - - 2
As at 31% March 2023 209,919 5,586 15,153 6,839 6,313 243,810
Depreciation
As at 1st April 2022 (5,378) (2,548) (21,360) (113) - (29,399)
Depreciation for the Year (6,698) (191) (1,479) (109) - (8,477)
Depreciation written out to Revaluation Reserve 3,343 - - 132 - 3,475
Depreciation written out to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services 83 - - 2 - 85
Derecognition — Disposals 75 - 12,998 - - 13,073
Derecognition — Other - - - - - -
Other Movements in Depreciation - - - - - -
As at 31" March 2023 (8,575) (2,739) (9,841) (88) - (21,243)
Balance Sheet Amount as at 31% March 23 201,344 2,847 5,312 6,751 6,313 222,567
Balance Sheet Amount as at 1% April 22 202,010 2,561 5,402 6,628 2,049 218,650

Page 50

/0T abed



Page 108



Page 109

Highways Infrastructure Assets

In accordance with the temporary relief offered by the Update to the Code on infrastructure
assets, this note does not include disclosure of gross cost and accumulated depreciation for
infrastructure assets because historical reporting practices and resultant information deficits
mean that this would not faithfully represent the asset position to the users of the financial
statements.

The authority has chosen not to disclose this information as the previously reported practices
and resultant information deficits mean that gross cost and accumulated depreciation are not
measured accurately and would not provide the basis for the users of the financial statements
to take economic or other decisions relating to infrastructure assets.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000

Infrastructure Assets
Net book value (modified historical cost)
At 1st April 626,360 620,093
Additions 11,769 13,075
Derecognition - -
Depreciation (18,036) (18,243)
Impairment - -
Other movements in cost - -
At 31st March 620,093 614,925
Service Concession Assets
(included in Infrastructure Assets)
Net book value
At 1st April 439,243 431,946
Additions - -
Derecognition - -
Depreciation (7,297) (7,297)
Impairment - -
Other movements in cost - -
At 31st March 431,946 424,649

2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Infrastructure Assets 620,093 614,925
Other PPE Assets 222,567 259,454
Total PPE Assets 842,660 874,379

Page 51



Page 110

The authority has determined in accordance with Regulation 30M England of the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England/Wales) (Amendment) Regulations
2022 that the carrying amounts to be derecognised for infrastructure assets when there is
replacement expenditure is nil.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis and the following useful lives and
depreciation rates have been used:

Buildings and Other Operational Properties 10-60 years
Community Assets 15 years
Infrastructure Assets 15-120 years
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 3-10years
Intangible Assets 5 years

Capital Commitments

At 315t March 2024, the Council has entered into a number of contracts for the construction
or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The major commitments are:

Halton Leisure Centre £9.874m
Runcorn Busway £0.323m
Fleet Vehicles £2.473m
East Runcorn Connectivity Pre-Development £0.274m
Green Cycle / Walk Corridors £0.275m
Open Spaces Schemes £0.336m
Town Centre Development £0.529m
Telehealthcare Upgrade £0.149m

At 31t March 2024 the capital commitments totalled £14.233m (£34.97m at 315 March
2023).

Revaluations

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures all Property, Plant and Equipment
required to be measured at fair value is revalued every 3 years. A mixture of revaluations
from each of the below categories are valued each year. Valuations were carried out by
Sanderson Weatherall LLP and by the Council’s in-house valuer Louise Risk MRICS. Valuations
of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

Page 52



Page 111

- Corporate Properties

- Children’s centres, Children’s homes and miscellaneous properties, land and open
spaces

- Day care centres, homes, leisure centres, sports fields and changing rooms,
allotments, community centres, libraries and cemeteries

- Nursery, infant, junior, primary, secondary, special and PRU schools.

All assets are subject to an annual review to ensure valuations have not materially changed
in the years they are not valued and that the carrying value is not significantly different to
their fair value.

Assets which were subject to a revaluation in 2023/24 are dated the 31t March 2024. The
valuation report which is used in the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts takes
account of all known events throughout 2023/24 which could subsequently affect the asset’s
value and is therefore dated the 315 March 2024.

The assets shown by year of valuation are shown in the table below:

Other Land & Community| Infrastructure| Vehicles, Plant Surplus Under Total
Buildings Assets Assets| & Equipment Construction /
Development
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Valued at current
value as at:
31°" March 2024 178,663 405 179,068
31°" March 2023 13,654 579 14,233
31°" March 2022 20,188 10,583 30,771
31°" March 2021 65 491 556
31°" March 2020 558 410 968
Valued at Historic Cost 3,007 614,925 5,631 25,220 648,783
Total 213,128 3,007 614,925 5,631 12,468 25,220 874,379

Land & Buildings

Non-specialised property is valued at Fair Value — Existing Use Value. Specialised Property is
valued on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Costs.

Community Assets

This group includes parks, cemetery land and other identifiable assets held in perpetuity,
usually at Depreciated Historical Cost.

Infrastructure

These are included on the balance sheet at Depreciated Historical Cost in accordance with the
guidelines contained in the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards.

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment

The majority of the Council’s plant and equipment is included in the valuation of the buildings.
The vehicles and other equipment are valued at Depreciated Historical Cost.

Page 53



Page 112

Intangible Assets

This group consists mainly of software licences for computer systems held at Depreciated
Historical Cost.

Surplus Assets

Assets held for sale have strict criteria to be met before any assets can be included under this
heading. Where assets are not in use but do not meet the criteria, they are accommodated
within surplus assets. They are held at highest and best use value.

Assets under Construction/Development

These schemes are held temporarily on the balance sheet at Historic Cost until the asset is
completed, when it is replaced with a formal valuation.

Fair Value Hierarchy for Investment Properties, Surplus Assets and Assets Held for Sale

Investment Properties, Surplus Assets and Assets Held for Sale have been value assessed as
Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy for valuation purposes (see Statement of Accounting
Policies 9 — Fair Value).

Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values

The fair value of Investment Properties, Surplus Assets and Assets Held for Sale have been
measured using a market approach, which takes into account quoted prices for the existing
or similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, research into market
evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for existing tenants, and
data and market knowledge gained in managing the Council’s Asset portfolio. This
information is contained within the Valuation Assumptions and Evidence note agreed
between the authority’s Asset Manager and professional staff. Market conditions are such
that similar properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are
significant, leading to the properties being categorised as Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy.

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for Investment
Properties, Surplus Assets or Assets Held for Sale.

Highest and Best Use

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s Investment Properties, the highest and best use
is their current use, though Assets Held for Sale have been valued taking their development
potential into account.

De-minimis Assets

At 31t March 2024, the Council had 65 assets with a total value of £0.618m that were not
recorded on the Balance Sheet as they fell below its de-minimis level of £35,000.

Page 54



Page 113

18. Heritage Assets

Reconciliation of the Carrying Value of Heritage Assets Held by the Council:

2022/23 2023/24
Civic Outdoor Civic Outdoor
Regalia| Sculpture Total Regalia| Sculpture Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
1st April 858 552 1,410 858 567 1,425
Additions 15 15 - -
Disposals - - - -
Revaluations - - - -
Impairment Losses/(Reversals) Recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve - - - -
Impairment Losses/(Reversals) Recognised in the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services - - - -
31st March 858 567 1,425 858 567 1,425

Other Heritage Assets

For the following Heritage Assets, no valuation is held as the records for the cost of acquisition
/ construction are no longer available, and they are not insured as individual items so are not
recorded on the Council’s balance sheet. Although these assets have a cultural significance
to the local community, they are not considered to have a material financial value.

War Memorials
The Council has two war memorials, one in Runcorn on Moughland Lane and the other in
Widnes in Victoria Park.

Duck Decoy (Hale Village)
The Duck Decoy in Hale Village has been restored for use as a nature reserve with assistance
from the Heritage Lottery Fund

Outdoor Works of Art
A metal sculpture called Spire in Church Street, Runcorn and works of art on Runcorn
Promenade and within sets of railings and panels around Halton Castle.

Halton Castle
One of only two Norman Castles remaining in Cheshire, managed on behalf of the Council

by Norton Priory Museum Trust.

Page 55



Page 114

19. Investment Properties

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement.
2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(44)|Rental Income from Investment Property (39)
21 |Direct Operating Expenses from Investment Property 15
(23) (24)

Investment Properties are not directly involved in the delivery of a service and are valued

annually.

There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.
The Council has no obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or

undertake repairs, maintenance or enhancement.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over

the year:

Balance at the start of the year
Additions:

- Purchases

- Construction

- Subsequent expenditure

Disposals

Net gain/(losses) from fair value adjustments
Transfers:

- (To)/from Inventories

- (To)/from Property, Plant and Equipment
Other changes

2022/23|  2023/24
£000 £000
1,344 1,344
- (73)
- 52
1,344 1,323

For details of the fair value valuations used for Investment Properties, see Note 17.

Page 56



Page 115

20. Intangible Assets

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, with the exception of software
which is an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware
item of Property, Plant and Equipment.

All software is given a finite life, based on assessments of the period that the software is
expected to be of use to the Council. The useful lives assigned to the major software suites
used by the Council are 5 years.

The carrying amounts of intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis. The
amortisation of £0.238m charged to revenue in 2023/24 was charged to various cost centres
and then absorbed as an overhead across all service headings in the Net Expenditure of
Continuing Operations.

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
Balance at start of year:
Gross carrying amounts 9,859 10,147
Accumulated amortisation (9,227) (9,421)
Net carrying amount at start of year 632 726
Additions:
Purchases 288 296
Amortisation for the period (194) (238)
Net carrying amount at end of year 726 784
Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts 10,147 10,443
Accumulated amortisation (9,421) (9,659)
726 784

Page 57



Page 116

21. Assets Held for Sale

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000

Balance Outstanding at Start of Year 12,946 12,229
Assets Newly Classified as Held for Sale:
- Property, Plant and Equipment - -
- Intangible Assets - -
Revaluation Losses - -
Revaluation Gains - -
Impairment Losses - -
Assets Declassified as Held for Sale:
- Property, Plant and Equipment (208) (5,242)
- Intangible Assets - -
Assets Sold (510) (6,000)
Transfers from Non-Current to Current - -
Other Movements 1 -
Balance Outstanding at Year-End 12,229 987

For details of the fair value valuations used for Assets Held for Sale, see Note 17.

Please note all Assets Held for Sale are due to be sold within a year and are shown as Current
Assets on the Balance Sheet.

22. Investments

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures are shown below:

31/03/2023| 31/03/2024
£000 £000
Associates
Daresbury SIC LLP (25% equity shares) 4,869 5,003
4,869 5,003

Copies of the accounts for Daresbury SIC LLP are available from Companies House
(gov.uk/get-information-about-a-company)

Page 58



Page 117

Long-term Investments consist of:

31/03/2023( 31/03/2024
Subsidiaries £000 £000
Mersey Gateway Share Capital - de minimis - -
Other Long Term Investments
Municipal Bonds Agency 10 10
CCLA Property Fund 8,869 8,523
Long Term Deposits 16,700 15,000
25,579 23,533
Total Long Term Investments 25,579 23,533
Short-term investments consist of:
31/03/2023(31/03/2024
£000 £000
UK Banks & Building Societies
Santander 20,000 -
Goldman Sachs 5,000 -
Non-UK Banks
Bank of Montreal 10,000 5,000
Toronto Dominion Bank 10,000 -
Local Authorities
Police and Crime Commissioner for Kent - 5,000
Aberdeen City Council - 7,000
Adur District Council - 1,000
Gravesham Borough Council - 5,700
Cambridgeshire County Council 5,000 -
Slough Borough Council 10,000 -
Gloucester City Council 5,000 -
Interest accrued on investments 31st March 845 948
65,845 24,648

Page 59




Page 118

23. Debtors

2 2
£ g § £ g §
8 : A 8 £ A
g g 5 g g ”
5 E z 5 E z
31/03/2023 31/03/2024
Short Term £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Mersey Gateway
- Toll and registration fees 1,870 (1,702) 168 2,597 (2,137) 460
- Public charge notices 23,425 (21,758) 1,667 32,632 (30,849) 1,783
VAT 3,280 - 3,280 6,401 - 6,401
Other receivable amounts 38,273 (5,294) 32,979 41,899 (5,760) 36,139
Prepayments 2,663 - 2,663 3,036 - 3,036
Local Taxation 19,427 (14,683) 4,744 22,431 (17,402) 5,029
88,938 (43,437) 45,501 108,996 (56,148) 52,848
Long Term
Other receivable amounts 13,012 - 13,012 13,113 - 13,113
13,012 - 13,012 13,113 - 13,113

The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non-domestic rates)
can be analysed by age as follows:

31/03/2023(31/03/2024

£000 £000
Less than one year 2,363 2,354
One to two years 991 1,062
Two to three years 542 687
Three to four years 364 382
Four to five years 243 273
Five years and above 241 271
4,744 5,029

Page 60



24. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Page 119

Cash held by the Council
Bank current accounts
Short-term deposits

31/03/2023|31/03/2024
£000 £000
53 45
2,290 1,352
9,818 55,975
12,161 57,372

25. Creditors

Mersey Gateway

- Payment to toll collection company
- Payment of unitary charge

- Construction costs

- Mersey Gateway excess revenue share repayable to DFT

Short-term element of long-term liabilities

Other payable amounts

31/03/2023|31/03/2024
£000 £000
(2,203) (2,608)
(6,378) (6,582)

(10) (363)

- (44,750)

(7,941) (9,139)
(44,470)|  (50,631)
(61,002)| (114,073)

Page 61




Page 120

26. Borrowings

Short-term borrowings consist of:

31/03/2023 31/03/2024
£000 £000
Source of loans:
Lancaster City Council (5,000) -
Ashfield District Council (5,000) (5,000)
West Midlands Combined Authority (5,000) -
Chichester District Council - (5,000)
Gwynedd Council - (5,000)
Cambridge and Peterborough Combined Authority - (5,000)
West Yorkshire Pension Fund - (10,000)
Swansea County Council - (5,000)
Interest accrued on borrowing (760) (3,150)
(15,760) (38,150)
Long-term borrowings consist of:
31/03/2023 31/03/2024
£000 £000
Source of loans:
Public Works Loan Board (162,000) (172,000)
Commerzbank (10,000) -
(172,000) (172,000)
Analysis of loans by maturity:
Maturing in 1-2 years - -
Maturing in 2-5 years - (10,000)
Maturing in 5-10 years - -
Maturing in more than 10 years (172,000) (162,000)
(172,000) (172,000)

Page 62




27. Provisions

Page 121

Short-Term Long-Term
Mersey Mersey
NNDR| Insurance Gateway Other NNDR Gateway
Appeals| Provision Grant| Provisions Total Appeals Grant Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1% April 2022 (1,787) (1,532) - (354) (3,673) (4,867) (62,403) (67,270)
Movement in use of provision
in year 800 281 - 1,081 3,877 (92) 3,785
Amounts reclassified from
>12 months - - (46,345) (46,345) - 46,345 46,345
Amounts reclassified from
<12 months - - - - - -
Balance at 31™ March 2023 (987) (1,251) (46,345) (354) (48,937) (990) (16,150) (17,140)
Balance at 1% April 2023 (987) (1,251) (46,345) (354) (48,937) (990) (16,150) (17,140)
Movement in use of provision
in year (1,016) 242 46,345 45,571 990 (7,276) (6,286)
Amounts reclassified as <12
months - - - - - -
Amounts reclassified from
<12 months - - - - - -
Balance at 31% March 2024 (2,003) (1,009) - (354) (3,366) - (23,426) (23,426)

NNDR Appeals

The Council is required to make a provision for NNDR valuation appeal claims. It is assumed

that appeals outstanding on the 2023 list will be settled in 2024/25.

Insurance Provision

The Council have a number of insurance claims outstanding in relation to employers’ liability
and public liability claims. The provision shown above reflects the expected cost to the
Council, up to the value of the excess for each claim. It is assumed that all claims will be
settled during 2024/25.

Mersey Gateway Grant Repayment

As part of the agreement with the Department for Transport, following each 3-year project
review, the next being in 2026/27, 85% of any unused grant is to be repaid to Central

Government.

28. Contingent Liabilities

At 315t March 2024, the Council had one categories of material Contingent Liabilities:

Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, participants in planning appeals can apply
for costs against other parties. The Council have received two applications for the award of
costs. The Council are defending the claims and a final decision is yet to be made. No details

Page 63



Page 122

have been provided on the actual costs participants are claiming but based on historical cases
it is estimated these costs will be in the region of £650,000.

29. Other Long-Term Liabilities

31/03/2023( 31/03/2024

£000 £000

Defined benefit pension liability (4,744) (4,504)
Finance PFI lease liability due in more than 12 months (16,551) (15,924)
Mersey Gateway unitary charge due in more than 12 months (328,862) (320,351)
Repayment of grant due in more than 12 months - (1,846)
Deferred liabilities (29) (29)
(350,186)|  (342,654)

30. Leases

Operating Leases — Authority as Lessee
The Council has acquired a number of properties by entering into operating leases.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31/03/2023|31/03/2024

£000 £000
Not later than one year 169 196
Later than one year and not later than five years 584 602
Later than five years 9,670 9,412
10,423 10,210

Operating Leases - Authority as a Lessor

The Council leases out property under operating leases to supplement the Council’s income,
to allow short-term use of assets being retained for longer-term asset strategy and to allow
the use of Council assets by the third sector.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years
are:

Page 64



Page 123

31/03/2023|31/03/2024

£000 £000
Not later than one year 1,495 653
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,707 1,800
Later than five years 8,854 6,697
12,056 9,150

Finance Leases - Authority as a Lessor

The authority leases buildings in Venture Fields and Daresbury SciTech. The authority has a
gross investment in the leases, made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be
received over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the properties when
the lease comes to an end. The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-
term debtor for the interest in the property acquired by the lessee and finance income that
will be earned by the authority in future years while the debtor remains outstanding. The
gross investment is made up of the following amounts:

31/03/2023| 31/03/2024
£000 £000

Finance lease debtor (net present
value of minimum lease payments)
- Current 539 552
- Non-Current 10,319 9,768
Unearned finance income 2,552 2,281
Gross investment in the lease 13,410 12,601

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over

the following periods:

Gross Investment in the Lease| Minimum Lease Payments

31/03/2023( 31/03/2024| 31/03/2023| 31/03/2024

£000 £000 £000 £000
Not later than one year 810 810 810 810

Later than one year and not later

than five years 3,238 3,238 3,238 3,238
Later than five years 9,363 8,553 9,363 8,553
13,411 12,601 13,411 12,601

As the Council is unaware of any financial circumstances that might result in lease payments

not being made, there has been no provision set aside for uncollectable amounts. This will

be reviewed on an annual basis.

Page 65




Page 124

31. Private Finance Initiatives and Similar Schemes
Halton Grange School PFlI Scheme

On 20™ June 2011 the Council entered into a 25-year Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
arrangement with HTP Grange Ltd for the provision of 1 new high school. There is a 25-year
PFI contract for the construction, maintenance, and facilities management of Grange School.
The new school building was handed over to the Council on 15™ April 2013 and on 15t January
2018 the school converted to an academy.

The Grange PFl School was removed from the Council’s Property Plant and Equipment during
2017/18 at a cost of £21.4m. As the Council is party to the contract with the PFI Operator,
the PFI liability is retained on the Council's Balance Sheet and the income from the Academy
school is recognised to reduce the overall charge in the year.

The contract specifies minimum standards for the services provided by the contractor to the
school. The contractor took on the obligation to construct the school and maintain it in a
minimum acceptable condition and to procure and maintain the plant and equipment needed
to operate the school. The buildings and any plant and equipment installed in them at the
end of the contract will be transferred to the Council for nil consideration. The Council only
has rights to terminate the contract if it compensates the contractor in full for the costs
incurred and future profits that would have been generated over the remaining term of the
contract.

Payments

The Council makes an agreed payment each year which is increased annually by inflation and
can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards in any
year, but which is otherwise fixed.

Payments remaining to be made under the PFI contract at 31% March 2024 (excluding any
estimation of inflation and availability/performance deductions) are as follows:

Reimbursements

Payment for of Capital
Services Expenditure Interest Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Payment in 2024/25 2,159 628 1,420 4,207
Payable within 2-5 years 8,081 3,403 5,060 16,544
Payable within 6-10 years 10,405 5,843 4,432 20,680
Payable within 11-15 years 8,358 6,672 1,514 16,544
Total 29,003 16,546 12,426 57,975

Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have
been calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value for the services they provide,

Page 66



the capital expenditure incurred and interest payable. The liability outstanding to the

Page 125

contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows:

2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Balance outstanding at 1st April 17,720 17,162
Payments during the year (558) (616)
Capital expenditure incurred in the year - -
Balance outstanding at 31st March 17,162 16,546

The carrying value of the PFI liability is the present value of the payments due using the
interest rate implicit in the contract.

Mersey Gateway — Unitary Payments

On 13% October 2017 the Mersey Gateway Bridge opened. The project was funded through
a mixture of capital payments from Halton Borough Council and monthly unitary charge
payments to Merseylink paid using the toll income raised. Unitary Charge payments cover
the costs of construction and ongoing maintenance of the bridge for a period of 27 years.

The Mersey Gateway Bridge is recognised in Infrastructure Assets on the Council’s Balance
Sheet. Movements in the value of the Mersey Gateway over the year are detailed in the
analysis of the movement on the property, plant and equipment balance in Note 17.

The Project Company took on the obligation to construct the bridge and associated roads and
maintain them in a minimum acceptable condition. At the end of the contract the assets will
be handed back to the Council for nil consideration. Full details of the requirement to achieve
acceptable handback condition are in the Project Agreement. The Council has rights to
terminate the contract if it compensates the contractor in full as detailed in the Project
Agreement. There are also provisions for termination by either party for certain breaches of
performance.

Payments

The Council makes an agreed payment each month to Merseylink which is increased annually
by inflation and can be reduced if traffic flows fall below an agreed level.

Payments remaining to be made under the scheme at 31t March 2024 (excluding any
deductions) are as follows:

Page 67



Page 126

Reimbursements

Payment for of Capital
Services Expenditure Interest Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Payment in 2024/25 8,260 8,511 24,918 41,689
Payable within 2-5 years 34,356 39,803 92,598 166,757
Payable within 6-10 years 49,655 61,735 97,056 208,446
Payable within 11-15 years 51,385 87,732 69,328 208,445
Payable within 16-20 years 48,477 131,081 28,887 208,445
Total 192,133 328,862 312,787 833,782

Please note, the services element of the contract is calculated using the estimated costs over
the life of the agreement.

Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have
been calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services they provide,
the capital expenditure incurred, and interest payable. The liability outstanding to the
contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows:

2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Balance outstanding at 1st April 342,955 336,188
Payments during the year (6,767) (7,326)
Capital expenditure incurred in the year - -
Balance outstanding at 31st March 336,188 328,862

32. Pension Schemes

Disclosure of Net Pensions Asset/Liability
Participation in pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the
Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment retirement benefits.
Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a
commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees
earn their entitlement.

The Council participates in three pension schemes, all of which offer defined benefit schemes:

The Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Cheshire West and Chester Council
- this is a funded career average revalued earnings (CARE) defined benefit scheme, meaning
that the Council and its employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level
intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.

Page 68



Page 127

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, changes to
inflation, bond yields, the performance of the equity investments held, and any significant
statutory or structural changes to the scheme. The risks are, in part, mitigated by the annual
process of charging to the General Fund any increase/decrease in the net asset or liability, as
identified in the actuarial valuation.

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme — this is a centralised scheme administered by Teachers’
Pensions Agency. Although the scheme is unfunded, the Agency uses a notional fund as the
basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by Local Education Authorities.

The NHS Pension Scheme relates to 22 employees. The scheme operates on a similar basis to
the Teachers’ pension scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme
Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits

In 2023/24, the Council paid an employer's contribution to the Cheshire Pension Fund of
£16.010m (£14.214m in 2022/23).

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge that is required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the
year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the General
Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year.

Following the revaluation by our actuary it was determined that the fair value of the pension
plan asset outweighed the present value of the plan obligations as at 315t March 2024, which
resulted in a plan asset. IAS19 Employee Benefits requires that, where a pension asset exists,
it is measured at the lower of the surplus in the defined benefit plan, and the asset ceiling.
The calculation was completed by the actuaries and it was determined that the asset ceiling
is nil. An adjustment has been added to notes below to reflect this.

Page 69



Page 128

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services

Current service costs

Past service costs/(gain)

Losses/(gains) from settlements

Finance & Investment Income & Expenditure
Net interest expense
Interest on the effect of the asset ceiling

Total Post-Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services

Other Post-Employment Benefits Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:

Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest
expense)

Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions
Other experience

Asset ceiling adjustment

Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services for post-employment benefits in accordance with the Code

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions in
the year:

Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits

Employers’ contributions payable to scheme

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
31,669 15,916
- 335
- (369)
2,690 (4,600)
- 4,816
34,359 16,098
86,611 (12,383)
(10,438) (3,842)
(302,110) (32,769)
18,341 18,311
101,397 30,780
(106,199) 97
(34,359) (16,098)
408 425
14,214 16,010

Page 70




Page 129

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its

defined benefit plans is as follows:

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
Restated
Present value of funded liabilities (569,402) (574,476)
Present value of unfunded liabilities (4,741) (4,504)
Fair value of plan assets 670,796 711,469
Sub Total 96,653 132,489
Other movement in the asset / liability - -
Net asset / (liability) arising from defined benefit
obligation 96,653 132,489

This table has been restated to reflect the format of the 2023/24 accounts, but there have been

no changes to the underlying figures.

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
Restated
Opening fair value of scheme assets 743,923 670,796
Interest income 20,061 31,788
Remeasurement gain / (loss) (5,782) -
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in
the net interest expense (86,611) 12,383
Contributions from employer 14,214 16,010
Contributions from employees into the scheme 4,496 4,873
Benefits Paid (19,505) (23,743)
Effect of settlements - (638)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 670,796 711,469

This table has been restated to reflect the format of the 2023/24 accounts, but there have been

no changes to the underlying figures.

Page 71




Page 130

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation).

Opening balance at 1* April
Current service cost
Interest cost

Contribution from scheme participants
Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
- Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in demographic

assumptions

- Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in financial

assumptions

- Other

Past service cost
Benefits paid

Liabilities extinguished on settlements

Closing balance at 31% March

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(835,127)|  (574,143)
(31,669) (15,916)
(22,751) (27,188)
(4,496) (4,873)

10,438 3,842

302,110 32,769
(12,561) (18,311)
- (335)

19,913 24,168

- 1,007
(574,143)|  (578,980)

Reconciliation of Asset Ceiling Adjustment.

Opening effect of the asset ceiling
Interest on the effect of the asset
ceiling

Changes in the effect of the asset
ceiling

Closing effect of the asset ceiling

2022/23| 2023/24
£000 £000

- | (101,397

- (4,816)
(101,397)| (30,780)
(101,397)| (136,993)

Page 72




Page 131

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

Fair value of scheme assets Fair value of scheme assets
2022/23 2023/24
Quoted Unquoted Quoted Unquoted
prices in prices not in prices in prices not in
active active active active
markets markets Total markets markets Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents - 29,557 29,557 - 8,148 8,148
Equity securities
- Consumer 3,037 - 3,037 3,441 - 3,441
- Manufacturing 3,101 - 3,101 3,585 - 3,585
- Energy & utilities - - - - - -
- Financial institutions - - - 743 - 743
- Health & care 1,052 - 1,052 1,309 - 1,309
- Information technology 17,252 - 17,252 23,828 - 23,828
- Other 2,184 - 2,184 1,847 - 1,847
Sub-total equity 26,626 - 26,626 34,752 - 34,752
Debt securities
- Corporate bonds - - - - - -
- Government bonds - - - - - -
- Other - - - - - -
Sub-total bonds - - - - - -
Property
- UK property - 55,887 55,887 - 49,891 49,891
- Overseas property - 888 888 - 953 953
Sub-total property - 56,775 56,775 - 50,844 50,844
Private Equity - 46,753 46,753 - 48,356 48,356
Other investment funds
- Equities 198,251 - 198,251 205,359 - 205,359
- Bonds 160,005 75,776 235,781 162,019 106,890 268,909
- Hedge funds - 44,548 44,548 - 50,553 50,553
- Infrastructure - 4,431 4,431 - 11,606 11,606
- Other - 28,074 28,074 - 32,941 32,941
Sub-total investment funds 358,256 152,829 511,085 367,378 201,990 569,368
Total Assets 384,882 285,914 670,796 402,131 309,338 711,469

Page 73



Page 132

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson
LLP, an independent firm of actuaries.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary are shown below:

2022/23 2023/24
Mortality Assumptions
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
- Men 21.3 years 20.8 years
- Women 23.7 years 23.5 years
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
- Men 22.3 years 21.3 years
- Women 25.5 years 24.8 years
Rate of inflation 3.0% 2.8%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7% 3.5%
Rate of increase in pensions 3.0% 2.8%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.8% 4.9%
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement
lump sum
- Service to April 2008 65% 65%
- Service from April 2008 65% 65%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set
out in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
reasonable possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period
and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life
expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the
sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial
basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis overleaf did not change from those used in the previous
period.

Approximate %
increase to Approximate
Defined Benefits |monetary amount
Obligation £000
Change in assumptions at 31" March 2024
0.1% decrease in Real Discount Rate 2% 10,479
1 year increase in Member Life Expectancy 4% 23,061
0.1% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 0% 483
0.1% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 2% 10,188

Page 74



Page 133

Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as
possible. The Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding
level of 100% over the 20 years following the last valuation. Funding levels are monitored on
an annual basis and the next triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31%tMarch 2025.

The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public
Pensions Services Act 2013. Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England
and Wales and other main existing public service schemes may not provide benefits in relation
to service after 31t March 2014 (or service after 315t March 2015 for other main existing
public service pension schemes in England and Wales). The Act provides for scheme
regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average
revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits.

The authority is anticipated to pay contributions of £15.452m to the scheme in 2024/25.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 18
years in 2023/24 (18 years in 2022/23).

Further information can be found in Cheshire West and Chester Council’s Pension Funds
Annual Report, which is available from Cheshire Pension Fund, Cheshire West and Chester
Council, 4 Civic Way, Ellesmere Port, CH65 OBE.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme
Defined Contribution Scheme

In 2023/24, the Council paid an employers’ contribution to the Teachers’ Pension Agency of
£6.365m (£6.124m in 2022/23) in respect of teachers’ pension costs. The contribution rate
for 2023/24 was 23.7% (23.7% in 2022/23) of teachers’ pensionable pay.

The scheme is a defined benefit scheme. Although the scheme is unfunded, Teachers’
Pensions use a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid
by Local Education Authorities. It is not possible for the Council to identify a share of the
underlying liabilities in the scheme attributable to its own employees. For the purpose of the
statement of accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined
contribution scheme.

The Council is responsible for any additional benefits granted upon early retirement, outside
the standard terms of the scheme. For the year 2023/24 the cost was £0.168m (£0.431m in
2022/23).

NHS Pension Scheme
Defined Contribution Scheme

In 2023/24 the Council paid an employers’ contribution to the National Health Service Pension
Scheme in respect of 22 employees, the amount paid was £0.157m (£0.125m in 2022/23) in
respect of these former NHS employees’ pension costs. The contribution rate was 14.4%
(14.4% in 2022/23) of pensionable pay, with an additional 2.5% bi-annual contribution

Page 75



Page 134

towards the increase in employer contributions of 6.3% in 2019. The NHS are responsible for
funding the remaining 3.8% of the increase.

The scheme is a defined benefit scheme. Although the scheme is unfunded, the NHS use a
notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by local
authorities.

It is not possible for the Council to identify a share of the underlying liabilities in the scheme
attributable to its own employees. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is
therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

Page 76



Page 135

33. Financial Instruments
Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets

Long Term Current| Long Term Current
31/03/2023( 31/03/2023| 31/03/2024| 31/03/2024
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value through profit and loss 8,868 - 8,523 -
Amortised cost
- Investments 16,701 65,845 15,000 24,648
- Debtors 13,012 34,673 13,112 38,199
- Cash & cash equivalents - 12,161 - 57,372
Fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Designated equity instruments 10 - 10 -
- Other 4,869 - 5,003 -
Total financial assets 43,460 112,679 41,648 120,219
Assets not defined as
financial instruments 846,155 23,464 877,911 15,973
Total assets 889,615 136,143 919,559 136,192

Page 77



Financial Liabilities

Page 136

Long Term Current| Long Term Current
31/03/2023( 31/03/2023| 31/03/2024| 31/03/2024
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Borrowings (172,000) (15,760) (172,000) (38,150)
- Finance lease liabilities and PFI (16,551) (616) (15,924) (628)
- Mersey Gateway Unitary Charge (328,862) (7,326) (320,351) (8,511)
- Creditors - (48,056) (1,845) (99,605)
Fair Value through profit or loss - - - -
Total financial liabilities (517,413) (71,758) (510,120) (146,894)
Liabilities not defined as
financial instruments (21,913) (69,558) (29,500) (15,911)
Total liabilities (539,326) (141,316) (539,620) (162,805)

Financial Instruments Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Council’s investment in the CCLA Property Fund has been disclosed at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss and is valued at £8.522m at 315t March 2024 (£8.869m at 31t March 2023).

The valuation is based on the net asset value provided by CCLA at 31t March 2024.

As the property fund has been classified at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, the changes in
the valuation would have a direct impact on the General Fund Balance, but to comply with
the IFRS statutory override, any unrealised gains or losses since the acquisition of the fund
units have been moved to the Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account. Further details
can be found in Note 37.

Investments in Equity Instruments Designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income

The Council holds a 25% equity holding in Daresbury SIC LLP, valued at a net asset value of
£5.003m at 31t March 2024 (£4.869m at 315t March 2023).

The Council also holds a £0.010m shareholding in the Municipal Bonds Agency, which is
valued at cost based on materiality.

Page 78



Page 137

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

2022/23 2023/24
Surplus or Other Surplus or Other
Deficit on the| Comprehensive| Deficit on the| Comprehensive
Provision of Income and Provision of Income and
Services Expenditure Services Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000
Net (gains)/losses on:
Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit
or loss 1,750 - 347 -
Financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 233 - (134)
Interest revenue
Financial assets measured
at amortised cost (2,221) - (5,438) -
Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit
or loss (369) - (424) -
Interest expense 34,065 - 34,139 -
Net Gain/(Loss) 33,225 233 28,624 (134)

Page 79




Page 138

Fair Values of Financial Assets

Some of the authority’s financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
are described in the following table, including the valuation techniques used to measure
them.

Recurring fair value| Input Ievsel in fair Valuation technique fjsed to 31/03/2023| 31/03/2024
measurements| value hierarchy measure fair value
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fair Value through Profit
or Loss: Unadjusted quoted prices in active
CCLA Property Fund Level 1 markets for identical shares 8,869 8,523
Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure:
Daresbury SIC LLP Level 2 Net Asset Valuation 4,869 5,003
Municipal Bonds Agency Level 3 At Cost 10 10

There have been no transfers between input levels during the year, and no change in the
valuation technique used.

The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not Measured at Fair
Value (but for which Fair Value disclosures are required)

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value (described in the table above), all other
financial liabilities and financial assets held by the authority are carried in the Balance Sheet
at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the
cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments (Level 2), using the
following assumptions:

- Estimated ranges of interest rates at 31t March 2024 for loans from PWLB and other
loans receivable and payable, based on new lending rates for equivalent loans at that
date.

- No early repayment or impairment is recognised for loans or investments.

- Short Term Investments, Cash, and Cash Equivalents are held at carrying value.

- The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed
amount less a provision for impairment.

- Short-term creditors are carried at cost.

Page 80



The fair values are shown below:

Page 139

2022/23 2023/24

Carrying Carrying

Amount| Fair Value Amount| Fair Value
Financial Assets - short-term £000 £000 £000 £000
Investments 65,845 65,808 24,648 24,648
Cash and cash equivalents 12,161 12,161 57,372 57,372
Debtors 34,673 34,673 38,199 38,199
Financial Assets - long-term
Investments 16,701 16,347 15,000 15,162
Debtors 13,012 13,012 13,112 13,113
Fair value through profit and loss 8,868 8,868 8,523 8,522
Fair value through other
comprehensive income 4,879 4,879 5,013 5,013

Where the fair value of assets is higher than the carrying amount, this is because the Council’s
portfolio of investments includes a number of fixed rate investments where the interest
receivable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. This
shows a notional future gain (based on economic conditions at the 31% March 2024)
attributable to the commitment to receive interest above current market rates.

Where the fair value is lower than the carrying amount, this is because the Council’s portfolio
of investments includes a number of fixed rate investments where the interest receivable is
lower than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a
notional future loss (based on economic conditions at the 315t March 2024) attributable to

the commitment to receive interest below current market rates.

Financial Liabilities - short-term
Borrowings

Finance lease liabilities & PFI
Mersey Gateway unitary charge
Creditors

Financial Liabilities - long-term
Borrowings

Finance lease liabilities & PFI
Mersey Gateway unitary charge
Creditors

2022/23 2023/24

Carrying Carrying
Amount| Fair Value Amount| Fair Value
£000 £000 £000 £000
(15,760) (15,760) (38,150) (38,150)
(616) (616) (628) (628)
(7,326) (7,326) (8,511) (8,511)
(48,056) (48,056) (99,605) (99,605)
(172,000)| (147,285)| (172,000)| (138,491)
(16,551) (21,992) (15,924) (19,844)
(328,862)| (436,565)| (320,351)| (407,015)
- - (1,845) (1,845)

Page 81




Page 140

The fair value of the liabilities is higher than the carrying amount because the Council’s
portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is
higher than the prevailing rates at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a notional future loss
(based on economic conditions at 315t March 2024) arising from a commitment to pay interest
to lenders above current market rates.

Nature and Extent of Risks from Financial Instruments

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
Credit Risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council

Liquidity Risk —the possibility that the Council might not have enough funds available to meet
its commitments to make payments

Market Risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements

The Council’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund
services. Risk management is carried out by the treasury management section, under policies
approved by the Council in the Treasury Management Strategy. The Council provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as interest risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.

Fair Value

The Code requires that each class of financial asset and liability should disclose the “fair value”
in a way that permits it to be compared with its carrying amount, as well as the method used
in determining such fair values. The Council has used Link Asset Services, its treasury
management advisors, to calculate these values and they have based the calculation on the
appropriate PWLB rate for new loans as at 31t March 2024.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures from the Council’s customers.

Risks are minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy by ensuring that cash deposits
are only placed with financial institutions identified on the Council’s Approved List of
Counterparties that meet identified minimum credit criteria and imposes a maximum sum to
be invested with a financial institution located within each category. This list was established
as one of the series of controls recommended by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (the Code) which the Council has adopted. The Annual Investment Strategy is
regularly reviewed, as is the approved counterparty list, to help minimise the Council’s
exposure to risk.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position,
past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with
parameters set by the Council.

Page 82



Page 141

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments held in banks and
building societies of £25.384m cannot be assessed generally, as the risk of any institution
failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual
institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet
their commitments. A risk of non-recoverability applies to all Council deposits, but there was
no evidence at 31 March 2024 that this was likely to crystallise.

During the year the Council complied fully with the requirements laid out in the Code and no
counterparty indicated any problem with repaying any deposit placed by the Council.

The counterparties on the Councils’ list are grouped and ranked by a mixture of credit ratings
and size, and are set out below:

Maximum
Deposit Exposure at
per institution 31/03/2024
£000({Counterparties £000

40,000 [UK Government -

UK Banks and Building Societies
30,000 | - Minimum Rating AAA -
25,000 [ - Minimum Rating AA 240
20,000 [ - Minimum Rating A 20,144
10,000 | - Minimum Rating BBB -

Foreign Banks (with Sovereign Rating of AAA)
25,000 | - Minimum Rating AAA -
20,000 | - Minimum Rating AA 5,000
10,000 | - Minimum Rating A -

Money Market Funds

20,000 | - Minimum Rating AAA 12,550
10,000 |Property Funds 8,522
40,000 (Local Authorities 56,700

103,156

The amount invested in the CCLA Property Fund is £10m, the value of which was £8.522m at
315t March 2024 (£8.869 at 31 March 2023).

The counterparties on the list are under constant assessment using a variety of sources
including rating agencies and professional advice.

Page 83



Page 142

The following table analyses the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on
financial assets. The historical experience of default has been provided by Link Asset Services
based on the rating of each institution.

Estimated
maximum exposure
Amount Historical|to default and non-
outstanding at experience collection at
31/03/2024 of default 31/03/2024
£000 % £000
Deposits with AA rated banks and building societies
- 1 year and over - 0.02 -
- under 1 year 5,240 0.00 -
Deposits with A rated banks and building societies
- 1 year and over - 0.05 -
- under 1 year 20,144 0.00 -
Deposits with other Local Authorities 56,700 0.00 -
Deposits with MMF 12,550 0.00 -
Deposits with property funds 8,522 0.00 -
103,156 -

None of the Council’s counterparties had any difficulty in repaying their liabilities during
2023/24. There has been no impairment of any financial assets during the course of the year.
The Council does not anticipate any losses due to non-performance of its counterparties.

An analysis of the customer/client debt is shown below. As at 315t March 2024, £53.45m of
this debt is overdue:

31/03/2023 31/03/2024

£000 £000
Less than 3 months 9,004 10,277
3 to 6 months 6,557 5,784
6 months to 1 year 7,942 8,661
More than 1 year 18,835 29,153
42,338 53,875

Provision for non-payment (28,754) (38,746)

Liquidity Risk

The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that
cash is available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Council has ready access
to borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). There is
no significant risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments
under financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the Council will be bound to replenish a

Page 84



Page 143

significant proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Council
sets limits on the proportion of its fixed rate borrowing during specified periods.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows.

31/03/2023 31/03/2024

£000 £000
Less than 1 year 71,758 146,894
Between 1 and 2 years 9,144 12,024
Between 2 and 5 years 31,524 43,032
More than 5 years 476,745 455,063
589,171 657,013

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowing and investments.
Movements in interest rates can have a complex impact on the Council. For example, a rise
in interest rates would have the following effects:

Borrowing at variable rates — the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement will rise

Borrowing at fixed rates — the fair value of liabilities will fall (with no impact on revenue
balances)

Investment at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement will rise

Investment at fixed rates — the fair value of assets will fall (with no impact on revenue
balances)

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet, so nominal gains and losses on
fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. However, changes to interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings
and investments are posted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that
have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury
Management Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its
expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From
this strategy, the treasury management section monitors interest rates within the year and
adjusts exposures accordingly. During periods of falling interest rates, and where economic
circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to

Page 85



Page 144

losses and fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better long-term
results. Similarly, the drawing of longer-term fixed rate borrowing would be postponed.

If interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect
would be:

31/03/2024
£000

Increase in interest payable on short-term borrowings 125
Increase in interest receivable on short-term investments (1,086)
(961)

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as shown previously but with movements
being reversed.

Price Risk

The Council has invested £10m in the CCLA property fund as at 315t March 2024. The price of
the investment is subject to potential gains and losses based on market volatility. The
investment is shown in the accounts at its value as at 315t March 2024 and any gains or losses
relating to this investment are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement but due to the IFRS statutory override there is no impact on the General Fund.

The Council has no other holdings that are subject to market volatility, an example of which
would be shares traded on the equity market.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Other than £5k held in petty cash, the Council has no financial assets or liabilities,
denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss or movement in exchange
rates.

Page 86



Page 145

34. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulation

This note details the adjustments that are made to total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practice, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the
Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

(a) 2023/24

Capital adjustment account reversal of items debited
or credited to the CIES:

Charges for depreciation and impairment on non-
current assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in the Market Value of Investment
Properties

Amortisation of Intangible Assets

Capital Grants and Contributions applied

Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under
Statute

Amounts written off on disposal of Academies to CIES
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal
or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CIES:
Statutory provision for the financing of Capital
investment

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund
Balance

Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Capital Grants and Contributions unapplied credited
to the CIES

) B )

S 2 o

g 2 5| = ;:

S & e T 2

g ) D = o]

go] o 2 £ £

c (] c - -
z o 2 o w S w
— o O GE’ ] g 4]
© = © S 2 S 2
(] = B2 S o >
5 3 =3 o 3 2 9
U] o o S x P
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(26,316) - - | (26,316)| 26,316
255 - - 255 (255)
52 - - 52 (52)
(238) - - (238) 238
11,553 - 8,103 19,656 | (19,656)
(9,783) - - (9,783) 9,783
(4,960) - - (4,960) 4,960
6,262 | (13,170) - (6,908) 6,908
11,410 - - 11,410 | (11,410)
294 - - 294 (294)
9,528 - (9,528) - -

Page 87



Page 146

Capital Receipts Reserve

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to Finance new
Capital Expenditure

Use of Capital Receipts to reduce MRP liability

Pensions Reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits

debited/credited to the CIES
Employers pension contributions and direct payments
to pensioners

Collection Fund Adjustment

Amount by which council tax income credited to the
CIES is different from council tax income calculated for
the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Accumulated Absences Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
CIES on an accruals basis is different from
remuneration in accordance with statutory
requirements

Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account
Reversing the impact of CCLG Property Fund valuation
on the General Fund

Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account
Reversing impact of overspent Dedicated Schools
Grant on General Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

[7,]

[J]

@ g e

- a @2 c 2 c
2 | § | E.| £3 2
S| o CE 2é 83
C o T 2 T 2 s 2 S ®
v < 2 g 2 Q S 2 S 2
& = S8 22 o 3 o 2
O o O x O D S D S D
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- 3,238 - 3,238 | (3,238)

- 7,744 - 7,744 | (7,744)
(16,098) - - | (16,008)| 16,098
16,435 - - | 16,435 | (16,435)
(65) - - (65) 65
113 - - 113 (113)
(346) - - (346) 346
(2,456) - - | (2,456)| 2,456
(4,360)| (2,188)| (1,425)| (7,973)| 7,973

Page 88




Page 147

(b) 2022/23

Capital adjustment account reversal of items debited
or credited to the CIES:

Charges for depreciation and impairment on non-
current assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in the Market Value of Investment
Properties

Amortisation of Intangible Assets

Capital Grants and Contributions applied

Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under
Statute

Amounts written off on disposal of Academies to CIES
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal
or sale as gain/loss on disposal to the CIES

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CIES:
Statutory provision for the financing of Capital
investment

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund
Balance

Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Capital Grants and Contributions unapplied credited
to the CIES

g 2
[7,]
5 E: g
@ 4] 2 ]
o .% 43 £ £ 93
> 9 © E E e
i o s 9 g w g 9
= Lol 2= € ¢ E£3
P © 2 S g o 2 o 3
s s 0 t o > g > 35
] ] © £ © o o ¢
(G] O x O D S x S D
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(26,513) - - | (26,513)| 26,513
(807) - - (807) 807
(194) - - (194) 194
20,420 5,332 | 25,752 | (25,752)
(7,936) - - (7,936) 7,936
2,345 (3,725) - (1,380) 1,380
9,904 - - 9,904 (9,904)
145 - - 145 (145)
9,709 - | (9,709) - -

Page 89




Page 148

Capital Receipts Reserve

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to Finance new
Capital Expenditure

Use of Capital Receipts to reduce MRP liability

Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits
debited/credited to the CIES

Employers pension contributions and direct payments
to pensioners

Collection Fund Adjustment

Amount by which council tax income credited to the
CIES is different from council tax income calculated for
the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Accumulated Absences Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
CIES on an accruals basis is different from
remuneration in accordance with statutory
requirements

Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account
Reversing the impact of CCLG Property Fund valuation
on the General Fund

Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account
Reversing impact of overspent Dedicated Schools
Grant on General Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS

g @
(7]

5 3 g
o a 2 o
5 = 2 £ £
5 O IS € -
o L 5 o o » o 9
s Sel 25| E¢| E=
5 2| =2 9| 8§
S =3 g 3§ 32
O O O D S x S >
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- | 1470 - | 1470 | (1,470)

- 526 ; 526 (526)
(34,359) - - | (34,359)| 34,359
14,622 - - | 14622 | (14,622)
6,007 ; - | 6007 | (6,007
91 - - 91 (91)
(1,131) ; - | (1181)] 1,131
(1,036) - - | (1,036) 1,036
(8733)] (1,729)] (4,377)] (14,839)] 14,839

Page 90




Page 149

35. Usable Reserves

Usable reserves are those reserves that contain resources that the Council can apply to the
provision of services, either by incurring expenses or undertaking capital investment. Usable
reserves include the General Fund Balance, any earmarked reserves under the General Fund
umbrella, the Capital Receipts Reserve and any Capital Grants Unapplied.

General Fund Balance

The General Fund Balance records the Council’'s accumulated income over expenditure for
each financial year. The fund manages the reversal of a number of transactions that are
required to be included in the preparation of the financial statements, but which are
subsequently removed under statutory mitigation.

Earmarked Reserves

These reserves help to meet specific known or predicted future requirements and are legally
part of the General Fund Reserve. The earmarked reserves also include unspent school
balances of budgets delegated to individual schools.

The movements in earmarked reserves are analysed in Note 36.
Capital Receipts Reserve

This reserve holds the proceeds from the sale of assets and can only be used for funding
capital investment or the repayment of borrowing.

Movements in the Council’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Capital Grants Unapplied

This reserve holds Capital Grants income for which all conditions have been met, but the
funding has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure.

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000 £000
General Fund

(5,147) (5,149)| - Excluding Earmarked Reserves (5,149)

(69,469) (46,650)| - Earmarked Reserves (35,517)
Capital Reserves

(1,061) (2,790)| - Capital Receipts Reserve (4,978)

(24,560) (28,937)| - Capital Grants Unapplied (30,362)

(100,237) (83,526)|Total Usable Reserves (76,006)

Page 91



Page 150

36. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to
provide financing for future expenditure plans, and the amounts posted back from earmarked
reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2023/24.

To enable pension deficits to be
funded as a lump sum, resulting in
finance efficiencies

Balance at 31% Movement| Balance at 31% Movement| Balance at 31% Movement| Balance at 31%
March 2021 (to)/from March 2022 (to)/from March 2023 (to)/from March 2024
Reserve Reserve Reserve

General Fund £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Schools Reserves (7,099) (334) (7,433) 226 (7,207) 688 (6,519)
Balances held by schools under
the scheme of delegation
Capital (2,047) 261 (1,786) 613 (1,173) 672 (501)
To support the Council's Capital
Programme
Insurance General Fund (1,629) (445) (2,074) 719 (1,355) 355 (1,000)
To self-fund possible insurance
claims
Building Schools for the Future
Capital (5,651) (553) (6,204) (713) (6,917) 388 (6,529)
To fund future capital costs
Enterprise and Employment (1,247) (16) (1,263) 686 (577) 89 (488)
Employment activities for future
years
Health & Community (2,753) (700) (3,453) 1,250 (2,203) 1,634 (569)
To support future Adult Social Care
revenue budgets
Housing & Communities - (750) (750) 750 - - -
in Housing and Community
Services
Transformation Fund (600) (869) (1,469) (955) (2,424) (4,008) (6,432)
To fund costs arising from future
efficiency reviews
Highways Feasibility Costs (416) - (416) 314 (102) (862) (964)
To fund initial expenditure on new
highways schemes
Public Health & Health (1,524) (1,220) (2,744) 394 (2,350) 469 (1,881)
To fund future Public Health
activities
Fleet Replacement (905) 85 (820) 298 (522) 194 (328)
Rolling replacement programme
for Council fleet vehicles
Pension Past Service Deficit (4,677) 821 (3,856) 3,856 - - -

Page 92




Page 151

General Fund

Balance at 31st
March 2022

£000

Movement
(to)/from
Reserve
£000

Balance at 31st
March 2023

£000

Movement
(to)/from
Reserve
£000

Balance at 31st
March 2024

£000

Education, Inclusion & Provision
Education Grant Income held for a
specific purpose but with no
repayment conditions attached
Revenue Efficiencies

To help fund budget gaps over the
medium term

NNDR Pilot Scheme

To fund No Detriment policy as
part of the Liverpool City Region
100% business rate retention
Mersey Gateway Reserve

To fund any potential surplus
Mersey Gateway income to be
paid to Department for Transport
Covid Grant

Funding from DLUHC to cover the
additional costs and fall in income
associated to the Covid-19
pandemic

Government Grants RIA

Grant income held for a specific
purpose but with no repayment
conditions attached

Covid-19 Contingency

To fund additional costs in respect
of the Covid-19 pandemic
Employment, Learning & Skills
To fund Adult Education Schemes
and Work Programmes

Local Authority Domestic Abuse
Duty Grant

Ringfenced grant funding for new
Domestic Abuse Duties

Pay Inflation 2022/23

To fund potential additional costs
from the pending 2022/23 pay
award

Other Earmarked Reserves

Total of reserves under £750k

(639)

(4,733)

(5,321)

(9,629)

(1,369)

(16,149)

(2,000)

(5,679)

(226)

(2,896)

3,246

(1,384)

1,369

11,393

2,000

(1,642)

(327)

(871)

(2,344)

(865)

(7,629)

(2,075)

(11,013)

(4,756)

(1,642)

(327)

(871)

(8,026)

278

4,881

2,075

(16)

4,756

354

(550)

871

2,734

(587)

(2,748)

(11,029)

(1,288)

(877)

(5,291)

31

2,748

6,894

(579)

532

(309)

2,197

(556)

(4,135)

(579)

(756)

(1,186)

(3,094)

TOTAL ALL RESERVES

(74,067)

4,597

(69,473)

22,822

(46,650)

11,133

(35,517)

In order to streamline the note, any reserves under £0.750m have been summarised as

‘Other Earmarked Reserves’ in the table above.

There was a significant movement on the Mersey Gateway earmarked reserve during

2023/24, which included the 85% share of the excess revenue payable to the Department

for Transport following the five-year review during 2023/24, and a provision of £23.426m

for payment due following the next three-year review in 2026/27. Further information can

be found in Note 42.

Page 93




Page 152

37. Unusable Reserves

2022/23
£000
(136,275)
4,745
(118,028)
(11,090)
(3,023)
(4,869)
2,926
2,892
1,132

(261,590)

Revaluation Reserve

Pensions Reserve

Capital Adjustment Account

Deferred Capital Receipts

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve
Accumulated Absences Account

Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account
Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account
Total Unusable Reserves

2023/24
£000
(152,745)
4,505
(120,210)
(10,551)
(2,958)
(5,002)
2,814
5,349
1,478

(277,320)

Page 94




Page 153

Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve contains the gains and losses made by the Council arising from
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when
assets with accumulated gains are:

- Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost.
- Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation.
- Disposed of, and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1t April 2007, the date that
the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into
the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000 £000

(135,650)|Balance at 1* April (136,275)
(9,324)|Upward revaluation of assets (27,554)

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not
3,528 |charged to the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services 3,885
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
not posted to the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of
(5,796)|Services (23,669)
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical
4,492 |cost deprecation 4,439
- |Accumulated gain on academies transferred 2,688

679 |Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 72
5,171 |Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 7,199

(136,275) |Balance at 31* March (152,745)

Capital Adjustment Account

The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption on non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The
account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert
fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside
by the Council as finance costs of acquisition, construction or enhancement.

The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains
recognised on donated assets that are yet to be consumed by the Council.

The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment
before 1%t April 2007, the date the revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains.

Page 95



Page 154

2022/23
£000

(111,364)

26,513
807
194

7,936

854

36,304
(5,171)

31,133

(1,470)

(20,420)
(5,332)
(9,904)

(526)
(145)

(37,797)

(118,028)

Balance at 1* April

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited
or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current
assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Carrying value of Academies transferred

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current
assets consumed in the year

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
charged against the General Fund

Use of Capital Receipts to reduce MRP liability

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund

Movements in the market value of investment properties
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Balance at 31**March

2023/24
£000 £000
(118,028)
26,316
(255)
238
9,783
4,960
6,369
47,411
(7,199)
40,212
(3,238)
(11,553)
(8,103)
(11,410)
(7,744)
(294)
(42,342)
(52)
(120,210)

Page 96




Page 155

Pension Reserve

The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with
statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.

Statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes
employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible. IFRIC 14 restricts the value of any surplus on the pension fund to the
amount that the employer has the right to receive as a refund at the end of the reporting
period. Under the terms of the Local Government Pension Scheme, this value is zero. The
asset ceiling adjustment shown in the table below removes the amount by which the pension
asset attributable to the Council, exceeds the accrued pension liability. The debit balance on
the Pension Reserve shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees
and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them which relate to the Council’s
unfunded pension schemes. More details can be found in Note 32.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000 £000
91,207 |Balance at 1* April 4,745
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability
comprising:
(10,438)|Changes in demographic assumptions (3,842)
(302,110)|Changes in financial assumptions (32,769)
18,341 |Other experience 18,311
101,397 |Asset Ceiling Adjustment 30,780
Returns on assets excluding amounts included in net
86,611 [interest (12,383)
(106,199) 97
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
34,359 |Statement 16,098
Employers pensions contributions and direct payments to
(14,622)|pensioners payable in the year (16,435)
4,745 |Balance at 31°March 4,505

Page 97



Page 156

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

Deferred Capital Receipts are amounts derived from the sale of assets, which will be received
in instalments over an agreed period of time.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(232)|Castlefields Equity Advances (232)

(6,142)|Sci-Tech Daresbury Lease (5,872)
(4,716)|Venture Fields Lease (4,447)
(11,090) (10,551)

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory
arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(11,616)|Balance at 1% April (11,090)

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and

- |Expenditure Statement -
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of
526 |cash 539

(11,090) |Balance at 31* March (10,551)

Page 98



Page 157

Collection Fund Adjustment

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the
recognition of council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers, compared with the statutory
arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
2,984 |Balance at 1* April (3,023)

Amount by which council tax income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is
different from council tax income collected in the year in
941 |accordance with statutory requirements 1,161

Amount by which non-domestic rates income credited to

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is
different from non-domestic rates income collected in the
(6,948)|year in accordance with statutory requirements (1,096)

(3,023)|Balance at 31* March (2,958)

Page 99



Page 158

Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

The Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the authority
arising from increases in the value of its investments that are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated
gains are:

- Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost.
- Disposed of and the gains are realised.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(5,102)|Balance at 1** April (4,869)
- |Upward revaluation of investments -
233 |Downward revaluation of investments (133)
- |Change in impairment loss allowances -
(4,869) (5,002)

Accumulated gains or losses on assets sold and maturing
assets written out to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of Other Investment

- [Income -
Accumulated gains or losses on assets sold and maturing
assets written out to the General Fund Balances for
financial assets designated to Fair Value through Other

- |Comprehensive Income -

(4,869)|Balance at 31* March (5,002)

Page 100



Page 159

Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on
the General Fund balance accruing from compensated absences earned but not yet taken in
year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31t March. Statutory arrangements
require that the impact on the General Fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the

account.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
3,017 |Balance at 1* April 2,926
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of
(3,017)|the preceding year (2,926)
2,926 |Amount accrued at the end of the current year 2,813
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable
(91)]in the year in accordance with statutory requirements (113)
2,926 |Balance at 31% March 2,813

Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account

Statutory arrangements require that any school budget deficits must not be charged to the
General Fund, and the deficit must be carried forward to be funded from future Dedicated
Schools Grant Income. The deficit balance is held in the Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment

Account as shown below:

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
1,856 |Balance at 1% April 2,892
Amount by which Dedicated Schools Grant is in deficit at
1,036 (31st March 2,457
2,892 |Balance at 31" March 5,349

Page 101




Page 160

Pooled investment funds adjustment account

Accounting regulations state that the fair value of movements in the value of pooled
investment funds are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, but should not impact the Council’s General
Fund balance. This reserve is a mechanism that is required by the capital finance and
accounting regulations to hold the fair value movements in those pooled investment funds
specified by the regulations.

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
- |Balance at 1% April 1,132
Fair value movements transferred to/from the General
1,132 |Fund in accordance with the statutory requirements 346
1,132 |Balance at 31* March 1,478

Page 102



Page 161

38. Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-
cash movements.

2022/23
£000
(26,513)
(807)
(194)
(11,866)
6,252
23,891
12
(19,737)
4,867

(854)

(1,169)

(26,118)

Depreciation

Impairment and downward valuation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Movement in market value of investment properties
(Increase)/decrease in impairment debtors
(Increase)/decrease in creditors and receipts in advance
Increase/(decrease) in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in inventories

Non-cash pension adjustments

Contributions (to)/from provisions

Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets
held for sale, sold or de-recognised

Loss on transfer to academies

Other non-cash adjustments

Total non-cash movements

2023/24
£000
(26,316)

255
(238)

52
(12,711)
(48,641)

19,597
(70)

337

39,285

(6,369)
(4,960)
(2,634)

(42,413)

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items
that are investing and financing activities:

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
Capital grants credited to the surplus or deficit on the
24,233 |provision of services 15,012
3,725 |Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets 13,170
27,958 |Net cash flows from investing or financing activities 28,182
The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:
2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(1,867)|Interest received (5,760)
34,207 |Interest paid 36,529
32,340 30,769

Page 103



Page 162

39. Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
19,689 |property and intangible assets 32,221
41,000 |Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 17,000
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,

(3,812)|investment property and intangible assets (13,262)
(70,000)|Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (60,000)
(15,427)|Other receipts from investing activities (10,229)
(28,550)(Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (34,270)

40. Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities
2022/23 2023/24
£000 £000
(20,000)|Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing (50,000)
50 |Agency treatment of Collection Fund balances (8)
Cash payments from the reduction of the outstanding liabilities
7,282 |relating to finance leases and on balance sheet PFl contracts 7,803
5,000 |Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing 30,000
3,994 |Net adjustment for agency treatment of government grants -
(3,674)|Net Cash flows from Financing Activities (12,205)
Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
Financing| Non-Cash
Note |31/03/2023| Cash Flows Changes|31/03/2024
£000 £000 £000 £000
Long-Term Borrowings 26 (172,000) - -1 (172,000)
Short-Term Borrowing 26 (15,760) (20,000) (2,390) (38,150)
On Balance Sheet PFI Liabilities 31 (353,347) 7,803 136| (345,408)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities (541,107) (12,197) (2,254)| (555,558)

Page 104




Page 163

41. Interest in Companies and Other Entities

The Council is involved with several companies over which it has varying degrees of control
and influence. The Council is required to classify the entities according to whether they are
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

Subsidiary

An entity is only a subsidiary if the Council has power over the entity, exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and ability to use its power over the
entity to affect the amount of the Council’s returns.

As at 315t March 2024 the following was a subsidiary of the Council:-

e Mersey Gateway Crossings Board Ltd - The principal activity of the company is to
deliver the Mersey Gateway Bridge project, and to administer and oversee the
construction and maintenance of the new tolled crossings, including the tolling of the
existing Silver Jubilee Bridge. The Council holds 100% of the shares issued by the
company. An amount of £500k is held as a long-term debtor on the Council’s Balance
Sheet; this is the amount which has been passed to Mersey Gateway Crossings Board
Ltd as working capital.

In accordance with paragraph 9.1.1.7 of the Code, the subsidiary has not been consolidated
into group accounts as they are not considered to be of material value.

Copies of the accounts for Mersey Gateway Crossings Board Ltd are available from Companies
House.

Joint Ventures

These are arrangements under which two or more parties have contractually agreed to share
control, such that decisions about activities that significantly affect returns require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control, and joint parties have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

As at 315t March 2024 the Council were party to the following joint venture:-

e Daresbury SIC (Pub Sec) LLP - The principal activity of the company during the year
was to assist, promote, encourage, develop and secure the development of the
International Science Park at Daresbury, Cheshire. Members of the partnership are
Halton Borough Council and United Kingdom Research & Innovation.

In accordance with paragraph 9.1.1.7 of the Code, the Council’s equity within the joint venture
has not been consolidated into group accounts as it is not considered to be of material value.

Associates

Associates are entities for which the Council is an investor and has significant influence. The
Council can have an associate relationship with an entity that is a joint venture under the
control of other investors.

Page 105



Page 164

As at 315t March 2024 the Council had associate relationships with the following:-

e Daresbury SIC LLP- The principal activity of the LLP is the management and
development of the Sci-Tech Daresbury Campus in the North West. Designated
members of the partnership are Langtree Daresbury Ltd and Daresbury SIC (Pubsec)
LLP, in which the Council is an equal partner. Amounts of £5.6m are held as a long-
term debtor and £0.3m held as a short-term debtor on the Council’s Balance Sheet.
This relates to a long-term lease agreement between the Council and the company for
a property asset based at the Sci-Tech Daresbury Campus.

In accordance with paragraph 9.1.1.7 of the Code, the Council’s equity within the associate
relationship has not been consolidated into group accounts as it is not considered to be of
material value.

Page 106



Page 165

42. Transport Act 2000 — Mersey Gateway Crossing

The Mersey Gateway Bridge, which opened in October 2017, is a second crossing which spans
the River Mersey and the Manchester Ship Canal and was built to ease congestion on the
previous crossing, the Silver Jubilee Bridge.

The crossing was funded through a mixture of capital payments from Halton Borough Council,
and a monthly unitary charge to Merseylink which covers the costs of construction and
ongoing maintenance of the bridge for a period of 27 years (see Note 31 for further detail).

Since the opening of the Mersey Gateway, both crossings (Mersey Gateway and Silver Jubilee
Bridge) have operated as toll crossings and the unitary charges and other running costs are
funded from a mixture of toll income and Government Grant funded from the Department
for Transport.

As part of the agreement with Department for Transport all funds relating to the Mersey
Gateway must be accounted for separately and any surplus must be held in a separate reserve
until all debt relating to the crossing, including unitary charge payments and the repayment
of Council Borrowing specifically for the scheme, has been repaid.

During the year, a performance review of the Mersey Gateway project was undertaken by
Mersey Gateway Crossing Board (MGCB) and the Department for Transport (DfT). This review
covered the period October 2017 to March 2023 and future reviews will be undertaken every
3 years.

As part of the review an exercise was undertaken regarding the excess revenue share
procedure. This identified that up to March 2023 the excess income from the project over
and above project costs was £52.647m, £7.897m of which has been transferred to the
Council, and £44.750 being payable to DfT.

Included within the below table is a figure of £68.176m being the excess share allocated to
DfT. This figure has two elements, £44.750m agreed to be paid back to DfT on 1st August
2024 following the five-year review during 2023/24, and £23.426m provision for payment due
following the next three-year review in 2026/27.

The income raised from, and charges relating to the crossings are shown in the table below,
along with the year-end position on the Mersey Gateway Grant Reserve.

Page 107



Page 166

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Charge to| Accounting | Income and Charge to| Accounting | Income and Charge to| Accounting | Income and
General Fund| Adjustments| Expenditure|General Fund| Adjustments| Expenditure|General Fund| Adjustments| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income Toll Income (33,154) (33,154) (35,358) (35,358) (37,224) (37,224)
Penalty Charge Notices (14,610) (14,610) (18,315) (18,315) (19,000) (19,000)
Registration Fees (1,775) (1,775) (1,724) (1,724) (1,153) (1,153)
DfT Grant Income (23,719) (23,719) (13,940) (13,940) (22,566) (22,566)
Other Income (2) (2) (49) (49) (657) (657)
(73,260) - (73,260) (69,386) - (69,386) (80,600) - (80,600)
Expenditure [Unitary Charge Payments 38,442 (33,035) 5,407 39,411 (32,783) 6,628 41,241 (32,891) 8,350
DMPA Fee 10,537 10,537 11,776 - 11,776 13,378 - 13,378
MG Environmental Trust 309 309 313 - 313 227 - 227
Bus Support 53 53 205 - 205 401 - 401
Depreciation 8,026 8,026 8,028 8,028 8,029 8,029
Interest Costs 5,173 (5,175) (2) 5,290 (5,291) (1) 5,648 (5,648) -
Bad Debt Provision 7,249 7,249 9,964 - 9,964 9,526 - 9,526
DFT Grant Provision 7,848 - 7,848 91 - 91 (39,069) - (39,069)
DFT Grant payble to DFT - - - - - - 44,750 - 44,750
DFT Grant payable to HBC - - - - - - 7,897 (7,897) -
Other Costs 2,265 - 2,265 2,320 - 2,320 3,496 (827) 2,669
71,876 (30,184) 41,692 69,370 (30,046) 39,324 87,495 (39,234) 48,261
Total (1,384) (30,184) (31,568) (16) (30,046) (30,062) 6,895 (39,234) (32,339)

Page 108




Page 167

43. Prior Period Adjustment

Following a review of the accounting treatment of income and expenditure relating to the
Mersey Gateway Bridge it has been decided that there will be some changes to the accounts.

Previously any surplus from the Mersey Gateway has been held as an Earmarked Reserve.
As at each review point 85% of any surplus is payable to the Department for Transport, a
provision has been set up for funds payable to DFT, thus reducing the Council’s Earmarked
Reserves.

As the accounting treatment will result in material adjustments to the accounts, a prior period
adjustment has been made to the following statements, and the supporting notes.

- Balance Sheet 31t March 2022

- Balance Sheet 31t March 2023

- Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
- Movement in Reserves Statement

Previously| Adjustment Final
Reported Accounts
£000 £000 £000
Balance Sheet - 31-03-2022
Provisions >1 year (4,867) (62,403) (67,270)
Usable Reserves (162,640) 62,403 (100,237)
Balance Sheet - 31-03-2023
Provisions < 1 year (2,592) (46,345) (48,937)
Provisions > 1 year (990) (16,150) (17,140)
Usable Reserves (146,021) 62,495 (83,526)

For further details on the supporting notes please see:

e Note 27 — Provisions

e Note 33 - Financial Instruments

e Note 35— Usable Reserves

e Note 36 — Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves

Page 109



Page 168

CIES 2022/23
Mersey Gateway Expenditure

Movement in Reserves Statement
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expendiure

Cash flow

Net Deficit on Provision of Services
Adjustments to Net Deficit or non-
cash movements

Previously
Reported
£000

39,233

31,459

31,550

(26,027)

Adjustment
£000

91

91

91

(91)

Final
Accounts
£000

39,324

31,550

31,641

(26,118)

For further details on the supporting notes please see:

e Note 1 - Expenditure and Funding Statement
e Note 2 — Expenditure and Income
e Note 38 — Cashflow Operating Activities

e Note 42 —Transport Act 2000

Page 110




Page 169

Collection Fund

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of
the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and the distribution to local
authorities and the Government in relation to council tax and non-domestic rates.

Page 111



Page 170

Collection Fund Statement

2022/23 2023/24
Non Non
Council |Domestic Council |Domestic
Tax Rates Total Tax Rates Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income
(71,962) (71,962)|Council Tax (75,731) (75,731)
(50,482)| (50,482)|Non Domestic Rates (59,247)| (59,247)
196 196 |Transitional Protection Payment (3,976) (3,976)
(71,962)| (50,286)| (122,248) (75,731)| (63,223)| (138,954)
Expenditure
Precepts, Demands & Shares
- - |Central Government - -
57,174 49,463 | 106,637 [Halton Borough Council 60,714 57,330 | 118,044
8,436 8,436 |Cheshire Police Authority 9,076 9,076
2,955 500 3,455 |Cheshire Fire Service 3,170 579 3,749
681 681 [Liverpool City Region 689 689
161 161 |Parish Precept 166 166
Apportionment of Previous Year's Surplus
- - |Central Government - -
1,187 (2,172) (985)|Halton Borough Council 1,172 1,933 3,105
172 172 |Cheshire Police Authority 173 173
63 (22) 41 |Cheshire Fire Service 61 20 81
14 14 |Liverpool City Region 14 14
Charges to Collection Fund
247 312 559 |Write-off Uncollectable Amounts 386 (1) 385
2,010 (841) 1,169 |Increase / (Decrease) in Bad Debt Provision 1,822 1,228 3,050
(4,724) (4,724)|Increase / (Decrease) in Appeals Provision 26 26
155 155 [Cost of Collection 157 157
- - |Interest Payable 31 31
- - |Council Tax Support Income (306) (306)
599 599 ([Disregarded Amounts 814 814
73,100 43,270 | 116,370 77,137 62,117 | 139,254
(2,841) 5,384 2,543 |Balance Brought Forward (1,703)| (1,632)] (3,335)
1,138 (7,016)| (5,878)|Movement on Fund Balance 1,406 (1,106) 300
(1,703)[ (1,632)] (3,335)|Balance Carried Forward (297)] (2,738)| (3,035)

Further information on the Collection Fund balance as at 315t March 2024 can be found

within the Narrative Report (Page 15).

Page 112




Collection Fund Balance Sheet

Page 171

2022/23 Council Tax 2023/24
Halton| Cheshire| Cheshire LCR Total Halton| Cheshire| Cheshire LCR Total
BC| P&CC Fire BC| P&CC Fire
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
12,580 | 1,881 655 142 | 15,258 |Arrears 14,296 | 2,137 745 161 | 17,339
(9,106)| (1,362)|  (474)|  (102)| (11,044)|Provision for Doubtful Debts | (10,609)| (1,586)]  (553)|  (119) (12,867)
(756) (113) (39) (9) (917)|Overpayments / Prepayments (809) (121) (42) (9) (981)
(1,405)|  (208) (73) (17)| (1,703)|(Surplus)/Deficit (244) (37) (13) 3)  (297)
(1,313)|  (198) (69) (14)| (1,594)|cash (2,634) (393)| (137) (30)| (3,194)
2022/23 Non-Domestic Rates 2023/24
Central| Halton|Cheshire Total Central| Halton|Cheshire Total
Gov BC Fire Gov BC Fire
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- 6,610 67 6,677 |Arrears - 8,135 82 8,217
- (5,579) (56) (5,635)|Provision for Doubtful Debts - (6,793) (69)| (6,862)
- (1,977) (20)| (1,997)|Appeals Provision - (2,003) (20)| (2,023)
- (452) (5) (457)| Overpayments / Prepayments - (480) (5) (485)
- (1,616) (16)] (1,632)|(Surplus)/Deficit - (2,711) (27)] (2,738)
- 3,014 30 3,044 |Cash - 3,852 39 3,891

Page 113




Page 172

Notes to the Collection Fund

1. Introduction of the Council Tax

The property-based council tax was introduced on the 1t April 1993, replacing the personal
liability Community Charge. The Council determined its Band D equivalent tax base for
2022/23 at 36,241 (2022/23 - 35,831)

2. The Council Tax Base Determination

Band Properties Ratio Band D Equivalents
Disabled 68 5/9 38
A 17,860 6/9 11,907
B 9,921 7/9 7,716
C 7,192 8/9 6,393
D 4,655 9/9 4,655
E 3,552 11/9 4,341
F 1,164 13/9 1,681
G 327 15/9 545
H 29 18/9 58
Total 44,768 37,334
Reductions relating to Non-Collection and changes in
assumptions (1,093)
Tax Base set for 2023/24 36,241

The parishes’ individual tax bases are shown below:

2022/23 2023/24
Hale 664 668
Daresbury 186 186
Moore 333 336
Preston Brook 368 370
Halebank 526 528
Sandymoor 1,417 1,473

Page 114



Page 173

3. Precepting Authorities

Halton Borough Council has three precepting authorities; Cheshire Police & Crime
Commissioner, Cheshire Fire Authority, and Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. The
Band D charge and total precept are shown in the table below:

2022/23 2023/24
£ £

Cheshire Police and Crime Commissioner
- Band D Charge 235.44 250.44
- Precept 8,436,051 9,076,196
Cheshire Fire Authority
- Band D Charge 82.48 87.48
- Precept 2,955,341 3,170,363
Liverpool City Region
- Band D Charge 19.00 19.00
- Precept 680,789 688,579

4. Non-Domestic Rates

The non-domestic rate replaced locally fixed rates from 1%t April 1990. The rateable value at
315t March and the business rate multiplier, which is fixed by the Government, are shown in

the table below:

2022/23 2023/24
£ £

Rateable value at 31st March 144,172,158 | 149,733,919
Non Domestic rating multiplier 51.2 51.2
Small Business Non Domestic rating multiplier 49.9 49.9

Page 115




Page 174

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
The Council’s Responsibilities
The Council is required:

To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
Council, the Operational Director — Finance has that responsibility;

To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets;

To approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Operational Director — Finance Responsibilities

The Operational Director — Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s
statement of accounts which, in terms of CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in Great Britain (“the Code of Practice”), is required to present a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Council at the accounting date and its income and expenditure
for the year (ended 315t March 2024).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Operational Director — Finance has:
Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
Adopted the principal of “True and Fair” regarding the Council’s financial position;
Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
Complied with the Code of Practice.
The Operational Director — Finance has also:
Kept proper accounting records which were kept up to date;
Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

| certify that this Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position
and income and expenditure of Halton Borough Council for the year ended 315 March 2024.

o

Director of Financial Services

Signed by:

Date: 20t November 2024

Page 116



Page 175

Statement of Accounting Policies
1. General

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2023/24 financial
year and its position at the year-ending 31st March 2024.

Halton Borough Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which is required to be prepared in
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code
of Practice of Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 supported by
International Financing Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

2. Changes to the 2023/24 Accounting Policies

The Council’s accounting policies are subject to regular review arising from changes in the
way costs are accounted for and changes in the requirements of the Code of Practice. There
have been no changes in the Council’s accounting policies during 2023/24.

3. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received.

3(a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient
in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

3(b) Employee Costs

The full cost of employees is charged to the period which the employees worked. Accruals
are made for pay awards awaiting settlement and for the cost of holiday entitlements and
time off in lieu earned by employees but not taken before the year-end. To ensure that the
actual costs to the Council falls in the year in which they are paid, a transfer is made to the
Accumulated Absences Account.

3(c) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date, or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. They are charged on an accrual basis at
the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits, or when
the Council recognises costs for a restructuring. Where termination benefits involve the
enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year,

Page 117



Page 176

not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement
in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners, and any such
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

3(d) Interest

Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

3(e) Supplies and Services

Supplies and services are accounted for in the period that they are consumed or received.
Accruals are made for all material sums unpaid at year end for goods and services received or
works completed. Where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and
consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

3(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature within 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change of value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

3(g) Debtors and Creditors

Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to
revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Known uncollectable debt is written off with a charge being made to the Bad Debt Provision.
4. Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence can only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised on the Balance Sheet but by way of notes to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefit or service
potential.

Page 118



Page 177

5. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or Non-occurrence of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the Balance Sheet but disclosed by way of notes
to the accounts.

6. The Collection Fund

The Council is required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. The Collection Fund) for
the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and national non-
domestic rates.

6(a) Council Tax Income

In its capacity as a billing authority the Council acts as an agent. It collects council tax income
on behalf of the major preceptors (The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cheshire, Cheshire
Fire & Rescue Service, and Liverpool City Region Combined Authority) and itself.

6(b) National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)

As part of the Business Rate Retention Pilot Scheme, the Council acts as an agent and collects
national non-domestic rates on behalf Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service and itself.

6(c) Accounting for Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates

While the council tax and non-domestic rates income for the year credited to the Collection
Fund is the accrued income for the year, regulations determine when it should be released
from the Collection Fund and transferred to the General Fund. The amount credited to the
General Fund under statute is the Council’s demand for the year plus the Council’s agreed
share of the surplus (or less its share of the deficit) on the Collection Fund.

The difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the amount required to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of
council tax and non-domestic rates relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful
debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals.

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising
from a past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made
(fixed or determinable payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the
Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure line in the CIES. The impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future cash flows.

Page 119



Page 178

7. Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and adverse, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts are
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement
of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would
have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

8. Financial Instruments

The Council invests and borrows money as part of its day to day business and Treasury
Management Strategy. It is required to present on the Balance Sheet at fair value its
outstanding financial obligations and assets in relation to these transactions. Assets exclude
short term investments i.e. invested for periods of less than 3 months at inception and not
due for repayment at the Balance Sheet date. These investments are treated as cash
equivalents due to their liquid nature.

The Council uses Link Asset Services to provide independent valuations of the position at the
period end.

Link Asset Services use the Net Present Value valuation technique to value borrowings. The
discount rate used within the calculation is the Public Works Loans Board new borrowing rate.

8(a) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost.
Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. Financial liabilities due to be settled within 12 months of the
Balance Sheet date, along with accrued interest on all financial liabilities, are recorded as a
current liability.

8(b) Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow
characteristics.

There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

e amortised cost
e fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

Page 120



Page 179

e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based
on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest)
and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Any gains and losses that arise on derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost (or where relevant FVOCI), either on a 12-month or lifetime expected credit loss basis.
Only lifetime expected credit losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the
Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was
initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime expected credit loss basis. Where risk
has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month
expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they
arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:

e instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
e other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow
analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three levels:

e Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the Council can access at the measurement date.

Page 121



Page 180

e Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.
e Level 3 inputs —unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

9. Fair Value

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties, and some of its financial instruments, such as equity shareholdings (other financial
instruments as applicable), at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
or best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the Council’s fair value measurement of its
assets and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows:

- Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the authority can access at the measurement date.

- Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 —unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

10. Government Grants, Other Contributions and Donated Assets

Whether paid on account, by instalments, or arrears, government grants and third-party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

- The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

Page 122



Page 181

- The grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential are required to be consumed by the Council as specified, or future economic
benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants or contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried on the Balance Sheet as Receipts in Advance. When conditions are satisfied, the grant
or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
Capital Adjustment Account. Where the grant is yet to be used to finance capital expenditure,
it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied
reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to
fund capital expenditure.

11. Interest in Companies and Other Entities

The Council has an interest in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated entities that would
require it to prepare group accounts. As the transactions relating to group entities are not
material, no group financial statements are being produced for the 2023/24 accounts.

The definition of materiality as per the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting is:

The relevance of information contained in the financial statements is affected by its nature
and materiality. Omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually
or collectively, influence the decisions or assessments of users made on the basis of the
financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or
misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the item, or a
combination of both, could be the determining factor. Therefore, materiality provides a
threshold or cut-off point rather than a primary qualitative characteristic which information
must have if it is to be useful. An authority need not comply with the Code, as to both
disclosure and accounting principles, if the information is not material to the true and fair
view of the financial statements and to the understanding of users.

In assessing the materiality of group entities an assessment has been undertaken of the
following quantitative and qualitative factors:

Quantitative Factor

e The activities of group entities are not significant to the representation of the
operational activities of the authority as a whole.

e Gross Value of the investments in gross entities are not significant in terms of the
Balance Sheet of HBC.

Page 123



Page 182

e Gross Value of the borrowings or other liabilities of group entities are not significant
to the Balance Sheet of HBC.

e An adjustment to usable reserves that would arise on consolidation would not be
significant.

Qualitative Factor

e The authority does not depend significantly on group entities for continued provision
of statutory services.

e There is no concern to which the Council has passed on control of its assets to other
parties.

e There is no concern about the extent to which the Council is exposed to commercial
risk.

e Not consolidating group entities does not mask significant trends.

e Grouping the accounts would not provide any more useful disclosures.

12. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset
to the Council.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined with reference to an active market.
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets these criteria, and they are therefore
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of any intangible asset is amortised over
its useful live to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

13. Inventories and Long Term Contracts
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations satisfied
based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the financial year.

14. Leases
14(a) Finance Leases

Leases are classified as Finance Leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Page 124



Page 183

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to
the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing
down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

e a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment —
applied to write down the lease liability, and

¢ a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset
does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.

14(b) Operating Leases

Operating leases are all leases which are not categorised as finance leases. Rentals paid under
operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an
expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.
Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match
the pattern of payments.

The accounting treatment for leases will change in 2024/25 due to the introduction of IFRS
16. More information can be found in Policy 27 - Accounting Standards that have been Issued
but not yet Adopted.

15. Non-Current Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment

15(a) Recognition

Non-current assets are assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes,
and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as
Property, Plant and Equipment.

Page 125



Page 184

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of a non-current asset is capitalised
on an accruals basis. Expenditure is only capitalised when it adds to or extends, and not
merely maintains the value of an existing asset.

15(b) Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

e the purchase price

e any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

e the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Council). Where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition
is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Assets are then carried on the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e Infrastructure, assets under construction and community assets are measured on the
basis of depreciated historic cost.

e Surplus assets, investment properties and assets held for sale are based on their fair
value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective.

e School buildings — current value, but because of their specialist nature, are measured
at depreciated replacement cost which is used as an estimate of current value.

e All other assets are measured at current value which is determined as the amount that
would be paid for the asset in its existing use (“existing use value” — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value. For non-
property assets (e.g. vehicles, plant and equipment) that have short useful lives or low values
(or both) depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets are subject to an annual impairment check. A proportion of the assets will be subject
to revaluation each year to allow for the workload of revaluation to be more evenly spread
and the Balance Sheet to be more accurate. Each asset will be revalued on a 3-year cycle.

All assets are subject to an annual review to ensure valuations have not materially changed
in the years they are not valued and that the carrying value is not significantly different to
their fair value.

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

Page 126



Page 185

e Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the
amount of the accumulated gains).

e Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Council operates a de-minimis level of £35,000 at acquisition, in respect of land and
property, and a qualified valuer certifies the valuation. In respect of vehicles, plant and
equipment, these are carried at depreciated historic cost subject to an initial recognition de-
minimis of £5,000.

15(c) Impairment

Assets are assessed at year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, the carrying amount of the asset is written down first
against the accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve.

Where there is no longer a balance in the revaluation reserve to consume the loss, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service lines in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

When an impairment loss is reversed, the reversal is credited to the relevant service lines in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss
and adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had never been
recognised.

15(d) Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered through
the sale of a transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at
the lower of this amount and fair value at highest and best use, less costs to sell. Where there
is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains
in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the
Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale.

To be classified as held for sale an asset must meet all of the following criteria:

e The asset (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or
disposal groups).

e The sale must be highly probable; the appropriate level of management must be
committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group) and an active programme to
locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated.

Page 127



Page 186

e The asset (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that is
reasonable in relation to its current value.

e The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year of the date of classification and action required to complete the plan should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the
plan will be withdrawn.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had the asset not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Receipts from the disposal of property, plant and equipment assets greater than £10,000 are
credited to the useable capital receipts reserve on an accruals basis. Lower amounts are
treated as de-minimis and credited to the revenue account.

15(e) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets with a finite useful
life. The provision for depreciation is calculated by allocating the cost less any estimated
residual value of the asset over its useful life. The useful lives of assets are estimated on a
realistic basis and reviewed regularly, and where necessary revised.

The estimated useful lives of assets by class are as follows:

Buildings and Other Operational Properties Up to 60 years
Existing Highway Infrastructure and 15 Years
Community Assets

New Highway Infrastructure 25 Years

Mersey Gateway Crossing - In line with the
policy on Componentisation (Para 16g),
significant components are:

e Structures (Main Crossing, Earthworks, 120 Years

Bridge Approaches)
e Highways (incl. Street Lighting) 25 Years
e Other (Tolling, Landscaping, Signage) 30 Years
e General (Financing and Development Split pro-rata across above
Costs) elements
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 3-10 Years
Intangible Assets 5-10 Years

Finance Leases — vehicles, plant and
equipment 3-10 Years equal to length

Page 128



Page 187

Finance Leases — buildings Up to 60 years

All assets are depreciated on a straight line basis, with depreciation commencing the year
after acquisition. In exceptional circumstances, for example, if a particularly expensive asset
is acquired with a short life expectancy, then a charge may be levied in the year of acquisition
to ensure the charge to the service is more in line with the consumption of the asset.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

An exception to depreciation is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e.
freehold land and certain community assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e.
assets under construction); these are not depreciated.

15(f) Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building — or part of a building — or both) held solely
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:

(a) Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
(b) Sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but revalued annually
according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and result in a gain to the General Fund balance. Revaluation and
disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on
the General Fund balance. The gains and losses are reversed out of the General Fund in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any
sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

15(g) Componentisation

The objective of component accounting is to follow proper accounting practice by ensuring
that items of Property, Plant and Equipment are accurately and fairly included in the Balance
Sheet and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Consumption of
economic benefits should be properly reflected over the assets individual useful lives, through
depreciation charges.

The overall value of an asset must be fairly apportioned over significant components, which
need to be accounted for separately, with their useful lives and the method of depreciation
being determined on a reasonable and consistent basis.

Page 129



Page 188

Having identified individual material assets or groups of similar assets with similar
characteristics, each component part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost
that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset shall be depreciated separately.

Once individual material assets and asset groups have been identified, items of Property,
Plant and Equipment will be categorised as follows based on their significance, useful life and
depreciation method:

Component Detail

Superstructure and substructure Frame, upper floors, roof, stairs, external walls,
external windows and doors, internal walls and
partitions, internal doors

Internal Finishes and Fittings Wall, floor, ceiling finishes, fittings and furnishings

Services Sanitary appliances, services equipment,
disposal installations, water installations, heat
source, space heating and air conditioning,
ventilating systems, electrical installations,
fuel installations, fire and lightning
protection, communication and security
installations, builders’ work in connection
and management and commissioning of services

Land Land upon which the property is constructed

The basis upon which the calculation of the value of components will be made is replacement
cost. The actual split will be determined following individual valuation of the property.

Land is a separate component in its own right, but is not considered for depreciation
purposes. Generally, land is considered to have an infinite life.

When an asset is enhanced or replaced, the cost of the replacement component is compared
with the cost of the total asset. If the cost of the enhancement or replacement is above 15%
or £35,000 of the overall cost of the asset, a proportion of the relevant component’s carrying
value is derecognised and replaced by the cost of the new replacement asset.

When an asset is acquired or revalued, the cost of its component parts will be broken down
into Superstructure and Substructure, Internal Finishes and Fittings and Services. Land will
be identified as a separate component in its own right.

15(h) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current
assets during the year:

° depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

Page 130



Page 189

. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be
written off

° amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.

The Council does not raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses
or amortisations. However, the Council is required to make an annual contribution from
revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory
guidance.

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by
the contribution in the General Fund balance from the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

15(i) Schools (Land & Buildings)

Section 20 of the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998 established the following
categories of maintained schools in England and Wales:

(a) Community Schools

(b) Foundation Schools

(c) Voluntary Schools comprising Voluntary Aided and Voluntary Controlled
(d) Community Special Schools, and

(e) Foundation Special Schools

In order to recognise a non-current school’s asset on the Council’s Balance Sheet, the Council
has followed the recognition criteria of the Code and determined the extent to which the
Council has control of the service potential associated with the school’s assets.

The Council has concluded that a) Community Schools and d) Community Special Schools will
form part of the Council’s non-current assets.

For all other schools the Council is merely using the non-current asset under licence. A licence
passes no interest in the non-current asset to the Council and is always revocable, therefore
these schools will not form part of the Council’s non-current assets.

15(j) Accounting for Schools Transferring to Academy Status

The accounting standards on group accounts and consolidation mean all types of school are
now considered to be entities controlled by the Council. When a school transfers to academy
status this control is transferred to a third party. As a result, the school as an entity needs to
be derecognised in the Council’s accounts by writing off the net assets of the school to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

15(k) Highway Network Infrastructure Assets

Highways network infrastructure assets include carriageways, footways and cycle tracks,
structures (e.g. bridges), street lighting, street furniture (e.g. illuminated traffic signals,

Page 131



Page 190

bollards), traffic management systems and land, which together form a single integrated
network.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition or replacement of components of the network is capitalised
on an accrual basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Measurement

Highways network infrastructure assets are generally measured at depreciated historical cost.
However, this is a modified form of historical cost - opening balances for highways
infrastructure assets were originally recorded in balance sheets at amounts of capital
undischarged for sums borrowed as at 15t April 1994, which was deemed at that time to be
historical cost.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by the carrying amount of
the asset being written down to the recoverable amount.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the parts of the highways network infrastructure assets that are
subject to deterioration or depletion and by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives.

Annual depreciation is the depreciation amount allocated each year. Useful lives of the
various parts of the highways network are shown below:

- Newly constructed carriageways, footways, cycle tracks — 25 years
- Repairs and maintenance of all highways assets — 15 years
- Mersey Gateway Bridge
o Structures (main crossing, earthworks, bridge approaches) — 120 years
o Highways (including street lighting) — 25 years
o Other (tolling, landscaping, signage) — 30 years
o General (financing and development costs) — split pro rata across elements above
- Street lighting and street furniture — 15 years

Disposals and derecognition

When a component of the network is disposed of or decommissioned, if material, the carrying
amount of the component in the Balance Sheet is written off to the ‘Other operating
expenditure’ line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain
or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
(i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).

The written-off amounts of disposals are not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are transferred to the capital adjustment account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Page 132



Page 191

From 2020/21 in accordance with the temporary relief by the update to the code on
infrastructure assets, the accounts do not show the gross cost and accumulated depreciation
for infrastructure assets, and shows the net position in a separate table to other Property,
Plant and Equipment.

16. Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply
and service. The total absorption costing principal is used — the full cost of overheads and
support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received.

17. Pension Costs

General

The cost of providing pensions for employees is charged in accordance with the requirements
of IAS19 Retirement Benefits subject to the interpretation set out in the Code governing the
pension schemes. The Council pays an employer’s contribution to the Cheshire Pension Fund;
Teachers’ Pension Agency and the National Health Service Pension Scheme.

Pensions Reserve

Where there is a difference between the amount charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year and the amount payable to the pension funds, that sum is
taken to the Pension Reserve. This additional debit or credit to the services is shown as a
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement within the Adjustments between
Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under regulations note.

Classification of Schemes
Defined Benefit Schemes

Accounting policies set out as below apply in respect of pension costs arising from the Local
Government Pension Scheme and unfunded discretionary benefits paid:

(i) The liabilities of the Cheshire Pension Fund and unfunded liabilities of the Teachers’
Pension Scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates,
etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

(ii) Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using the relevant discount
rate.

(iii) The assets of Cheshire Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the
Balance Sheet at their fair value:
a. Quoted securities — current bid price
b. Unquoted securities — professional estimate
c. Unitised securities — current bid price

Page 133



Page 192

d. Property — market value

(iv) The change in the net pensions liabilities is analysed into the following components:

a. Service cost comprising:

i. Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned
this year —allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement of the
services for which the employees worked

ii. Past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of services earned in earlier years — debited
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

iii. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for
the Council — the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement —
this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at
the beginning of the period — taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of the contribution and benefit
payments.

b. Re-measurements comprising:

i. The return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) — charged to the Pension Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

ii. Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pension
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

c. Contribution paid to Pension Funds — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund in settlement of liabilities: not accounted for as an expense.

(v) In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provision requires the General Fund
Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund
or directly to pensions in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. Inthe Movement in Reserves Statement, this means
that there are transfers to and from the Pension Reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid
at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather that as benefits are earned by
employees.

Defined Contribution Schemes

The arrangements for the Teachers’ Pension Scheme and the NHS Pension Scheme mean that
liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be specified by the Council. The scheme is

Page 134



Page 193

therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments or benefits is recognised on the Balance Sheet. The relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the Council’s
contributions payable to Teachers’ Pensions and NHS Pension Scheme in the year.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff (including teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award
and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

18. Pooled Budgets

Under Section 75 of the Health Act, the Council is able to establish joint working arrangements
with NHS bodies and other Councils to pool funds from both organisations to create a single
pot. Where pooled budgets are established, the Council’s accounts reflect only the Council’s
share of the overall pot and exclude the share attributable to partner organisations.

19. Prior Period Adjustments

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policy or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policy are only made when required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of its transactions,
other events and conditions on the financial position or performance. When a change is
made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

20. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are created by a charge to a service and as such appear in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the Cost of Services in the year the Council becomes
aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking account of risks and uncertainties.
Where it becomes apparent that a lower settlement is anticipated than first thought, the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried on the
Balance Sheet.

Page 135



Page 194

21. Repurchase of Borrowing

Gains or losses arising on the repurchase or early settlement are charged in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the period during which the
repurchase is made. If the repurchase was coupled with refinancing or restructuring, gains or
losses are charged over the life of the replacement loan.

22. Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by apportioning amounts out of the General Fund
balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from the
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the apportionment service in that year against the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The reserve is then appropriated back in the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.

The Council maintains two kinds of reserve, Usable and Unusable Reserves.
Usable reserves comprise:

Capital Receipts Reserve

General Fund Balance

Schools Balances

Earmarked Reserves

Capital Grants Unapplied
Earmarked Schools Budget Reserve

Unusable reserves comprise:

Revaluation Reserve

Capital Adjustment Account

Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve
Pensions Reserve

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Accumulated Absences Account

Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account
Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account

Usable reserves are available to fund expenditure, either revenue or capital, incurred by the
Council. Unusable reserves are not available to fund expenditure since they do not represent
new resources available to the Council.

23. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for funding purposes when it

does not result in the creation on a non-current asset on the Balance Sheet. Such expenditure

Page 136



Page 195

is charged to the appropriate service account within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses the amounts charged so that
there is no impact on the council tax.

24. Senior Officers

The Council is required to disclose senior officers who are paid a salary of more than £150,000
by name and job title. The requirement also extends to those officers whose salary is more
than £50,000 and have a statutory role defined by legislation or are responsible for directing
and controlling the day-to-day operations of the Council; disclosure is restricted to job title.

25. Service Concessions

PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for
making available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to
the PFI contractor. As the Council is deemed to control the services that are provided under
PFl schemes, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment will pass to the Council
at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Council carries the assets used under
the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the
property, plant and equipment) is balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due
to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment.

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are re-valued and depreciated in the
same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Council.

The amounts payable to the PFl operators each year are analysed into five elements:

e Fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant service in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

e Finance cost — an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

e Contingent rent — increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during
the contract, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

e Payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards
the PFl operator (the profile of write-downs is calculated using the same principles as
for a finance lease)

e Life cycle replacement costs — where material, a proportion of the amounts payable is
posted to the Balance Sheet as a prepayment and then recognised as additions to
Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant works are eventually carried out.

Page 137



Page 196

26. Heritage Assets
Where applicable, heritage assets are measured at insurance valuation on the Balance Sheet.

Unlike other non-current assets depreciation is not required on heritage assets which have
infinite useful lives. Similarly, impairment reviews are only required in limited circumstances,
for example if a heritage asset has suffered breakage or physical deterioration.

27. Accounting Standards that have been Issued but not yet Adopted

Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24
(the Code), the Council is required to disclose information setting out the impact of an
accounting change required by new accounting standards which have been issued at the
balance sheet date but which will not apply to local authorities’ accounts until subsequent
financial years.

The standards introduced by the 2024/25 Code where disclosures are required in the 2023/24
financial statements, in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 3.3.4.3 of the Code,
are:

(i) IFRS 16 Leasesissued in January 2016 (but only for those local authorities that have
not decided to voluntarily implement IFRS 16 in the 2023/24 year).

(ii) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1).

(iii) Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16).

(iv) Non-Current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IFRS 16).

(v) International Tax Reform: Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12)

(vi) Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7).

With the exception of IFRS 16 Leases, these amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Council’s Statement of Accounts.

27(a) IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 removes the traditional distinction between finance leases and operating leases for
lessors. Under finance lease arrangements, assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet,
alongside the corresponding lease liability. In contrast, operating lease payments have
previously been treated as an in-year expense, with no asset or liability accounted for on the
Balance Sheet. Under IFRS 16, all leases where the Council is the lessor above a de-minimis
amount will require an asset and corresponding liability to be recognised on the Balance
Sheet. It is not anticipated that this will materially impact on the Council’s financial
statements.

Under the existing accounting standard, IAS 17, finance lease liabilities are not remeasured
when indexation is applied to the value of payments. Under IFRS 16, where indexation
impacts on future payments, the lease liability will need to be remeasured, along with the
value of the corresponding right-of-use asset. The full impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on
the Council’s PFI liabilities cannot be determined at 315t March 2024, but it is not anticipated
that there will be any impact on the Council’s General Fund from this change.

Page 138



Page 197

28. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in above, the Council has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
These judgements are not considered material for 2023/24.

29. Assumptions Made about the Future and other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made by taking
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However,
because some balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be
materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 315 March 2024 for which there is a significant
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

29(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

The carrying amount in the Balance Sheet at the 31t March 2024 is £874.4m, of which
£424.6m relates to the Unitary Charge element of the Mersey Gateway Crossing.

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level
of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current
economic climate makes it uncertain that the Council will be able to sustain its spending on
repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful lives of those assets. Ongoing
maintenance for the Mersey Gateway Crossing is covered by unitary payments and therefore
has no impact on the Council’s on-going repairs and maintenance spending.

If the useful life of Buildings included in Property, Plant and Equipment is reduced,
depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the asset falls. It is estimated that the
annual depreciation charge for buildings could increase between 10%-15% equating to an
additional £0.637m to £0.956m for every year that useful lives had been reduced.

29(b) Pensions Liability / Asset
The carrying amount in the Balance Sheet at the 315*March 2024 is a liability of £4.506m.

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. Hymans
Robertson LLP is engaged on behalf of the Council by Cheshire West and Chester Council to
provide expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

An estimate of the impact of any changes to the principal assumptions provided by the
actuary are shown in the Note 32.

Page 139



Page 198

30 Going Concern

The statement of accounts has been prepared on an assumption that the Council will continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This a requirement of the Code, which
reflects the fact that since the management of a statutory local authority does not have the
power to cease operations and wind up the entity, a statutory local authority will always be a
going concern as defined by IAS1 (Presentation of Financial Statements).

Page 140



Page 199

Glossary of Terms

For the purposes of the Code of Practice the following definitions have been adopted:
Accruals

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not
as money is received or paid.

Accounting Policies

Those principals, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity that specify how
the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements
through:

(a) Recognising;
(b) Selecting and measuring bases for; and
(c) Presenting.

Assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves.
Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques.

Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected
in financial statements. For example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure
may specify whether an asset or a loss is to be recognised; the basis on which it is to be
measured; and where in the Income and Expenditure account or Balance Sheet it is to be
presented.

Acquired Operations

Operations comprise services and divisions of service as defined in SeRCOP. Acquired
operations are those operations of the Council that are acquired in the period.

Actuarial Gains and Losses

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise
because:

(a) Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation
(experience gains and losses); or

(b) The actuarial assumptions have changed.
Capital Expenditure

Expenditure on the acquisition of a non-current asset or expenditure which adds to and not
merely maintains the value of an existing non-current asset.

Page 141



Page 200

Class of Non-Current Assets
The classes of non-current assets required to be included in the accounting statements are:
Property, Plant and Equipment:

e Other land and buildings

e Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment
e Infrastructure assets

e Community assets

e Assets under construction

e Surplus assets

Other classes of assets:

e Investment properties
e Assets held for sale
e Heritage assets

Community Assets

Assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life,
and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are parks
and historic buildings.

Consistency

The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from
one period to the next are the same.

Constructive Obligation
An obligation that derives from a Council’s actions where:

(a) By an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific
current statement, the Council has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities; and

(b) As a result, the Council has created a valid expectation on the part of those other
parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the Local Authority’s control.

Contribution

A contribution may be received from a partner to help perform a particular function (i.e. PCT
and third sector in health/education, S106 developers etc...)

Page 142



Page 201

Contingent Liability
A contingent liability is either:

(a) A possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
Council’s control; or

(b) A present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer
of economic benefits will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Corporate and Democratic Core

The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which Local Authorities engage in
specifically because they are elected multi-purpose Authorities. The cost of these activities
are thus over and above those which would be incurred by a series of independent, single
purpose, nominated bodies managing the same services. There is therefore no basis for
apportioning these costs over or across services.

Current Service Cost (Pensions)

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabilities expected to arise
from employee service in the current period.

Curtailment

For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future service of
present employees or reduces for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for
some or all of their future service. Curtailments include:

(a) Termination of employees’ services earlier than expected, for example as a result of
closing a factory or discontinuing a segment of a business; and

(b) Termination of, or amendment to the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so that some
or all future service by current employees will no longer qualify for benefits or will
qualify only for reduced benefits.

Deferred Charges

Expenditure which may properly be deferred, but which does not result in, or remain matched
with, tangible assets. Examples of deferred charges are expenditure on items such as
improvement grants and the expenses of private acts.

Defined Benefit Scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme.
Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and
the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The scheme may be
funded or unfunded (including notionally funded).

Page 143



Page 202

Defined Contribution Scheme

A pension, or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular
contributions fixed as an amount, or as percentage of pay, and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

Depreciation

The measure of cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the non-current asset that have
been consumed during the period.

Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a non-
current asset whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either
changes in technology or demand for the goods or services produced by the asset.

Discontinued Operations

Operations comprise services and divisions of service as defined in CIPFA’s Standard
Classification of Income and Expenditure. An operation should be classified as discontinued
if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The termination of the operation is completed either in the period before the earlier
of three months after the commencement of the subsequent period and the date on
which the financial statements are approved;

(b) The activities related to the operation have ceased permanently;

(c) The termination of the operation has a material effect on the nature and focus of the
Local Authority’s operations and represents a material reduction in its provision of
services resulting either from its withdrawal from a particular activity (whether a
service or division of service, or its provision in a specific geographical area) or from a
material reduction in net expenditure in the Local Authority’s continuing operations;

(d) The assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of operations and activities are clearly
distinguishable physically, operationally and for financial reporting purposes.

Operations not satisfying all the conditions are classified as continuing.
Discretionary Benefits

Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation
to award which are awarded under the Council’s discretionary powers, such as The Local
Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations 1996, the Local Government
(Discretionary Payments and Injury Benefits) (Scotland) Regulations 1998, or the Local
Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001.

Page 144



Page 203

Estimation Techniques

The methods adopted by an entity to arrive at estimated monetary amounts, corresponding
to the measurement bases selected, for assets, liabilities, gains losses and changes to
reserves.

Estimation techniques implement the measurement aspects of accounting policies. An
accounting policy will specify the basis on which an item is to be measured; where there is
uncertainty over the monetary amount corresponding to that basis, the amount will be
arrived at by using an estimation technique. Estimation techniques include, for example:

(a) Methods of depreciation, such as straight-line and reducing balance, applied in the
context of a particular measurement basis, used to estimate the proportion of the
economic benefits of a tangible non-current asset consumed in a period.

(b) Different methods used to estimate the proportion of debts that will not be recovered,
particularly where such methods consider a population as a whole rather than
individual balances.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet
date and the date on which the Statement of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial
officer.

Exceptional Items

Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities
of the Council and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence
to give a fair presentation of the accounts.

Exit Packages

Exit packages are defined as amounts payable as a result of either an employer’s decision to
terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. Exit packages also
include enhancement of retirement benefits, when an employee retires early without
actuarial reduction of pension.

Expected Rate of Return on Pensions Assets

For a funded defined benefit scheme, the average rate of return, including both income and
changes in fair value but net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining life of the
related obligation on the actual assets held by the scheme.

Extraordinary Items

Material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive from events or
transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the Council and which are not expected
torecur. They do not include exceptional items, nor do they include prior period items merely
because they relate to a prior period.

Page 145



Page 204

Fair Value

The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s length
transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase of use of the
asset.

Finance Lease

A finance lease is one where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the
lessee. A lease would be classified as a finance lease if:

e The lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term.

e The lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value so as to make it reasonably certain the option will
be exercised.

e The lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

e The present value of minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of
the fair value of the leased asset.

e The leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use them
without major modifications.

Notwithstanding the fact that the lease meets the definitions above, the presumption that an
asset should be classified as a finance lease may in exceptional circumstances be rebutted if
it can be clearly demonstrated that the lease in question does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership (other than legal title) to the lessee.

Going Concern

The concept that the Council will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future,
in particular that the Income and Expenditure Account and Balance Sheet assume no
intention to curtail significantly the scale of the operations.

Government Grants

Assistance by Government and Inter-Government Agencies and similar bodies, whether local,
national or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to a Council in return for
past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the Council.

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets that have historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical
or environmental qualities. Examples of heritage assets held by the Council include civic
regalia, paintings and artefacts.

Impairment

A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its carrying amount on the Balance
Sheet.

Page 146



Page 205

Infrastructure Assets

Non-current assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only by
continued use if the asset created. Examples of infrastructure assets are highways and
footpaths.

Interest Cost (Pensions)

For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period of present value of the
scheme liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Inventories

The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use, comprising
the following categories:

(a) goods or other assets purchased for re-sale;

(b) consumable stores;

(c) raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale;
(d) products and services in intermediate stages of completion;

(e) long-term contract balances; and

(f) finished goods.

Investments (Non-Pensions Fund)

A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing
basis in the activities of the Council. Investments should be classified only where an intention
to hold the investment for the long-term can clearly be demonstrated or where there are
restrictions as to the investor’s ability to dispose of the investment.

Investments, other than those in relation to the pensions fund, that do not meet the above
criteria should be classified as current assets.

Investments (Pensions Fund)

The investments of the Pensions Fund will be accounted for in the statements of that Fund.
However, councils are also required to disclose, as part of the transitional disclosures relating
to retirement benefits, the attributable share of the pension scheme assets associated with
their underlying obligations.

Investment Properties
Interest in land and/or buildings:

(a) In respect of which construction work and development have been completed; and
(b) Which is held for its investment potential, and rental income being negotiated at arm’s
length.

Page 147



Page 206

Liquid Resources

Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the Council without disrupting its
business and are either readily convertible to known amounts of cash or close to the carrying
amount, or traded in an active market.

Long-Term Contracts

A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial
asset or the provision of a service (or a combination of assets or services which together
constitute a single project), where the time taken substantially to complete the contract is
such that the contract activity falls into different accounting periods. Some contracts with a
shorter duration than one year should be accounted for as long-term contracts if they are
sufficiently material to the activity of the period.

Net Book Value

The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical
cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.

Net Current Replacement Cost

The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in its
existing use, i.e. the cost of replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect
the current condition of the existing asset.

Net Debt

The Council’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources. Where cash and liquid resources
exceed borrowings, reference should be to net funds rather than debt.

Net Realisable Value

The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in case of non-
operational assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.

Operating Lease
A lease other than a finance lease.
Past Service Cost

For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities
related to employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the
introduction of, or improvements to, retirement benefits.

Prior Period Adjustments

Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting
policies or from the correction of fundamental errors. A fundamental error is one that is of
such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements. They do not include
normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior years.

Page 148



Page 207

Projected Unit Method

An accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for
projected earnings. An accrued benefit valuation method is a valuation method in which the
scheme liabilities at the valuation date relate to:

(a) The benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased
to be active members but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their
dependants, allowing where appropriate for future increases; and

(b) The accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date.

The accrued benefits are the benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested
rights or not. Guidance on the projected unit method is given in the Guidance Note GN26
issued by the Faculty and Institute of Actuaries.

Related Parties
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period:

(a) A party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or

(b) The parties are subject to common control from the same source; or

(c) One party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party
to an extent that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own
separate interests; or

(d) The parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source
to such an extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own
separate interest.

Examples of related parties of a Council include:

(a) Central government;

(b) Local authorities and other bodies precepting or levying demands on the council tax;
(c) Its subsidiary and associated companies;

(d) Its joint ventures and joint ventures partners;

(e) Its members

(f) Its chief officers; and

(g) Its pension fund.

Examples of related parties of a pension fund include its:

(a) Administering authority and its related parties
(b) Scheduled bodies and their related parties; and
(c) Trustees and advisors

This list is not intended to be comprehensive.

For individuals identified as related parties, the following are also presumed to be related
parties:

(a) Members of the close family, or the same household; and

Page 149



Page 208

(b) Partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or a member
of their close family or the same household, has a controlling interest.

A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services
by, to or for a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made. Examples of related
party transactions include:

(a) The purchase, sale, lease rental or hire of assets between related parties;

(b) The provision by a pension fund to a related party of assets of loans, irrespective of
any direct economic benefit to the pension fund;

(c) The provision of a guarantee to a third party in relation to a liability or obligation of a
related party;

(d) The provision of services to a related party, including the provision of pension fund
administration services;

(e) Transactions with individuals who are related parties of the Council or a pension fund,
except those applicable to other members of the community or the pension fund, such
as council tax, rents and repayments of benefits.

This list is not intended to be comprehensive.

The materiality of related party transactions should be judged not only in terms of their
significance to the Council, but also in relation to its related party.

Remuneration

All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances
and the money value of any other benefits received other than in cash. Pension contributions
payable by the employee are excluded.

Residual Value

The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life. Residual values are based on
prices prevailing at the date of acquisition (or revaluation) of the asset and do not take
account of expected future prices.

Retirement Benefits

All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by
employees that are payable after completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not
include termination benefits payable as a result of either (i) an employer’s decision to
terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or (ii) an
employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because
these are not given in exchange for services rendered by employees.

Scheme Liabilities

The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme
liabilities measured using the projected unit method reflect the benefits that the employer is
committed to provide for service up to the valuation date.

Page 150



Page 209

Settlement

An irrevocable action that relieves the employee (or the defined benefit scheme) of the
primary responsibility for a pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the
obligation and the assets used to effect the settlement. Settlements include:

(a) Alump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for their rights to receive
specified pension benefits;

(b) The purchase of an irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits;
and

(c) The transfer of scheme assets and liabilities relating to a group of employees leaving
the scheme.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer’'s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy.

Total Cost

The total cost of a service or activity includes all costs which relate to the provision of the
service (directly or bought in) or to the undertaking of the activity. Gross total cost includes
employee costs, expenditure relating to premises and transport, supplies and services, third
party payments, transfer payments, support services and capital charges. This includes an
appropriate share of all support services and overheads, which need to be apportioned.

Useful Life

The period over which the Council will derive benefits from the use of a non-current asset.
Vested Rights

In relation to a defined benefit scheme, these are:

(a) For active members, benefits to which they would unconditionally be entitled on
leaving the scheme;

(b) For deferred pensioners, their preserved benefits;

(c) For pensioners, pensions to which they are entitled.

Vested rights include where appropriate the related benefits for spouses or other
dependants.

Page 151



° Grant Thornton

The Audit Findings (ISA260) Report
for Halton Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2024

6 November 2024




Grant Thornton

Halton Borough Council Grant Thornton UK LLP

Landmark
Heath Road St Peter's Square
Runcom 1 Oxford Street
Cheshire Manchester
WA7 TN M1 4PB
6 November 2024 www.grantthornton.co.uk

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Board,

Audit Findings for Halton Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2024

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process and
confirmation of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK] 260. Its contents have been discussed with management and will be presented to the November Audit and
Governance Board.

°)
As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial
statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with  (Q
governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing our opinion on =
the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify control weaknesses, we will =
report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive
special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other

purpose.

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we have taken to drive audit quality
by reference to the Audit Quality Framework. The report includes information on the firm’s processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence and objectivity, for partner
remuneration, our governance, our international network arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at transparency-report-2023.pdf (grantthornton.co.uk).

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Director
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf

Contents

Section
[-X-X-) 1
2.
3.
4.
Your key Grant Thornton 5.

team members are:

Headlines

Financial statements

Value for money arrangements

Other statutory powers and duties

Independence and ethics

Appendices

A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
Michael Green, Director B. Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements
T 0161953 6900 C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
E Michael.Green@uk.gt.com D. Audit Adjustments

E. Fees and non-audit services
Liz Luddington, Senior F. Monoq?ment Letter of Representation

G. Auditors report

Manager
T 0161953 6410

E Liz.A.Luddington@uk.gt.com

Hanna Peurala, Audit
Supervisor

T 0161 953 6494

E Hanna.L.Peurala@uk.gt.com

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

Page

26
28
29

34
35
37
39
42

Lyly
47

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of
our audit planning process. Itis not
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters,
which may be subject to change, and in particular
we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting
all of the risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report
has been prepared solely for your benefit and
should not be quoted in whole or in part without
our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third
party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis
of the content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square,
London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available
from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm
of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and
the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions.

212 abed


mailto:Michael.Green@uk.gt.com
mailto:Liz.A.Luddington@uk.gt.com
mailto:Hanna.L.Peurala@uk.gt.com

1. Headlines

This table
summarises the key
findings and other
matters arising
from the statutory
audit of Halton
Borough Council
Council (‘the
Council’) and the
preparation of the
Council's financial
statements for the
year ended 31
March 2024 for the
attention of those
charged with
governance.

Financial Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK] (ISAs) and the
National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code'), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:

* the Council's financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Council and its
income and expenditure for the year; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to report whether other information
published together with the audited financial statements
(including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and
Narrative Report), is materially consistent with the financial
statements and with our knowledge obtained during the
audit, or otherwise whether this information appears to be
materially misstated.

Our audit work was completed remotely during July - September as planned. Our findings are
summarised on pages 7 to 25. We have identified three adjustments to the financial statements
that have resulted in a £62.5m adjustment to the Council’s Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in respect of a prior period adjustment to reflect the Mersey Gateway
Provision in earlier periods, a £14.1m adjustment in respect of assets not revalued in the year and
a £5.5m adjustment to reclassify assets held for sale to surplus assets. These have no overall
impact on the level of the Council’s useable reserves.

Audit adjustments are detailed at Appendix D. We have also raised recommendations for
management as a result of our audit work. These are set out at Appendix B. Our follow up of
recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed at Appendix C.

Our work is complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require
modification of our audit opinion or material changes to the financial statements, subject to the
following outstanding matters;

* Pensions - we are awaiting the final IAS19 assurances from the auditor of Cheshire pension
fund,;

* finalisation of our work on school bank accounts;
+ receipt of the signed management representation letter (see appendix F); and

* receipt of the signed financial statements.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements,
including the Annual Governance Statement, is consistent with our knowledge of your
organisation and with the financial statements we have audited.

Our anticipated financial statements audit report opinion will be unmodified. We anticipate
signing your accounts following the Audit & Governance Board on 20 November 2024.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

cTZ abed



1. Headlines

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of  Our work on the Council’s value for money (VFM) arrangements is reported in our commentary on the Council’s arrangements in our
Audit Practice (‘the Code'), we are required to  Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR).

consider whether the Council has put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. Auditors are required to report in
more detail on the Council's overall
arrangements, as well as key recommendations
on any significant weaknesses in arrangements
identified during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their
commentary on the Council's arrangements
under the following specified criteria:

We have completed our VFM work and our detailed commentary is set out in the separate Interim Auditor’s Annual Report, which is
presented alongside this report. We identified significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements and so are not satisfied that the
Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Our findings are set out
in the value for money arrangements section of this report (Section 3).

* Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness;

* Financial sustainability; and
*  Governance

Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 We issued two statutory recommendations in respect of Financial Sustainability due to the financial pressures currently being faced.
(‘the Act’) also requires us to:

* reportto you if we have applied any of the  \we have completed the majority of work under the Code and intend to certify the completion of the audit following the Audit & Governance
additional powers and duties ascribed to us  Bogrd on 20 November 2024

under the Act; and
* to certify the closure of the audit.

Significant matters During the audit, we became aware of the worsening financial position of the Council during 2024/25. We wrote to the Chief Executive in
August 2024 to express our concerns in this area.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

v T2 abed



1. Headlines

National context - audit backlog

Government proposals around the backstop

On 30 July 2024, the Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution, Jim McMahon, provided the following written statement to Parliament Written statements - Written
guestions, answers and statements - UK Parliament This confirm the government’s intention to introduce a backstop date for English local authority audits up to 2022/23 of 13 December 2024.

The government has set out its intention that from 2023/24, auditors should work with local authorities to begin the process of recovery. A backstop date for 2023/24 has been proposed of 28
February 2025, and a date for 2024/25 audits of 27 February 2026.

The Council’s 2022/23 accounts were signed on 27 March 2024 and as noted previously we are intending to sign the 2023/24 accounts in November, well in advance of the 2023/24 backstop
deadline of 28 February 2025. We will continue to work with officers to deliver the audit within the timetables set by government.

National context - level of borrowing

All Councils continue to operate in an increasingly challenging financial context. With inflationary pressures placing increasing demands on Council budgets, there are concerns as Councils
look to alternative ways to generate income. We have seen an increasing number of councils look to ways of utilising investment property portfolios as sources of recurrent income. Whilst there
have been some successful ventures and some prudently funded by councils’ existing resources, we have also seen some councils take excessive risks by borrowing sums in excess of their
revenue budgets to finance these investment schemes. Additionally, we have also seen some authorities lending money to their subsidiary companies, which may not be in a position to repay
those loans.

The impact of these huge debts on Councils, the risk of potential bad debt write offs and the implications of the poor governance behind some of these decisions are all issues which now have

to be considered by auditors across local authority audits. Although we have not noted issues with this at Halton, section 3 describes the significant weaknesses we have identified in the
Council’s arrangements in respect of Financial Sustainability, Governance and Improving Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

GTZ abed


https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46

2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising
from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of
those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management
and will be presented at the Audit and Governance Board
on 25 September 2024.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Council's business and is risk based,
and in particular included:

An evaluation of the Council's internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls; and

Substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial
statements and, subject to outstanding items being
resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit and Governance Board meeting on 20
November 2024. These outstanding items are on page 4.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our
appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance
team and other staff.

As highlighted on page 6 during the course of the audit we
faced audit challenges in respect of the Council’s financial
position and the sudden decline in performance during
2024/25. This resulted in us having to carry out additional
procedures in our Value for Money work, as summarised on
in section 3 and issuing statutory recommendations.

9TZ abed



2. Financial Statements

<

Our approach to materiality

The concept of materiality is
fundamental to the preparation of the
financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence
to acceptable accounting practice and
applicable law.

We have revised the performance
materiality percentage to reflect the
increased risk due to the Council’s draft
accounts having gross expenditure over
£500m. This means it is classed as a
major audit under the Local Audit
Regulations, which means our
materiality percentage is capped at
1.5% rather than 2%.

We set out in this table opposite our
determination of materiality for Halton
Borough Council.

Council Amount (£°000)

Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial statements

8,663

Financial performance of the Council, focussing on the
expenditure.

Performance materiality

6,489

Quality of working papers in prior year with few misstatements
identified in previous years and Authority response to audit
processes and adjusted for our assessment of the control
environment

Trivial matters 432 The amount below which matters would be considered trivial
to the reader of the accounts.
Materiality for Senior Officer remuneration 37 Materiality is reduced for remuneration disclosures due to the

sensitive nature and public interest. Related parties
adjustments are considered on a case-by-case basis as to
whether it is material to either party

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

/T¢ abed



2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the
potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Management override of controls We have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed * made enquiries of finance staff regarding their knowledge of potential instances of management override of controls
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is

. - * evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals
present in all entities.

* analysed the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals and those falling into certain
criteria determined by the audit team
The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending,
and this could potentially place management under
undue pressure in terms of how they report
performance.

* tested a sample of journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
corroboration

* gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and consider
their reasonableness regarding corroborative evidence

. i . * evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

We therefore identified management override of

controls, in particular journals, management estimates

and transactions outside the course of business as a

significant risk, which was one of the most significant

assessed risks of material misstatement. * Post year-end journals

In performing the procedures above, we identified a population of journals to test using data analytic software to analyse
journal entries and to split large batch journals into smaller sets of transactions that support targeted testing based on specific
risk criteria assessed by the audit team. These criteria included:

*  Material journals across the year

* Year-end journals

* Journals posted by senior management

e Off ledger adjustments

Application of these routines and supplementary procedures identified a total sample of 38 journals to test.

Our audit work is complete and has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls, however we have
repeated a prior year recommendation in respect of journal authorisation - see Action plan at Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

gTZ abed



2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

ISA 240 Revenue recognition risk

ISA (UK] 240 includes a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue recognition
may be misstated due to the improper recognition. This presumption can
be rebutted if the auditor concludes there is no risk of material
misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA 240 and the nature of the
revenue streams at the Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud
arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted because:

* thereis little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition and
opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

* the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Halton
Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Although the risk of fraud is rebutted, we recognise the risk of error in
revenue recognition, and this is addressed through the responses to risk
detailed across.

ISA 240 Expenditure recognition risk

In the public sector, whilst it is not a presumed significant risk, in line with
the requirements of Practice Note (PN] 10: Audit of financial statements of
public sector bodies in the United Kingdom - we also consider the risk of
whether expenditure may be misstated due to the improper recognition of
expenditure.

This risk is rebuttable if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of
material misstatement due to fraud relating to expenditure recognition.
Based on our assessment we consider that we can rebut the significant risk
in relation to expenditure.

The revenue and expenditure recognition risks have been rebutted.

Despite revenue recognition not being a significant risk, we will still undertake the following procedures to ensure
that revenue included within the accounts is materially correct:

* evaluate the Council’s accounting policy for income and expenditure recognition for appropriateness and
compliance with the Code

* update our understanding of the Council’s system for accounting for income and expenditure and evaluating
the design of relevant controls

* undertake detailed substantive testing on the income and expenditure streams in 2023/24, including sample
testing of material revenue and expenditure transactions

* review the accounting treatment of all new income and expenditure streams to confirm that they have been
accounted for appropriately in line with the Code and accounting standards.

Our substantive income testing is complete and has not identified any errors that we are required to bring to your
attention.

We have rebutted the risk of fraud in expenditure recognition

Despite expenditure recognition not being a significant risk, we will still undertake the following procedures to
ensure that expenditure included within the accounts is materially correct:

*+ evaluate the Council’s accounting policy for expenditure recognition for appropriateness and compliance with
the Code

* update our understanding of the Council’s system for accounting for expenditure and evaluating the design of
relevant controls

undertake detailed substantive testing on the expenditure streams in 2023-24, including sample testing of
material expenditure transactions

* review the accounting treatment of all new expenditure streams to confirm that they have been accounted for
appropriately in line with the Code and accounting standards

Our substantive expenditure testing is complete and has not identified any errors that we are required to bring to
your attention.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

6T abed



2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Closing Valuation of land and buildings

The Council revalues its property assets on a rolling
basis. Revaluations are shared between the Council’s
Internal Valuer and an external valuation expert,
Sanderson Weatherall.

These valuations represent a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the
size of the numbers involved (£200 million of land and
buildings at 31 March 2024) and the sensitivity of this
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

Additionally for land and buildings, management will
need to ensure the carrying value in the financial
statements is not materially different from the current
value or the fair value at the financial statements
date, where a rolling programme is used.

We therefore identified the valuation of land and
buildings as a significant risk for the Council.

We have:

* evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation
experts and the scope of their work

* evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert
e written out to them and discuss with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was carried out

* challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding

* engaged our own valuer to assess the instructions to the Council’s valuer, the Council’s valuation report and the
assumptions that underpin the valuation

+ evaluated the valuer’s report to identify assets that have large and unusual changes and/or approaches to the valuation -
these assets will be substantively tested to ensure the valuations re reasonable

* tested a selection of other asset revaluations made during the year to ensure they had been input accurately into the
Council's asset register, revaluation reserve and Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

* evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how management has
satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value at year end

» for all assets not formally revalued, evaluate the judgement made by management or others in the determination of current
value of these assets.

Results
Our work on valuations of land and buildings is complete and has identified some issues as noted below:

The valuer’s desktop valuation of assets not formally revalued identified an understatement of the Council’s assets of £13.9m.
This has been adjusted by the Council, as shown in Appendix D along with some other adjustments giving an overall adjustment
of £14.2m. We have also noted in Appendix C how we raised a recommendation about the process for assets not revalued in the
year causing an issue during the 2022/23 audit and receiving the information about this adjustment in mid-September indicates
further improvements needs to be made.

We have also identified three unadjusted errors as noted in Appendix D:
* A £553k adjustment for a revaluation that was entered in error

+  The Council processed a c£670k downward revaluation of Dundalk Road Changing Rooms/Bowls Pavilion. This was a result
of the valuer not valuing part of the asset. Hence, it is not possible to quantify the exact value of the error as the asset has
not been fully revalued at 31/03/2024, but we have assumed in Appendix D the understatement is £670k

* A £930k decrease in valuation where the floor plans used by the valuer had not been updated to reflect the disposal of some
of the building.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

0¢z abed



2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of the Pension Fund Net Liability

The Council’s pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance sheet as the net
defined benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in the financial
statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate due to the size of
the numbers involved (£679 million liabilities at 31 March 2024 and £711 million of
assets) and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Council’s pension fund net liability as a
significant risk of material misstatement.

The methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19 estimates are routine and
commonly applied by all actuarial firms in line with the requirements set out in the
Code of practice for local government accounting (the applicable financial reporting
framework. However, for the first time since IFRS have been adopted the council has
had to consider the potential impact of IFRIC 14 - IAS 19 -the limit on a defined benefit
asset. Because of this we have assessed the recognition and valuation of the pension
asset as a significant risk.

The source data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19 estimates is provided by
administering authorities and employers. We do not consider this to be a significant
risk as this is easily verifiable.

The actuarial assumptions used are the responsibility of the entity but should be set
on the advice given by the actuary.

A small change in the key assumptions (discount rate, inflation rate, salary increase
and life expectancy) can have a significant impact on the estimated IAS 19 liability. In
particular the discount and inflation rates, where our consulting actuary has
indicated that a 0.1% change in these two assumptions would have approximately 2%
effect on the liability. We have therefore concluded that there is a significant risk of
material misstatement in the IAS 19 estimate due to the assumptions used in their
calculation. With regard to these assumptions we have therefore identified valuation
of the Council’s pension fund net liability as a significant risk.

We have:

* updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to
ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the
design of the associated controls;

* evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary)
for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

* assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the
Council’s pension fund valuation;

* assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the
actuary to estimate the liability;

* tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to
the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

* undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by
reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report; and

* obtained assurances from the auditor of the Cheshire Pension Fund as to the controls
surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and benefits
data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund
financial statements.

Results

Our review of the processes and controls in respect of pensions and the instructions issued by
management identified no issues, nor did our assessment of the competence, capability and
objectivity of the actuary. We also confirmed the accuracy and completeness of the information
provided by the Council to estimate the liability.

We challenged the actuary’s assumptions and used our auditor’s expert (PWC) to provide expert
input on the assumptions that had been used. Page 14 provides a detailed assessment of the
estimation process for the valuation of the pension fund net liability

Our audit work is complete but has not identified any issues in respect of valuation of the pension
fund liability for the Council.

As noted on page 4. we are still awaiting the final IAS19 assurances from the auditor of Cheshire
pension fund auditor before we can formally conclude, though we are satisfied there is unlikely to
be any material matters arising from work performed by the pension fund auditor.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

T2z abed



2. Financial Statements - Observations in
respect of other risks (continued)

This section provides commentary on other issues and risks we communicated in the Audit Plan.

Issue

Commentary

Accounting for Mersey Gateway Bridge as well
as the associated Private Finance Initiative

(PFI) liability

The Mersey Gateway Bridge PFl scheme is large and high
profile to the residents of the borough.

During the year a performance review of the Mersey Gateway
project was undertaken by Mersey Gateway Crossing Board
(MGCB) and the Department for Transport (DfT). As part of the
review an exercise was undertaken regarding the excess revenue
share procedure, which identified the amounts being repayable
to DAT.

In addition, PFl schemes are complex and involve a degree of
subjectivity in the measurement of financial information.

We therefore identified the accounting for the Mersey Gateway
bridge and the accuracy and presentation of the Mersey
Gateway Bridge PFl scheme as a risk for the audit.

Auditor view

We agree with the principles of how the Council has accounted
for the amounts payable to DT, however as the review point was
for the 5 years up to 31 March 2023 rather than relating to the
2023/24 year, we believe this should have been accounted for in
previous periods and given the material nature of the amounts
should therefore be shown as a Prior Period Adjustment. The
Council has updated the accounts to reflect this and we are
reviewing the updated disclosure. This led to a £62.5m reduction
in the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and is noted in Appendix D. This has no overall impact
on the level of the Council’s useable reserves.

No issues identified from our review of the PFl liability.
Management response

The accounts have been updated to reflect the prior period
adjustment.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

2ze abed



2. Financial Statements: key judgements

and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Land and Building valuations  Land and buildings had a net book value of £200 million. The Council’s accounting policy on valuation of land and
- £200m The Council revalues its property assets on a rolling basis. b.wldln.gs is included in the Accounting Policies note of the
Revaluations are shared between the Council’s Internal Valuer and an financial statements.
external valuation expert, Sanderson Weatherall. We have:
Management complete an annual desktop review of the assets not due  *  assessed the Council’s in-house valuer to be competent,
to be revalued during the year, considering factors such as changes to capable and objective
b]tuldmkg oo:;t indices :?:jnce tgessset S||OSt' revqluohon,fono! thle impact . ried out completeness and accuracy testing of the
°© dmof:' e.t c o.ngesdeg encec by reva uations ;:n 92%"230/"23'";1' ar o.ssets underlying information provided to the valuers used to U
an t IS 1S reviewed by monogeme.nt N .expert. or the review determine the estimate including floor areas where Q
highlighted that there was a motenol difference between the carrying appropriate. «Q
value and the desktop valuations of non-revalued assets. ] , ) )
Consequently, the values of such assets have been updated to reflect *  reviewed mctr.mgement s assessment of assets not valued in N
the updated values at the end of 2023/2 to ensure their values are the year against the Gerald Eve report and concluded that . N
their assessment is reasonable and that assets not valued in w

materially correct.

Management’s assessment is that the potential difference in the value
of the remaining assets not formally revalued during 2023/24 is not
material.

The total year end valuation of land and buildings was £200m, a net
decrease of £1from 2022/23 (£201m).

the year are not materially misstated.

agreed valuation reports to the Fixed Asset Register and to the
Statement of Accounts.

engaged our own valuation expert to assess the work of the
Council’s valuer, compliance with RICS requirements and
management’s assessment of assets not revalued in year. Our
expert was able to confirm that the Council’s approach was
reasonable and in line with those adopted by other Valuers
and that the valuations were reasonable.

As noted on page 11 our work is complete however the assessment
of assets not revalued during 2023/24 has led to a £14+.2m
adjustment to increase the asset carrying values and there are
three unadjusted misstatements as detailed in Appendix D.

Green

Assessment

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report



2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement or
estimate

Summary of management’s
approach

Audit Comments

Assessment

Net pension liability —
£4.5m

IFRIC 14 limits the
measurement of the
defined benefit asset to
the 'present value of
economic benefits
available in the form of
refunds from the plan or
reductions in future

contributions to the plan.

The Council’s initial draft net pension
liability at 31 March 2024 was £4.5m
(PY £4.7m ) comprising the Cheshire
Local Government defined benefit
pension scheme and unfunded
defined benefit pension scheme
obligations.

The Council uses Hymans Robertson
to provide actuarial valuations of the
Council’s assets and liabilities
derived from this scheme. A full
actuarial valuation is required every
three years.

Given the significant value of the net
pension fund liability, small changes
in assumptions can result in
significant valuation movements.
There has been a £18.3.m net
actuarial gain during 2023/24.

Our work on the Council’s net pension liability is substantially complete. We have:

assessed management’s expert to be competent, capable and objective.

assessed actuary’s approach taken, detail work undertaken to confirm reasonableness of
approach

used PwC as auditors expert to assess actuary and assumptions made by the actuary as
outlined in the table below:

Actuary
Assumption Value PwC range Assessment

Discount rate 4.85% 4+.80-4.85%

Pension increase rate 2.75% 2.75-2.80%

Salary growth 3.45% 2.75-3.75%

Life expectancy - Males currently PwC

aged 65 208 years confirmed
that

assumptions

235 years  Ore
acceptable

Life expectancy - Females currently
aged 65

the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the estimate,
including liaison with the auditor of the Cheshire Pension fund ( final response currently
outstanding)

undertook a reasonableness test of the Council’s share of LPS pension assets and assessed the
reasonableness of movement in the estimate, and

assessed the adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial statements.

Conclusion

We have not identified any issues to date in respect of this significant estimate, however as noted on
page 12, we are still waiting for the final IAS19 response from the pension fund auditor.

Green

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

vz abed



2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments

Assessment

Depreciation

Asset values and assessed remaining lives are input into
Halton's asset management system (RAM) at acquisition where
they are maintained until write off or disposal. The system then
calculates the depreciation charge to be included in the draft
accounts. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over the Useful Economic Life (UEL) of the assets. The usual UEL
of assets is as follows:

Buildings and Other Operational Properties - 10-60 years
Community Assets - 15 years

Infrastructure Assets - 15-120 years

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment - 3-10 years

Intangible Assets - 5 years

Qualified valuers advise on the UEL of Buildings and suitably
qualified officers advise on Vehicles, Plant and Equipment.

Qur review of the depreciation charge for the year identified
no issues with the estimate made by management.

Green

Bad debt allowances/credit loss
provision

The Bad Debt Provision and impairment provision recorded in
the accounts is made up of a number or provisions, most
notably the Mersey Gateway Public Charge Notices provision
and Local Taxation provision.

Calculation of Bad Debt Provisions is based on a
reconciliation of aged debt balances. OQutstanding balances
are agreed and then historical collection rates are applied to
the balances to calculate an estimate for the required
provision.

The method for calculating the Bad Debt Provisions for Short

Term Debtors has remained consistent for a number of years.

The general method is to obtain listings of all debtors and
their amounts and calculate the bad debt provision required
based on the general percentage rate of collection. These
percentages are based on historic data and have been used
for several years. We are content with these percentages,
and their underlying assumptions, being used to calculate
the provision and have not identified any circumstances that
suggest they ought to have changed.

Green

Assessment

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

Gege abed



2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate  Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Provisions Estimation of the provisions are based on the best estimate of No management bias has been identified. The recognition,

expenditure required to settle the obligation at the time of measurement, presentation and disclosure of Provisions

preparation. Any subsequent increase or decrease in these estimate in the financial statements are deemed to be in

amounts would lead to a corresponding decrease or increase accordance with the applicable financial reporting .

in the General Fund, or the Collection Fund in respect of NNDR  framework. Based on the results of the procedures performed

Appeals. Provisions are reviewed and authorised by senior in Provisions and contingent liabilities section, assurance Green

management. There is a significant provision for the amounts gained over the reasonableness of the Provisions estimate.

potentially owed to the Department for Transport in respect of
the Mersey Gateway, however this is calculated on a known
basis rather than an estimate.

Financial instruments - fair value The Council has its treasury management advisors, to No management bias has been identified. The Fair Value of

of level 2 and level 3 investments calculate the fair values of its financial instruments. loans and PFl liabilities is calculated by an external expert
Management understands and discloses that the fair value of using loans and pfi data for each loan and pfi scheme
liabilities can differ significantly from the carrying values, and  supplied by Council. The expert uses PWLB and comparable
can vary significantly year on year, dependant on market interest rates from the underlying market in force on the 31st
conditions. March 2024 to calculate the fair values. No changes noted

from previous year.

Green

Assessment
® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

9¢¢ abed



2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments

Assessment

PFI Liability

Estimate is based on the requirements of IFRIC 12 and the
financial information in the operator's model. They have been
considered to have an implied finance lease within the
arrangement. The authority has estimated the implied interest
rate within the leases. IRR has been estimated as remaining
constant throughout the remaining period of the contract.

Model based on latest available information and information
relevant to PFl type schemes.

Underlying assumptions involved surrounding asset valuation
and figures within the operators model. The main assumption

underlying the estimate is that the conditions hold true for the
life of asset

No management bias has been identified. The estimate is
based on the requirements of IFRIC 12 and the financial
information in the operators model. They have been
considered to have an implied finance lease within the
arrangement. The authority has estimated the implied
interest rate within the leases. IRR has been estimated as
remaining constant throughout the remaining period of the
contract. The Model is based on latest available information
and information relevant to the PFl type Schemes.

The Code specifies the approach, i.e. the apportionment of
expected payments under the financial model into separate
elements and the application of the actuarial model for lease
accounting to the elements relating to acquisition of the
asset. No changes identified for 2023/24.

Green

Accruals

Accruals for costs incurred or income earned at year-end are
recorded based on the actual amount per invoice
subsequently received post-year end, or estimated based on
the previous invoices received or raised.

No significant accruals during the year and no significant
judgements nor assumptions used with respect to this
estimate based on the results of our samples testing on
income, expenditure, debtors and creditors. No indicators of
management bias noted.

Green

Assessment

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

/2z abed



2. Financial Statements: key judgements

and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments Assessment

Minimum Revenue Provision - £11.410m  The Council is responsible on an annual basis for
determining the amount charged for the repayment of
debt known as its Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). The
basis for the charge is set out in regulations and
statutory guidance.

The year end MRP charge was £11.410m, a net increase of
£1.506m from 2022/23. This represents a 1.88% charge
against the CFR of £605.940m.

We have reviewed the Council’s calculation of MRP and
considered

* whether the MRP has been calculated in line with the statutory
guidance

* whether the Council’s policy on MRP complies with statutory
guidance.

* Assess whether there has been any changes to the Council's
policy on MRP

* Reasonableness of the increase in MRP charge ‘

Following consultation MHCLG have clarified and updated the Green
regulations and the statutory guidance for minimum revenue

provision. Although these take full effect from April 2025 , the

consultation highlighted that the intention was not to change

policy, but to clearly set out in legislation the practices that

authorities should already be following.

This guidance clarifies that capital receipts may not be used in
place of a prudent MRP and that MRP should be applied to all
unfinanced capital expenditure and that certain assets should not
be omitted from the calculation unless exempted by statute.

Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

8¢e abed



2. Financial Statements: Information

Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of Information Technology (IT) environment and controls which included identifying risks from the use of IT related to business
process controls relevant to the financial audit. This includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC) rating per IT system and details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas.

ITGC control area rating

Technology acquisition,

Level of assessment Overall ITGC Security
IT application performed rating management

development and
maintenance

Technology
infrastructure

Related significant
risks/other risks

ITGC assessment
(design and

Our Value for Money work has
identified a significant
weakness due to the Council’s
business continuity and

it 4+ ERP . . . .
Uni implementation disaster recovery plans being
effectiveness only) out-of-date - see Auditor’s
Annual Report presented
alongside this for more detail.
Assessment

@ Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements

Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk

IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope
® Notin scope for testing

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

20

6¢¢ obed



2. Financial Statements: matters discussed
with management

This section provides commentary on the significant matters we discussed with management during the course of the audit.

Significant matter

Commentary

Auditor view and management response

Significant events or transactions that occurred during the
year.

The decline in financial performance during O1 of 20214/25
was discussed.

We have considered this in more detail in our Auditor’s
Annual Report, presented alongside this report, where we
have identified significant weaknesses in the Council’s
arrangements for securing Value for Money and raised two
statutory recommendations.

Management response

Responses to each of the recommendations are included in
the Interim Auditor’s Annual Report.

Prior year adjustments identified

As noted on page 13 we had discussions with management
on the accounting for the Mersey Gateway, in particular
how to account for the annual surpluses due back to the
Department for Transport. We agreed with management’s
accounting however believed that the historic amounts due
should be accounted consistently and as a prior period
adjustment.

Auditor view

* Covered on page 13
Management response
* Covered on page 13

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

21

0g¢ abed



2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

We set out below

details of other

matters which we, as
auditors, are required

by auditing

standards and the

Code to
communicate to

those charged with

governance.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation
to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Governance Board. We have not been made aware
of any incidents in the period and no issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Matters in relation
to related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed, although we
have noted a recommendation in Appendix B in respect of missed member declarations.

Matters in relation
to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
we have not identified any incidences from our audit work.

Written
representations

A letter of representation has been requested from the Council, which is set out at Appendix F.

Confirmation
requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to other Local Authorities, banks and
financial institutions in respect of cash and investment balances and borrowings. This permission was granted and the
requests were sent and positive responses received.

Accounting
practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial
statement disclosures. Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.

Audit evidence
and explanations/
significant
difficulties

All information and explanations requested from management was provided.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

22

Tez abed



2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are requiredto “cbtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of
management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern” (1SA

(UK) 570).

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice - Practice Note 10:
Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial Reporting Council
recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are applied to an entity in a
manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10
provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources
because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply
where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related
to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised approach for the consideration of going
concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

* for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more likely
to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Our consideration of the
Council's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money work, which is covered elsewhere in this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the
continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the
Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing so, we have
considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Council and the environment in which it operates

* the Council's financial reporting framework

* the Council's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern
* management’s going concern assessment.

*+ The challenging financial position in 2024/25, which we know the Council is working to address and whilst this leads to
some concerns over reserves we note the Council is hoping to obtain Exceptional Financial Support and provision of
services would continue.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

23

2se abed



2. Financial Statements:

other responsibilities under the Code

Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial
statements (including the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

No significant inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect.

Matters on which
we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:

« if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE
guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit,

» if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.

* where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported a
significant weaknesses.

We have nothing to report on the first matter based on the Annual Governance Statement and we currently have
not exercised any of our statutory powers or duties. We have not yet exercised any of our additional statutory
powers or duties and are considering the Council’s responses to the financial pressures currently being faced. We
will continue to monitor progress in this area and our statutory responsibilities.

Our Interim Auditor’s Annual Report is presented alongside this report and identifies significant weaknesses in
respect of the Council’s arrangements, see pages 26 and 27 for more detail.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

24

cge abed



2. Financial Statements:
other responsibilities under the Code

Issue Commentary

Specified procedures for ~ We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack
Whole of Government under WGA group audit instructions.

Accounts We have completed our work on the Whole of Government Accounts and intend to submit our assurance statement to NAO following the Audit

& Governance Board on 20 November 2024..

Certification of the We intend to delay the certification of the closure of the 2023/24 audit of Halton Borough Council in the audit report due to National Audit
closure of the audit Office’s request not to certify any audits until they are ready to issue their opinion on the WGA.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

25

yez abed



3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)

Approach to Value for Money work for -
2023/24 %

The National Audit Office issued its guidance for auditors

in April 2020. The Code require auditors to consider Improving economy, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance

and effectiveness

whether the body has put in place proper arrangements Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that the

to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use Arrangements for improving the body can continue to deliver body makes appropriate decisions

of resources. way the body delivers its services. services. This includes planning in the right way. This includes

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code requires Uit includgs arrangements for . resourees to enstire c.tdequotfa arrangements for bL.Jdget setting

auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements unfigrsto.ndlng Cf)StS on'd eeliviiing leeEeIT molntoln sustamo‘ble S SIS S .

under the three specified reporting criteria. efficiencies and improving levels of spending over the medium management, and ensuring the
outcomes for service users. term (3-5 years) body makes decisions based on

appropriate information

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body’s arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, which are as follows:

Statutory recommendation
Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act

2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to
secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the
body. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not

made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

26

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

Geg abed



3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions

We have completed our VFM work and our detailed commentary is set out in the separate Interim Auditor’s Annual Report, which is presented alongside this report.

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any significant weakness in the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The

significant weaknesses we identified is/are detailed in the table below, along with the procedures we performed and our conclusions. Our auditor’s report will make reference to these
significant weaknesses in arrangements, as required by the Code.

Auditor
Value for Money Criteria Judgement Outcome

Three significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and two statutory recommendations and one key
recommendation made in relation to short and medium-term financial planning, the Council’s transformation
programme, and the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG]) deficit. We raised a key recommendation on the Council’s
savings and transformation plans in our 2022/23 report, issued in March 2024 and limited progress has been made to
address the weaknesses identified.

Financial sustainability

Two significant weaknesses in arrangements have been identified in relation to risk management and business
continuity and disaster recovery. The transformation programme governance and budget setting weaknesses
identified in the financial sustainability section also have governance implications.

Governance

We also raise five improvement recommendations. These relate to internal audit, whistleblowing, scrutiny, Audit and
Governance Board and declarations of interest.

Two significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and two key recommendations raised in relation to
performance management and children's services.

Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

We also raise one improvement recommendation relating to contract management.

G | No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

27

9gg abed



L. Other statutory powers and duties

We set out below details of other matters

which we, as auditors, are required by the Issue

Commentary

Act and the Code to communicate to those

charged with governance. Statutory

recommendations

We have issued two statutory recommendations in respect of the Council’s financial sustainability.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

28

/€2 abed



5. Independence considerations

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and
independence of the firm or covered persons (including its partners, senior managers, managers).
In this context, we disclose the following to you:

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm,
and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary
guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix E.

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well
as the results of internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Grant Thornton International Transparency report 2023.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

29

gge abed


https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf

5. Independence and ethics

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter

Conclusion

Relationships with Grant Thornton

We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Council that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our integrity, independence and objectivity

Relationships and Investments held by individuals

We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the
Council or investments in the Council held by individuals

Employment of Grant Thornton staff

We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions
in respect of employment, by the Council as a director or in a senior management role covering
financial, accounting or control related areas.

Business relationships

We have not identified any business relationships between Grant Thornton and the Council

Contingent fees in relation to non-audit services

No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided

Gifts and hospitality

We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Council’s board, senior
management or staff.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and consider that an objective

reasonable and informed third party would take the same view.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

6¢¢ obed



5. Independence considerations

Audit and non-audit services

The table below sets out the total fees for non-audit services charged from the beginning of the financial year to the date of signing the financial statements, as well as the threats to our
independence and the safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

The below non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors.

* None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

* For the purposes of our audit, we have made enquiries of Grant Thornton teams within the Grant Thornton International Limited network member firms providing services to Halton Borough
Council. The table summarises all non-audit services which were identified. We have adequate safeguards in place to mitigate the perceived self-interest threat from these fees.

Service Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards

Certification of 26,780 Self-interest, Self The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this work is £26,780 in

Housing Benefits review and comparison to the total fee for the audit of £324,902, and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee

grant - Audit management and there is no contingent element to it. For the self-review threat safeguards include the fact that we do not prepare any of the work reviewed U

related 23/24 fee and any changes would be agreed with the local authority prior to submission, and we would have no subsequent involvement in any decisions Q
made about changes once our report has been issued. In respect of the management threat the scope of our work does not include making L(%
decisions on behalf of management or recommending or suggesting a particular course of action for management to follow. We believe these
factors all mitigate the perceived threats to an acceptable level. l};

o

Certification of 12,500 Self-interest, Self The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this work is £12,500 in

Teachers Pension review and comparison to the total fee for the audit of £324,902, and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee

Return - Audit management and there is no contingent element to it. For the self-review threat safeguards include the fact that we do not prepare any of the work reviewed

related 23/24 fee and any changes would be agreed with the local authority prior to submission, and we would have no subsequent involvement in any decisions
made about changes once our report has been issued. In respect of the management threat the scope of our work does not include making
decisions on behalf of management or recommending or suggesting a particular course of action for management to follow. We believe these
factors all mitigate the perceived threats to an acceptable level.

CFO Insights - 15,000 Self-interest The level of this non-recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this work is £15,000 in

requested in 24/25
financial year -
Other service

comparison to the total fee for the audit of £324,902, and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee
and there is no contingent element to it.

31

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report



5. Independence considerations

(continued)

Service

Fees £

Threats identified

Safeguards

Certification of
Housing Benefits
grant - Audit

related 22/23 fee*

Certification of
Teachers Pension
Return - Audit

related 22/23 fee*

*Reflected in 22/23

Financial
Statements

26,000

10.000

Self-interest, Self
review and
management

Self-interest, Self
review and
management

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this work is £26,000 in
comparison to the total fee for the audit of £324,902, and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee
and there is no contingent element to it. For the self-review threat safeguards include the fact that we do not prepare any of the work reviewed
and any changes would be agreed with the local authority prior to submission, and we would have no subsequent involvement in any decisions
made about changes once our report has been issued. In respect of the management threat the scope of our work does not include making
decisions on behalf of management or recommending or suggesting a particular course of action for management to follow. We believe these
factors all mitigate the perceived threats to an acceptable level.

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this work is £10,000 in
comparison to the total fee for the audit of £324,902, and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed feed
and there is no contingent element to it. For the self-review threat safeguards include the fact that we do not prepare any of the work reviewed

and any changes would be agreed with the local authority prior to submission, and we would have no subsequent involvement in any decisions "¢
made about changes once our report has been issued. In respect of the management threat the scope of our work does not include making
decisions on behalf of management or recommending or suggesting a particular course of action for management to follow. We believe these
factors all mitigate the perceived threats to an acceptable level.

|74

32

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report



Appendices

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Audit Adjustments

Fees and non-audit services

mnom o 0O W P

Management Letter of Representation

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

33

2 abed



A.Communication of audit matters to those

charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit
Plan

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged
with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing
and expected general content of communications including
significant risks

Confirmation of independence and objectivity

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence. Relationships and other matters which
might be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work
performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with
fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to
independence

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written
representations that have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required
to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other
matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have
been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with
the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals
charged with governance, we are also required to distribute our findings to those
members of senior management with significant operational and strategic
responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration and onward
distribution of our report to all those charged with governance.

34

cig abed



B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified 6 recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with
management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2024/25 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies
that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing

standards.
Assessment  Issue and risk Recommendations
Medium Our work on cash noted that bank reconciliations are not always carried We recommend that reconciliations are performed fully at period-ends and that the
out at the month-end date and also that some school bank accounts were amounts which should no longer be in schools cash are transferred to the appropriate
still included within cash when they shouldn’t have been. The amounts place in the Council’s accounts.
concern'ed are below our triviality Ievgl SO o a'djustment has been note.c% in Management response
Appendix D. We also noted the same issue as in 2022/23 where reconciling
items were posted to debtors automatically rather than considered as A change in staffing resulted in slippage to monthly reconciliations. Training now provided
reconciling items as part of the cash balance. The amounts are below trivial. and reconciliations will be undertaken monthly. Amounts incorrectly held as schools cash
will be correctly transferred.
Medium From our work and discussions with management we understand that there We recommend that management introduce a formal impairment process on at least an
is no internal formal impairment process performed. Whilst we understand annual basis.
that the valuer will review impairment as F.>ort of the!r review, management Management response
need to demonstrate how they have considered their own estate for ) ) ) ) . ) ) ) .
potential impairment via the estates team and how issues have been Discussions will take plc:c.e with Council’s valuers and impairment process will be built into
discussed with the valuer such as plans to stop using certain assets, annual closedown checklist.
condition surveys etc.
Medium Our work on REFCUS (Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under We recommend that the Council review any expenditure it is classifiying as REFCUS as part
Statute) identified several items that should not have been classified as of its annual closedown to ensure it meets the definition and is therefore accounted for
REFCUS and this led to the misstatement included in Appendix D. correctly
Management response
Agreed, action to be built into annual closedown checklist.
Controls

® High - Significant effect on financial statements
@ Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

35

vz abed



B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

(continued)

Assessment  Issue and risk Recommendations

Low We noted during our audit testing that some members had not disclosed all We recommend that all declarations are completed fully by both officers and members.

their interests on their declarations. Management response
The Council recognises the importance of having an up to date declaration of interests and
will take steps to ensure its arrangements are robust.

Low Our testing identified an item which had been disposed of but was still held We recommend that at year-end disposals are reviewed to ensure that they are no longer
on the asset register. We note however it had no carrying value as it was on the asset register.
fully depreciated. Management response

Action to be built into annual closedown checklist.

Low We noted that there is no formal review or authorisation process for Management should consider putting in place a preventative control in addition to the
journals. The mitigating control is that each cost centre is monitored by the existing detective control so that journals are authorised prior to them being posted.
relevant budget hok?ler. The budget holder rewews.tronsootlons ggomst cost Management response
centre codes periodically to ensure no unusual or incorrect postings have
been made. Management consider that this is not required as controls are in place through review of

expenditure by Finance Officers and Budget Holder to ensure all transactions are correctly
coded.
Controls

® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

36

Gi¢ abed



C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

We identified the
following issues in the
audit of Halton Council's
2022/23 financial
statements, which
resulted in 6
recommendations being
reported in our 2022/23
Audit Findings report. We
are pleased to report that
management have
implemented most of our
recommendations or have
provided details of
appropriate mitigating
controls

Assessment
v" Action completed
X Not yet addressed

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

In Part R1. Land and buildings assets not revalued Sandersons Weatherall have been asked to review all class
Management had not carried out a review of assets not of assets, not revalued in 2023/24 which have not changed
revalued as part of the triennial cycle as at 31 March significantly. Desktop valuation on all assets with a value
2023 to ensure there was no material change in value. At over £3m, and a third of assets valued over £1m.
our request, management carried out a review which Update from audit - This review was not received until mid-
involved liaison with the external valuer. September and indicated a material difference which
Management should conduct an exercise to assess the requires adjusting therefore we would recommend
valuation change in assets not revalued annually unless ~ management consider requesting the desktop review is
a full valuation takes place. performed before the accounts are published.

v R2. Pension actuarial valuation Actuary has been asked to provide a report to calculate
From discussions with the actuarial firms, we potential asset ceiling under IFRIC14.
understand that the application of IFRIC 14 is not within NG issues noted during the 2023-2% audit.
their normal scope. As such, unless they are instructed
otherwise by the employer, they will produce I1AS 19
disclosures assuming there are no IFRIC 14 adjustments
to any surplus or deficit. This means there is a risk that
material adjustments are not factored into the IAS19
disclosures.
Management should instruct their actuary to calculate
any potential asset ceiling under IFRICI4 when the
pension scheme is in surplus to ensure this is reflected
in their IAS19 calculations.
v R3. Property assets no longer owned by the council This review has been carried out.

A review of fully depreciated vehicles, plant and
equipment assets revealed that they had been
disposed of by the Council.

Management should put in place arrangements to
ensure that the fixed asset register is updated when
assets are disposed of. A review of the fixed asset
register should be undertaken to ensure no assets
remain which have been disposed of.

No issues noted during the 2023-24 audit.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

37

ot/¢ abed



C. Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

v RY. Minimum Revenue Provision DFT have sent e-mail confirming the £10m can be financed through revenue
Management have not calculated an MRP charge for the £10m from road charges. MRP will be calculated and funded in full for the period
borrowing for the delinking project. At 31 March 2023 the MRP is to 31 March 2024
estimated to be ¢£300k so trivial, but this will increase annually so will
need recognising by the Council.
The Council expenditure on the De-linking project does meet the
criteria for unfinanced capital expenditure which should prudently be
included in the annual MRP charge of the Council. As such, the council
should apply an MRP charge for the de-linking project borrowing in
future years.

Re-raised RS. Journal Authorisation Management consider that this is not required as controls are in place

We noted that there is no formal review or authorisation process for
journals. The mitigating control is that each cost centre is monitored by
the relevant budget holder. The budget holder reviews transactions
against cost centre codes periodically to ensure no unusual or incorrect
postings have been made.

Management should consider putting in place a preventative control in
addition to the existing detective control so that journals are authorised
prior to them being posted.

through review of expenditure by Finance Officers and Budget Holder to
ensure all transactions are correctly coded.

In part - point 1 re-
raised in current

R6. Bank reconciliations

1. An unreconciled difference of £27k was identified on the General

The receipts account is reconciled daily to the bank statement as part of the
Income Manager system. The difference relates to where allocations are

year Receipts bank reconciliation for March 2023, made ih diﬁ.‘erent.ﬁnonciol years, which !s d.iffioult.to analyse retro.spectivelg
due to it being a live system. The Council will continue to try and find a
2. One school bank reconciliation for March 2023 could not be better way of showing the reconciliation without showing an unreconciled
provided by management. Management confirmed that the balance between years.
reconciliation had not been prepared. We requested it to be prepared School bank ts h b tinel d and retained
. o chool bank accounts have been routinely prepared and retained.
and raised a number of unreconciled items.
We recommend that management review and improve the bank
reconciliation process ensuring unreconciled amounts are investigated
and cleared.
Management should ensure that school’s bank accounts are routinely
prepared and retained.
Assessment

v" Action completed

X

Not yet addressed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

38

/¢ abed



D. Audit Adjustments

We are required to
report

all non-trivial
misstatements to those
charged with
governance, whether or
not the accounts have
been adjusted by
management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31

March 2024.
Comprehensive Income Impact on total *Impact on

and Expenditure Balance Sheet net expenditure brought forward Impacton general
Detail Statement £000 £000 £000 reserves as PPA fund £000
Prior Period Adjustment in respect (62,495) 0 0 62,495 0
of Mersey Gateway Creditor*
Adjustment to reflect the desktop (14,062) 14,062 0 0 (14,062)
revaluation of certain assets not
fully revalued in the year.
Three assets held for sale that were 0 5,450 0 0 0
not being actively marketed at 31st
March 2024, so these will be moved [5’4501
to Surplus Assets.
Overall impact £(76,557) £14,062 f£0 £62.495 £(14,062)

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

39

8¢ abed



D. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report Misclassification and disclosure changes

all non-trivial misstatements to
those charged with governance,

statements.
whether or not the accounts
have been adjusted by
management. Disclosure/issue/Omission

Auditor recommendations

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial

Adjusted?

Amendments to Narrative report

Various elements to be reworded to improve clarity

v

Accounting policies

Update critical judgements to be in accordance with IAS1, small amendments to other policies
to improve relevancy.

v

612 abed

Note 42 Unitary charge figure (and corresponding 'other costs') incorrect in draft accounts. Wording to v
be updated in respect of Excess Share Repayment

Various Management agreed to amend for a number of other minor presentational issues and v
disclosure matters to ensure compliance with guidance.

Pensions note Management agreed to amend for a number of other minor presentational issues and v
disclosure matters to ensure compliance with guidance.

Note 27 Updated disclosure in respect of MG repayment provision v

Note 43 New note added in respect of Prior Period Adjustment v

Note 2 Correction between grant income and fees and charges v

Note 7 Correction of Grants included in net cost v

Note 31 Update for disclosure misstatement v

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

40



D. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2023/2% audit which have not been made within the final set of financial
statements. The Audit and Governance Board is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below

0G¢ abed

Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure Reason for
Statement Balance Sheet Impact on total net Impact on general not
Detail £000 £000 expenditure £000 fund £000 adjusting
A downwards revaluation to 553 0 0 0  Materiality
the Municipal Building that
was entered in error - only (653)
CIES side entered incorrectly
as the IGE report was ran
"before the final adjustments
were made
Incorrect downwards (670) 670 (670) 0 Materiality
revaluation of whole asset
when only part was revalued
ltems incorrectly classified 1,317 0 0 0 Materiality
Error in floorplan 930 (930) 930 0 Materiality
calculation
Overall impact £260 £(260) £260 £0

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

We have reviewed the & prior year unadjusted misstatements identified during our 2022/23 audit. The only one which potentially could have an
ongoing impact into the 2023/2Y4 position is detailed below.

Comprehensive Reason for
i Income and Expenditure Balance Sheet Impact on total net Impact on general not
Detail Statement £000 £000 expenditure £000 fund £000 adjusting
Understated REFCUS creditor 931 (931) 0 0 Materiality

Overall impact £931 £(931) £0 £0

H

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report



E. Fees and non-audit services

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee
Halton Council Audit £307,3b2 £307,352
ISA 315 £12,650 £12,550
Cost for External Valuation expert (may vary depending on work required) £0 £5,000
Additional work required to support the Value for Money conclusion £0 £4,500
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £319,902 £329,402

All variations to the scale fee will need to be approved by PSAA

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

42

TGZ abed



E. Fees and non-audit services

Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee
Audit Related Services — Housing Benefit Certification 2023/24 26,780 26,780
Audit Related Services — Teachers Pension Return Certification 2023/24 12,500 12,500
Other Services - CFO Insight - commissioned in 2024/25 financial years 15,000 15,000
Audit Related Services - Housing Benefit Certification 2022/23 26,000 26,000
Audit Related Services — Teachers Pension Return Certification 2022/23 10,000 10,000
Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT] £90,280 £90,280

Total audit and non-audit fee
(Audit Fee) £ 329,402 (Non Audit Fee) £90,280

None of the above services were provided on a contingent fee basis.

The audit fees reconcile to the financial statements as follows:
Audit fees per financial statements: £324k
Additional work required during the audit (not accrued for) £5k
Audit fees as per above £329k

The non-audit fees for 2023/24 differ slightly as the accounts show £30k which reflects an adjustment to the amount recorded in the 2022/23 Financial Statements (£38k in the accounts
versus £36k charged] and because the 2023/24 fees of £39% were confirmed after production of the financial statements. The 2022/23 services were recorded in the previous financial
statements and the 2024/25 service will be recorded in the following set of financial statement for 2024/25.

This covers all services provided by us and our network to the Council, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected parties
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our integrity, objectivity or independence.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

2Ge abed



F. Management Letter of Representation

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Landmark

St Peter's Square

1 Oxford Street

Manchester

M14PB

[Date] - {TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION]
Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

Halton Borough Council

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Halton Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2024 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the Council financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2023/24 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
Financial Statements

i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no
non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

V. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include valuation of land and buildings and the net defined pension liability. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the

preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and
considering alternative, methods, assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used.

Vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent
with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and
properly accounted for.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

ul

£Ge abed



F. Management Letter of Representation

vil. Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

& there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure.

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code.

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been

adjusted or disclosed.

% We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council’s financial statements
have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Xi. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings Report. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements brought to
our attention as they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial position at the year-end. The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Xil. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

xiil. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

Xiv. The prior period adjustments disclosed in Note 43 to the financial statements are accurate and complete. There are no other prior period errors to bring to your attention.

XV. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified

any material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that :

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis will still
provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and
& the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements

xvi.  The Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a material effect on the Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.
Information Provided

xvii. ~We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the Council’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;
b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and
& access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

45

Gz abed



F. Management Letter of Representation

xviii. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

Xix. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

XX. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

XXi. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Council and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

ch others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

XXil. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,

analysts, regulators or others.

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

XXiV. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

XXV. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

XXV, We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any
significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

XXVii. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Council’s financial
statements.

Approval
The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and Governance Board at its meeting on 25 September 2024.

Date. i

Signed on behalf of the Council

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

46

GGe abed



G. Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor's report to the members of Halton Borough Council
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Halton Borough Council (the “Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance
Sheet, the Movement in Reserves Statement the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2024 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended;
. have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24; and
. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2024) (“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved
by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Director of Financial Services’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Director of Financial Services’ conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2023/2%4 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority.
In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK)
570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Financial Services’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Director of Financial Services with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Governance Statement and the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Director of Financial Services is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

47

9Gg abed



G. Auditor’s Report

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in November 2024 on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to
consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24,
or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and
controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of
Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

. we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
. we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
. we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course

of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or;
. we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
. we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters except on 6 November 2024 we issued the following two written recommendations under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
These were in relation to:

. the Authority’s short and medium-term financial planning. We have not seen any evidence of progress to date or clear plans to progress our 2022-23 key recommendation to implement
a more robust budget setting approach. We recommended that the Authority improve its short term and medium-term planning.

. the Authority’s transformation programme. We are concerned about the lack of pace in the programme so far and the lack of focus on delivering budgeted savings as this was agreed
as the driver for the programme’s introduction and is crucial for the Authority given its current financial context. We recommended that the Authority should develop and implement the transformation
programme at scale and pace to address the significant structural budget deficit.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Director of Financial Services

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director of Financial Services. The Director of Financial Services is responsible for the
preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023/24, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Director of Financial Services determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Financial Services is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority without the transfer of its services to another
public sector entity.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

48

/. Gz abed



G. Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud, is detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the
financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003, the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance Act
1992 and the Local Government Finance Act 2012)).

We enquired of management and the Audit and Governance Board, concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

. the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;
. the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and
. the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit and Governance Board, whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge
of actual, suspected or alleged fraud. We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives
and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls and any other fraud risks identified for the audit. We determined that
the principal risks were in relation to management override of controls through inappropriate journal entries:

. evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and detect management override of controls,

. journal entry testing, with a focus on large and unusual items and those falling within identified risk criteria including; journals posted by senior management, period-end journals,
journals posted after 31 March 2024, off ledger adjustments and period-end accruals and accrued income.

o challenging assumptions and judgements made by managementin its significant accounting estimates in respect of the pensions valuation and land and building valuation.
. assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than
the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the
less likely we would become aware of it.

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, including the potential for fraud in expenditure recognition. We remained alert to any indications
of non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's.

. understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation
. knowledge of the local government sector

. understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation

o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

o the applicable statutory provisions.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

49

8Gz abed



G. Auditor’s Report

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

. the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, account
balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.

. the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting framework.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
Matter on which we are required to report by exception - the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2024.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter, except:

On 6 November 2024 we identified two significant weaknesses in the Authority’s arrangements for financial sustainability. We made two written recommendations to the Authority under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014. These recommendations are included under Matters on which we are required to report by exception of this report.

In addition, we have identified the following further significant weakness in the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources:

. On 20 March 2024 we identified a significant weakness for the year ended 31 March 2023 in the Authority’s for governance arrangements. This was in relation to the Authority’s risk
management arrangements needing significant improvements. We recommended that the Authority improves its risk management arrangements. We have identified no improvement in risk managementin
our work for the year ended 31 March 2024. Therefore, the significant weakness remains in place and retained a recommendation that the Authority needs to significantly improve its risk strategy, improve the
Corporate Risk Register and ensure officers and members are reviewing strategic and directorate risks at least quarterly and ensuring risk is adequately considered in financial reporting.

. On 6 November 2024 we identified a further significant weakness in the Authority’s arrangements for governance. This was in relation weaknesses in the Authority’s arrangements for
business continuity and disaster recovery. We recommended that the Authority urgently updates its arrangements in these areas.

. On 20 March 2024 we also identified a significant weakness in the Authority’s arrangements for improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness for the year ended 31 March 2023. This
was in relation to the Authority’s performance management arrangements as the Authority did not have a corporate plan in place for 2022-23 or 2023-24. We recommended that the Authority improvements
its performance management arrangements. We have identified no improvement in performance management in our work for the year ended 31 March 2024. Therefore, the significant weakness remains in
place and the key recommendation is retained.

. On 6 November 2024 we identified a further significant weakness in the Authority’s arrangements for improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. This was in relation significant
weaknesses in arrangements for children’s services. We recommended that the Authority needs to significantly improve its services for children and young people by putting in place arrangements to improve
its SEND services working with health partners and by putting in place, and delivering, an improvement plan to address the wider children's services inspection findings.

. On 6 November 2024 we identified a significant weakness in the Authority’s financial sustainability arrangements. The Authority’s forecast shows its Dedicated School Grant (DSG)
deficit is projected to rise significantly over the medium-term. We recommended that the Authority should put sufficient plans in place to address its escalating forecast DSG deficit, while delivering the
necessary improvements to its special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND) services. The Authority's plans should ensure it has appropriate contingency in place if the Government's statutory override
is not extended in March 2026.

Responsibilities of the Authority
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively. 50

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

6G¢ abed



G. Auditor’s Report

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in January 2023. This guidance sets out the
arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

. Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

. Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its
services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment
and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Halton Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component Assurance statement for the
Authority for the year ended 31 March 2024. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Michael Green, Key Audit Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor
Manchester

Date:

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP - Halton Council 2023/24 External Audit Findings Report

51

09¢ abed



GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

"Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

T9z abed



Page 262 Agenda Item 6

REPORT TO: Audit & Governance Board
DATE: 20 November 2024

REPORTING OFFICER: Director of Finance

PORTFOLIO: Corporate Services
SUBJECT: External Auditor’'s Annual Report 2023/24
WARD(S): Borough-wide

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1  To consider the 2023/24 Auditor's Annual Report shown in the Appendix, which
will be presented to the Board by the Council’'s External Auditor, Grant Thornton
UK LLP.

2.0 RECOMMENDED: That

(i) the contents of the 2023/24 External Auditor’s Annual Report shown
in the Appendix be noted, including the recommendations presented
within the report; and

(i) Council be asked to consider the two statutory recommendations
contained within the report, at its meeting on 4" December 2024.

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

3.1 The External Auditor is required to consider whether the Council has put in
place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources. The Auditor's Annual Report details the Council’s overall
arrangements, as well as providing recommendations regarding any significant
weaknesses identified during the review. In addition, improvement
recommendations are made which the Council may also decide to implement.

3.2  The External Auditor is required to report under three specific criteria, being:

e Financial Sustainability
e Governance
e Improving Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness

3.3  The report provides details of the findings of the External Auditor’s review,
which will be presented at the Board by Grant Thornton UK LLP.



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0
6.1

6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6

7.0
7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 263

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The report provides an external viewpoint on the financial sustainability of the
Council. As is now the case for many local authorities, there are significant
financial challenges for the Council in balancing future year budgets and
managing spending within budgets.

The report identifies a number of significant weaknesses regarding the
arrangements the Council has in place to secure financial sustainability,
governance, and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. Two
statutory recommendations have been made, which require consideration by
Council within one month. Key recommendations have also been made and
management’s responses to those recommendations are included within the
report.

In addition, a number of improvement recommendations are identified within
the report, along with management’s responses.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting Greater
Independence

Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy

Supporting Children, Young People and Families

Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need

Working Towards a Greener Future

Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community

There are no implications for any of the Council’s priorities listed above.
RISK ANALYSIS

The risks that have been considered as part of the Council having in place
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness, are detailed in
the attached report.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

None.



Page 264

9.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS

9.1 None.

10.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

10.1 None under the meaning of the Act.



° Grant Thornton

Halton Borough
Council g

Auditor’s Annual Report for the
year ended 31 March 2024

G9g abed

6 November 2024



Public

Contents

I Section Page
@ Introduction 03
Executive summary O4
Statutory recommendations 13
We are requwed’under Section 20[1][(3) Opinion on the financial statements and use of auditor’s powers 16
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Value for Money commentary on arrangements 19
Council has made proper arrangements The current local government landscape 20
for securing economy, efficiency and Financial sustainability 21 o
effectiveness in its use of resources. Q
Governance 26 o
The.Code of .AUdit .Prctctice issueq by the Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 33 D
W Groisl fulit e (O] reguilies v Key and Improvement recommendations raised in 2023/24 38 N
to report to you our commentary o))
relating to proper arrangements. (@)}
We report if significant matters have / -~ y : Appendices
come to our attention. We are not = o ' g | Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Audited Body 46
required to consider, nor have we Appendix B - Value for Money Auditor responsibilities 47
considered, whether all aspects of the A dix C - Foll ¢ . dati 48
Council’s arrangements for securing ppendix C - Follow-up of previous recommendations

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources are operating
effectively.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our work under the NAO
Code and related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for money. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify significant weaknesses, we will report these to you.
In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in arrangements that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept
any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting, on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered
office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are
not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 2



Public

Introduction

Purpose of the Auditor’s Annual Report

This report brings together a summary of all the work we have undertaken for Halton Borough Council (the Council) during 2023/24 as the
appointed external auditor. The core element of the report is the commentary on the value for money (VfM) arrangements.

All councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of their resources.
This includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives and
safeguard public money. The Council’s responsibilities are set out in Appendix A.

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual governance statement.

o
Responsibilities of the appointed auditor o))
@
Opinion on the financial statements Value for money Auditor powers N
Auditors provide an opinion on the financial statements We report our judgements on whether Auditors of a local authority 91
which confirms whether they: the Council has proper arrangements in have a duty to consider
. . ) . . place regarding arrangements under whether there are any issues )
* give a true and fair view of the financial position of o o o oo . . L J
i | the three specified criteria: arising during their work that
the Council as at 31 March 2024 and of its require the use of G range of
expenditure and income for the year then ended, and * financial sustainability Qe J
auditor’s powers.
* have been properly prepared in accordance with the * governance Th
tout
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of practice on local authority . . e8¢ pows—:‘rs dare setouton
. . - * Improving economy, efficiency and page 18 with a commentary
accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 )
effectiveness on whether any of these
* have been prepared in accordance with the The Value for M dit powers have been used
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act SIS kel rliafelni=t] (e ielLelr . during this audit period.
2014 responsibilities are set out in Appendix B.

We also consider the Annual Governance Statement and
undertake work relating to the Whole of Government
Accounts consolidation exercise.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 3



Executive summary



Executive summary

Under the National Audit Office (NAO] Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAQ, in its consultation of February 2024, has indicated that it will in future require auditors
to share a draft Auditors Annual Report (“the Report”) with those charged with governance by a nationally set deadline each year and for the audited body to publish
the Report thereafter. The outcome of the NAO's consultation on the Code is dependent upon the decisions made by the new government elected on 4 July 2024.
These decisions are awaited at the time of drafting this report. As a firm, we are committed to reporting the results of our local audit work on as timely a basis as
possible. We are therefore sharing this report with you in advance of the NAO’s new Code being introduced. In the event that any new audit requirements are
introduced when the Code is published, we will revisit these before finalising this report. Our summary findings are set out on pages 6-12. Our statutory
recommendations and management responses are on pages 14-15 with the key and improvement recommendations and responses summarised in the section starting
on page 38. We recognise that management has had a relatively limited time to implement our 2022/23 recommendations which were reported to Council in March
2024.

We identify seven significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements for Value for Money (VfM) resulting in two statutory and five key
recommendations.

The two statutory recommendations relate to financial sustainability and the Council’s need to improve its short and medium-term financial planning and the need to
develop and implement the transformation programme at scale and pace to address the significant structural deficit.

The five key recommendations relate to the requirement for the Council to put sufficient plans in place to address its escalating forecast Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) deficit, while delivering the necessary improvements to its SEND services; needing to significantly improve its risk strategy, improve the Corporate Risk Register
and ensure officers and members are reviewing strategic and directorate risks at least quarterly and ensuring risk is adequately considered in financial reporting;
needing to urgently update its arrangements for business continuity and disaster recovery planning; improving its performance management arrangements; and
significantly improving its services for children and young people by putting in place arrangements to improve its SEND services working with health partners and by
putting in place, and delivering, an improvement plan to address the wider children's services inspection findings.

Our conclusions are summarised on the pages 6 and 7 and set out in detail on pages 19 to 37.
Recommendations made under section 24 schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

Our Responsibilities

As well as our responsibilities to give an opinion on the financial statements and assess the arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
Council's use of resources, we have additional powers and duties under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. These include powers to issue a public interest
report, make written recommendations, apply to the Court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give electors the opportunity to raise
questions about the Council's accounts and to raise objections received in relation to the accounts. We have concluded that it is appropriate for us to use our powers
to make written recommendations under section 24 of the Act, due to inadequate arrangements relating to issues with financial planning and developing a robust
transformation plan to support delivery of substantial savings and efficiencies. Further details are set out in the attached report.

What does the Council need to do next?

Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires the following actions:

The Council must consider the recommendation at a meeting held before the end of the period of one month beginning with the day on which it was sent to the
Council.

At that public meeting the Council must decide

* whether the recommendations are to be accepted; and

* what, if any, action to take in response to these recommendations.

Schedule 7 specifies the meeting publication requirements that the Council must comply with.

Public

=

We have substantively
completed our audit of
your financial statements
and intend to issue an
unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit and U
Governance Board

meeting on 20 NovembetQ
2024. Our findings are (D
set out in further detail N

on pages 16 to 14 o
O

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 5



Executive summary

Financial sustainability

The Council is in a very difficult financial position and is in discussions with MHCLG about Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) which the S151 Officer hopes will avoid the need to issue
a STk notice in 2024/25. The Council's 2023/24 revenue budget outturn was an overspend of £6.6m (4% of net revenue expenditure). The Council set a balanced budget for 2024/25
but reported a £3.4m overspend to 31 May 2024 and a projected £20.4m full year overspend. Available reserves stand at £11.5m, which is well below that required to help provide a
balanced budget position for 2024/25 based on the current forecasts. The Council has a Transformation Programme which was intended to deliver £20m of savings by 2026/27. The
Programme failed to deliver any of the original budgeted savings planned for 2023/24 and in August 2024, the programme was only forecast to deliver £0.07m of its planned £4m
savings for 2024/25. The Programme is currently being rescoped in recognition that the original £20m target will not be sufficient to address the Council’s forecast budget gaps.
Additionally, the Council has an escalating forecast Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit which its current plans are not sufficient to address. Three significant weaknesses in
arrangements have been identified and two statutory and one key recommendations made on pages 23-25.

Governance

In our 2022/23 Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR), we identified a significant weakness relating to risk management and made a key recommendation for the Council to improve its
arrangements. We have identified no improvement in risk management in our work for 2023/2l and retain our key recommendation. We also reported in our 2022/23 AAR the need for a
more robust budget setting approach and the need for public budget engagement and included this in our key recommendation on financial sustainability. We have not seen any
evidence of progress to date or clear plans to progress this recommendation and have included it again in our now statutory recommendation on short and medium-term financial
planning in the financial sustainability section of this report. In our AAR for 2022/23 we also made a key recommendation relating to the Council’s savings and transformation
programme. We identified this programme as a risk of significant weakness for 2023/24 and undertook additional testing. We conclude that effective programme governance was not
in place for the Council's three-year £20m transformation programme in 2023/24 and this has continued into 2024/25. We have included this in our statutory recommendation on the
programme in the financial sustainability section. Additionally, we identified that the Council’s business continuity and disaster recovery plans are out-of-date and have raised a key
recommendation. Four significant weaknesses in arrangements have been identified and two key recommendations made on pages 29-30.

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

% /In our 2022/23 AAR, we raised a key recommendation on performance management. In 2023/24 the Council had no corporate plan and was not reporting performance to the Executive
for each of its directorates or in a consistent manner. The Council engaged residents on its priorities in 2023/24 and launched its new Corporate Plan in April 2024. In November 2023,
Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission delivered an area SEND inspection of Halton Local Area Partnership which identified widespread and/or systemic failings leading to
significant concerns about the experiences and outcomes of children and young people with special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND), which the local area partnership
must address urgently. They will undertake a monitoring inspection in 18 months. In May 2024, the Council also received an inadequate Ofsted report on its children's services. We
repeat our key recommendation on performance management and make an additional key recommendation on children's services. The Council has good arrangements in place for
procurement evidenced by its social value work, and its preparation for the implementation of the Procurement Act. It has a robust process in place to agree waivers involving finance
and other corporate services. However, it needs to improve contract management. Two significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and two key recommendations made on
pages 35-37.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

Public

0.2 abed



Public

Executive summary (continued)

Overall summary of our Value for Money assessment of the Council’s arrangements

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our
work under the NAO Code and related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for money. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify significant
weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in arrangements that a more
extensive special examination might identify. A summary of our judgements are set out in the table below.

N 2022/23 Auditor judgement on . N Direction
Criteria / jucg 2023/24 Risk assessment 2023/24 Auditor judgement on arrangements
arrangements of travel
S . Three significant weaknesses in arrangements identified resulting in two statutory
One significant weakness in . I . . . .
. PR Two risks of significant weakness recommendations and one key recommendation made in relation to short and
arrangements identified in . e . . . . . . s .
. . . .15 identified in relation to savings medium-term financial planning, the Council’s transformation programme, and the

Financial relation to the Council’s

sustainability

savings and transformation
plans and four improvement
recommendations made.

and transformation plans and
the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG]) deficit.

=)

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit. We raised a key recommendation on the
Council’s savings and transformation plans in our 2022/23 report, issued in March
2024 and limited progress has been made to address the weaknesses identified and
this has now been issued as a statutory recommendation.

One significant weakness in
arrangements identified in

Three risks of significant
weakness identified in relation to
risk management,

Two significant weaknesses in arrangements have been identified in relation to risk
management and business continuity and disaster recovery. The transformation
programme governance and budget setting weaknesses identified in the financial

T/, abed

=)

Governance relation to risk management transformation programme sustainability section also have governance implications.

and three improvement d ioint

recommendations made. governance and join We also raise five improvement recommendations. These relate to internal audit,

commercial venture governance. whistleblowing, scrutiny, Audit and Governance Board and declarations of interest.

One significant weaknessesin  Three risks of significant o . ) n
Improving arrangements identified in weakness identified in relation to Two significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and two key ) .
economy relation to performance children’s services, provision for recommendations raised in relation to performance management and children's “
efficiency and management but no children with special services.
effectiveness improvement recommendations educational needs or disabilities

made.

(SEND), and capacity.

We also raise one improvement recommendation relating to contract management.

G | No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.

A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key and/or statutory recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 7



Executive summary (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified in arrangements for delivering financial sustainability

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. We reviewed the Council’s arrangements to deliver financial sustainability and have concluded that there were three significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Short and medium-term financial planning

In our 2022/23 AAR, we identified a significant weakness in arrangements to secure financial sustainability and raised a key recommendation.
The Council set a balanced budget for 2024/25 but reported a £3.4m overspend to date as at 31 May 2024 and a projected £20.4m overspend forecast for 2024/25.
The use and cost of agency staff across all departments continues to be one of the main contributing factors to the overspend position but was not factored into the 2024/25 budget.

We have not seen any evidence of progress to date or clear plans to progress our 2022/23 recommendation to implement a more robust budget setting approach. Whilst we recognise
that management has had a relatively limited time to implement our 2022/23 recommendations, which were reported to Council in March 2024, we would expect to see clear plans for
improvement in place.

The Council holds £11.6m in usable reserves which means reserves are at risk of being depleted in 2024/25. However, this risk was not highlighted in the $151 Officer’s section 25 report
included in the budget set in February 2024 and it is not clear how the assessment that reserves should provide sufficient resilience to meet the financial consequences of any
unforeseen events was reached.

The Council did not have a corporate plan in place in 2023/24 and so financial plans were not linked to corporate priorities. The Council published its new corporate plan in April 2021

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements in both financial sustainability and governance and raise the following statutory recommendation, which supersedes
our 2022/23 recommendation.

Statutory recommendation 1

The Council should improve its short and medium-term financial planning by:

ensuring that financial plans appropriately account for significant cost pressures, including developing comprehensive plans to address overspending on agency staff
implementing a more robust budget-setting approach, including public budget engagement

ensuring that risks to financial resilience are appropriately highlighted in financial plans, including the section 25 report

ensuring that financial plans are sufficient to bridge all forecast budget gaps and replenish reserves

ensuring that financial plans are linked to the Council's corporate priorities as set out in its new Corporate Plan

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

8

Public

2/ abed



Executive summary (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified in arrangements for delivering financial sustainability (continued)

Transformation Programme

In our 2022/23 AAR, we made a key recommendation relating to the Council’s savings and transformation programme, which we found represented a significant weakness in the
Council’s arrangements to deliver financial sustainability.

The Council’s Transformation Programme was intended to deliver £20m of savings in three years. The Programme is currently being rescoped in recognition that the original
£20m target will not be sufficient to address the Council’s forecast budget gaps.

The Programme failed to deliver any of the original budgeted savings planned for 2023/24 and in August 2024, the programme was only forecast to deliver £0.07m of its planned
£4m savings for 2024/25.

The Programme delivered £0.5m in cost mitigation savings in 2023/24 and expects to deliver a further £0.2m in 2024/25.
Effective programme governance arrangements have only recently begun to be put in place, nearly half-way into year two of the programme.

While we recognise the positive steps taken in recent months, we are concerned about the lack of pace in the programme so far and the lack of focus on delivering budgeted
savings as this was agreed as the driver for the programme’s introduction and is crucial for the Council given its current financial context.

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements in both financial sustainability and governance and raise the following statutory recommendation, which
supersedes our 2022/23 recommendation.

Statutory recommendation 2

The Council should develop and implement the transformation programme at scale and pace to address the significant structural budget deficit. This should include:

ensuring it has effective overview and control of its transformation programme which is sufficiently focused on budget savings.
ensuring there is sufficient capacity and skills in the organisation to effectively deliver the required savings, including change management and PMO.

ensuring the reprioritisation of the programme includes a review of both discretionary spending and the levels at which statutory services are provided and is informed by
appropriate stakeholder consultation

improving programme management to include officer as well as member assurance boards.
developing robust and transparent monitoring arrangements for benefits realisation and tracking savings as a whole programme.

ensuring the programme has a risk and issues log that the PMO updates and uses regularly.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

Public

¢/ abed



Executive summary (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified in arrangements for delivering financial
sustainability (continued)

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit

+ The Council’s forecasts show its Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit is projected to rise
significantly over the medium-term. The Council is part of the Delivering Better Value (DBV)
programme. DBV projections show the Council’s DSG deficit rising from £2.9m in 2023 to £33.9m by
2028 and even with mitigations, the stretch target for this is still £21.0m.

* In 2026 the deficit is forecast at £13.3m - more than the Council is currently holding in usable
reserves.

* The Council is assuming that the Government’s statutory override will remain after March 2026 but
this is not guaranteed.

*  Meanwhile, services for children and young people with special educational needs and / or
disabilities (SEND) are also in significant difficulty and further investment is likely to be required to
address these failing services.

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements and raise the following key
recommendation.

Key recommendation 1

The Council should put sufficient plans in place to address its escalating forecast DSG deficit, while
delivering the necessary improvements to its SEND services. The Council's plans should ensure it has
appropriate contingency in place if the Government's statutory override is not extended in March
2026.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

%a./

3

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

10

Public

/2 abed



Executive summary (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified in governance arrangements

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness
in the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

We reviewed the Council’s governance arrangements and have concluded that there
were four significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Risk management

+ Inour2022/23 AAR, we identified a significant weakness relating to risk management
and made a key recommendation for the Council to improve its arrangements.

*  We have identified no improvement in risk management in our work for 2023/24.

+  The Audit and Governance Board received the last Corporate Risk Register (CRR) on
26 June 2024. The format of the risk register remains the same as that we reported in
our AAR in 2022/23.

*  We note children’s services are not one of the top four risks in the Council despite
the cost pressures facing the service and the need to drive immediate improvement
on its special education needs and disabilities (SEND) service.

*  We note the SEND risk register only has four risks and none of these relate to
reputation, managing DSG cost pressure or statutory service performance which we
would expect to see.

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements and retain our
prior year key recommendation.

Key recommendation 2

The Council needs to significantly improve its risk strategy, improve the CRR and
ensure officers and members are reviewing strategic and directorate risks at least
quarterly and ensuring risk is adequately considered in financial reporting.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Business continuity and disaster recovery

*  Prior to April 2024 the Council had not reviewed business continuity arrangements
since Covid-19 and these did not reflect the new way of working, but ICT did have a
list of critical solutions.

*  In 2023/24 the Council moved to Microsoft 365 which resulted in moving to the
cloud. The Council did not update its arrangements for disaster recovery as part of
this transition and these needed significant change in August 2024. Failure to have
planning in place could impact the whole council if their systems were impacted by
a disaster such as a cyber-attack.

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements and raise the
following key recommendation.

Key recommendation 3

The Council needs to urgently update its arrangements for business continuity and
disaster recovery planning.

Transformation programme governance

We identified a significant weakness in the Council’s governance arrangements over its
transformation programme. We have included our findings and recommendations in
relation to this in our statutory recommendation 2 on the Transformation Programme in
the financial sustainability section of this report.

Budget setting

We identified a significant weakness in the Council’s financial governance
arrangements in relation to budget-setting. We have included this in our statutory
recommendation 1on short and medium-term financial planning in the financial
sustainability section of this report.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 1l

Public

G/ abed



Executive summary (continued)

&%

Significant weaknesses identified in arrangements for improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the
Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We
reviewed the Council’s arrangements and have concluded that there were two significant weaknesses.

Performance management

In our AAR for 2022/23 we raised a key recommendation on performance management and set out
why the Council needed to significantly improve its performance management and ensure it had a
golden thread in place and performance is consistently reported alongside nearest neighbours.

In 2023/24 the Council had no corporate plan and was not reporting performance to the Executive
for each of its directorates or in a consistent manner. We note the Council engaged residents on its
priorities in 2023/24 and launched its new Corporate Plan in April 2024.

The Council needs to report a corporate set of outcomes, SMART measures and KPIs quarterly to
the Executive Board, integrated with risk and finance reporting. We identified gaps in performance
reporting in 2023/24, that continued in 2024/25 and a lack of a consistent approach to
benchmarking and a lack of measurable outcomes.

Combined with no corporate plan in 2023/24 and systematic failings in its SEND service identified
through the OFSED inspection in November 2023/214.

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements and retain our prior year key
recommendation.

Key recommendation 4

The Council needs to improve its performance management arrangements by:

establishing a golden thread for the Council, by improving the performance management
framework at corporate and service levels linking outcomes to expected annual measures to
track success and reporting these to the public.

agreeing performance outcomes, that can be measured, at least annually as part of the new
performance management framework.

improving performance reporting to include benchmarking with ‘nearest neighbours’ data where
possible;

integrating performance, risk and finance reporting to drive improvement and sharing these
reports quarterly with the Executive Board.

ensuring consistency across directorates regarding the reporting of corporate performance data
to enable outcomes to be tracked.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Children’s services

* InNovember 2023, Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission delivered an
area SEND inspection of Halton Local Area Partnership which identified
widespread and/or systemic failings.

* The inspection raised significant concerns about the experiences and
outcomes of children and young people with special educational needs
and/or disabilities (SEND), which the local area partnership must address
urgently. They will undertake a monitoring inspection in 18 months.

*  InJuly 2024, the Council received an inadequate report from Ofsted in
response to its May 2024 inspection. It identified significant deterioration in
the quality of practice for children and young people. A lack of stable and
effective leadership has led to shifting strategic priorities and an absence of
continuous systematic improvement planning. This has been further
compounded by weak governance arrangements, limited performance
information and workforce instability. There has been insufficient pace in
tackling the serious deficits identified at a focused visit in October 2021 for
children in need of help and protection, and many of those weaknesses are
still prevalent. There are serious and widespread weaknesses across the
service.

*  We have identified progress to address these weaknesses in 2024/25 although
impact on outcomes is too early in our reporting.

We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements and raise
the following key recommendation..

Key recommendation 5

The Council needs to significantly improve its services for children and young

people by putting in place arrangements to improve its SEND services working
with health partners and by putting in place, and delivering, an improvement

plan to address the wider children's services inspection findings.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 12

Public

9,2 abed



Statutory recommendations



Public

Statutory recommendation 1

@ Financial sustainability

Statutory The Council should improve its short and medium-term financial planning by:
recommendation 1« ensuring that financial plans appropriately account for significant cost pressures, including developing comprehensive plans to address overspending on agency
staff

* implementing a more robust budget-setting approach, including public engagement with the budget
+ ensuring that risks to financial resilience are appropriately highlighted in financial plans, including the section 25 report

+ ensuring that financial plans are sufficient to bridge all forecast budget gaps and replenish reserves and includes a range of scenarios and sensitivity analysis
« ensuring that financial plans are linked to the Council's corporate priorities as set out in its new Corporate Plan

Management Agreed. The Council will further develop the medium-term financial plan and budget report to highlight risks regarding financial resilience, continue to reflect all

response significant cost pressures, and will ensure a robust budget setting process is in place. Within the budget report we will include narrative regarding how budget setting
is linked to the Council’s corporate priorities.

Responsible Officer: Director of Finance
Executive Lead: Head of Revenues & Financial Management

Deadline: 31st March 2025

8/ ¢ abed

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 it



Public

Statutory recommendation 2

@ Financial sustainability
=

Statutory The Council should develop and implement the transformation programme at scale and pace to address the significant structural budget deficit. This should include:
recommendation 2+ ensuring it has effective overview and control of its transformation programme which is sufficiently focused on budget savings.
+ ensuring there is sufficient capacity and skills in the organisation to effectively deliver the required savings, including change management and PMO.

* ensuring the reprioritisation of the programme includes a review of both discretionary spending and the levels at which statutory services are provided and is
informed by appropriate stakeholder consultation

+ improving programme management to include officer as well as member assurance boards.
+ developing robust and transparent monitoring arrangements for benefits realisation and tracking savings as a whole programme.
* ensuring the programme has a risk and issues log that the PMO updates and uses regularly.

Management Agreed. A reset of the transformation programme is being undertaken which will address the issues raised and will re-prioritise the programme, in order to address the T
response need to identify significant budget savings as a matter of urgency. The new Transformation Board is meeting monthly to drive forward the re-purposed programme Q
and provide the necessary robust monitoring and challenge going forward. Nearest neighbour benchmarking data is being utilised to focus and prioritise the (@)
programme towards those areas where the greatest financial benefit appears likely. Management Team is taking urgent action to adopt robust procedures to reduce (D
spending across all departments as far as possible, to minimise the in-year overspend and protect the Council’s reserves. N
Responsible Officer: Corporate Director, Chief Executives Delivery Unit 3

Executive Lead: Senior Delivery Officer TDU
Deadline: 31st December 2024

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 15



Opinion on the financial
statements and use of
auditor’s powers



Opinion on the financial statements

Audit opinion on the financial statements

We intend to issue an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements
following the Audit and Governance Board on 20 November 2024.

The full opinion will be included in the Council’s Statement of Accounts 2023/24, which
can be obtained from the Council’s website.

Grant Thornton provides an independent opinion on whether the
Councils financial statements:

* give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2024
and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended, and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/214

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

We conducted our audit in accordance with:

* International Standards on Auditing (UK)

*  the Code of Audit Practice (2020) published by the National Audit Office, and
* applicable law

We are independent of the Council in accordance with applicable ethical requirements,
including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Findings from the audit of the financial statements

The Council did not provide draft accounts in line with the national deadline,
however these were published by the end of June 2024 in time for the audit process.

Draft financial statements were of a reasonable standard and supported by detailed
working papers.

* Audit work has not identified any significant issues.

* Review of the accounting for the excess revenue generated from operation of the
Mersey Gateway Bridge and subsequent allocation of surpluses between the
Council and the Department of Transport has resulted in a prior period
adjustment in order to better reflect the agreements in place. This has not
impacted the level of reserves available for use by the Council.

*  We expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the financial statements following
the Audit & Governance board on 20 November 2024, beyond the national
timetable date of 30 September.

Audit Findings Report

We report the detailed findings from our audit in our Audit Findings Report. A version
of our report was presented to the Council’s Audit and Governance Board on 20
November 2024. Requests for this Audit Findings Report should be directed to the
Council.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

Public

T8z abed



Use of auditor's powers

We bring the following matters to your attention:

2023/24

Statutory recommendations We issued two statutory

recommendations.
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written recommendations to the audited body which

need to be considered by the body and responded to publicly.

Public Interest Report We have not issued a public interest

report.
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the power to make a report if they consider a matter is P

sufficiently important to be brought to the attention of the audited body or the public as a matter of urgency, including matters which may
already be known to the public, but where it is in the public interest for the auditor to publish their independent view.

Application to the Court We have not made an application to the

Court.
Under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item of account is contrary to law, they may apply

to the court for a declaration to that effect.

Advisory notice We have not issued any advisory

notices.
Under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an advisory notice if the auditor thinks that the

authority or an officer of the authority:

is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority incurring unlawful expenditure,
.

is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss
or deficiency, or

is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.

Judicial review We have not made an application for

. judicial review.
Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an application for judicial review of a decision of an

authority, or of a failure by an authority to act, which it is reasonable to believe would have an effect on the accounts of that body.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 202+ 18

Public

28z abed



Value for Money
Commentary on arrangements



&

The current local government landscape

National context

Local government in England remains a challenged sector. In recent years, generationally significant levels of inflation put pressure on councils’ General Fund revenue and capital
expenditure. The associated cost of living crisis drove an increase in demand for council services such as social care and homelessness. At the same time, the crisis impacted adversely on
key areas of council income that were needed to service the increase in demand, for example fees and charges and the collection rates for council tax, business rates and rents.

In January 2024, the UK government announced an additional £600m for local government, but the Spring Budget for 2024 brought little in the way of any further support. Rising costs of
delivering services, coupled with workforce shortages in key areas, supply chain fragility, and rising interest rates for servicing debt, brought a level of crisis to the local government sector
perhaps never experienced before. Current warning signs of difficulty include:

* Seven councils issuing eleven section 114 notices between 2019 and 2023, compared with two councils issuing notices between 2001 and 2018, with an increasing number of other
councils publicly warning of a section 114 risk;

+  Twenty councils being with government approval for exceptional financial support during 2024/25, totalling approximately £1.6 billion. Only six of these councils had previously issued
a section 114 notice.; and

*  The Local Government Association warning that councils in England face a funding gap of £4 billion over 2023/24 and 2024/25.

Local government is coming under an increased spotlight in terms of how the sector responds to the financial challenge it faces. Since the start of 2024, the UK government has
emphasised the need for increased productivity rather than increased funding. New plans were announced by the Chancellor in March 2024 for public sector productivity to deliver up to
£1.8 billion worth of benefits by 2029. Councils have subsequently been asked to submit productivity plans, showing how they will improve service performance and reduce wasteful
spend.

The general election that took place on 4 July 2024 led to a change in government, and changes to government policy and legislation relating to the sector are emerging at the time of
producing this report.

Local context

Halton Borough Council (the Council), in North-west England, was created on 1 April 1974 as part of a wider reorganisation of local government in England. Its largest towns are Runcorn
and Widnes. It became a unitary council on 1 April 1998. The Council is also part of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. This is one of the few City Regions to have secured a
Devolution Agreement with the Government, meaning decision-making and resources around key priorities are managed locally.

The Council is a small unitary council, with a population of 128,964. 30% of the population live in areas that are deprived. The Council has the second highest rate of looked after children
in the City Region after Liverpool which contributes to its challenges with children’s social care spending. It is facing a growing demand for children’s social care combined with the
national impact of increasing placement costs and the high level of agency use in both children's services and adult social care.

Council elections are by thirds. This means that a third of the 54 councillors are elected every year over a four-year cycle (with no elections in the fourth year). The 2024 Halton Borough
Council election was held on Thursday 2 May 2024, alongside the other local elections in the United Kingdom held on the same day. Labour retained its longstanding majority on the
Council with 50 of the b4 currently elected councillors being Labour.

It is within this context that we set out our commentary on the Council’s value for money arrangements in 2023/24 and make recommendations where any significant weaknesses or
improvement opportunities in arrangements have been identified.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024+ 20

Public

8¢ abed



Financial sustainability

We considered how the audited
body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

The Council's 2023/24 revenue budget outturn was an overspend of £6.6m against a budget of £141.8m. This was funded from
reserves, with a Department for Transport (DfT) review providing £7.9m from the Mersey Gateway reserve. The Council's
2024/25 budget and MTFS recognise the need to move away from the short-term approach of using reserves to provide a
balanced budget position and avoiding making permanent budget savings. The use and cost of agency staff across all
departments continues to be one of the main contributing factors to the revenue overspend position but this has not been
factored in to the 2024/25 budget and as at May 2024, the Council was already reporting overspends on agency staffing
ensures that it identifies all the significant  Osts- The Council set a balanced budget for 2024/25 but reported a £3.4m overspend to date as at May 2024 and a
financial pressures that are relevant to its projected £20.4tm overspend forecast for the 2024/25 financial year. Available reserves to the Council (General and
short and medium-term plans and builds Earmarked) stand at £11.6m, which is well below that required to help provide a balanced budget position. The Council is in
these into them: discussions with MHCLG about Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) and the S151 Officer hopes that this will avoid the need to
issue a St notice in 2024/25. We have raised a statutory recommendation in relation to short and medium-term financial
planning on page 23.

Additionally, the Council’s forecasts show the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit rising from £2.9m in 2023 to £33.9m by
2028 and even with mitigations, the stretch target for this is still £21.0m. In 2026 this would be £13.3m - more than the Council is
currently holding in usable reserves. This presents a significant risk if the Government’s statutory override is not extended
beyond March 2026. We have raised a key recommendation with regard to this on page 25.

In our AAR for 2022/23 we made a key recommendation relating to the Council’s savings and transformation programme. We
identified this programme as a risk of significant weakness for 2023/24 and undertook additional testing. We conclude that the
Transformation Programme remains a significant weakness in the Council's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources in 2023/24 and have raised a statutory recommendation on page 2.

The failure of the Transformation Programme to deliver planned budgeted savings to date puts significant further strain on the
plans to bridge its funding gaps and Council's finances. The Council did deliver the majority of its planned efficiency savings in 2023/24, achieving £2.5m of its
identifies achievable savings £2.83m target. However, even if efficiency and Transformation Programme savings were being delivered in full, the planned

savings are still not sufficient to bridge the funding gaps identified. The Council's latest medium-term forecast as at 31 May

2024, shows a budget gap of £20.1m over the next three financial years, after proposed savings in 2025/26 of £9.3m and in

2026/27 of £8m are taken into account, which the Council does not have plans to address. As noted above, the Council is now

at risk of depleting its reserves within the 2024/25 financial year and is in discussions with MHCLG about the potential for

Exceptional Financial Support (EFS). The Council does not expect to receive the EFS before the next budget-setting cycle. We

have included this in our statutory recommendation on short and medium-term financial planning on page 23.

G No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.

A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.
© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key and/or statutory recommendations made.

21

Public

Gg8z abed



Financial sustainability (continued)

We considered how the audited
body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

In our 2022/23 AAR, we reported that the Council had no up-to-date corporate plan in 2022/23 or in 2023/24. During 2023/2\4,
the Council began a consultation exercise with key stakeholders to develop a new Corporate Plan by 1 April 2024. The new
plans finances to support the sustainable  Corporate Plan was agreed and adopted at Full Council on 6 March 2024 for launch on 1 April 2024 and is now available on
delivery of services in accordance with the Council's website. As this was not available when setting the 2024/25 budget or MTFS, the Council cannot demonstrate a
strategic and statutory priorities coherent link between assumptions within the corporate objectives and the 2024/25 budget and MTFS. The Council should
ensure that going forward, its financial plans are linked to the Council's corporate priorities as set out in its new Corporate
Plan and we have included this in our statutory recommendation on short and medium-term financial planning on page 23.

We raised a number of improvement recommendations in our 2022/23 AAR around the Council's arrangements to ensure that

its financial plan is consistent with other plans. This included recommendations to produce costings for the Climate Change

Strategy and Action Plan, to produce a costed workforce strategy, and to ensure that elected members are appropriately

trained in treasury management. Management did not accept our recommendation to cost its Climate Change Strategy and

Action Plan. We have not re-raised this improvement recommendation but again note the lack of costings for the plan. G
Management advised us that work is underway as part of the Transformation Programme's 'Employer of Choice' project which

will lead to the development of the Council's workforce strategy. Management also advised that treasury management

training will be provided for all members during Autumn 2024. We have therefore not re-raised our prior year recommendations

but we will follow up in our 2024/25 report to assess progress in these areas. See Appendix C for further details.

ensures its financial plan is consistent
with other plans such as workforce,
capital, investment and other operational
planning which may include working with
other local public bodies as part of a
wider system

In our 2022/23 AAR , we reported that financial risks are not included sufficiently in the budget papers to members and we
included this in our key recommendation on risk management. The Council has not made any progress against this
recommendation and does not have clear plans in place to address it. We have therefore included this again in our key
recommendation on risk management on page 29 in the Governance section of this report. Also see further details at Appendix
identifies and manages risks to financial ¢, Risks to financial resilience have not been sufficiently highlighted in the 2024/25 budget papers, including in the S151
resilience, e.g. unplanned changes in Officer's section 25 report where it is not clear how the assessment that reserves should provide sufficient resilience has been

demand, including challenge of the reached. We have included this in our statutory recommendation on short and medium-term financial planning on page 23.
assumptions underlying its plans
We also raised an improvement recommendation in 2022/23 to introduce scenario planning including best, worst and

expected positions in its MTFS reporting. Management have advised that sensitivity analysis produced from scenario planning
will be included in reporting on the MTFS in November 2024. We have therefore not re-stated this recommendation but note
that this was not in place for 2023/24 and we will follow up again in 2024/25 to assess progress.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

Public

98¢ abed



Financial sustainability (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified
Short and medium-term financial planning

The Council is in a very difficult financial position and is in discussions with MHCLG about
Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) which the S$151 Officer hopes will avoid the need to issue a STit
notice in 2024/25. The Council's 2023/2Y4 revenue budget outturn was an overspend of £5.6m. The
Council set a balanced budget for 2024/25 but reported a £3.4m overspend to date as at 31 May
2024 and a projected £20.4m overspend forecast for 2024/25. The use and cost of agency staff
across all departments continues to be one of the main contributing factors to the revenue
overspend position. Agency costs increased by 9.15% from 2022/23 rising from £13.6m to £14.3m.
The Council's budget assumptions for 2024/25 did not include any allowance for use of agency
staff and set the expectation that agency costs would be covered from existing departmental
budgets. This does not appear to be realistic based on past experience and 2023/24 agency
spending levels and as at 31 May 2024, the Council was already reporting overspends on agency
staffing costs. The Council have set up a joint venture with Commercial Services Group in 2024/25
in an attempt to reduce agency costs, which we will follow up in our 2024/25 report. It is not clear
what the benefits of the joint venture will be at this stage but further plans will need to be developed
to fully address this issue.

We noted in our 2022/23 AAR the need for o more robust budget setting approach and the need for
public budget engagement and included this in our statutory recommendation on financial
sustainability. We have not seen any evidence of progress to date or clear plans to progress this
recommendation

The S161 Officer’s section 25 report in the 2024/25 budget states that reserves should provide
sufficient resilience to meet the financial consequences of any unforeseen events. This does not
appear to be realistic, given the situation the Council finds itself in in 2024/25 where it is at risk of

depleting all its reserves in year and it is not clear from the report how this assessment was reached.

The Council's latest medium-term forecast as at 31 May 2024, shows a budget gap of
£20.1m over the next three financial years, after proposed savings in 2025/26 of
£9.3m and in 2026/27 of £8m are taken into account. This is a £37.4m gap before
taking into account proposed savings, the vast majority of which are planned to come
from budgeted savings from the Council's transformation programme which is yet to
deliver any budgeted savings as at August 2024 (see statutory recommendation 2 on
the Council's transformation programme). However, even if budgeted savings were
delivered in full, the Council still has a £20.1m budget gap over the next three financial
years which it has no plans in place to address.

The Council's 2024/25 budget and MTFS recognise the need to move away from the
short-term approach of using reserves to provide a balanced budget position and
avoiding making permanent budget savings and the MTFS 2024/25 - 2026/27 includes
£2m a year in 2025/26 and 2026/27 which will be provided to replenish reserves.
However, it is not clear how this will be achieved with significant budget gaps
remaining to be closed.

In our 2022/23 AAR, we reported that the Council had no up-to-date corporate plan in
2022/23 or in 2023/24. During 2023/24, the Council began a consultation exercise
with key stakeholders to develop a new Corporate Plan by 1 April 2024. The new
Corporate Plan was agreed and adopted at Full Council on 6 March 2024 for launch
on 1 April 2024 and is now available on the Council's website. As this was not available
when setting the 2024/25 budget or MTFS, the Council cannot demonstrate o
coherent link between assumptions within the corporate objectives and the 2024/25
budget and MTFS. We have raised a statutory recommendation below.

Statutory Recommendation 1 - The Council should improve its short and medium-term financial planning by:
ensuring that financial plans appropriately account for significant cost pressures, including developing comprehensive plans to address overspending on agency staff

implementing a more robust budget-setting approach, including public budget engagement

ensuring that risks to financial resilience are appropriately highlighted in financial plans, including the section 25 report
ensuring that financial plans are sufficient to bridge all forecast budget gaps and replenish reserves
ensuring that financial plans are linked to the Council's corporate priorities as set out in its new Corporate Plan

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 23

Public

/8¢ abed



Public

Financial sustainability (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified (continued)
Transformation programme

The Council has a Transformation Programme in place which was intended to deliver £20m of
savings by 2026/27. The Council originally had a target to deliver £2m savings in 2023/24, £8m in
2024/25 and £10m in 2025/26. However, in November 2023 the Executive Board were advised the
programme was reprofiled to deliver £4m in 2024/25, and £8m in both 2026/26 and 2026/27. As at
September 2024, the Programme is being rescoped in recognition that the original £20m target will
not be sufficient to address the Council’s forecast budget gaps.

The Council spent £2.3m on the Transformation Programme in 2023/24, including £405k of project
management costs and £368k of redundancy costs. The Programme failed to deliver any of the
original budgeted savings planned for 2023/24 and in August 2024, the programme was only
forecast to deliver £0.07m of its planned £4m savings for 2024/25. Management informed us that
further savings are in stream for 2024/25, including an additional £0.6m in Children’s Services and
£0.3m in supported living but these are not fully approved. The Council has delivered some cost
mitigation savings. It delivered £0.5m in cost mitigation savings in 2023/24 and expects to deliver a
further £0.2m in 2024/25. While these support the Council in reducing its overspend position, they
do not allow the Council to bridge the funding gaps identified. Management informed us that some
schemes, such as Connect2Halton (the Council’s joint venture intended to reduce agency costs),
had been planned for earlier implementation but this had not been supported by Members.

Whilst the Council has taken some of the steps expected to identify savings for its Transformation
Programme, making use of benchmarking to identify opportunities, we note it has not reviewed
discretionary vs statutory spending or consulted stakeholders on its transformation programme
savings. The Council is in the process of updating its benchmarking to respond to changes in
demand and cost, particularly in adults and children's services and to reprioritise the programme
given the need for urgent delivery of savings.

Effective programme governance was not in place for the Transformation Programme in
2023/2\4 to ensure savings were delivered and monitored which has significantly impacted
on the Council’s financial sustainability in the short-term. In August 2024 nearly half-way
into year two of the programme the Council has just started to introduce programme
management arrangements, but these are still in their infancy. The Executive agreed to
establish a Transformation Programme Board in July 2024 but we are concerned that this
not public and it lacks transparency. The Transformation Programme Board is a Member
Board. We note there is no strategic officer board for this programme, which we would
expect to see, despite the Council’s challenging financial position. Arrangements such as
status reports and benefits trackers were being introduced in August 2024 which we will
follow-up in our 2024/25 reporting. However, we would have expected programme
management arrangements to be live from the start of the programme. An Interim Head of
Transformation started in post in June 2024 on a six-month contract.

While we recognise the positive steps taken in recent months, the absence of capability in
the organisation to deliver effective programme management arrangements and a lack of
grip on its target for the programme is very significant and contributing to the Council’s
poor financial position in 2023/24 that is continuing in 2024/25. The lack of focus on
budgeted savings in this programme is a significant weakness, as this was agreed in
January 2023 as the driver for its introduction and it was expected to deliver £20m in three
years. We have therefore identified a significant weakness in arrangements in both financial
sustainability and governance and raised a statutory recommendation below.

8g8¢ abed

Statutory Recommendation 2 - The Council should develop and implement the transformation programme at scale and pace to address the significant structural budget deficit. This should
include:
+ ensuring it has effective overview and control of its transformation programme which is sufficiently focused on budget savings.

+ ensuring there is sufficient capacity and skills in the organisation to effectively deliver the required savings, including change management and PMO.

+ ensuring the reprioritisation of the programme includes a review of both discretionary spending and the levels at which statutory services are provided and is informed by appropriate

stakeholder consultation
+ improving programme management to include officer as well as member assurance boards.

+ developing robust and transparent monitoring arrangements for benefits realisation and tracking savings as a whole programme.

+ ensuring the programme has a risk and issues log that the PMO updates and uses regularly.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 24



Financial sustainability (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified (continued)
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit

The Council’s forecasts show its Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit is
projected to rise significantly over the medium-term. Services for children and
young people with special educational needs and / or disabilities (SEND) are
also in significant difficulty and further investment is likely to be required to
address these failing services (see further detail on this at KR7 in the improving
economy, efficiency and effectiveness section of this report).

In December 2023, the Council applied to join the Government’s Delivering
Better Value (DBV) programme working to identify and implement local
opportunities to improve the outcomes for children and young people with
SEND across 54 local authorities and their partners. Halton is taking part in this
programme to help it achieve financial sustainability. In March 2024 it was
successful and received a grant of £1m. The Council appointed a programme
lead for this in June 2024.

We are concerned the use of out of borough education, health and care plan
(EHCP) placements are not expected to reduce until 2026/27 and these are the
most expensive. The DBV projections in Table 1show the Council’s DSG deficit
rising from £2.9m in 2023 to £33.9m by 2028 and even with mitigations, the
stretch target for this is still £21.0m. In 2026 this would be £13.3m - more than
the Council is currently holding in usable reserves. The Council is assuming
that the statutory override will remain after March 2026 but this is not
guaranteed. We consider this presents a significant risk to the Council’s
financial sustainability.

We have therefore raised a key recommendation below.
Key Recommendation 1 - The Council should put sufficient plans in place

to address its escalating forecast DSG deficit, while delivering the necessary
improvements to its SEND services. The Council's plans should ensure it has

appropriate contingency in place if the Government's statutory override is
not extended in March 2026.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Table 1: Dedicated Schools Grant forecast cumulative deficit and targets

Unmitigated cumulative
deficit

Target cumulative

.. £2.9m £5.2m £8.8m £13.5m £18.4m £22.1m
deficit
Stretch cumulative

. . £2.9m £5.2m £8.8m £13.3m £17.8m £21.0m
deficit

Source: Delivering Better Value grant application, December 2023

£2.9m £5.7m £10.8m £17.8m £25.8m £33.9m

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 25

Public

68¢ abed



Public

Governance

We considered how the Audited
Body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

In our 2022/23 AAR we identified a significant weakness relating to risk management and made a key recommendation for the
Council to improve its arrangements. We have identified no improvement in risk management in our work for 2023/24. The Audit
and Governance Committee received the last Corporate Risk Register (CRR) on 26 June 2024. The format of the risk register
remains the same as that we reported in our AAR in 2022/23. We note that children’s services are not one of the top four risks in
the Council despite the cost pressures facing the service and the need to drive immediate improvement on its special education
needs and disabilities (SEND) service. We note the SEND risk register only has four risks and none of these relate to reputation,
managing DSG cost pressure or statutory service performance which we would expect to see. We note no progress on
strengthening financial risks as recommended in prior year. We have raised a key recommendation on page 29.

o
We also identified some improvements to internal audit and make an improvement recommendation on page 31. The Council’s Q

monitors and assesses risk and gains most recent external PSIAS assessment was in February 2024. It identified the Council mainly conforms to standards, but it L(%

assurance over the effective operation of needed to develop an internal audit manual and make specific linkages between the audit plan and its significant risks and

internal controls, including arrangements  strategic objectives and that it should retain planning records to demonstrate these linkages. The Code of Ethics and 8

to prevent and detect fraud Declarations of Interest Statement could be adapted to include a conflict-of-interest management strategy and manager sign- o
off.

We note the Whistleblowing Policy is dated June 2021 and is not updated to reflect the current organisational structure. The
Council received a Whistleblowing allegation from Ofsted in June 2023. The Council did not follow initially its own process as it
did not inform its human resources team, and it was originally investigated by an officer reporting to the Director being
complained about. There was a subsequent review and a report to Ofsted which was partially upheld. We make an
improvement recommendation on Whistleblowing on page 31, although we acknowledge there was an updated Whistleblowing
Policy, which was formally approved by full Council in May 2024. It was then reported to Audit and Governance Board in
September for information as part of the annual fraud and corruption update report. As this fell after our work for the
arrangements to 31 March 2024, we will review the amendments as part of our work for 2024/25.

In our 2022/23 AAR, we reported the need for a more robust budget setting approach and the need for public budget
engagement and included this in our statutory recommendation on financial sustainability. We have not seen any evidence of
progress to date or clear plans to progress this recommendation. Budget holders are consulted as part of the budget setting
process and the Council has a budget working group which reviews approved savings proposals. However, we would expect to
see a more challenging process given the Council’s financial position and the issues identified with unrealistic budget
assumptions contributing to the Council’s overspend position. We have therefore included this again in our statutory
recommendation on short and medium-term financial planning on page 23 in the financial sustainability section of this report.
G NG significant weoknesses in arrangements identiiied or improvement recommendation made.

approaches and carries out its annual
budget setting process

A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. . Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key and/or statutory recommendations Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 26
made.



Governance (continued)

We considered how the Audited
Body:

Commentary on arrangements Assessment

ensures effective processes and systems
are in place to ensure budgetary control;
to communicate relevant, accurate and
timely management information; supports
its statutory financial reporting; and
ensures corrective action is taken where
needed, including significant
partnerships

Executive Board receive quarterly reports on the Council's capital and revenue net spending and forecast outturn position.

These include a clear summary of the in-year and forecast outturn position and reasons for any variances to plan. In our

2022/23 AAR, we reported that capital reports did not provide members with any performance and outcome measures for

capital or reasons for budget variances and we raised an improvement recommendation. Management have advised that going

forward, reporting to Executive Board and Policy and Performance Boards will contain expanded details regarding capital

spending and narrative regarding the reasons for any significant variances against capital programme allocations. We will

follow this up in our 2024/25 report to assess progress. G

The Council provides monthly reports for budget holders and in 2023/2% the Chief Executive introduced monthly transformation
challenge items at the management team. Budget holders have this responsibility included in their job description. Budget
guidelines are issued annually, and each manager has a dedicated finance officer to provide guidance and support.

We noted a weakness in the Council's arrangements for monitoring savings in the financial sustainability section of this report
and have included developing robust and transparent monitoring arrangements in our statutory recommendation on page 24.

ensures it makes properly informed
decisions, supported by appropriate
evidence and allowing for challenge and
transparency, including from Audit and
Governance Board

In our AAR for 2022/23 we made a key recommendation relating to the Council’s savings and transformation programme. We
identified this programme as a risk of significant weakness for 2023/24 and undertook additional testing. We conclude that
effective programme governance was not in place for the Council's three-year £20m transformation programme in 2023/24 and
this continued into 2024/256. We find the lack of effective programme management has significantly impacted on the Council’s
financial sustainability in the short-term. We make a statutory recommendation on page 24 in the financial sustainability
section of this report.

We have identified the need for some improvements to the Council’s arrangements to ensure it makes properly informed
decisions, supported by appropriate evidence and allowing for challenge and transparency. The Lead Member for Scrutiny
meets regularly with the Scrutiny Officer and chairs the Scrutiny Chairs Group. This appointment is made annually. The Group
meets quarterly to review their work programmes and prioritise staff capacity to support scrutiny and identify areas to improve
and share emerging issues. However, we have identified improvements to the Council’s scrutiny arrangements. We note there
were no call in decisions in 2023/24 suggesting the lack of challenge. These Policy and Performance Boards meet after the
Executive Board and only receive its minutes. Effective scrutiny requires earlier input and more detailed reporting to help inform
decision-making and we make an improvement recommendation on page 32.

In our 2022/23 AAR we made an improvement recommendation to recruit independent members onto the Council's Audit and
Governance Committee. We note this is under consideration for 2025/26. The Council has 12 elected members on this
Committee currently and it may wish to review its size alongside the adoption of two independent members to align with
CIPFA’s recommended guidance from 2022 and alongside a review of its terms of reference to also align with the CIPFA 2022

position statement on Audit and Governance Boards in local authorities. We make an improvement recommendation on page
32.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

27

Public

T62 abed



Governance (continued)

We considered how the Audited
Body: Commentary on arrangements

Prior to April 2024 the Council had not reviewed business continuity arrangements since Covid-19 and these did not reflect the
new way of working, but ICT did have a list of critical solutions. In 2023/24 the Council moved to Microsoft 365 which resulted in
moving to the cloud. The Council did not update its arrangements for disaster recovery as part of this transition and these
needed significant change in August 2024. We identify a significant weakness and make a key recommendation on page 30.

We have identified areas for improvement in the Council's arrangements for how it monitors and ensures appropriate standards
and where it procures or commissions services. In our 2022/23 AAR we recommended the Council undertakes a self-assessment
against the CIPFA Financial Management Code. We note this was not completed in 2023/24. The Code is designed to support
good practice in financial management and to assist local authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability. We make a
further improvement recommendation on page 32.

monitors and ensures appropriate
standards, such as meeting
legislative/regulatory requirements and
standards in terms of staff and board
member behaviour and where it procures

. . We note the role of the Standards Committee is undertaken by the Audit and Governance Committee. Members did not receive
and commissions services.

a formal written update on standards in 2023/24. Procurement waivers were not reported in the annual procurement update to
the Audit and Governance Committee. We reviewed a sample of the member declarations of interest and those we reviewed
were out of date by 3 years. We note declarations of interest were provided retrospectively for CMT members by email in April
2024. We have raised improvement recommendations on these points on page 32.

Assessment

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 28

Public

26¢ abed



Public

Governance (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified
Risk Management

Effective risk management is an essential part of the Council’s control environment. It enables councils to improve governance, stakeholder confidence and trust; set strategy and plans
through informed decision making; evaluate options and deliver programmes, projects, and policy initiatives; prioritise and manage resources, manage performance, resources and
assets; and achieve outcomes.

In our 2022/23 AAR we identified a significant weakness relating to risk management and made a key recommendation for the Council to improve its arrangements. We have identified
no improvement in risk management in our work for 2023/214.

The Audit and Governance Board received the last Corporate Risk Register (CRR) on 26 June 2024. The format of the risk register remains the same as that we reported in our AAR in
2022/23. We note that children’s services are not one of the top four risks in the Council despite the cost pressures facing the service and the need to drive immediate improvement on
its special education needs and disabilities (SEND) service. We note the SEND risk register only has four risks and none of these relate to reputation, managing DSG cost pressure or
statutory service performance which we would expect to see.

£6¢ abed

The CRR format requires improvement so there is a single table with strategic risks, issues and causes established with risk owners. It needs to include assurances, risk type, risk
proximity and a target risk date and a date last updated. There are no residual scores after risk treatment and controls to reduce risk further. There is no indication of whetheritis a
dynamic or static risk. Risks are not reported to the Executive Board in either 2023/24 or in 2024/25 which we would expect to see alongside performance and finance reporting. The
Risk Management Policy was last reviewed in May 2023. It does not consider programme and project risks or risk escalation and de-escalation processes. There is no identification of
risk type or risk tolerance, treatment or proximity which we would expect to see in the Strategy. The Council has a risk toolkit which it has not reviewed since April 2019. This will need
improvement alongside the Policy. The Policy says the management team should review the CRR annually. We think this needs to be at least quarterly. The Council also only updates
the Audit and Governance Board bi-annually on risk management which is insufficient. At Directorate level risk monitoring is bi-annually in line with Directorate Business Plans which is
not sufficiently timely. We note no progress on strengthening financial risk reporting as recommended in prior year.

We have identified a significant weakness relating to risk management and we retain our key recommendation on risk management.

Key Recommendation 2 - The Council needs to significantly improve its risk strategy, improve the CRR and ensure officers and members are reviewing strategic and

directorate risks at least quarterly and ensuring risk is adequately considered in financial reporting.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 29



Public

Governance (continued)

Significant weaknesses identified (continued)
Business continuity and disaster recovery

We note prior to April 2024 the Council had not reviewed business continuity
arrangements since Covid-19 and these did not reflect the new way of working, but ICT
had a list of critical solutions. We acknowledge some work was done in 2024/25 to
improve its business continuity arrangements by including ICT. However, we identify
this was a significant weakness in 2023/214.

In 2023/2Y4 the Council implemented Microsoft 365. Prior to the implementation the
Council had disaster recovery arrangements in place. However, these were not
updated to reflect the new ICT arrangements, and we note these required significant
change still in August 2024.

We have identified a significant weakness for the Council's arrangements for business
continuity and disaster recovery planning and make a key recommendation.

Key Recommendation 3 - The Council needs to urgently update its arrangements

for business continuity and disaster recovery planning.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024+ 30



Public

Governance (continued)

Areas for improvement

Internal audit Whistleblowing
Internal audit services are required to have an external assessment against the We note the Whistleblowing Policy is dated June 2021 and is not
standards every five years. The Council’s most recent external assessment was in updated to reflect the current organisational structure. The
February 2024. The Council had received a draft report which showed it conforms Council received a Whistleblowing allegation from Ofsted in June
to the standards. However, it identified the current planning approach is heavily 2023. The Council did not initially follow its own process. The
reliant on the knowledge and experience of the Divisional manager and is not Human Resources team was not informed of the complaint
documented and it recommended the development of an internal audit manual. It against a Director, and it was originally investigated by an
also found the annual plan should be enhanced making links between the planned officer reporting to the Director being complained about. There g
audits and identified risks to demonstrate how risk is informing the audit plan. The was a subsequent review and a report to Ofsted which was o
Code of Ethics and Declarations of Interest Statement could be adapted to include partially upheld. D
a conflict-of-interest management strategy and manager sign-off. N
©
ol
Improvement recommendation 1- The Council needs to enhance its internal Improvement recommendation 2 - The Council needs to
audit arrangements by: update its Whistleblowing Policy and ensure it is understood
* updating its audit manual which is a core part of the Council’s control and that officers follow the correct processes.
process.
* making links between the planned audits and identified risks to demonstrate We note there was an updated Whistleblowing Policy, which
how risk is informing the audit plan was formally approved by full Council in May 2024. It was
* adapting the Code of Ethics and Declarations of Interest Statement to then reported to Audit and Governance Board in September
include a conflict-of-interest management strategy and manager sign-off. for information as part of the annual fraud and corruption
update report. As this fell after our work for the arrangements
to 31 March 2024, we will review the amendments as part of
our work for 20244/25.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 31



Governance (continued)

Areas for improvement (continued)
Scrutiny

The Lead Member for Scrutiny meets regularly with the Scrutiny Officer and chairs the Scrutiny
Chairs Group. This appointment is made annually. The Group meets quarterly to review their
work programmes and to prioritise staff capacity to support scrutiny, identify improvement areas
and share emerging issues. However, we have identified improvements to the Council’s scrutiny
arrangements. We note there were no call in decisions in 2023/24 suggesting the lack of
challenge. These Policy and Performance Boards meet after the Executive Board and only receive
its minutes. Effective scrutiny requires earlier input and more detailed reporting to help inform
decision-making.

Public

Declarations of interest

We reviewed a sample of the member declarations of interest and those we reviewed were out
of date by 3 years. We note declarations of interest were provided retrospectively for CMT
members by email in April 2024.

Improvement recommendation 5 - The Council needs to improve its arrangements for
member and officer declarations of interest by updating member and officer declarations
annually at the start of each year.

Improvement recommendation 3 - The Council needs to review its overview and scrutiny
arrangements to provide a greater focus on earlier engagement of scrutiny to enhance
decision-making and ensure scrutiny receive reports for consideration to provide an
opportunity for challenge.

Audit and Governance Committee

The Council does not yet have any independent members on its Audit and Governance
Committee. We note this is under consideration for 2025/26. The Council has 12 elected members
on this Committee currently and it may wish to review its size alongside the adoption of two
independent members to align with CIPFA’s recommended guidance from 2022 and alongside a
review of its terms of reference to also align with the CIPFA 2022 position statement on Audit and
Governance Boards in local authorities. We note the role of the Standards Committee is
undertaken by the Audit and Governance Board. Members did not receive a formal written
update on standards in 2023/24. Procurement waivers were not reported in the annual
procurement update to the Audit and Governance Board.

Improvement recommendation 4 - The Council should enhance the effectiveness of its Audit

and Governance Committee by:

* appointing independent members to provide expertise in areas like transformation.

* reviewing its terms of reference to align with the CIPFA 2022 Code of Practice on Audit and
Governance Boards.

* ensuring procurement waivers are reported on an annual basis. and

» formalising reporting on standards investigations.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

96¢ abed

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 32



Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

{5

We considered how the audited
body: Commentary on arrangements Assessment

In our AAR for 2022/23 we raised a key recommendation on performance management and said the Council needed to
significantly improve its performance management and ensure it had a golden thread in place and performance is consistently
reported alongside nearest neighbours. In 2023/24 the Council had no corporate plan and was not reporting performance to
the Executive for each of its directorates or in a consistent manner. We note the Council engaged residents on its priorities in

. . 2023/2% and launched its new Corporate Plan in April 2024.
uses financial and performance

information to assess performance to

. . . The Council needs to report a corporate set of outcomes, SMART measures and KPIs quarterly to the Executive Board, integrated
identify areas for improvement

with risk and finance reporting. We identified gaps in performance reporting in 2023/24, that continued in 2024/25 and a lack
of a consistent approach to benchmarking and a lack of measurable outcomes. Combined with no corporate plan in 2023/24
and systematic failings in its SEND service identified through the OFSED inspection in November 2023 we identify a significant
weakness in the Council’s arrangements for performance management and make a key recommendation on page 35.

In 20 to 24 November 2023, Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission delivered an area SEND inspection of Halton Local Area
Partnership which identified widespread and/or systemic failings leading to significant concerns about the experiences and
outcomes of children and young people with special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND), which the local area
partnership must address urgently. The report was published on 26January 2024. They will undertake a monitoring inspection in
18 months.

evaluates the services it provides to
assess performance and identify areas
for improvement

In July 2024, the Council received an inadequate report from Ofsted in response to its May 2024 inspection. It identified
significant deterioration in the quality of practice for children and young people. A lack of stable and effective leadership has
led to shifting strategic priorities and an absence of continuous systematic improvement planning. This has been further
compounded by weak governance arrangements, limited performance information and workforce instability. There has been
insufficient pace in tackling the serious deficits identified at a focused visit in October 2021 for children in need of help and
protection, and many of those weaknesses are still prevalent. There are serious and widespread weaknesses across the service.
We have identified progress to address these weaknesses in 2024/25 although impact on outcomes is too early in our reporting.
We have raised a key recommendation on page 36.

G Nosignificant weaknesses in arrangements identified or improvement recommendation made.
A No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement recommendations made.

- Significant weaknesses in arrangements identified and key and/or statutory recommendations made.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

33

Public

/62 abed



Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness (continued)

{5

We considered how the audited
body:

Commentary on arrangements Assessment

ensures it delivers its role in significant
partnerships and engages with
stakeholders it has identified, to assess
whether it is meeting its objectives

In September 2023, the Council became a member of the Integrated Care Partnership for Cheshire and Merseyside, to be
known as the Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership. This is a statutory joint committee and forms part of the
structure of the new Integrated Care System set out in the Health and Care Act 2022.

In July 2024 Ofsted identified partnerships were underdeveloped and weak governance arrangements have meant partners are

not fully held to account for their role in helping children and young people. We refer to this in our key recommendation on

children's services so do not repeat it here. Governance arrangements are being strengthened so that corporate parents and G
the safeguarding partnership can provide more robust challenge and scrutiny. An independent scrutineer has been appointed.
Partnership arrangements were reviewed and codesigned with partners. The new arrangements launched in March 2024. There

was a joint priority setting day in June 2024 with an agreed approach to partnership priorities over the next 3 years. We

include this Ofsted finding in our key recommendation on performance for children and young people, so we do not report it

here.

commissions or procures services,
assessing whether it is realising the
expected benefits

The Council has good arrangements in place for procurement evidenced by its social value work, and its preparation for the
implementation of the Procurement Act 2023 which comes into force in October 2024. It has a robust process in place to agree
waivers involving finance and other corporate services. However, there were more waivers in 2023/24 than in 2022/23: 107
waivers were approved in 2023/24 compared with 74 in 2022/23 and an internal audit report on the new leisure centre identified
non-compliance with the Procurement Contract Regulations 2015. Property Services managed the procurement but did not
publish the contract award on Contract Finder.

The Council's contract management arrangements are variable, and these are not managed centrally. We reviewed the six
highest value waivers from 2023/24 and only one included details of contract management and regular performance review.
There is evidence of using contractors over longer periods rather than using competitive processes. For example, the Integrated
Sensory Support Service ran for six years to 30 June 2024. In March 2024, the Executive Board extended this for a further five
years. This was also agreed prior to amending the service specification to reflect service priorities. An Internal Audit report on
electric vehicle charging points identified no formal contractual arrangements with the supplier of on-street charging points.
We make an improvement recommendation on page 37.

However, there is also some evidence of the Council securing value for money. In 2023/24 the Council implemented Microsoft
365 but extracting its cyber data was considered too costly, so the Council bought an MDR solution for a five-year period using
a framework and negotiated with the top two providers to reduce cost.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

34

Public

86¢ obed



Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness (continued)

{%
=
Significant weaknesses identified

Performance management

In our AAR for 2022/23 we raised a key recommendation on performance management and said the
Council needs to significantly improve its arrangements for performance management and ensure it has
a golden thread in place and performance is consistently reported alongside nearest neighbours. In both
2022/23 and in 2023/2Y4 the Council had no corporate plan. The Council needs to have a suite of
corporate performance information reported to the Executive Board aligned with risk and finance
reporting. We note the Council did hold resident engagement on its priorities in 2023/24 and launched
its new Corporate Plan in April 2024.

The Council needs to report a corporate set of outcomes, SMART measures and KPIs quarterly to the
Executive Board, integrated with risk and finance reporting. We identified gaps in performance reporting
in 2023/24, that continued in 2024/25 and a lack of a consistent approach to benchmarking and a lack
of measurable outcomes. We note in August 2024 the Council was still developing its performance
management framework and no council wide performance reports were developed or shared with the
Executive or the Performance Boards. The very limited performance reports presented twice yearly in
2023/24 were not for all the Council's directorates.

Key Recommendation 4 - The Council needs to improve its performance management arrangements

by:

* establishing a golden thread for the Council, by improving the performance management
framework at corporate and service levels linking outcomes to expected annual measures to track
success and reporting these to the public.
agreeing performance outcomes, that can be measured, at least annually as part of the new

performance management framework.

improving performance reporting to include benchmarking with ‘nearest neighbours’ data where
possible;

integrating performance, risk and finance reporting to drive improvement and sharing these
reports quarterly with the Executive Board.

ensuring consistency across directorates regarding the reporting of corporate performance data
to enable outcomes to be tracked.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

35

Public

66¢ abed



Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness (continued)

&%
E
Significant weaknesses identified (continued)

Children’s Services

In 20 to 24 November 2023, Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission delivered an area SEND inspection of Halton Local Area Partnership which identified widespread and/or
systemic failings leading to significant concerns about the experiences and outcomes of children and young people with special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND),
which the local area partnership must address urgently. They will undertake a monitoring inspection in 18 months. The local area partnership is required to prepare and submit a
priority action plan (area SEND) to address the identified areas for priority action. The team identified the significant changes to the senior leadership of Halton’s SEND services
since the previous inspection. These included a new chief executive, several interim directors of children’s services, a newly appointed operational director for education, inclusion,
and provision, and a new head of service for SEND. A permanent director of children’s services started in November 2023.

Too many children and young people with SEND in Halton wait an unacceptable time to have their needs accurately identified and assessed. For example, children and young
people wait too long to access a neurodevelopmental assessment. Most children and young people wait more than 18 months. Leaders have been too slow to respond to the rising
numbers and increasing complexity. The outcome of this Inspection was not reported to the Audit and Governance Board until March 2024. We note the annual governance
statement for 2023/24 identifies a plan will be in place by March 2025 to address its findings.

In July 2024, the Council received an inadequate report from Ofsted in response to its May 2024 inspection. It identified significant deterioration in the quality of practice for
children and young people. A lack of stable and effective leadership has led to shifting strategic priorities and an absence of continuous systematic improvement planning. This has
been further compounded by weak governance arrangements, limited performance information and workforce instability. There has been insufficient pace in tackling the serious
deficits identified at a focused visit in October 2021 for children in need of help and protection, and many of those weaknesses are still prevalent. There are serious and widespread
weaknesses across the service.

The Ofsted report identified the permanent director of children’s services ([DCS) who joined in November 2023 and identified her leadership team have a solid understanding of
many service weaknesses and are putting changes in place to sustain improvement. They are also reengaging staff and partners. Governance mechanisms are being strengthened
and are supported by improved performance monitoring. In July 2024, plans and strategies to tackle the deficits are either in their infancy or have yet to be actioned. While there
are some early signs of progress, it is too soon to see the impact for children and young people.

Key Recommendation 5 - The Council needs to significantly improve its services for children and young people by putting in place arrangements to improve its SEND services

working with health partners and by putting in place, and delivering, an improvement plan to address the wider children's services inspection findings.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

36

Public

00g abed



Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness (continued)

{5

Areas for improvement
Contract Management

The Council's contract management arrangements are variable, and these are not managed
centrally. We reviewed waivers for the six highest value waivers from 2023/24 and only one
included details of contract management and regular performance review. There is evidence of
using contractors over longer periods rather than using competitive processes. For example,
the Integrated Sensory Support Service ran for six years to 30 June 2024. In March 2024, the
Executive Board agreed to extend this for a further five years. This was also agreed prior to
amending the service specification to reflect service priorities.

An Internal Audit report on electric vehicle charging points identified no formal contractual
arrangements with the supplier of on-street charging points. This had resulted in a dispute over
income which Connected Kerb advised the Council owed to them. There was no fire risk
assessment, and the team did not seek input from the Council’s property insurers regarding the
charging points installed at Council owned premises. Internal audit identified the need for a
signed contract to establish the respective responsibilities and risk to both parties and to
establish liability if an insurable incident occurred.

An Internal Audit report on children's services commissioning finalised in September 2024 but
related to 2023-24 identified limited assurance and raised high level recommendations on
contract and performance management. The Commissioning team manages approximately 30
contracts, with total expenditure in 2023/2% of £3.2m. We note no consistent performance
management framework to link performance data to the outcomes specified in the contract.
Contract and performance management arrangements require formalising to ensure
consistency across all contracts. Although outcomes are specified in the contracts, there is no
clear link to the performance data reported by the providers. Where targets are included, they
are not always reported on. This makes it difficult to demonstrate whether the service provision
is effective in achieving the required outcomes and whether the Council is achieving value for
money. Arrangements for verifying the validity of performance data submitted by the providers
are also inconsistent, with reliance being placed on the data submitted with no checks being
carried out in some cases. The audit also identified one contract with a value exceeding £1m
and two lower value contracts that had not been signed in accordance with Standing Orders.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Improvement recommendation 6 - The Council needs to improve its contract
management arrangements by putting in place formal contract management
review processes and ensuring performance and financial management are
including in contract review meetings and are formally documented.

4

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

37

Public

TOg abed



Value for Money
Key and Improvement

recommendations raised in
2023/24



Public

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

€0g abed

Recommendation Type of I .Crlterla Evidence !mpact or possible future Actions agreed by Management
recommendation* impacted impact
ZIZ?]c(:i:toil:wngtlleS;iosrfnC(?rzttaifit Actions: Agreed. The financial aspects of the DSG
The Council should put sufficient currently holds in usable deficit forecasts will form part of the Medium
plans in place to address its reserves. The Council does Term Financial Plan, including highlighting risks
escalating forecast DSG deficit, Review of key not have a contingency plan ~ @round the statutory override.
while delivering the necessary documents, including the in place if the Government’s ; : ; ;
improvements to its SEND services. Financial S, MCUding P s Responsible Officer: Director of Finance
KR1 The Council's plans should ensure &Y sustainabilit Council’s Delivering statutory override is not
it has Ou o rl?ote contiL:w enc uin Y Y Better Value grant extended in March 2026 Executive Lead: Head of Revenues & Financial
approp 1gency application. which is not guaranteed. This  Management
place if the Government's S .
A presents a significant risk to ;
statutory override is not extended the Council’s financial Deadline: 31st March 2025
in March 2026. C .
sustainability in the medium-
term.
Effective risk management is
an essential part of the . . .
Council’s control Actions: Agreed. The Council recognises the
environment. It enables importance of managing risk and whilst it is
The Council needs to significantly councils to improve considered it has refjsor‘?’b'e orrongemenjcs n
improve its risk strategy, improve governance, stakeholder place, the opportunity will be tok.en to review its
the CRR and ensure officers and confidence and trust; set arrangements gnd gee:k 1o r.noke Improvements
- members are reviewing strategic K Governance Review of risk policy and  strategy and plans through where Gpproprlote in line with the
KR and directorate risks at least €y the CRR. informed decision making; recommendations.

quarterly and ensuring risk is
adequately considered in financial
reporting.

evaluate options and deliver
programmes, projects, and
policy initiatives; prioritise
and manage resources,
manage performance,
resources and assets; and
achieve outcomes.

Responsible Officer: Corporate Director, Chief
Executives Delivery Unit

Executive Lead: TBC
Deadline: 31st December 2024

* Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 39



Public

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

v0g abed

. Type of Criteria . Impact or possible future .
Recommendation up . . Evidence P P Actions agreed by Management
recommendation impacted impact
Actions: Agreed. The Council will review and
update its business continuity and disaster
The C ih ¢ recovery plans to reflect current ICT
The Council needs to urgently © -ouncii nds no curren arrangements as recommended.
update its arrangements for . ) arrangements for business
KR3  Lisiness continuity and Key Governance Interview with ICT continuity or disaster recovery Responsible Officer: Director of ICT & Customer
disaster recovery planning. which could impact the whole Services
council.
Executive Lead: TBC
Deadline: 31st March 2025
The Council needs to enhance
its internal audit arrangements
by:
* updating its audit manual . o o
which is a core part of the Actions: Agreed. The Council will review its
Council’s control process. Internal Audit arrangements and enhance them
+  making links between the by taking on board the recommendations as
planned audits and it L auditis o k | o considered appropriate.
; e . nternal audit is a key element o
IR1 identified risks to Improvement Governance PSIAS external review Y Responsible Officer: Head of Procurement, Audit

demonstrate how risk is
informing the audit plan

* adapting the Code of Ethics
and Declarations of Interest
Statement to include a
conflict-of-interest
management strategy and
manager sign-off.

the Council's internal controls.

& Operational Finance
Executive Lead: Audit & Investigations Manager

Deadline: 31st March 2025

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 40



Public

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Recommendation Type of . .c"te"q Evidence !mpact or possible future Actions agreed by Management
recommendation impacted impact

The Council needs to update its

Whistleblowing Policy. It also

needs to ensure it is understood

and officers follow the correct

processes. Actions: Agreed. The Council’s whistleblowing

We note there was an updated arrangements will be reviewed annually and

Whistleblowing Policy, which was comm'umcoted to officers, to ensure it remains

formally approved by full Council Whistleblowing Whistleblowing is a key element effective.

IR2  in May 2024. It was then reported  Improvement Governance  Policy, Ofsted of the Council's internal controls. Responsible Officer: Head of Procurement, Audit my)
to Audit and Governance Board in investigation "8 Operational Finance )
September for information as part (@)
of the annual fraud and Executive Lead: Audit & Investigations Manager D
corruption update report. As this Deadline: 31st March 2025 w
fell after our work for the o
arrangements to 31 March 2024, o1

we will review the amendments as
part of our work for 2024/25.

Actions: Agreed. The Council’s scrutiny processes

The Council needs to review its will be rewewe? via the mEmbershscrutmg c.lfjours
overview and scrutiny group, to develop and enhance the Council’s
arrangements to provide earlier Review of scrutiny scrutiny arrangements.

Scrutiny is insufficiently

engagement of scrutiny to meetings and reports

IR3 h decision-maki d Improvement Governance and email from the developed and integrated into Responsik?le Off.icer: Director of Legal &
enhanee deaision-maring an - . Council decision-making. Democratic Services
ensure scrutiny receive reports for monitoring officer.
consideration to provide an Executive Lead: Director of Legal & Democratic
opportunity for challenge. Services

Deadline: 31st March 2025

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 41



Public

Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Type of Criteria

_— Evidence
recommendation impacted

Recommendation

Impact or possible future

impact Actions agreed by Management

The Council should enhance the

effectiveness of its Audit and

Governance Committee by:

* appointing independent members
to provide expertise in areas like

Actions: Agreed. The Audit and Governance
Board will be asked to consider co-opting
independent members onto the Board, its terms of
reference will be reviewed against the CIPFA
Internal audit is a key element of  Code of Practice, a summary of procurement

transformation. . . the Council's internal controls i i
nstormc Review of committee ~ouncils internal r waivers W[” be rgported annually, and standards
* reviewing its terms of reference to apers. membershi and it needs to align its matters will continue to be reported to the Board.
IRY align with the CIPFA 2022 Code  Improvement Governance gng ter’ms of P Committee with CIPFA 2022 i ) . .
of Practice on Audit and reference Code of Practice on Auditand ~ Responsible Officer: Director of Finance and
Governance Boards. Governance Boards. Director of Legal & Democratic Services JY)
* ensuring procurement waivers ) Executive Lead: Head of Procurement, Audit & g
Oredreported on an annual basis. Operational Finance and Director of Legal & D
an Democratic Services
* formalising reporting on o8
standards investigations. Deadline: 31st March 2025 8
Actions: Agreed. The Council recognises the
importance of having an up to date declaration
The Council needs to improve its of interests and will take steps to ensure its
arrangements for member and . Not havi t arrangements are robust.
officer declarations of interest by Review O.f ST Responsible Officer: Director of Legal &
IRS | dating member and officer Improvement Governance  declarations of date declaration of interest - Jeet
P 9 interest. presents a risk to the Council Democratic Services

declarations annually at the start of
each year.

Executive Lead: Director of Legal & Democratic
Services

Deadline: 31st March 2025

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 42



Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Recommendation

Type of

Criteria
recommendation impacted

Evidence

Impact or possible future
impact

Actions agreed by Management

The Council needs to improve its
performance management
arrangements by:

KR4

establishing a golden thread for the
Council, by improving the
performance management
framework at corporate and service
levels linking outcomes to expected
annual measures to track success
and reporting these to the public.
agreeing performance outcomes,
that can be measured, at least
annually as part of the new
performance management
framework.

improving performance reporting to
include benchmarking with ‘nearest
neighbours’ data where possible;
integrating performance, risk and
finance reporting to drive
improvement and sharing these
reports quarterly with the Executive
Board.

ensuring consistency across
directorates regarding the reporting
of corporate performance data to
enable outcomes to be tracked.

Key

3Es

Review of committee
papers, corporate
plan, performance
reports

The Council needs to
significantly improve its
arrangements for performance
management and ensure it has a
golden thread in place and
performance is consistently
reported alongside nearest
neighbours. In 2023/2Y4 the
Council did not have a corporate
plan in place. The Council needs
to have a suite of corporate
performance information
reported to the Executive Board
aligned with risk and finance
reporting.

Actions: Agreed. Following implementation of the
Council’s new Corporate Plan and Values
Framework which are underpinned by a core set
of Key Performance Indicators, the Performance
Management Framework has been developed
which will link to the new Corporate Priorities and
the reporting regime is in place which will form
the first two levels of the ‘Golden Thread’ within
the Council.

Responsible Officer: Corporate Director, Chief
Executives Delivery Unit

Executive Lead: TBC
Deadline: 31st December 2024

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 43

Public

/0¢€ abed



Recommendations raised in 2023/24

Recommendation

Type of Criteria
recommendation impacted

Evidence

Impact or possible future
impact

Actions agreed by Management

The Council needs to significantly
improve its services for children and
young people by putting in place
arrangements to improve its SEND

Ofsted SEND and

The Council's services for
children and young people were

Actions: Agreed. Following the recent Ofsted

Inspection, the Children’s Improvement Board are

developing an improvement plan to implement
Ofsted’s recommendations as a matter of
urgency, which will be monitored robustly to

ensure its effective implementation. The Council is

also implementing changes to the delivery of

KRS services working with health partners  Key 3Es Children’s services  a significant weakness in SEND as part of the DfE’s Delivering Best Value in
and by putting in place, and delivering, inspection reports 2023/24 that continued into SEND programme.
an improvement plan to address the 2024/25.
wider children's services inspection Responsible Officer: Executive Director,
findings. Children’s
Executive Lead: Head of Children’s Services
Deadline: 31st March 2025
The Council needs to improve its Actions: Agreed. Consideration will be given to
contract management arrangements by how the Council’.s contrqct management
putting in place formal contract The Council needs to improve arrangements might be improved as
management review processes and Review of waivers, contract management recommended.
|IR6 ensuring performance and financial Improvement 3Es and internal audit arrangements and ensure these Responsible Officer: Director of Finance

management are including in contract
review meetings and are formally
documented.

reports on contracts

are consistent across the
Council.

Executive Lead: Head of Procurement, Audit &
Operational Finance

Deadline: 31st March 2025

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024

il

Public

80¢ abed



Appendices



Appendix A:

Responsibilities of the Council

Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money are accountable
for their stewardship of the resources entrusted to them.
They should account properly for their use of resources and

manage themselves well so that the public can be confident.

Financial statements are the main way in which local public
bodies account for how they use their resources. Local
public bodies are required to prepare and publish financial
statements setting out their financial performance for the
year. To do this, bodies need to maintain proper accounting
records and ensure they have effective systems of internal
control.

All local public bodies are responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness from their resources. This includes taking
properly informed decisions and managing key operational
and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives
and safeguard public money. Local public bodies report on
their arrangements, and the effectiveness with which the
arrangements are operating, as part of their annual
governance statement.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent] is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent)
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent] is required to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice
on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom. In
preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial
Officer (or equivalent) is responsible for assessing the
Council’s ability to continue as a going concern and use the
going concern basis of accounting unless there is an
intention by government that the services provided by the
Council will no longer be provided.

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

-

I
J

:
5
:
&

]

[

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024+

46

Public

0TE abed



Appendix B:

Value for Money Auditor responsibilities

&

Value for Money arrangements work

All councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness from their resources. This includes taking properly informed
decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their
objectives and safeguard public money. The audited body’s responsibilities are set out in
Appendix A.

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part
of their annual governance statement.

Under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that
the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. The National Audit Office (NAOQ) Code of Audit Practice
('the Code), requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

Governance

Arrangements for ensuring
that the Council makes
appropriate decisions in the
right way. This includes
arrangements for budget
setting and management,
risk management, and
ensuring the Council makes
decisions based on
appropriate information.

Improving economy,
efficiency and
effectiveness
Arrangements for improving
the way the Council delivers its
services. This includes
arrangements for
understanding costs and
delivering efficiencies and
improving outcomes for service
users.

Financial
Sustainability

o

Arrangements for ensuring
the Council can continue to
deliver services. This includes
planning resources to ensure
adequate finances and
maintain sustainable levels of
spending over the medium
term (3-5 years).

2023/24 is the fourth year of the Code, and we undertake and report the work in three phases
as set out in the Code.

Phase 1 - Planning and initial risk assessment

As part of our planning we assess our knowledge of the Council’s arrangements and whether
we consider there are any indications of risks of significant weakness. This is done against
each of the reporting criteria and continues throughout the reporting period

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Information which informs our risk assessment

Cumulative knowledge and experience of the
audited body

Annual Governance Statement and the
Head of Internal Audit annual opinion

The work of inspectorates and other regulatory

Interviews and discussions with key stakeholders .
bodies

Progress with implementing recommendations Key documents provided by the audited body

Findings from our opinion audit Our knowledge of the sector as a whole

Phase 2 - Additional risk-based procedures and evaluation

Where we identify risks of significant weakness in arrangements we will undertake further
work to understand whether there are significant weaknesses. We use auditor’s professional
judgement in assessing whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and ensure
that we consider any further guidance issued by the NAO.

Phase 3 - Reporting our commentary and recommendations

The Code requires us to provide a commentary on your arrangements which is detailed within
this report. Where we identify weaknesses in arrangements we raise recommendations. A
range of different recommendations can be raised by the Council’s auditors as follows:

* Statutory recommendations - actions which should be taken where significant
weaknesses are identified with arrangements. These are made under Section 24
(Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and require discussion at
full Council and a public response.

* Key recommendations - actions which should be taken by the Council where significant
weaknesses are identified within arrangements.

* Improvement recommendations - actions which should improve arrangements in place
but are not a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 47

Public

TTE abed



Appendix C:

Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

Type of

Recommendation A
recommendation

Date
raised

Progress to date

Addressed?

Further action?

The Council should ensure its transformation
programme is sufficiently developed to meet
the medium-term financial gap and help the
Council to replenish its reserves

Key

March 2024

The Council has added additional capacity to the
Programme to promote focus and pace. As projects have
progressed and the complexity of the programme has
developed, officers and Members have designed a revised
governance model to drive scrutiny and accountability,
this is in place from August 2024. In addition, through
August - October 2024, a reprioritisation of transformation
projects will be undertaken to ensure that resource is being
targeted to the right areas. This will be determined by
using up-to date benchmarking (2023/24 datal),
concentration on high-cost services , and brining projects
into the programme that are not mobilised.

Yes. Superseded by
statutory
recommendations 1 and
2.

The Council needs to improve its risk

management Key

March 2024

A review of risk management arrangements is being
undertaken. The Council is also engaging with Zurich
Municipal to provide specialist support to further develop
our risk management arrangements. Consideration is
being given to establishing target risk scores in the
Corporate Risk Register, and to more frequent reporting to
Members on an exceptional basis. In addition, steps are
being considered to provide a more robust approach to
highlight risks in Board reports. Consideration is also being
given to where in the organisation the co-ordination of risk
management is best situated.

No

ZT¢ abed

Yes. Recommendation
retained - see
recommendation KR2.

The Council needs to improve its performance
management arrangements.

Key

March 2024

The Council’s new Corporate Plan was implemented from 1
April 2024. This includes developing a new set of focused
key performance indicators, forming a ‘corporate
dashboard’, and a values framework which has been
developed via a series of officer and member workshops
and briefings. This will provide a “golden thread” and the
basis for performance reporting outcomes to both
management team and member boards.

No

Yes. Recommendation
retained - see
recommendation KRY4.

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 48



Appendix C:

Public

Follow-up of previous recommendations

cT¢ abed

Audit and Governance Board and those
responsible for finance

provide training for all members during Autumn 2024.

Recommendation I:E:n:;endation . rDa(::Zd Progress to date Addressed? Further action?
The Transformation Programme “Employer of Choice” project is
underway, with different aspects being addressed to help recruit
The Council should develop a Workforce and retain staff. This includes internal work around the Employer No, we will follow-up in
4 Strategy thatis fully costed to reflect Improvement g/locth Value Proposition, as well as working collaboratively with the Partly 2024/25.
future skills requirements LGA vie the Regional Employers Organisation, and Liverpool City
Region partners around recruitment approaches. The Council’s
Workforce Strategy will be developed from this work.
The Council needs to enhance the Greater attention is being given to reporting capital spending on
measures it has in place to control a regul.or basis to CCIpitCI.| project managers. Reporting to . ’ ’
5 copital spending and improve capital Imoroverment March Executive Boorc.i and PO|I.CH and .Performdr?ce Boards WI||'COI’1tGIn Partl No, we will follow-up in
monitoring information to elected P 2024 expano_led details regarding cqpltq! .spendmg. and narrative Y 2024/25.
members regarding the reasons for any significant variances against
capital programme allocations.
The Council needs to ensure elected
members are trained in treasury Arrangements are currently being made for the Council’s No, we will follow-up in
6 management, especially those on the Improvement ngoer?h treasury management advisers Link Group (now MUFG) to Partly 2024/25.

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024 49



Public

Appendix C:
Follow-up of previous recommendations

Type of Date

recommendation *  raised Progress to date Addressed? Further action?

Recommendation

Yes. We have included

Discussions are currently being held with the Chair of the Audit this i
is in our

The Council should consider co-opting and Governance Board, to agree a process with the Board for

7 independent members onto its Audit and | March . ind d b he Board. | p recommendation on
G Board to help it i it mprovement 202l co-opting an independent member onto the Board, in artly Audi
overnance Board to help it improve its . \ . udit and Governance
. accordance with CIPFA’s Audit and Governance Board :
effectiveness . Board effectiveness. See
Guidance.
IR,
Q-?
. . Scenario planning is being used to maintain the MTFS on a {e)
The Co.unC|| may want to introduce rolling basis during the year. However, when the MTFS is formally . . D
scenario planning including best, worst | March reported to Executive Board in November 2024, the outcome of No, we will follow-up in
8 and expected positions in its MTFS mprovement 2024 e e O s T Partly 20244/25. w
reporting to the Executive Board e scenario planning will be described as part of the narrative =
to assist Members, such as by providing sensitivity analysis. N
The Council should undertake a self-
assessment against the CIPFA Financial March A self-assessment against the CIPFA Financial Management No, we will follow-up in
9 g | t g 9 Partl P
Management Code and use that to mprovemen 2024 Code is currently being undertake. arty 2024/25.

develop an improvement plan.

*Explanations of the different types of recommendations which can be made are summarised in Appendix B.

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Halton Borough Council Final Auditors Annual Report | November 2024+ 50



GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2024 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

GTE abed



Page 316 Agenda Item 7

REPORT TO: Audit and Governance Board

DATE:

20 November 2024

REPORTING OFFICER: Director - Finance

PORTFOLIO: Corporate Services

SUBJECT: Review of Audit and Governance Board

Terms of Reference

WARD(S) Borough wide

1.0
11

1.2

1.3

1.3

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The terms of reference of the Audit and Governance Board are set
out in the Council Constitution and govern which matters are within
the remit of the Board. It is best practice for the Board’'s terms of
reference to be subject to regular review to ensure that they remain
fit for purpose and are compliant with the latest guidance.

The review of the terms of reference has also been prompted by the
recent external assessment of the Council’s internal audit
arrangements, which included a recommendation that the Board’s
terms of reference be aligned with that suggested by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

The Council’s external auditor, in the Annual Audit Report for the
year ended 31 March 2024, also included an improvement
recommendation that the Audit and Governance Board should
enhance its effectiveness by appointing independent members to
provide expertise in areas like transformation. It was also
suggested that the Council review the Board’s term of reference in
line with best practice.

A proposed terms of reference for the Board has therefore been
developed in accordance with the model terms of reference
recommended by CIPFA in its publication ‘Audit Committees:
Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2022 edition)'.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the Board:

1) considers the revised terms of reference for the Board,
which aligns with CIPFA recommended practice; and

2) delegates authority to the Chair to finalise any proposed
amendments prior to submission to Full Council for
approval.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Page 317

The Audit and Governance Board acts as the Council’s audit
committee. CIPFA defines the purpose of an audit committee as
being to provide those charged with governance, independent and
high-level focus on the adequacy of governance, risk, and control
arrangements. By doing this, and by overseeing both internal and
external audit, it makes an important contribution to ensuring that
effective assurance arrangements are in place.

CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities
and Police 2022 represents CIPFA’s view on the audit committee
practice and principles that local government bodies in the UK
should adopt.

CIPFA expects that all local government bodies should make their
best efforts to adopt the principles, aiming for effective audit
committee arrangements. This will enable those bodies to meet
their statutory responsibilities for governance and internal control
arrangements, financial management, financial reporting, and
internal audit.

The role of an audit committee also helps to satisfy the wider
requirement for sound financial management, as set out in the
Accounts and Audit Regulations. This requirement is to ensure that
the financial management of the body is adequate and effective. It
is also to ensure that the body has a sound system of internal
control, including arrangements for the management of risk, to
facilitate the effective exercise of that body’s functions.

In addition, Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires
the Council to make arrangements for the proper administration of
its financial affairs. In discharging sound financial management, the
Section 151 Officer requires an effective audit committee to
evaluate the effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management,
control, and governance processes.

Revised terms of reference are proposed for the Board based upon
the best practice model guidance developed by CIPFA. These can
be found at Appendix A.

Under the proposals, the core functions of the Audit and
Governance Board remain unchanged, although some areas of
responsibility are broken down into more detail in accordance with
CIPFA recommended practice. The Board’s role remains focused
on ensuring there is sufficient assurance over the Council’s
governance, risk management and control arrangements. The
Board also retains responsibility for oversight of both internal and
external audit, together with financial reporting and governance
reporting.



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Page 318

The most notable proposed changes to the terms of reference relate
to the composition of the Board, and clarifying its meeting and
reporting arrangements.

In accordance with the CIPFA guidance, it is proposed that:

e Members of the Board shall not include any members of the
Executive Board to ensure independence.

e The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board shall be independent of
Executive Board and shall not be a Chair of a Policy and
Performance Board.

e The Board will be given the option to appoint a qualified co-
opted independent member to provide additional expertise.

e The Board shall comprise seven elected members (CIPFA
recommends a committee size of no more than eight
members).

e The circumstances under which additional meetings of the
Board may be convened are formally set out in the terms of
reference.

e Opportunity is provided for the Board to meet in private with
internal and external audit, if required.

e The Chair of the Board shall report directly to Full Council.

e A statement of purpose is added to provide a summary of the
key responsibilities of the Board.

It should be noted that the revised terms of reference retains the
Board’s responsibility for oversight of member standards. This is a
departure from the CIPFA model. Itis however an arrangement that
is also in place at various other local authorities. The Board’s
responsibility for oversight of member standards has worked well,
and is not considered to have compromised its role as the Council’s
audit committee.

Subject to agreement by the Board, the revised terms of reference
will be put forward as part of the current year’s review of the Council
Constitution. Formal approval of the terms of reference will then be
sought from Full Council in May 2025, with the new arrangements
being implemented in the next municipal year.



4.0
4.1

5.0
5.1

6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.0
7.1

Page 319

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The proposed amendments to the terms of reference have been
made with reference to CIPFA guidance. There are no direct policy
implications.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications associated the
recommendations in this report. The proposed revisions to the
terms of reference will support the Audit and Governance Board in
having effective oversight of the Council’s financial governance
arrangements.

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

Improving Health, Promoting Wellbeing and Supporting
Greater Independence

Effective governance, risk management and control arrangements
are important in terms of the delivery of all the Council’s priorities.
Updating the terms of reference of the Audit and Governance Board
in line with best practice supports the Board’s role in ensuring that
there is sufficient assurance over these arrangements.

Building a Strong, Sustainable Local Economy

See 6.1

Supporting Children, Young People and Families
See 6.1

Tackling Inequality and Helping Those Who Are Most In Need
See 6.1

Working Towards a Greener Future
See 6.1

Valuing and Appreciating Halton and Our Community
See 6.1

RISK ANALYSIS

The proposed amendments to the terms of reference support the
Audit and Governance Board’s role in reviewing and providing
assurance over the Council’s risk management arrangements.



8.0
8.1

9.0
9.1

10.0

Page 320

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES

There are no direct equality and diversity issues arising from this
report. The report focuses on governance matters and the
recommendations do not directly impact on residents.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATION
None arising from this report.

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

Document Place of Inspection  Contact
CIPFA — Audit Halton Stadium, Merv Murphy
Committees: Practical Widnes

Guidance for Local
Authorities and Police
(2022 Edition)



Page 321
APPENDIX A

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE BOARD

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Composition, meetings, and reporting arrangements

1.

The membership of the Board shall not include any members of the
Executive Board.

The Audit and Governance Board will comprise:

e Seven elected members in accordance with the current political
balance rules.

¢ A qualified independent member, who will be a non-voting member.

A minimum of three elected members of the Audit and Governance Board
must be present for the meeting to be deemed quorate.

The Chair and Vice Chair of the Audit and Governance Board will be
independent of the Executive Board and will not be a Chair of a Policy and
Performance Board.

The Audit and Governance Board shall meet four times a year. The Chair
of the Board may convene additional meetings as they deem necessary.

The Head of Paid Service, the Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer,
or the Head of Internal Audit may ask the Chair of the Audit and
Governance Board to convene further meetings to discuss issues on
which they wish to seek the Board’s advice.

Meetings will be open to the public, but the public may be excluded where
information of an exempt nature is being discussed.

The Board, External Audit, and the Head of Internal Audit shall have the
opportunity for private discussions without the Section 151 Officer or other
officers present if issues need exploring in such a forum.

The Chair of the Audit and Governance Board reports to Full Council, as
necessary.

Statement of purpose

10.

11.

The Board’s purpose is to provide an independent and high-level focus on
the adequacy of governance, risk, and control arrangements. Its role in
ensuring there is sufficient assurance over governance, risk and control
gives greater confidence to the Council that those arrangements are
effective.

The Board has responsibility for oversight of both internal and external
audit, together with the financial and governance reports, helping to
ensure there are adequate arrangements in place for both internal
challenge and public accountability.



12.

Page 322

The Board also has responsibility for oversight of member standards.

Powers and duties

Governance, risk, and control

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

To review the Council’s corporate governance arrangements against the
good governance framework, including the ethical framework, and
consider the local code of corporate governance.

To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management
in the Council.

To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the
Board.

To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor
the implementation of agreed actions.

To consider reports on the effectiveness of financial management
arrangements including compliance with CIPFA’s Financial Management
Code.

To consider the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money,
including the Council’'s procurement arrangements, and review
assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these
arrangements.

To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant
partnerships or collaborations.

Governance reporting

20.

21.

To review the Annual Governance Statement prior to approval and
consider whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting
assurances, taking into account the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion.

To consider whether the annual evaluation of the Annual Governance
Statement fairly concludes that the arrangements are fit for purpose,
supporting the achievement of the Council’s objectives.

Financial reporting

22.

23.

To monitor the arrangements and preparations for financial reporting to
ensure that statutory requirements and professional standards can be
met.

To review and approve the annual statement of accounts and specifically
to consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed,
and whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or
audit process that need to be brought to the attention of the Council.



24,

Page 323

To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance
on issues arising from the audit of the accounts.

External Audit

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

To recommend to Full Council the appointment of the Council’s External
Auditors under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and provide
assurance that the External Audit team’s independence is safeguarded.

To consider the External Auditor’'s annual letter, relevant reports, and the
report to those charged with governance.

To consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor.

To support the quality and depth of external audit process and to ensure
that it gives value for money.

To commission additional work from external audit as required.
To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between

external audit and internal audit, and other inspection agencies or relevant
bodies.

Internal Audit

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

To approve the internal audit charter.

To review proposals made in relation to the provision of internal audit
services and to make recommendations

To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s
resource requirement, the approach to using other sources of assurance,
and any work required to place reliance upon those other sources.

To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan
and resource requirements.

To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the Head of
Internal Audit to determine if there are any inappropriate scope or
resource limitations.

To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from
additional roles or responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the Head
of Internal Audit. To approve and periodically review safeguards to limit
such impairments.

To consider reports from the Head of Internal Audit on internal audit’s
performance, including the performance of external providers of internal
audit services if applicable. This will include:

e Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of
concern, and action in hand as a result of internal audit work



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Page 324

e Reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement
Programme

e Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not
conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local
Government Application

To consider the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, specifically:

e The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and
the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that
supports the statement (to provide assurance over the reliability of the
conclusions of internal audit)

¢ The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
framework of governance, risk management and control together with
the summary of the work supporting the opinion (to assist the Board in
reviewing the Annual Governance Statement)

To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports.

To receive reports outlining the action taken where the Head of Internal
Audit has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that
may be unacceptable to the Council, or there are concerns about progress
with the implementation of agreed actions.

To contribute to the external assessment of internal audit that takes place
at least once every five years.

To support the development of effective communication with the Head of
Internal Audit, including providing free and unfettered access to the Chair
of the Audit and Governance Board.

Counter fraud and corruption

43. To review the assessment of risks and potential harm to the Council from
fraud and corruption.

44. To review, approve and monitor the Council’s counter-fraud policies and
strategies, counter fraud activity, and associated resourcing.

Standards

45. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by the members and
co opted members of the authority.

46. To assist members and co-opted members of the authority to observe the
authority’s Code of Conduct.

47. To advise the authority on the adoption or revision of the Code of Conduct.



48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

Page 325

To monitor the operation of the authority’s Code of Conduct.

To advise, train or arrange to train members of the authority on matters
relating to the authority’s Code of Conduct.

To maintain a Hearings Panel (comprised of 3 members of the Board
drawn from 2 political groups if possible) to hear allegations made against
an Elected Member or a Parish Councillor within the Borough Council’s
area.

To investigate or arrange investigation of any complaints made by
Members, Officers, or members of the public in relation to the authority’s
Code of Conduct.

To decide disciplinary matters within the competence of the Committee.

To consider applications from local authority employees for exemption
from political restriction in respect of their posts.

Where appropriate, to issue directions requiring a local authority to include
a post in the list of politically restricted posts it maintains.

To give general advice, following consultation with appropriate parties, on
the application of criteria for designation of a politically restricted post.

To consider applications for dispensations from Members where
appropriate.



Page 326 Agenda Iltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 331

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 337

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 345

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 351

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 357

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 364

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 376

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 383

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 390

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 397

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 404

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 413

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 422

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 430

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 439

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 446

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 455

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 Transformation Programme Governance Arrangements
	AGB20Nov24 TransformationGovernanceAppend.docx

	4 Annual Governance Statement 2023/24
	Annual Governance Statement 2023-24.pdf

	5 2023/24 Statement of Accounts, Audit Findings Report and Letter of Representation
	Statement of Accounts 2023-24 - Post Audit - Final.pdf
	Halton BC External Audit Findings Report 2023-24 - Final.pdf
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings (ISA260) Report for Halton Borough Council
	Slide 2: Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Board,
	Slide 3: Section   Page Headlines 4 Financial statements 7 Value for money arrangements 26 Other statutory powers and duties 28 Independence and ethics 29 Appendices Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 34 Action plan – Audit of
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines
	Slide 6: 1. Headlines
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements - Observations in respect of other risks (continued)
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 20: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 21: 2. Financial Statements: matters discussed with management
	Slide 22: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 23: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 24: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 25: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 26: 3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM) 
	Slide 27: 3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions
	Slide 28: 4. Other statutory powers and duties
	Slide 29: 5. Independence considerations
	Slide 30: 5. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 31: 5. Independence considerations
	Slide 32: 5. Independence considerations (continued)
	Slide 33: Appendices
	Slide 34: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 35: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 36: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements (continued)
	Slide 37: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 38: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 39: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 40: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 41: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 42: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 43: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 44: F. Management Letter of Representation  
	Slide 45: F. Management Letter of Representation  
	Slide 46: F. Management Letter of Representation  
	Slide 47: G. Auditor’s Report
	Slide 48: G. Auditor’s Report
	Slide 49: G. Auditor’s Report
	Slide 50: G. Auditor’s Report
	Slide 51: G. Auditor’s Report
	Slide 52: Final (back) page


	6 External Auditor’s Annual Report 2023/24
	Halton Borough Council - Final Auditor's Annual Report 2023-24
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Executive summary
	Slide 6: Executive summary
	Slide 7: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 8: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 9: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 10: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 11: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 12: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 13
	Slide 14: Statutory recommendation 1
	Slide 15: Statutory recommendation 2
	Slide 16
	Slide 17: Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 18: Use of auditor's powers
	Slide 19
	Slide 20: The current local government landscape   
	Slide 21: Financial sustainability 
	Slide 22: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 23: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 24: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 25: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 26: Governance
	Slide 27: Governance (continued)
	Slide 28: Governance (continued)
	Slide 29: Governance (continued)
	Slide 30: Governance (continued)
	Slide 31: Governance (continued)
	Slide 32: Governance (continued)
	Slide 33: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 34: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 35: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 36: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 37: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 38
	Slide 39: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 40: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 41: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 42: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 43: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 44: Recommendations raised in 2023/24
	Slide 45
	Slide 46: Appendix A: Responsibilities of the Council
	Slide 47: Appendix B:  Value for Money Auditor responsibilities
	Slide 48: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 49: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 50: Appendix C: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 51


	7 Review of Audit and Governance Board Terms of Reference
	9 Internal Audit Progress Report
	App01 - 2024-25 Internal Audit Plan - Summary of Progress.pdf
	App02 - Payments to Vol Orgs.pdf
	App03 - Local Authority Bus Subsidy Grant 2023-24.pdf
	App04 - Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Pothole Fund).pdf
	App05 - DFG 2023-24.pdf
	App06 - Astmoor Primary School.pdf
	App07 - Supporting Families- October 2024 Grant Claim.pdf
	App08 - Kingsway Qtr Dev Grant Claim Q2 24-25.pdf
	App09 - Runcorn Station Quarter Phase 2 Q2.pdf
	App10 - City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement Grant Q2 2024.25.pdf
	App11 - Fairfield Primary School.pdf
	App12 - Household Support Fund Q2 2425.pdf
	App13 - Cheshire Boroughs Concessionary Travel Scheme.pdf
	App14 - Accounts Payable.pdf
	App15 - Ways to Work Q2 Grant Claim.pdf
	App16 - PBSS - Follow Up.pdf
	App17 - Electric Vechicle Charging Points.pdf


